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To further reduce its interest in the financial sector, ERGO
sells its stake in BHW to Postbank. At the same time, it
enters into a marketing cooperation for insurance and
fund products with Postbank AG. Pzage 83
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On the occasion of its 125th anniversary, Munich Re sets up
afoundation under the motto “From Knowledge to Action”.
The first project to be financed by the foundation is a UN
Chair at the Institute for Environment and Human Security
dedicated to international research in the field of disaster
prevention. Page T

In its anniversary year, Munlch Re presents an exhlbltlon
from 1 July to 1 November on the subjects of security and
insecurity, knowledge and ignorance, opportunity and risk.
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The scholarshlp, which was named after its founder and
former Chairman of the Munich Re Board of Management,
Dr. Horst K. Jannott, enables ambitious prospective man-
agers to spend two months at the prestigious Georgia
State University in Atlanta.

Concuding reserve strenginening et Americen Re

For outstanding losses from 1997 until mid-2002, American
Re increases its reserves by US$ 1.4bn, thus drawing a line

under the reserve strengthening measures of recent years.
2
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News mambers an the
The Supervisory Board appoints Dr. Thomas Blunck and
Dr. Wolfgang Strassl as members of the Board of Manage-
ment. Dr. Blunck is responsible for the divisions Special
and Financial Risks and IT, Dr. Strassl| for Life and Health as
well as Human Resources. Pzge 87,
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HVYD shares excrlangss inte LniGredit stoek

The Munich Re Group accepts UniCredit’s exchange
offer, sells approximately one-third of the UniCredit stock
acquired and now holds a stake of under 5% in the major

[talian bank. Pzge ¢2
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Costiest netura. catasliroTng veers
The negative natural catastrophe figures of over uss 90bn
in insured losses worldwide are attributable in particular
to the unusually active and destructive hurricane season.
Hurricane Katrina becomes the most expensive insurance
event of all time. Paga 13, 70

Rarisruher (nsuranss Erovosoin
Munich Re sells Karlsruher Insurance Group to Wiirttem-
bergische Leben, thus giving its own primary insurance

business an even clearer focus. ?zges 82, ¢35

Catasirophe bonds car
windstorms suseessiully o
To further diversify its risk management, Munich Re uses
a bond totalling €110m that provides protection against

severe windstorm events in western Europe. 72g2 23, 82

IREO Trust and MEAS under ong root
Since 1 January 2006, the real estate activities of MEAG and
ERGO Trust have been brought together under the uniform
worldwide management of MEAG in Munich.
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Private haalth insurance for Aby Dheb!

Munich Re signs a cooperation agreement with the
General Authority for Health Services Abu Dhabi that
mandates it to set up the specialised health insurer DAMAN.
Page 26, 88
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In the Munich Re Group, we can look back on an eventful anniversary year 2005, in which
the overall outcome was very successful. We bettered our 2004 record profit of €1.9bn to
€2.7bn, and surpassed our result target of a 12% return on IFRS equity after tax, with an
ROE of 12.3%. This enables us to substantially increase the dividend by 55% to €3.10 per
share.

Our performance in primary insurance and reinsurance was very good in basic busi-
ness (our underwriting business below the threshold of major individual and catastrophe
losses). This has been the case in primary insurance for quite some time. But in reinsur-
ance, too, our hasic business has continually improved in recent years and has long since
attained an excellent quality. We are reaping the benefits here of our consistent line of not
following cyclical market fluctuations, even if it means losing premium volume.

Another feature of the business year that | see as positive was our decision in reinsur-
ance to put an end to the issue of reserve strengthening for American Re's business.
Although our package of measures involved a major financial effort, we have freed
Munich Re from a burden that had hindered us and adversely affected our Group’s
public image - especially in the capital markets.

In our investments, we have further reduced concentration risks and shareholdings
outside our core business, which accords with our strategy of promoting diversification of
risks on the assets side of our balance sheet as well. We achieved €2.1bn in realised capital
gains, notably from the sale of stakes in MAN and the Karlsruher Insurance Group, the cut-
ting back of our holdings in Allianz and Commerzbank, and the exchange of our HVB shares
into UniCredit stock, followed by the reduction of our UniCredit stake to under 5%. So our
diversification strategy also had a positive effect on the result for the year.

This contrasts with the huge burden from the series of natural catastrophes in sum-
mer and autumn. Indeed, 2005 can justifiably be called the “year of natural disasters”. Not
only the hurricanes and the vast amount of damage they caused, especially in the USA,
made headlines. The severe earthquake in Pakistan, which claimed so many lives, and the
catastrophic floods in the Alpine region, particularly in Switzerland, were also major news
items that contributed to the negative picture. Our result was impacted above all by the
losses from Hurricane Katrina, which we expect to give rise to claims expenditure of over
€1.6bn. Altogether, we estimate that claims costs for natural catastrophes in 2005 at Group
level will total €2.6bn. Natural catastrophe losses consumed nearly 18% of the reinsurance




Dr. Nikolaus von Bomhard
Chairman of Munich Re’s Board of Management

group’s total premium income in the past year, compared with an average of only 3% per
annum in the ten-year period 1995-2004; last year's losses alone raise the average for the
ten-year period 1996—2005 to 4.6%. But | would like to explicitly stress that we do not
determine our pricing policy for natural catastrophe business just retrospectively, from
many decades of past claims data, but naturally also prospectively -~ with due regard to
expected developments such as climate change.

The 2005 hurricane season demonstrated that there has been a further increase in
exposure. This development requires a re-evaluation of some aspects of the risks and thus
an adjustment of the models we work with in order to assess risks from a scientific and
actuarial perspective and to calculate the right price. | consider these adjustments to be
normal and necessary. For only if our underwriting is based on the latest knowledge can
we properly judge the profitability of the business offered to us and take the right decisions.
We have to be “best in class” in this field — only then do we have the competitive edge we
require.

Allin all, | can say that | am pleased with the results achieved in the last two years.

But | am not completely satisfied, let alone complacent. There is still too much to be
done.

At this point last year, | described three cardinal virtues as the foundation of our
strategy on which we intended to build our programme for the next few years. They were:
focusing on “risk” as the underlying object of our business, actively diversifying risks, and
optimising management quality/improving methods and tools for steering our business.
We continue to consistently gear our work to these principles in order to achieve our most
important corporate objective: turning risk into value.

| consider it essential in this context to provide you with more details of the change
in our communicated result targets (which, incidentally, would not have been possible
without the work on the above-mentioned virtues). Up to now we have defined our result
target in terms of return on equity (ROE), basing it on the shareholders’ equity shown in
our balance sheet. This will now change. In future, we will be using return on risk-adjusted
capital (RORAC), meaning a result target related to our risk-based capital. In my view, this is
the only economic basis that permits meaningful statements on the performance of our
business operations. For the same reason, we use value-based management to steer and
measure our business internally (reinsurance was the pilot). The amount of equity in our




balance sheet is directly influenced by changes in the market values of our investments.
Increases would automatically raise the result target, even though they have nothing to
do with our real business, especially our risk position. The same applies conversely, of
course, with falling market values leading to a lower result target. If we take risk-adjusted
capital as the yardstick throughout, we build a direct bridge with the development of the
risks we assume on the asset and liability sides of our balance sheet when we acquire
investments and write insurance or reinsurance business. Our risk position is aggregated
in our risk-based capital. And it is on this capital that we have to earn the return which you,
our shareholders, expect.

| freely admit that this material is somewhat complex. But | think it important to
present the background to you, since corporate management and control are becoming
more methodology-oriented, giving these issues increasing significance.

When it comes to our core business of handling risk, the Munich Re Group has a com-
petitive advantage - our option of coordinating and combining competence in primary
insurance and reinsurance, which allows us to realise integrated business models along
the whole insurance value chain. Exploiting this option naturally presupposes that we
have created suitable structures on the Group’s decision-making bodies. That is why we
have established a Group Committee and a Reinsurance Committee on Munich Re’s Board
of Management, enabling us to determine and implement strategy for the whole Group
and our reinsurance business more stringently in each case and with enhanced focus.
Value-based management and risk management will become more efficient, with even
greater advantage being taken of synergies.

An area in which we are already systematically combining our specialist know-how
from primary insurance and reinsurance, and thus achieving clear synergetic effects, is
the global health market. It is characterised by high growth and earnings potential and
offers much scope for innovation. Two examples of the realisation of our integrated health
market strategy are China and Abu Dhabi. In the growth market of China, the Munich Re
Group is involved through DKV in the formation of the first private health insurer, PicC
Health. In Abu Dhabi we are taking on the development and operation of the first private
health insurance carrier, offering basic and supplementary insurance for expats and thus
improving healthcare provision.




Through these and similar initiatives, we aim to generate profit-oriented growth. But it
is still the case that, for us, growth is not an end in itself. | have repeatedly stressed that
the profitability of our business clearly has priority, and you can count on it staying that
way.

In the current year we remain firmly focused on our course of sustained profitability.
Our target for 2006 is a return on risk-adjusted capital of 15%, which translates into a pro-
jected consolidated profit of between €2.6bn and €2.8bn, an objective that should con-
tinue to make your Munich Re shares an interesting investment.

Yours sincerely,

Dr. Nikolaus von Bomhard
Chairman of Munich Re’s Board of Management
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Dr. jur. Nikolaus von Bomhard
{Chairman of the Board of Management)
* 1956, Jawyer, with Munich Re since 1985

Group Development (formerly Strategic Planning);
Press; Internal Auditing; Executive Offices, Group
Top Executives

“Focus and discipline. We must systemat-
ically build on our strengths. They will
enable us to achieve the growth in profit
we aspireto.”

Dr.jur. Heiner Hasford
* 1947, lawyer, with Munich Re since 1978

Group Investments, Corporate Finance; M&A;
Legal and Regulatory Affairs, Compliance;
General Services; Organisational Design and
Development

“We must keep a close eye on the inter-
national capital markets. Successful asset
management in the Munich Re Group will
allow us to strengthen our capital base
further.”

Dr. rer. pol. Thomas Blunck

(from 1 October 2005)

* 1965, graduate in business management, with
Munich Re since 1999

Special and Financial Risks; Information
Technology

“We need to have complete command of
the risk value chain - from the assessment
of risk via portfolio strategy and accumula-
tion control to the protection of our balance
sheet. This complexity is our greatest
challenge and also our core competence.”

Georg Daschner
* 1949, chartered insurer, with Munich Re since
1965

Europe 2 and Latin America

“Know-how and know-who - What matters
is an excellent knowledge of the markets,
the trust of our clients, outstanding profes-
sional skills, efficient capital management
and a positive attitude to innovation.”

Stefan Heyd
(until 31 December 2005)
* 1945, lawyer, with Munich Re since 1975

Corporate Underwriting/Global Clients

“Knowledge and client proximity. We must
be the best in risk knowledge - also for
new types of risk complex. On this basis,
we devise individually tailored products
and solutions for our clients, bearing in
mind that every client is unique.”

Dr. rer. nat. Torsten Jeworrek
* 1961, mathematician, with Munich Re since
1990

Corporate Underwriting/Global Clients;
Reinsurance Investments; Accounting,
Controlling and Central Reserving for
Reinsurance

“Risk is our business, and excellent risk
management is the key to success. Itis
therefore imperative to translate our scien-
tific and technical expertise directly into
state-of-the-art risk management.”




Christian Kluge
* 1941, chartered marine insurer, with Munich Re
since 1964 :

Europe 1, Corporate Communications

“Seeing risks as a positive challenge and
tackling them with creativity, courage and
a sense of proportion in order to exploit
the opportunities. What appears to be an
obstacle can be a chance to forge ahead.”

John Phelan

* 1947, underwriter, with Munich Re since 1973

North America

“Turning risk into value implies a readiness
to acquire a thorough understanding of the
risks which our clients may face, together
with both a willingness and an ability to
imaginatively and intelligently devise
mutually beneficial solutions. Risk is not
our adversary, it is our opportunity!”

Dr. phil. Detlef Schneidawind

{until 31 December 2005)

(Board member in charge of industrial relations,
within the meaning of Section 33 of the German
Co-Determination Act)

*1944, lawyer, graduate in business manage-
ment, with Munich Re since 1973

Life and Health; Human Resources

“We need employees whose skills and
training not only keep pace with the risks
as they develop but also anticipate them. It
is the only way we can put our resources,
in particular our capital, to optimal use.”

Dr.jur. Jorg Schneider
* 1958, business graduate, lawyer, with Munich
Re since 1988

Group Accounting; Group Controlling; Integrated
Risk Management; Taxes; Investor Relations

“Transparency regarding our business
through integrated IT systems, first-class
risk management and entrepreneurial
spirit with the necessary sense of responsi-
bility and proportion. That is the founda-
tion of our long-term strategy of adding
value.”

Dr. oec. publ. Wolfgang Strassl

{from 1 October 2005)

{Board member in charge of industrial relations,
within the meaning of Section 33 of the German
Co-Determination Act)

*1956, graduate in economics, with Munich Re
since 1988

Life and Health; Human Resources

“First create value for our clients, and then
have an appropriate share in the resulting
stuiccess — and do both better than others.”

Further details on the distribution of Board responsibilities may be found on page 51.

Karl Wittmann
* 1945, chartered insurer, with Munich Re since
1961

Asia, Australasia, Africa

“Consensus with our business partners
with regard to risk, exposure and adequate
pricing. But also consensus that the price
will not change if the risk and exposure
remain the same.”
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Ladies and gentlemen,

In the year under review, the Supervisory Board again ful-
filled all the tasks and duties incumbent upon it by law and
under the Articles of Association. We worked closely with
the Board of Management, advising it on the management
of the Company and constantly monitoring its conduct of
the business, whilst it consulted us directly and without
delay on all decisions of fundamental importance. The
Board of Management satisfied its reporting obligations
towards the Supervisory Board by briefing us regularly
and in detail on all important business transactions. We
discussed these written and oral reports intensively and
openly with members of the Board of Management at our
meetings. In order to prepare for important topics that
were to be dealt with at the meetings, the shareholder
representatives and the employee representatives met
the Chairman of the Board of Management separately
beforehand. In addition, | remained in contact with the
Chairman of the Board of Management throughout the
year under review regarding Munich Re’s main business
developments. Inspection measures in accordance with
Section 111 para. 2 sentence 1 of the German Stock Com-
panies Act were not required in 2005.

Toeal poimis of the meetings of the full Supervisory Board
The full Supervisory Board met four times, with virtually
complete attendances. Taking part as guests at two meet-
ings were representatives of the German Federal Financial
Supervisory Authority {BaFin), which for some years now
has been making use of the powers granted to it in Section 83

10

Dr. Hans-Jiirgen Schinzler
Chairman

of the German Insurance Control Act to routinely attend
the Supervisory Board meetings of insurance and reinsur-
ance companies. The Board of Management reported in
depth at the meetings about the guarterly financial state-
ments and the outlook for the 2005 results. We regularly
discussed in detail the development of results in the
Munich Re Group and in the business fields of primary
insurance and reinsurance, also making comparisons
between the Munich Re Group and its competitors. The
Board of Management reported to us on the business
situation of the major subsidiaries on an ongoing basis,
and we took a critical interest in the development of Ameri-
can Re in particular. We devoted special attention in the
year under review to the strategic alignment of the Group,
dealing with this topic thoroughly on several occasions, as
well as with the planning for 2006 and 2007. The Board of
Management kept us informed about the Company'’s risk
situation and profitability. We were given a presentation
of the various initiatives in integrated risk management,
which we then discussed intensively on the full Super-
visory Board.

At the suggestion of the Board of Management, we
considered and approved changes in the Board of Manage-
ment’s rules of procedure. The newly established Board
of Management committees for Group and reinsurance
operations will provide for more efficient management of
the Group as a whole, with its business fields of primary
insurance and reinsurance. We reviewed and further
enhanced the process of succession planning for the Board
of Management and appointment of new members. Other
focal points dealt with at the meetings were the Board of




Management’s personnel report and the restructuring of
its remuneration. The Supervisory Board kept a close eye
on the state of the investigations being conducted by New
York State Attorney General Spitzer in the USA and other
authorities regarding broker transactions and finite rein-
surance contracts, and on their possible consequences for
Munich Re. We also obtained regular information on the
status of Gloria, Munich Re’s major IT project.

The Board of Management informed us, also between
the meetings, about various current business transactions,
including the effects of HypoVereinsbank’s special write-
down, the proposed merger between HypoVereinsbank
and UniCredit, the reserve strengthening at American Re,
the effects of Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma, and the
sale of the Karlsruher Insurance Group, as well as about
the scope and the impact of the natural catastrophe figures
for 2005.

Work of the commitieas

The four committees of the Supervisory Board {(Personnel
Committee, Standing Committee, Audit Committee and
Conference Committee) are each composed of shareholder
and employee representatives. The membership of the
Supervisory Board committees is shown in the overview
on page 52.

Apart from preparing the Supervisory Board meetings,
the Standing Committee devoted itself at its three meet-
ings mainly to topics of corporate governance, share
transfers and UniCredit’s offer to HypoVereinsbank
shareholders.

The Personnel Committee met four times in the year
under review. It concerned itself with the Board of Manage-
ment’s remuneration, especially with the reorganisation of
the compensation structure, with contract adjustments,
and with the seats accepted by members of the Board
of Management on external supervisory, advisory and
similar boards. Besides this, it prepared the forthcoming
appointments to the Board of Management and agreed
on personal objectives with the Board of Management
members.

The Audit Committee held a total of five meetings in
2005. It closely discussed the annual financial statements
for the Company and the Group in the presence of the
external auditor and carefully examined the quarterly

financial statements. The Audit Committee welcomed the
factthatin the year under review the Board of Manage-
ment set up a Disclosure Committee, which was already
able to participate in the annual accounting operations for
2004, The Audit Committee made preparations for the
appointment of the external auditor, which has to be
decided on by the full Supervisory Board, obtained the
auditor’s declaration of independence, commissioned the
auditor, fixed focal points for the audit work and acquired
from the auditor an overview of the type and scope of its
non-audit-related services performed for Munich Re. Also
at an extraordinary meeting, the Audit Committee consid-
ered American Re’s loss reserves and the consequences of
their substantial increase. Beyond this, it discussed the
Group's risk situation and the development of embedded
values in life reinsurance business and in life and health
business in 2004. The Audit Committee also obtained infor-
mation on the ongoing investigations in the USA and other
countries regarding broker business and non-traditional
reinsurance and received the Internal Auditing Division’s
annual report for 2004.

The Conference Committee as per Section 27 para. 3
of the German Co-Determination Act did not need to be
convened.

Regular and extensive information about the work of
the committees was given at the meetings of the full
Supervisory Board.

Annuzg! finencizel stetements

KPMG Bayerische Treuhandgesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft
Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft audited the following
documents and gave them an unqualified auditor’s opin-
ion: Munich Reinsurance Company'’s financial statements
and consolidated financial statements as at 31 December
2005, and the management reports for the Company and
the Group. All members of the Supervisory Board received
the auditor’s reports promptly. The Audit Committee
examined in advance the Company and Group financial
statements and the management reports, and discussed
them in detail with the auditor at the Audit Committee
meeting on 12 March 2006, which also considered the
auditor's reports, in order to prepare for the examination
by the full Supervisory Board. The Audit Committee
infarmed the full Supervisory Board at the balance sheet

11




meeting on 13 March 2006 about its examinations and dis-
cussions with the auditor.

After the Audit Committee, the Supervisory Board also
checked the Company financial statements, the Group
financial statements, the Company management report,
the Group management report and the proposal of the
Board of Management for appropriation of the net retained
profits for the year. The Supervisory Board agrees with the
outcome of the external audit and after its own concluding
examination also has no objections to the Company and
Group financial statements. Consequently, on the basis of
the Audit Committee’s prior examination and the result of
its own examination, the Supervisory Board approved the
Company and Group financial statements at the balance
sheet meeting on 13 March 2006. We unconditionally
support the Board of Management'’s proposal for the
appropriation of the net retained profits.

Sorporele governenes 2nd foizration of comaliance

Munich Re’s Supervisory Board is fully committed to good
corporate governance. At the 2005 Annual General Mest-
ing, it therefore proposed an amendment to the Articles
of Association to restructure the Supervisory Board'’s
remuneration: the fixed remuneration has been increased
so that overall remuneration is now less dependent on
Company performance; the introduction of a result-ori-
ented instead of dividend-oriented variable remuneration
component ensures that the calculation basis is not
directly influenced by the Supervisory Board. In the Board
of Management'’s absence, we once again examined the
efficiency of the Supervisory Board’s work and monitored
the impiementation of the measures proposed. More
information on this subject can be obtained in the section
“Corporate governance” starting on page 110.

On 8 November 2005, the Board of Management and
the Supervisory Board published a declaration of compli-
ance in accordance with Section 161 of the German Stock
Companies Act, which can be read both on the Company’s
website and page 112 of this report.

Zomposition of the Bozrd of Vg
With effect from 1 October 2005, we appointed Dr. Thomas
Blunck to the Board of Management. Dr. Blunk, who has
been with Munich Re since 1999, was latterly Divisional

12

Unit Head in the Special and Financial Risks Division,
which he has now taken charge of on the Board of Manage-
ment, along with the Information Technology Division.

Also with effect from 1 October 2005, the Supervisory
Board appointed Dr. Wolfgang Strassl a member of the
Board of Management and, as from 1 January 2006, Board
member in charge of industrial relations. Dr. Strassl has
been with Munich Re since 1988 and was most recently
Divisional Unit Head in the Life and Health Division, for
which he is now responsible on the Board of Management,
in addition to the Human Resources Division.

As at 31 December 2005, Mr. Stefan Heyd and Dr. Detlef
Schneidawind retired as members of the Board of Manage-
ment. We thank both gentlemen for their many years of
successful work and their great personal dedication in
responsible positions.

On behalf of the Supervisory Board, | would like to
take this opportunity to thank the members of the Board
of Management and all the staff most sincerely for their
untiring commitment which enabled Munich Re, in its
anniversary year, to post a new record result.

Munich, 13 March 2006

For the Supervisory Board

& ] bty

Dr. Hans-Jurgen Schinzler
Chairman
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Life without risk is as inconceivable as winning the World Cup without training. The word
“risk” comes from ltalian, and the original meaning is said to have been to circumnavigate
cliffs. Thus, right from the start, risk entailed mastering threats to life and property.

The bottomry bonds of the seafaring Phoenicians and the
first marine insurance policies used by Lombardy merchants
in the 14th century were based on the most important elem-
ent of insurance: spreading risks on the many shoulders of
a risk community. An international spread of risks was also
one of Carl Thieme's principal ideas when he established
Munich Re as a professional reinsurer in 1880.

With over 5,000 clients in around 160 countries,
Munich Re is today one of the global market leaders in
reinsurance. And since 1997, when Munich Re combined
four long-established insurance companies to create the
ERGO Insurance Group - Germany's second-largest primary
insurer — its services have covered virtually the whole
value chain of insurance. Reinsurance and primary insur-
ance are two elements that complement and strengthen
each other: whether in identifying and assessing a risk, in
calculating loss probabilities or in risk and claims manage-
ment. The Munich Re Group operates in life and health
insurance as well as in the many different classes of prop-
erty-casualty business, with products ranging from trad-

itional forms of risk transfer to innovative coverage and
service concepts.

Munich Re's declared objective is to turn risk into
value — a paradoxical idea for many who shy away from
the large individual and catastrophe risks we carry. The key
lies in first identifying and understanding the nature of a
risk and then analysing it in terms of quality and quantity.
This allows us to establish regularities and mathematical
relationships, with which we as insurers demystify risks
and carry many that others consider unacceptable. After
all, the greater the number of different risks in the portfolio
{provided they are wisely spread), the less the likelihood of
our overall business result being seriously impacted by
single risks. We refer to this as “diversifying risk” along the
value chain. Through this professional approach, we turn
risk into opportunity and create sustained value - for the
individual, for society, for our clients and naturally for us as
an enterprise, by which we also mean our employees and
shareholders.

Risk veive chain Icese 1_Murricanes
Identify Assess and Mode! risks Develop Secure capital Market
The risk risks select risks products base products
» » ”» » » »
ey 3 bt » 3 ¥
The value Provide for Identify Make risks Devise individual Create capacity and Offer
clarity opportunities insurable solutions for clients secure claims-paying solutions
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in 2005, Munich Re celebrated its 125th anniversary and took advantage of the occasion to
highlight the many facets of risk: not just the hazards, threats and suffering, but also the

inherent opportunities, the momentum with which risk drives development, the knowledge
edge gained from being familiar with it, the innovative climate it creates, and the related

affirmative approach to life.

A few examples of what we did in the past business year
are presented in this section. They each originate with a
risk and illustrate that, with the right know-how, every risk
can be turned into a chance for action and value creation -
paving the way for opportunities.

Hurricane Katrina hit the insurance industry with the
largest loss of all time, and our risk models and trend
analyses leave little doubt that we will have to reckon with
losses of this magnitude more often. What can we learn
from this catastrophe? How can we ensure that uncon-
trollable mega-events entailing so much devastation and
suffering remain insurable?

Only if we write risks responsibly and spread them
intelligently can we be the client’s preferred partner in risk.
This is one of the challenges for integrated risk manage-
ment. How can we achieve a balance between our risk
appetite, the risks we assume, and sustained financial
strength? How do we decide which risks to carry ourselves
and which to purchase retrocession for, so as to share
them with others?

Severe accidents can be horrific — there is no question
about it. But when they happen, calm analysis and compe-
tence are invaluable, as was demonstrated in the case of
the Wiehl Valley Bridge. How can losses be reliably deter-
mined? Can the extent of their consequences be reduced
once they have occurred?

Itis common knowledge that demographic trends and
technological progress are causing healthcare costs to
climb to dizzying heights. Less well known are the solu-
tions that service providers like ArztPartner, rehacare and
Health Dialog offer: disease management programmes,
for example. What are the options for keeping costs from
spiralling out of control? How can we cut costs without
compromising quality?

Or let us take Abu Dhabi. For us in western countries,
it is difficult to imagine what it means not to have access
to adequate and affordable medical care. How do we go
about introducing compulsory insurance in a country with-
out burdening its economic system? How can we succeed
in creating profitable health insurance for the future?

“Case2_Rszlrocessicn Cese3 Wiien! Vailey ]case 4_Disaase meanegement lcase5_Abu Dhadi
3ricge programmaes
Conclude Diversify Develop new business
contracts risks Manage claims Provide service models
» » » » » »
Carry risks Optimise risk Protect against losses Create added value Secure a profitable

capital
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The risk_ As temperatures rise, so do exposures.

At the time, 2004 went down as the most expensive natural
catastrophe year in insurance history. But the annals had
to be rewritten again following the events of 200s.

Scientists cite two reasons for this. First, the summer
temperature of the upper layer of water in all tropical
oceans has increased by an average of 0.5°C since 1970.
The proportion of “severe” tropical cyclones {Categories
4-5 on the Saffir-Simpson Scale) has accordingly
increased from 16% to 36%. There are strong indications
that human activity is responsible for this long-term
warming.

Second, in recent years, researchers have also been
concentrating their attention on the natural climate oscilla-
tion in the North Atlantic, which involves alternating
phases of exceptionally warm and exceptionally cool sea

RUEEEN

Munich Re reacts to the increased exposures from hurricanes.

surface temperatures, each lasting several decades. As a
consequence, the frequency and intensity of hurricanes are
higher in the warm phases.

The hazard potential becomes particularly clear when
these two effects are observed in concert. In the current
warm phase (since about 1995) the number of landfalls
involving powerful hurricanes (Categories 3—5 on the
Saffir-Simpson Scale) has been about 70% higher than in
the previous warm phase (approx. 1926—-1970), an increase
thatis very probably due above all to global warming.
Compared with the last North Atlantic cold phase (approxi-
mately 1971-1994), the number has shot up by about 230%,
primarily under the influence of the natural climate oscilla-
tion. Loss models have to take these changes into account
in future.




Opportunity and value_ Getting a grip on the risk - at
every step.

Underwriting natural catastrophe risks is one of the most
arduous and complicated activities in insurance. Munich
Re tackles these risks from various angles in order to take
advantage of the opportunities this business offers.

The primary task is to model the respective hazards
and the potential losses correctly. The two last years
revealed that the natural hazard models insurance com-
panies use to forecast potential losses had not yet attained
a sufficient degree of precision. Thanks to the experience
our experts have gathered in over 30 years of geo risks
research, we are less reliant on vendor models and can
respond more quickly to changes in conditions. This
includes acquiring a more accurate picture of the loss situ-
ation in order to respond immediately in our underwriting
by means of enhanced modelling methods. Improvements
in risk models were put into effect during the 1 January
treaty renewals.

in this way, we take into account the increased fre-
quency and intensity of extreme events, but not only in
the form of price adjustments.

We join forces with our clients in pressing for meas-
ures that will enable the insurance industry to continue
assuming its ecanomic responsibility. Such measures
include enhancing risk transparency through liability infor-
mation, avoiding construction on highly exposed shore
locations, improving existing building regulations, and
establishing new ones. Where that is not enough, we have
to take measures of our own, independent of the primary
insurers if need be. In order to reduce our overall commit-
ment, we introduce any sublimits, event limits and cession

Munich Re's competitive advantage

Evaluation of nat cat
by Munich Re Group
Geo Risks Research

Scientific data base:
Munich Re Group
NatCatSERVICE

Modelling of storms,
earthquakes, flooding

limits that are necessary — as in Florida, where a single
cyclone can generate immense losses on account of the
extreme concentrations of values.

Munich Re supports its clients in the field of claims
management, too. In ad-hoc meetings with our cedants,
newsletters on claims management and special publica-
tions, we give advice on how the enormous number of
individual losses can be processed in an efficient and
professional manner.

It is generally no problem to make a quick and reliable
assessment of any major loss. When it comes to extremely
large losses, however, there are various reasons why such
an assessment is only possible with a certain delay. In the
case of Katrina, for example, an area that was partially
barely accessible, the tremendously complex loss profile
due to the combined effects of windstorm, dyke breaches
and storm surges, and a grand total of more than two mil-
lion individual insured losses made it difficult to obtain a
reliable picture. Initially it is our own underwriting that
benefits fram the lessons we learn in the context of such
mega-events, but our clients eventually benefittoo.

This selection of measures shows that we actively
endeavour to ensure that natural catastrophes will con-
tinue to be insurable risks. All those involved can depend
on our expertise and experience — be it in risk modelling,
portfolio analysis or claims management. Furthermore, we
are convinced that an appropriate price policy and intelli-
gent terms and conditions are a good basis for making the
insurance of natural catastrophes a profitable undertaking
for primary insurers and reinsurers.

" Selective underwriting

P PSS ulip } et e ————
Higher transparency
of risks

Benchmarking
of models
with external data

Higher attachment point
and reduced limits
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The risk_ -

b central to our Business,

“Risk is our business”, as we say at Munich Re. For 126
years, we have been proving our competence in testing,
modelling, managing and diversifying risk. We aspire to be
the most profitable of the major reinsurers and a reliable
partner for our clients. One of the key factors in meeting
this objective is a balanced portfolio. In striving to achieve
this, we can decide on “more risk” or - in the case of exces-
sive exposures to major perils like earthquakes and wind-
storms —we can opt for “less risk”. We use integrated risk
management to attain a balance of risks in accordance with
the risk appetite set for Munich Re by the Board of Manage-
ment. In order to mitigate fluctuations in results, to guard
against liquidity shortages, and to protect our financial
resources, our integrated risk management keeps a close
watch on all significant risks and weighs up the costs and
benefits of external risk transfer ~ with a view to securing
our Group’s profitability and retaining the confidence of
our investors and clients.
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Precise analysis and careful weighing of options leads
experts Rupert Flatscher (right) and Hans-Joachim Thoenes
to the solution that creates value for Munich Re.




The opportunity_ How do retrocession and risk
trading work? We asked our specialists Hans-Joachim
Thoenes (HJT) and Rupert Flatscher (RF) to explain.

What risks do we mainly retrocede?

HJT_ Primarily natural catastrophe risks - above a certain
amount. They are the biggest exposure, which dominates
the volatility of our balance sheet. In June 2001, we defined
retrocession as a corporate function. Ultimately this means
that we protect Munich Re’s results and not the perform-
ance of individual lines of business. In this way, we exploit
Munich Re’s financial strength and the diversification of
our portfolio - for us and our cedants.

Do we only need retrocession for extreme events?

RF_ Yes, because Munich Re sees itseif as a risk carrier,
not as an intermediary. We use retrocession to reduce the
volatility of our results and, in doing s0, save risk capital
for our business.

What methods do we use to balance risks in our portfolio?
HJT_ First and foremost, we purchase excess-of-loss cover
on the retrocession market from reinsurers and insurers in
Europe, North America and Asia.

RF_ Additionally, in November 2005, we placed a catas-
trophe bond (“cat bond”} covering the European wind-
storm peril. The objective was to transfer a peak exposure
to the capital markets in a cost-efficient manner. An advan-
tage of a bond like this is that in the event of a predefined
occurrence, the capital (held in a trust account) flows
immediately to Munich Re. We deploy such instruments
flexibly, thus utilising the capacity of different markets.

20

Are there any other differences and advantages?

HJT_ Retrocession treaties normally have a term of

12 months. By contrast, cur cat bond covers four storm
seasons. There are also differences in the underlying
concepts. Retrocession treaties are based on the actual
losses. A cat bond, however, pays out irrespective of the
loss amount if a “parametric trigger” is exceeded, Le. ifa
windstorm in Europe meets predefined meteorological
criteria. The retrocession market generally covers very
large loss events occurring every ten to 30 years, whereas
cat bonds tend to cover mega-events with a return period
of 100 years and more. So the two instruments have very
different effects on our portfolio. Cost efficiency is the sole
decision-making criterion.

How difficult is it to define the parametric

trigger for a cat bond?

RF_ Well, itis certainly a challenge! At Munich Re we have
many experts working intensively on the various natural
hazards and the losses they cause for the insurance indus-
try. Of course, it is not always possibie to combine a para-
metric trigger with a precisely predefined loss amount. But
we believe that, given cur expertise in this area, the risk of
a very large loss occurring without the cat bond being paid
out is very remote.

What is the specific benefit of our recently

placed cat bond?

HJT_ Capacity for Windstorm Europe is in great demand
among our cedants. The cat bond helps us and our clients.
RF_ It enables us to tap the capital market as an additional
risk carrier. But it is also attractive for investors, as the risk
has virtually no correlation with other risks normaily
traded in the capital markets.




Where are we going?
HJT_ The capial market for natural carastrophe risks has
pecome more mature. We bave therefore taken the stra-

tegic decision to position ourselves mare strongly Intnis

fore believe that the capital market for insurance risks will
remain dynamic. But for this to happen the time-consum
ing structuring process for the transactions will have to
become more efficient.
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The value_ Arranging suitable refrocession coveas
means protecting Munich Re against extremely high

losses,

Itis the job of reinsurers, from both a macroeconomic and
client point of view, to bear risks and finance losses, for
example major losses following natural catastrophes. In
order to be able to provide capacity for such risks, we
require capital, which our shareholders will only provide -
as for any other quoted company - if we remain profitable.

Retrocession is one of the levers we use in risk man-
agement to keep our business on track. Its sole purpose is
to protect our capital and our annual result from major
losses. We do not use itto increase our capacity.

Our retrocession cover is triggered if we are hitby an
extremely high loss exceeding the risk appetite defined by
the Board of Management, such as the terrorist attack on
the World Trade Center in 2001 or Hurricane Katrina in
2006, the largest insured loss event of all time. In years in
which no such extreme losses occur, the retrocessionaires
retain the premiums we have paid as their profit. Retroces-
sion cover is only purchased if prices, terms and conditions
meet our requirements.
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or liability may involve a whole bridge.

The risk_ Unlimited covers are not only a theoretical
threat. Dr. Alfons Maier gives a first-hand account:

26 August 2004_ Reports of a serious accident on the A4
autobahn are being shown on the evening news. It appears
that, after colliding with a car, a tanker truck has broken
through crash barriers on the Wiehl Valley Bridge and
plunged some 25 metres. The force of the impact caused
the 33,000 litres of fuel on board to burst into flames, and
the driver was killed instantly. The full extent of the
damage is not yet clear.

30 August 2004_ The main third-party liability insurer
affected reports the loss to us and informs us that the
motor policy in question provides unlimited liability for
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property damage. Media reports on the accident are
dramatic. Temperatures of up to 1,200°C have had a
devastating impact on the more than 700-metre-long
bridge. It is feared that one of the piers is irreparably
damaged. The bridge may even be a total loss if for
structural reasons the pier cannot be replaced. It would
have to be dismantled section by section. The whole
operation, including rebuilding, could possibly take around
four years. As the A4 is one of the main motorways serving
Cologne, consequential costs would be immense. In the
worst possible case, the loss could run to a three-digit-
million figure.




Opportunity and value_ Reacting quickly and
competently for the best possible settlement of the claim.

1 September 2004_1 am a senior claims engineer and
member of the Munich Re team investigating and analys-
ing this major loss. We have been liaising with the third-
party liability insurer for the last 48 hours, comparing
notes and offering our support with any initial measures
that have to be taken. What we urgently need now is a
more accurate estimate of the loss. In order to get a better
picture, | call in David McGhie, an external bridge construc-
tion specialist who has carried out other investigations for
us and works closely with the primary insurer’s engineer-
ing expert.

2 September 2004_ Together with representatives of the
North Rhine-Westphalian Highways Agency and the
primary insurer, David and ) visit the site to inspect the
damage. The scene is catastrophic: broken crash barriers,
huge scorch marks on the bridge and in the area surround-
ing the accident, and tons of contaminated earth. We
analyse scorch marks, look for signs of cracking or spalling
concrete and try to get some indication of stability, for
example by searching for distortions. Our impression is
that, despite the extent of the damage to the bridge, it can
be repaired. Even the pier directly affected is not so badly
damaged that it needs to be demolished. Working closely
with the primary insurer and the engineering expert, we
plan our next steps.

7 September 2004_ All of the parties involved (the third-
party liability insurer, the engineering expert, the High-
ways Agency and the reinsurer) meet in Cologne to discuss
the claim. To our great relief, it is now certain that the
bridge will not need to be demolished. However, further
expert opinions are required. As the bridge was already
scheduled for maintenance, the expenditure for this will of
course have to be offset against the repair costs. Negoti-
ations are not going to be easy.

Together with the primary insurer’s engineering
experts, we succeed in convincing the Highways Agency
and its representatives that the damage can be repaired by
arguing that the busy motorway bridge near Cologne need
not be closed to traffic for several years, which would be a
major advantage for the public.

9 September 2004_ It is now certain that the loss amount
will be only a fraction of the nine-figure sum originally
feared. Munich Re’s share of the loss is approximately 40%.

Support and assistance with major losses like the
Wiehl Valley Bridge are part and parcel of our service.
Clients value our professional competence as well as our
ability to act swiftly on site and to consult with everyone
concerned in order to settle the claim as favourably as
possible.

Such loss events can also be of significance for the
market as a whole. It is abundantly clear from this particu-
lar incident that unlimited covers for property losses in
motor liability insurance are more than just a theoretical
risk for the insurance industry. Exposures of this nature
prove that the case for introducing limits on liability is
justified.

l Originally estimated foss

Probable actual loss

- Loss reduction

Professional claims management grows in importance, the
higher the loss threatens to be. The costs for settling the
major loss on the Wieh! Valley Bridge have been reduced to a
fraction of the originally estimated loss.
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Disease management programmes and rehab
management — Advantages for patients and insurers

The risk_ Chronic conditions take their toll on individ-
uals and insurers.

Chronic illness is a burden for all concerned. Whetheritis a
disease like cardiac insufficiency or the consequences of a
serious accident, everyday activities become a problem,
the ability to lead a normal life is severely impaired, and
often even living arrangements have to be adjusted to
the new situation. Physical limitations and disabilities
frequently have implications for work as well, of course ~
without professional help, it can be difficult to make the
necessary changes to the workplace or to find a suitable
new job.

Where patients require permanent medical treatment,
health insurers also feel the effects, as costs are enormous.
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Frequent hospitalisation and rehabilitation, changing
therapies or insufficiently coordinated treatment place a
strain on both parties: the patient (who virtually never has
a central contact, is uncertain about the chances of a cure
and suffers setbacks) and the insurer (who faces extensive
costs).




Rttt

Opportunity and value* Avoiding the unnecessary,
optimising the necessary: How both sides benefit,

What can insurers do to improve the situation for patients
and health insurers? Wherever possible our aim is to help
those affected to recover and swiftly return to work so that
they can lead an independent life. But our objective is also
to reduce costs for health insurers. In other words, first-
class medical treatment and lower expenditure. A contra-
diction?

ArztPartner almeda (a subsidiary of our health insurer
DKv) and rehacare (in which Munich Re has a stake) resclve
this apparent paradox, in cooperation with patients, doc-
tors and health insurers.

ArztPartner almeda offers disease management pro-
grammes for the chronically ili - in cases of cardiac insuf-
ficiency, cardiovascular diseases, diabetes and asthma,

for example. Cardiac insufficiency is a condition that re-
currently gives rise to life-threatening situations and the
prospect of repeated hospitalisation. The solution can only
be to closely monitor the patient’s lifestyle and to change it
in the long term. So ArztPartner almeda provides patients
with telemetric apparatus that automatically transmit
important data such as weight, blood pressure and pulse
rate to the care team. They react at once if they observe
critical signs, such as a sudden gain in weight that indi-
cates water retention in the body and may lead to danger-
ous complications.

In addition, the care team supports patients in perman-
ently altering their lifestyle, improving nutrition, doing
more exercise, cutting out smoking and reducing stress,
thus minimising risk factors.

How intensive the measures are depends entirely on
the individual risk and the potential for improvement.
Unnecessary burdens for patients, and therefore unneces-
sary costs, can be avoided.

rehacare goes beyand the provision of medical treatment
for accident victims, helping with nursing care and adjust-
ment of living arrangements for the disabled and with
vocational rehabilitation after serious accidents.

An individual rehabilitation plan is devised, taking into
account the patient’s history, abilities and interests. Ser-
vices range from workplace analysis to support for job
applications or help in becoming self-employed. rehacare

has a nationwide network of specialists to achieve the
best possible rehabilitation and effective professional inte-
gration.

The success of these programmes is reflected above
all in patients’ satisfaction. But the figures also communi-
cate a clear message: on average, total costs are some 23%
lower. Extrapolating this figure to Germany as a whole,
we arrive at a savings potential of €100m—200m annually
for cardiac insufficiency alone. And this if merely one-fifth
of all those affected take part in a disease management
programme.

We have also expanded our worldwide opportunities
with our participation in Health Dialog, a leading provider
of care management services including disease manage-
ment in the USA. It successfully improves quality and
reduces medical costs with its Collaborative Care Program.
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The risk_ Medical progress and longevity are cost
drivers as well as growth engines.

Things are happening in the health market. It is growing -
driven by demographic trends, advances in medical
science and the improved economic situation of many
people. Global expenditure on healthcare rose from just
under US$ 3 trillion in 2000 to over US$ 4 trillion in 2005 and
is forecast to be close on us$ 7 trillion by 2015, The insurers
of the future, or rather all those involved in the health seg-
ment, face the challenge of participating in this growth and
repositioning themselves accordingly

Risks in today’s world are interconnected in many
ways. They can no fonger be categorised in the value chain
as they traditionally were in the past. In health insurance,
organisational boundaries are shifting and, in addition to
pure risk-bearing, the provision of service and manage-
ment support is rapidly increasing in importance both in
primary insurance and in reinsurance. Take the example of
the Munich Re Group’s MedNet companies: as managed
care service organisations (Msos), they form a bridge of
competence between our primary insurance clients, their
insureds, and medical providers. The objective of the com-
panies is to organise high-quality care at affordable prices,
while giving priority to service for the patient. Our MSOs
assume core functions in the value chain, such as risk
assessment and managed-care services, and combine
their expertise and market volume to optimally exploit the
cost-benefit relationship. And because we provide this
successful service from within our own organisation, we
also win reinsurance business.

The world may have got smaller but there are still dif-
ferences between established and developing countries.
There are attractive opportunities for shaping and finan-
cing healthcare particularly in evolving health insurance
markets where the market players are insufficiently inter-
linked. To tap the potential for growth in the healthcare
market, companies must be capable of ascertaining the
various stages of development and of quickly devising and
implementing flexible and competitive solutions.
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The opportunity_ The General Authority for Health
Services in Abu Dhabi and Munich Re have signed a
cooperation agreement to establish the health insurer
DAMAN.

Project manager Michael Bitzer reports on his daily work:

I wish there were twice as many hours in a day! By
1 May, a specialised primary health insurer must be up and
running in Abu Dhabi - and we have had to start from
scratch.

Onty a small proportion of employees posted abroad
are currently privately insured here. In the Emirates, these
so-called expats constitute as much as 80% of the popula-
tion. The majority have access to state health facilities, but
many are uninsured. Despite huge out-of-pocket payments
from the expats themselves, the state facilities are heavily
subsidised. Care is especially inadequate for the lower-
income groups. To improve the situation, Abu Dhabi
passed a faw in September 2005 making health insurance
compulsory for expats and introducing partial privatisa-
tion.

The Abu Dhabi Investment Company (ADIC) and the
General Authority for Health Services in Abu Dhabi (GAHS)
put the project out to tender to eight international health
insurers. Munich Re had impressive credentials in every
respect — its competence in health insurance and reinsur-
ance, healthcare management and assistance services;
its experience in the Guif gained through its MedNet sub-
sidiaries over a period of more than ten years; its portfolio
of successful and efficient risk management tools; its inter-
national networks and, not least, its professional team.

We were awarded the contract in September, the
agreement was signed in December, and the countdown
began. The project was launched with a core team of 13
staff, all of them experienced colleagues from the Munich
Re Group's international operations. We get support from
our colleagues in Munich whenever we need it. The com-
pany is expected to employ 350 staff by the end of 2008,
and 450 a year later. So this year we will be recruiting one
new employee a day on average. On 13 November, the
team moved into the 16th floor of an office tower in Ham-
dan Street, one of the main business thoroughfares in the
centre of Abu Dhabi, which we had provisionally furnished
courtesy of IKEA. Eventually, we will occupy five floors. The
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space is quite tight, with more than 30 team members on
the only floor currently available for use. Every day, we
tackle more new developments here than others handlein
a month. We are highly motivated by this exciting environ-
ment - otherwise we would never manage to keep up the
effort to achieve our ambitious milestones: by 1 April a
sales and distribution unit, a card production unit capable
of issuing cards to over 40,000 insureds per month, an
underwriting department and an operational IT department
equipped with all the processes and systems required; and
by 1 May a call centre with a capacity of 8,000-10,000 calls
per month, a medical claims centre able to handle over
100,000 claims per month by the end of 2006, and finance,
human resources and medical network departments. For-
tunately, we can use software solutions and tools that we
have developed ourselves and tested over many years
together with numerous international networks of experi-
enced health insurance professionals. We also have access
to Group-wide price agreements. Qur project controller is
keeping a close eye on timetables and costs. It is very
important to us not only that everything should work on
day one, but also that the systems we have set up are reli-
able and expandable, as the health insurer is expected to
be stable and profitable in five years without further need
for state subsidies. For this reason, we are relying on our
integrated and proven project risk management right from
the start.

In half an hour, we have a meeting with people from
the General Authority for Health Services. We work with
them closely and they provide us with important local
contacts. They impress us with their high degree of
professionalism. Afterwards, as on most days, we will
go to our “canteen” —the snack bar opposite the office.




The value_ well-balanced solutions that fit the needs of
the country and its inhabitants benefit all concerned.

Who will benefit from DAMAN? Certainly to a great extent
the country and its inhabitants, as the state healthcare
provider will have to compete in quality and price with
private providers. If value for money and risks are made
more transparent, healthcare financing using primary
insurance and reinsurance solutions will be more attract-
ive and easier to plan.

DAMAN offers an individual solution for basic health
insurance. It is tailored to the special conditions of the
market, such as the structure of the Abu Dhabi population,
and in agreement with the government takes account of
overarching political factors such as the country’s attrac-
tion as an economic centre. This means that DAMAN, in
which the Emirate of Abu Dhabi currently has a share of
100% and which is expected to operate without state sub-
sidies within five years, will be able to design products
and set prices competitively on the basis of its data, thus
ensuring its long-term business success.

Of course the Munich Re Group and its investors stand
to gain, and not only in reputation. DAMAN, which the
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Financia!l protection

Risk-carrying » Brand/licence » Sales

» Administration

Munich Re Group will be responsible for managing, will
not only provide basic cover {initially state-subsidised) but
from the outset will also offer supplementary private insur-
ance products, for which Munich Re will be the exclusive
reinsurer. The experience gathered in this project will
increase our expertise and ideally prepare us for further
developments in the Gulf region, where DAMAN can serve
as a successful model.

Our involvement in DAMAN demonstrates that man-
agement competence is key to our business success — both
in primary insurance and in reinsurance. An integrated
approach linking core competences and fields of business
opens up new strategic and operational horizons: we are
focusing on the business of risk and deploying our capacity
effectively and flexibly, adapting it to each situation in
order to maximise our share in the growth potential of the
healthcare market.

Managed care services

Health Case
» consultancy » management

Disease
» management

Network
» management
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] Traditional reinsurance

" Traditional primary insurance

Integrated reinsurance (MedNet model)

Integrated primary insurance {integrated health company)

Administration/managed care services

The Munich Re Group covers the whole range of business models and competences with its companies - from traditional reinsurance to
managed care services and integrated primary insurance. This enables us to offer appropriate solutions in all the markets and optimally
exploit earnings and growth potentials.
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Autumn rally brings large price gain

Our strategy of profit before growth also paid off for Munich Re shareholders in 2005.
The share price increased by 26.5% year on vear, clearly cutperforming the shares of other

reinsurers.

After a subdued start to the year, the major international
stock markets began to climb in the second quarter of
2005. Prices were driven by healthy company profits and a
favourable interest-rate environment. The upward trend
was broken for a time by rising energy prices and fears of
inflation, before the stock markets started a year-end rally.
By the end of 2005, the DAX was 27.1% up on the start of the
year, and the EURO STOXX 50 showed an increase of 21.3%.
The star of the stock market year 2005 was the Japanese
Nikkei, with a rise of 40.2%. The performance oftheus A

Share price performance
1 January 2005 = 100
Source: Datastream

stock exchanges, on the other hand, was disappointing,
with the s&P 500 closing only 2.9% higher than at the
beginning of the year, and the Dow Jones almost
unchanged.

Despite the record claims burdens for the insurance indus-
try — 2005 was the costliest natural catastrophe year of all
time —their performance was very respectable. The MSCI
insurance index rose by 30.8% in 2005. A large part of these
price gains was achieved towards the end of the year, when
the industry benefited from positive profit expectations.
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Munich Re shares
.- .. DAX 30
Morgan Stanley insurance index (Mscl1} in €

Munich Re shares began 2005 listlessly. Up to the end of
September, their price moved sideways within a narrow
range, lagging far behind the bAX. However, in the middle
of the hurricane season, our shares began a rally which
took the price from around €90 to nearly €120. In the fourth
guarter, Munich Re stock performed considerably better
than the DAX and also the MscCl insurance index. The capital
markets recognised the potential of Munich Re’s stock
resulting from the severe hurricane season, our effective
handling of the American Re reserving issue, and the
prospects of record earnings. Altogether, our share price

recorded a year-on-year increase of 26.5%. Thus in 2005
our shareholders also benefited from our strategy of profit
before growth.

Great interest among analysts

More than 40 analysts constantly maonitor Munich Re
shares. At the end of 2005, the majority rated our stock
positively (564% of analysts compared with 62% the year
before). Only 2% of the analysts gave the shares a negative
assessment, compared with 7% at the end of 2004.
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Long-term performance of Munich Re shares

On 1 July 1988, the date on which the German share price
index DAX was launched, a shareholder buying a portfolio
of 100 Munich Re registered shares with a par value of

DM 100 each (= €51.13) at a share price of DM 1,450.00

(= €741.37) would have had to invest a total of €74,137.32
(excluding transaction costs). After the two stock splits in
August 1997 and January 1999, this investment would
today comprise a portfolio of 2,000 no-par-value shares. 72
By reinvesting dividends to purchase further shares and

making use of opération blanche (i.e. reinvesting the pro-
ceeds of subscription rights), a German shareholder would
have been able to add a total of 1,054 no-par-value shares
to the portfolio.

On the basis of a price of €114.38 per share on 30 Decem-
ber 2005, the value of the portfolio amounts to €349,316.52,
equivalent to an increase of 371.2%. According to the in-
ternal rate-of-return method, this works out at an average
annual return of 9.3%, compared with an average annual
return of 9.2% for the DAX over the same period.
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Large dividend increase

Given the record result in 2005, the dividend proposal of
the Board of Management and Supervisory Board at the
Annual General Meeting on 19 April 2006 will be payment
of an increased dividend of €3.10 per share {€1.10 higher
than last year). This amounts to a rise of 55%. Altogether,
we will thus distribute a record amount of €707m {457m) to
shareholders.

The fact that our shares are also attractive from the divi-
dend point of view is reflected by Munich Re’s membership
of the DivDax. This subindex of Deutsche Bérse AG
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features the 15 DAX companies with the highest dividend
yield.

In former years, Munich Re’s dividend remained more or
less constant, independent of results. Since 2004, in con-
junction with our active capital management, we have
been pursuing a more flexible dividend policy, where the
amount distributed essentially depends on our result for
the year and our capital requirements, although ouraim is
to pay out at least 256% of the annual result to our share-
holders.




Share profile
Munich Re shares are no-par-value registered shares. Each

share carries one vote. First ilaunched on the stock exchange

in Munich on 21 March 1888, they are today traded on all
the German stock exchanges.

The average daily turnover of Munich Re shares was
€173.7m, putting us in eighth place among the baX stocks
at the end of 2005. In terms of market capitalisation, we
ranked 10th, with nearly €26.3bn.

Reuters MuvGn
Bloomberg muv2

ISIN: DE 000 843 002 6
WKN: 843 002
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2005  Prev.year

Share capital €m 587.7 587.7
Number of shares at 31 December m 229.6 229.6
Year high € 121.88 99.00
Date 5.12.05 20.1.04
Year low € 83.32 7273
Date 13.5.05 18.10.04
Year-end closing price € 114.38 90.45
Annual performance (excluding dividend) % 26.5 -5.9
Beta relative to DAX 1.0 1.1
Market capitalisation at 31 December €bn 26.3 20.8
Market value/equity” at 31 December 1.1 1.0
Average daily turnover '000 1,825 1,827
Earnings per share € 11.70 8.01
Dividend per share € 3.10 2.00
Dividend yield at 31 December % 2.7 2.2
Overall dividend amount €m 707 457

*Including minority interests.

Free float increasas to over 90%

Munich Re's largest shareholder at the end of 2005 was
Allianz, with a stake of 9.8% of which 9.4% is classified by
Allianz as a strategic holding. In the course of its acquisi-
tion by UniCredit, HypoVereinsbank reduced its stake in
Munich Re from nearly 10% to under 5%. The remaining
shares held by the UniCredit Group via HypoVereinsbank
are now allocated to the free float. This has resulted in a
marked increase from 80.6% to 90.6% in our free float,
which is a prime factor for the weighting of Munich Re
shares in various indices.

Around 147,000 shareholders had Munich Re shares in
their portfolios at the end of 2005.

The attractiveness of our shares for international investors
has grown further. The bulk of the shares sold by Hypo-
Vereinsbank went abroad. Including the stake held by the
UniCredit Group via HypoVereinsbank, over 60% of our
shares were held by foreign investors at year-end 2005,
compared with approximately 50% at year-end 2004.

Our commitment in the area of sustainability also has an
impact on the investment side: some 2% of our stock is
held by socially responsible investors (SRis), who invest
their capital in accordance with ecological, social or other
sustainability criteria.

33




Invesior groups®

Free float

Institutional investors 81.5%

Private investors 9.1%

Core shareholdings

Allianz 9.4%

*Percentage of share capital.

Ragional disiribution”

Germany 44.7%

Others 0.1%

UK 12.3%

Rest of Europe 29.0%

North America 13.9%

*Percentage of share capital.

Strong weighting in many indices

Munich Re shares have been represented for many years
in the main national and international share price indices
like the DAX and the EURO STOXX 50. In the sector indices
for insurance companies, Munich Re has traditionally had
a high weighting. Since 2001, our shares have also been
included in the Dow Jones Sustainability and the FTSE4Good
index family. These sustainability indices only accept com-
panies that fulfil exacting ecological and social criteria and
are among the best in their sector.

Weighting of Munich Re sharzss in various indices
Status: 31 December 2005

in%

DAX 30 4.1
DJ EURO STOXX 50 1.3
Msct Euro 0.8
FTSE EUROTOP 100 0.6
DJ Sustainability World 0.3
DJ EURO STOXX Insurance 8.8
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Investor relations activities

We attach great importance to open and intensive dialogue
with investors and analysts. Participants in the interna-
tional capital markets require quick and pertinent informa-
tion for their investment decisions. Our investor relations
team is a competent contact partner, always ready to meet
their needs.

Besides the analysts’ conference that takes place every
year when our annual results are published, we staged an
Investors’ Day for the first time last year, on 27 June, which
serves as an example of our intensive communication with
the capital market. In London, before an international audi-
ence, the Board of Management explained Munich Re’s
risk management in detail.

Munich Re organised more than 20 roadshows during 2005
to present the Group, primarily in Europe and the USA. We
also held over 100 individual meetings with investors and
analysts at our offices. Additionally, as in previous years,
Munich Re participated in numerous investor conferences
around the world.

But our activities are not only geared to institutional
investors: private investors can contact Munich Re directly
at any time as well. They obtain prompt answers to their
enquires via our shareholder hotline or e-mail postbox.
We meet high standards as regards the speed of our finan-
cial reporting, with fast-close conditions applying to our
annual report since 2004.
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Internet services expanded

We publish all important investor relations information on
our website where, besides annual and quarterly reports
and investor presentations, we provide details about our
shares, analysts’ opinions, important dates in the financial
calendar, and much more. We have further expanded our
new shareholder portal, which has been online since

3 January 2005. www.munichre.com/register

The portal’s service pages offer our shareholders various
facilities, such as registering to receive documents for the
Annual General Meeting by e-mail or updating their regis-
tered shareholder data oniine. It also provides historical
share prices, by means of which shareholders can trace the
performance of their Munich Re share portfolio using a
share calculator. Altogether, we are pieased to note that
investors are making increasing use of our information on
the internet.

Great interest in the Annual General Meeting

The 118th Annual General Meeting of shareholders on

28 April 2005 was attended by over 4,000 at the Inter-
national Congress Center Munich. With 42.5% of the share
capital represented, the proposals of the Board of Manage-~

Other capital market instruments of the Munich Re Group

Issuer Munich Re Finance B.v.

Subordinated bonds

Munich Re shares

ment and Supervisory Board on the individual agenda
items were adopted by the shareholders with clear major-

ities in each case.

Our extensive internet service for the Annual General
Meeting again met with a great deal of interest in 2005.
Nearly every fourth admission card was ordered electron-
ically. Many shareholders not able to attend in person once
more took advantage of the option to appoint a Company
proxy to exercise their voting rights. All shareholders who
were unable to attend also again had the opportunity to
follow the Annual General Meeting live on the internet.

In line with the general trend, Munich Re's Annual General
Meetings have shown a steady decline in attendances in
the last few years, presumably linked to the growing pro-
portion of foreign shareholders. We therefore actively sup-
port all legislative moves at national and international level
that appear conducive to improving opportunities for
shareholders to participate in the Annual General Meeting
and to increasing attendances.
All the information relating to our forthcoming 2006
Annual General Meeting on 19 April can be found on our
website www.munichre.com/agm and in the dedicated section
of our shareholder portal at www.munichre.com/register.

ERGO International AG

American Re
Corporation

Type Subordinated bonds Exchangeable bonds Exchangeable bonds Senior bonds
Base value - - Sanofi-Aventis s.A. E.ON AG -

Volume €3.0bn £300m €345m €345M uss 500m
Coupon rate p.a. 6.75% 7.625% 0.75% 2.25% 7.45%
Maturity date 20237 2028 2006 2006 2026

*First possible redemption date is 21 June 2013.
“*First possible redemption date is 21 June 2018.

The subordinated bonds we issued in 2003 continued to
perform well. At the end of 2005, the euro tranche was
listed at 117.1% and the pound sterling bond at 120.5%.

The bonds exchangeable into Allianz shares were redeemed
on 9 June 2005 at 108.56%.

Reuters DE 016 696 579
Bloomberg MUNRE

ISIN XS 016 696 579 7
LOKN 843 278

Reuters DE 016 726 052
Bloomberg MUNRE

ISIN XS 016 726 052 9
LOKN 843 449







Turning risk into value

We can take advantage of market opportunities in both primary insurance and
reinsurance. We exploit this competitive edge with integrated business models,

guided by our cardinal virtues.

Professional handling of risk as our core business, active
risk diversification, and constantly improving methods and
processes to control and steer our business — these remain
our three cardinal virtues. Our strategy is thus built on firm
foundations, without which we would not have achieved
the excellent result of our anniversary year 2005. These
foundations are the precondition for turning risk into

value. A

Qur core business of risk

Our Group is in an advantageous position in its core
business of handling risk, because our operations cover
primary insurance as well as reinsurance. In other words,
we distinguish ourselves from other leading insurance
groups by being able to assume risks regardless of whether
they come from the primary insurance or the reinsurance
sector. So we can adapt flexibly to changes in market situ-
ations and also pinpoint opportunities for cross-segment
solutions. A good example is our strategy for tapping the
great potential of the international health insurance market.

What business potential does the global health insurance
market offer? What specific know-how do we have in the
Munich Re Group for this business segment and what
strategic conclusions can we draw? Does a cross-segment
approach by primary insurers and reinsurers, with their
different competences, offer added value for the Group?
What options do we derive for realising our strategy?
These are questions we have answered. The potential
premium with adequate earnings prospects that can open
up for the Munich Re Group in the global health insurance
market over the next ten years is in the billion euro range. 7

The precondition for leveraging this potential is enhanced

insurance-reinsurance coordination that enables us

- to cover large portions of the value chain in the health
insurance segment,

- to specifically combine different competences, and

- to make flexible use of various business models in the
various health insurance markets.

We aim to promote such coordination by setting up a

cross-segment International Health Board, which will be

responsible for our insurance and reinsurance activities in

the global health market.

We can thus exploit market opportunities whether they
present themselves in primary insurance or reinsurance.
Our objective continues to be sustained profitability. And
we actively seek growth opportunities. As an integrated
insurance and reinsurance group that can develop its
markets through different brands, by focusing on specific
target groups, we channel our growth initiatives into the
business segments and regions that promise the largest
value increase. Hence, as far as we are concerned, defend-
ing or acquiring positions in rankings for individual fields
of business based on premium volume is meaningless.

Our strategic concept of enhancing the synergies of pri-
mary insurance and reinsurance “under one roof” is also
reflected in our Group's new decision-making structures.
On the parent company’s Board of Management, we now
differentiate clearly in terms of organisation between
Group matters and the operative management of our re-
insurance business, enabling us to focus resources better
and manage the Group as a whole more efficiently.
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Munich Re Board committee structure

Munich Re Parent Board of Management

Board committees?

| i

Relneurance Commities ] t @reup Commities

| [ sumtagy Soromiies

[ ERE0 Beard ef Menagerment

Torsten Jeworrek Nikolaus von Bomhard

Thomas Blunck Heiner Hasford

Georg Daschner Jorg Schneider

Charlie Shamieh?

Christian Kluge
Chief Risk Officer —~ Group

John Phelan
Wolfgang Strassl
Karf Wittmann

Michaei Bos?
Chief Investment Officer - Reinsurance

Hermann Pohlchristoph?
Chief Financial Officer - Reinsurance

' See page 8&f. for distribution of responsibilities on the Board of Management.
ZNot a member of the Board of Management.

The establishment of separate Board committees for
Group and reinsurance operations is also reflected in our
downstream organisational structures. Our focus Group-
wide is on the development and realisation of corporate
strategy, value-based management and integrated risk
management.

Meaningful steering with risk capital

These two cardinal virtues, active risk diversification and
business management, are closely linked, serving directly
to realise our ambitious result targets. Over the last few
years, we have made great advances in refining models
and methods of integrated risk management and active
risk diversification. And the same goes for their practical
application. We set standards, which we are continually
improving. Their significance for business management
and decision-making cannot be overestimated, which is
why we are investing so much to develop them further. In
addition, the different elements of our risk management
are not isolated from each other, but have been integrated
into an overall system.
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Wolfgang Strassl Michael Rosenberg

Michael Thiemermann
! Roif Ulrich

Dn Keelkh Board

Gotz Wricke

Wolfgang Strassl|

Members of the top manage-
ment of the primary insurance
and reinsurance group

By refining our risk model, for example, we optimise our
risk capital deployment and thereby ensure that we can
continue to assume substantial liabilities for individual
and catastrophe risks. Our budgets for writing, say, natural
hazard risks are geared chiefly to the risk capital that is
available for that area of business. Retrocession, i.e. exter-
nal transfer of liabilities, is also structured on the basis of
our evaluations from the risk model, with which we steer
our risk capital consumption as well.

Through asset-liability management - tailoring investments
to the structure of our liabilities - we avoid mismatch of
risks on the asset and liability sides of our balance sheet.
Sophisticated asset-liability management also enables us
to achieve significant diversification effects. The reduction
of concentration risks in our investments, which is now
well advanced, has released substantial risk capital that
can be used for growth. Finally, risk capital is indispensable
as an indicator and measure of performance. Consequently,
we will in future be defining our result target in relation to
the extent of the entrepreneurial risks we assume, using
return on risk-adjusted capital (RORAC) (see page 49f.).
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Knowledge counts

However, our focus is not solely on integrated risk man-
agement. We are also steadily working on improving such
areas as strategy development, performance measure-
ment and our knowledge of risk. The definition of our
strategic objectives in balanced scorecards, which are
“cascaded” from the top of the Group down to the indi-
vidual operative units, and the use of VBM (see page 46) are
essential components of corporate management. In this
context, too, the findings from current claims experience -
such as the catastrophic hurricanes in the second half of
2005 — are indispensable for the further development of
our risk knowledge and thus for our underwriting. A par-
ticular challenge is posed by new, previously unknown
risks. We have to identify and evaluate these as swiftly as
possible, with a view to maintaining our competitive ad-
vantage. In so doing, we need to correctly structure the
conditions and calculate technically adequate prices to
secure the profitability of our business. For this, we rely
on our broad knowledge of risk, our expertise in the man-
agement of individual risks and whole portfolios, and

our experience in the markets.

Keeping on course

Our three cardinal virtues —risk as our core business, risk
diversification, and high standards of business control and
steering - will continue to determine our course in the
current year. They are essential for creating sustained
value for our Group, our shareholders and our clients.

Strategy

Mission statement — What we are and what we aspire to

Turning risk into value

by actively diversifying risk,

by growing profitably,

by steering and controlling our activities with excellence,
by capitalising on our financial strength on a sustained
basis.

Our mission presupposes:

- Aclear course for sustained profitable growth and value
creation for our investors

— Actions consistently geared to the individual needs of
our clients

- A strong capital base, integrated risk management and
the concentration of our resources on commercial suc-
cess

- The strengths of our staff, who develop the best possible
solutions with their knowledge of the insurance and
capital markets and their capacity for innovation

- A pronounced performance culture that motivates our
staff, setting clear objectives, giving feedback openly,
learning from our mistakes and rewarding success

- Our entrepreneurial responsibility with a commitment to
transparency, sustainability and an obligation to society
as a whole
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Munich Re Group

Structure of the Munich Re Group

The Munich Re Group is one of the world’s leading risk car-
riers. Our business covers the whole value-added chain A

in insurance and reinsurance, and we are also active in the
field of asset management.

Munich Re Group
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Whereas the reinsurance companies in our Group operate
globally, the primary insurance companies concentrate
mainly on Germany and those European markets with
strong growth. We conduct our business from our respect-
ive headquarters and also via alarge number of branches,
subsidiaries and affiliated companies in such countries as
the USA, China, India, Australia, South Africa, Korea,
Canada, the UK, France, Spain, ltaly, Poland and Switzer-
land. Control and profit transfer agreements are in place
with many subsidiaries, especially those in the ERGO Insur-
ance Group. In addition, we have consistently pursued our
policy of involving ERGO more closely in significant Group
processes, in line with a resolution taken by Munich Re in
the previous year, and have further refined this involve-
ment in important areas. In 2005, we implemented a uni-
form Group-wide planning and controlling process and
drafted a Group directive governing the distribution of
responsibilities and competencies between Group man-
agement and ERGO for key decisions in such areas as strat-
egy, investments, risk management and accounting. There
is now "unified control” within the meaning of the German
Stock Companies Act. To maintain clearly defined strategic
management of the equal-ranking business segments of
primary insurance and reinsurance and to provide for a
clear assignment of responsibility, the structure of Munich
Re’s Board of Management was altered with effect from

1 January 2006. Besides the Parent Board of Management,
which will continue to represent Munich Reinsurance Com-
pany externally, the Board of Management has divided its
responsibilities between two new Board committees: the
Group Committee and the Reinsurance Committee.
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This management report summarises the activities of our
Group according to the business fields of reinsurance, pri-
mary insurance, asset management and their respective
segments, rather than on the basis of the Group's legal
structure or individual companies. This segmentation is
determined by the way we manage our business internally.

Reinsurance group

Of the gross premiums totalling €22.3bn written in 2005,
around 65.1% came from property-casualty and 34.9% from
life and health business.

According to our own estimates, Munich Re’s global mar-
ket share in terms of premium in 2005 amounted to around
one seventh. By this we mean the global reinsurance
market, since reinsurance has by nature always been an
international business. It should be noted in this context,
however, that the global premium income of the reinsur-
ance markets is difficult to quantify because data is often
not available or insufficient. The market statistics of in-
dividual countries are of limited comparability as they are
based on different parameters. What is more, premium
volume alone is not an adequate indicator of reinsurance
companies’ importance in particular markets.

Our reinsurance business is organised in seven operative
divisions, six of which service our property-casualty busi-
ness and special lines, and one of which deals with life and
health reinsurance. Responsibility for the respective client
accounts always lies in one pair of hands. The operative
divisions are also responsible for our business units
abroad, including our subsidiaries.




Munich, Athens, Moscow, Warsaw

Europe 2 and Latin America

London, Madrid, Milan, Paris

Bogotd, Buenos Aires, Caracas, Mexico City,
Santiago de Chile, Sao Paulo

Subsidiaries/Branches:

Munich Ré France

Minchener Riick Italia

Minchener Rickversicherungs-Gesellschaft Sucursal Espafa y Portugal
Munich Reinsurance Company UK General Branch

Special and Financial Risks

Geneva, London, Munich, New York

Subsidiaries/Branches:

New Reinsurance Company
Great Lakes Reinsurance (UK)
Munich American Capital Markets
Munich-American RiskPartners

Corporate Underwriting/Global Clients

London

Subsidiaries/Branches:
Munich Re Underwriting

The division Life and Health underwrites our life and health
reinsurance business worldwide and its structure reflects
that of many of our clients, which conduct these two
classes of business separately from property-casualty
insurance, often through independent entities.

In Europe 1, we handle non-life business from our clients
in Germany, Switzerland and Austria, Eastern Europe,
Greece, and Turkey.

Europe 2 and Latin America services clients from northern,
western and southern Europe, as well as from Latin Amer-
ica.

Asia, Australasia, Africa conducts property-casualty busi-
ness with clients in these three continents and the Pacific
Islands.

The division North America is responsible for our sub-
sidiary American Re-Insurance Company, for Munich Rein-

Asia, Australaéia and Africa

Beijing, Hong Kong, Kolkata, Kuala Lumpur, Mumbai, Seoul, Shanghai,
Singapore, Taipei, Tokyo

Auckland, Brisbane, Melbourne, Perth, Sydney

Accra, Cape Town, Johannesburg, Nairobi, Réduit

Subsidiaries/Branches:

Munich Mauritius Reinsurance Company Ltd.
Munich Reinsurance Company of Africa

Munich Reinsurance Company Australian Branch
Munich Reinsurance Company New Zealand Branch
Munich Reinsurance Company China Branch
Munich Reinsurance Company Singapore Branch
Munich Reinsurance Company Hong Kong Branch
Munich Reinsurance Company Malaysia Branch
Munich Reinsurance Company Korea Branch

North America

Atlanta, Boston, Chicago, Columbus, Dallas, Hartford,
Kansas City, Los Angeles, New York, Philadelphia, Princeton,
San Francisco, Seattle, Montreal, Toronto, Vancouver

Subsidiaries/Branches:

Munich Reinsurance Company of Canada
American Re-Insurance Company
Temple Insurance Company

Life and Health

Atlanta, Brisbane, Chicago, London, Melbourne, Perth,
Sydney, Toronto, Waltham

Subsidiaries/Branches:

Munich Reinsurance Company of Australasia
Munich American Reassurance Company

Munich Reinsurance Company Canada Branch (Life)
Munich Reinsurance Company UK Life Branch

surance Company of Canada and for Temple Insurance
Company.

Corporate Underwriting/Global Clients (cuGc) handles our
accounts with major international insurance groups (hence
"Global Clients”) and writes business worldwide in special
classes such as agriculture and workers’ compensation. Its
most important markets are Germany, the UK and the
USA. In addition to this, it performs the important func-
tions combined in our Group Corporate Centre: its staff
clarify fundamental, cross-divisional issues of underwrit-
ing policy, are responsible for quality assurance, integrate
actuarial methods in our business processes, and set
standards for claims management. Further information

on guidelines for underwriting and rating can be found

on page 50f.



Primary insurance group

The second main pillar of the Munich Re Group is primary
insurance business. Our operations in this sector concen-
trate on Europe and above all Germany. Some 29.8% of the
business totalling €17.6bn in 2005 derived from property-
casualty and 70.2% from life and health insurance.

Special and Financial Risks (SFR) is responsible for the
special classes of credit, aviation and space, enterprise
risks and contingency risks, and for alternative markets
business. Besides this, it develops and implements
division-specific innovation projects and coordinates the
overarching work of the innovation teams in the non-life
divisions. Via Munich American Capital Markets (MACM),
we structure and offer the transfer of insurance risks to
the capital market. In addition, SFR also attends to our
own reinsurance {retrocession).

Munich Re primary insurance group
Watkins syndicate

Européische Reiseversicherung

ERGO Versicherungsgruppe AG

Subsidiaries in the Czech Re-
public, Denmark, France, Italy,
Spain, Sweden and the UK, and

participating interests in Austria,

Hungary and the Slovak Re-
public

]{ Germany

L

Life

Hamburg-Mannheimer
Versicherungs-AG

Health

pkv Deutsche
Krankenversicherung AG

VICTORIA
Lebensversicherung A6

VICTORIA
Krankenversicherung AG

Vorsorge
Lebensversicherung aG

KarstadtQuelle
Lebensversicherung AG

Neckermann
Lebensversicherung AG

KarstadtQuelle
Krankenversicherung AG

Property-casualty

VICTORIA Versicherung AG

Hamburg-Mannheimer
Sachversicherungs-ag

D.A.S. Versicherungs-AG

KarstadtQuelle Versicherung AG

Legal expenses

D.A.S. Allgemeine
Rechtschutz-Versicherungs-AG

Hamburg-Mannheimer
Rechtsschutzversicherungs-a6

r
i International”

|

ERGO Previdenza S.p.A.,
Milan

Life

Hamburg-MannheimerN.v., 8.4,
Brussels

VICTORIA Seguros de Vida, s. A.,
Lisbon

vicToRIA-Volksbanken Versiche-
rungsaktiengesellschaft, Vienna

Vorsorge Luxemburg Lebens-
versicherung s.A., Munsbach

Heaith

DKV Belgium s.A., Brussel

|

Property-casualty

STU ERGO Hestia s.A., Sopot

pKv Seguros y Reaseguros s. A.,
Saragossa

picc Health Insurance Company
Limited, Beijing (associate)

ERGO Assicurazioni S.p.A.,
Milan

“Only ERGO companies with a premium volume of more than esom are listed by name.
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Legal expenses

D.A. s, Subsidiaries and branches
in Austria, Belgium, the Czech
Republic, Estonia, Greece, Hun-
gary, Ireland, Italy, Luxembourg,
the Netherlands, Poland, the
Slovak Republic, Spain, Switzer-
land and the UK




Our primary insurers comprise the ERGO Insurance Group,
Européische Reiseversicherung and the assistance services
provider Mercur Assistance. We sold our majority holding
in the Karlsruher Insurance Group with effect from the
fourth quarter of 200s. ‘

The ERGO Insurance Group was created in 1997 by merging
the long-established German companies VICTORIA, Ham-
burg-Mannheimer, DKv and D.A.S. In 2002, they were joined
by KarstadtQuelle Versicherungen. Segment responsibility
within ERGO is centralised at holding level, but without
weakening the strong identity of the individual brands and
their sales forces.

The main emphasis of the ERGO Group's business is on
personal lines insurances, especially:insurances of the per-
son, i.e. life, health, and personal accident insurance.
Another important segment of ERGO’s business is insur-
ance for small and medium-sized firms and also, on a
selective basis, industrial business. Moreover, ERGO is one
of the leading providers in the market for company pen-
sions. In health insurance and legal expenses insurance, it
holds a leading position in Europe through Dkv and D.A.S.
respectively.

ERGO’s marketing strategy is built on the interplay of differ-
ent distribution channels: apart from its own strong sales
organisations, its exclusive banking partnership with the
HvB Group in Germany plays an important role. ERGO also
has a joint venture with KarstadtQuelle AG for the sale of
insurance products. ‘
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With numerous subsidiaries and affiliated companies in 11
countries, as well as a network of strategic cooperation
agreements, Européische Reiseversicherung is an effective
international alliance. Its most important product is travel
cancellation insurance.

Mercur Assistance offers 24-hour assistance services
worldwide in the field of medicine and mobility.

The Watkins Syndicate, which operates within Lioyd’s, has
been part of the Munich Re Group since 1997. It specialises
in marine insurance business and has taken advantage of
the favourable conditions over the last few years to sub-
stantially improve its market position and broaden its risk
profile. Today it is the largest marine insurance syndicate
at Lloyd’'s and is represented in the UK, Hong Kong and
Singapore.

Asset management

MEAG MUNICH ERGO AssetManagement GmbH is one of the
major asset managers in the European financial sector. It
combines Munich Re’s and ERGO’s investment activities
and the management of their real estate. Virtually the
entire asset management of the Munich Re Group is con-
centrated in MEAG, which had a total of around €154bn
under management for the Group’s insurance and reinsur-
ance companies at the end of 2005.

MEAG mainly manages our Group’s own investments. It is
responsible for direct investment in securities and real
estate, and for the assets held in segregated managed
funds {special funds). Beyond this, it offers its expertise
and know-how both to institutional investors and to private
clients.

Munich Reinsurance Company

MEAG MUNICH ERGO AssetManagement GmbH

ERGO Trust GmbH

100%

MEAG MUNICH ERGO Kapitalanlagegesellschaft mbH

100%

3 regional companies

3 facility management companies
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The subsidiary MEAG MUNICH ERGO Kapitalanlagegesell-
schaft mbH is one of the major investment fund companies
in Germany, managing around €38bn in special and retail
funds for Group companies and for clients outside the
Munich Re Group.

Following the integration of the real estate business of
ERGO Trust GmbH into MEAG with effect from 1 January
2006, all the Munich Re Group’s real estate activities are
now dealt with under the roof of MEAG.

Important tools of corporate management

Munich Re’s value-based management philosophy
The Munich Re Group's objective is to analyse risk from
every conceivable angle and to handle it successfully,
thereby creating lasting value for its shareholders, clients
and staff.
Increasing corporate value is therefore the key factor in our
business decisions. This means optimising capital deploy-
ment and risk management for all Group activities in rein-
surance, primary insurance and asset management. There
are differences between the two main fields of business:
While our reinsurance group already uses value-based
management tools in all of its units, our primary insurers
are still in the process of implementing them. In past years,
the approach used at individual company level among our
primary insurers has in many cases still been based mainly
on an accounting perspective.

Munich Re’s approach to value-based management offers

a number of advantages:

- Itenables us to assess business activities not only
according to their earnings potential but also relative to
the extent of the risks assumed, which is material for the
question of added value. Only the risk-return relation-
ship reveals how beneficial an activity is from the share-
holder’s point of view.

— With clearly defined performance indicators, we ensure
the necessary comparability of value-adding measures
and initiatives. Fields of business that add value for the
Group can be more easily identified and the use of
resources optimised accordingly.
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- Responsibilities are clearly assigned and levers for
adding value made transparent, enabling management
and staff to contribute more effectively to increasing cor-
porate value.

- Strategic and operative planning are closely linked. All
initiatives are ultimately geared to the overriding finan-
cial objective of enhancing corporate value.

— The consistent use of value-based management tools
helps the Munich Re Group respond to the tougher com-
petition in the global capital markets and the increasing
demand by institutional investors for more transparency
and comparability.

Our value-based management system takes into account
the individual characteristics of the business segments
In non-life business, we employ the following simple for-
mula for measuring value creation and for managing and
monitoring our business activities:

Cost of equity

Adjusted | Necessary - Value
result operating | X | Targetrate - added
equity

The adjusted result serves as the basis for determining the
value added. It consists of the operating result, the invest-
ment result and the remaining non-technical result. in each
case value-based adjustments are made, including the
smoothing of expenditure for major losses and the recog-
nition of claims expenses at present value.

We compare the adjusted result with the requisite cost of
equity. The basis for determining the cost of equity is the
necessary operating equity, which is basically derived from
the risk-based capital according to our internal model. Ifa
business unit holds equity capital in excess of the risk-
based capital in order to comply with market, rating or
supervisory requirements, a return needs to be earned on
this capital as well.

Any investment of capital in a company must - from the
investor’s point of view — achieve at least the return of an
alternative risk-commensurate investment (opportunity
costs). However, in order to significantly increase its cor-
porate value, the Munich Re Group aims to earn a return on
necessary operating equity (return target) that is markedly
higher than the opportunity costs.




Consequently, value is only added if the adjusted result
exceeds the cost of equity. Given the generally short-term
nature of non-life business, this procedure focuses on
measuring single-period performance. In assessing the
profitability of our underwriting business, we mainly use
indicators from the income statement.

The products of life primary insurance and reinsurance,
and the bulk of our health primary insurance business, are
characterised by their long-term nature and the distribution
of results over the duration of the policies. To account for
this multi-periodic characteristic, we use key performance
indicators for this business that relate to the respective
portfolio value - the embedded value. By setting a min-
imum return requirement, we aim through value-based
management to ensure that here, too, an adequate return
is earned on the capital employed and appropriate value
is added.

Our steering of Munich Re’s investments is strongly geared
to the liabilities on our balance sheet. With the help of
asset-liability management, we determine the “neutral
position”. This involves a synthetic investment portfolio
which - taking into consideration significant additional
parameters in the investment of the capital - best reflects
the characteristics of our liabilities towards clients. Further
information on asset-liability management is provided on
page 99. The target return, i.e. the expected income from
the neutral position, is compared with the return from the
actual portfolio, bearing in mind the risk-based capital
required for deviating from the neutral position. Finally,

a comparison with the returns of relevant stock market
indices provides important insights into the performance
of our own investments.

In addition to these purely financial performance factors,
non-financial performance measures like market share,
speed of processes, staff-training level and ciient satisfac-
tion play a major part in the strategic management of the
Munich Re Group. In the long term, a firm can only be suc-
cessful if it operates sustainably and takes account of such
future-oriented qualitative factors as'well.

We closely link strategy and operative planning by defining

our objectives in structured overviews or "scorecards”,
from which we derive initiatives, performance measures
and responsibilities within a framewaork of four perspec-
tives: "financial”, “market and client”, "process” and
"employee”. We promote an entrepreneurial culture
among staff through the clear allocation of responsibility
and accountability, recognising how much the individual,
unit or field of business contributes to increasing value.
The integration of the financial and non-financial object-
ives into Board and senior-executive remuneration incen-
tive systems for the Board of Management and executives
supports the clear orientation towards value creation.
Value-based management is a holistic system with which
managers at all levels of the Group can steer their unitsin
such a way that lasting value is created. Sustainable value
creation is also a key factor for our investors.

In order to give more emphasis in external communication
to the Munich Re Group’s value arientation —as imple-
mented mainly through our internal management tools -
we have geared our Group return target to risk-adjusted
performance indicators, which are explained in more detail
in the following section.

What we aim to achieve

A look back at 2005

In the past year, the Munich Re Group's business per-
formed very well as a whole. The burdens from the Atlantic
hurricanes and reserve strengthening at American Re were
compensated for by high realised capital gains and, thanks
to the very good results of our primary insurance and rein-
surance basic business, we recorded an excellent consoli-
dated profit of over €2.7bn. We achieved a return of 12.3%
on the average of our IFRS equity at the balance sheet and
quarterly reporting dates, even surpassing our return-on-
equity target of 12% after tax.

Our return on investment was a very satisfying 5.9% (4.5%).
This is the ratio of the investment result of €10,818m to the
average market value of the investment portfolio at the
balance sheet and quarterly reporting dates, totalling
€184.5bn.
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Our combined ratio, a much-heeded performance indicator
in non-life insurance, was satisfactory only in primary
insurance. Calculated as the ratio of the sum of net
expenses for claims and benefits plus net operating
expenses to net earned premiums, it corresponds to the
sum of the loss ratio and the expense ratio. Put simply, a
combined ratio of 100% means that premium income was
exactly sufficient to cover claims and costs. Net expenses
for claims and benefits mainly include paid claims, change
in claims provisions, and other underwriting expenses. Net
operating expenses chiefly comprise commission plus per-
sonnel and non-personnel expenses for the acquisition
and ongoing administration of insurance contracts.

The combined ratio in reinsurance includes the health seg-

ment as well as property-casualty business. In 2005, net

expenses for claims and benefits of €12,189m (11,063m}
and net operating expenses of €4,229m (4,354m) compare
with net earned premiums of €14,862m (15,5683m). The

reinsurance combined ratio thus amounts to 110.5%

(98.9%), a very high figure largely due to the hurricane

losses.

The combined ratio in primary insurance is determined for

the property-casualty segment (including legal expenses

insurance). In 2005, paid claims and the change in claims
provisions totalled €2,338m (2,287m) and net operating
expenses €1,390m (1,374m), compare with net earned
premiums of €4,005m (3,938m). Our combined ratio in
primary insurance thus amounts to 93.1% (93.0%), an
excellent figure both in absolute terms and in comparison
with competitors.

When it comes to interpreting the combined ratio, the par-

ticular circumstances of the class of business in question

have to be taken into account. Of substantial significance,
for example, is the composition of the portfolio. The fol-
lowing factors (among others) are important:

— The more the claims burden fluctuates over time, the
greater the risk is, and so the rates needed to cover the
risk must be higher; loss ratios in good years, as well as
average loss ratios, have to be all the lower to provide
the reinsurer with an adequate return for assuming this
risk — particularly true in the case of natural catastrophes,
which may occur rarely, but are often very severe when
they do.
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- Another important distinguishing feature relates to the
time-lag between premium being received and claims
being paid. The longer these periods are, the longer the
premiums received can be invested in the capital mar-
kets. High combined ratios in classes of business in
which claims settlement takes a long time {e.g. casualty)
therefore also generally entail higher returns from
investments with which the loss reserves are covered.
These returns are not reflected in the combined ratio.

Therefore, whilst we aim to keep our combined ratio as low

as possible, it does not constitute our sole target. Rather,

the prime factor we consider is economic value added,
which cannot be properly reflected by the combined ratio.

We pursue this target internally through our value-based

management (VBM) (see page 46). In life primary and re-

insurance business and in health primary business, we
measure performance on the basis of embedded values.

When considering performance at the level of the whole

Group, however, we have geared our targets to return on

capital.

Further development of the return target for 2006

We have set ourselves ambitious targets again for 2006 to

follow up the successful performance of the past business

year. In so doing, we have further improved the method-
ology employed. The return target we have used to date -
the return on average IFRS equity (ROE) —is an important
but insufficient indicator of an insurance company’s added
value. The reasons are:

- Some of the underlying parameters are influenced by
accounting rules that do not adequately reflect economic
realities. For example, a large portion of an insurance
company’s assets are classified as “investments avail-
able for sale” and measured at market value, whereas
the liabilities in the balance sheet barely react to market
fluctuations. This means that rising or falling capital
market prices usually have a direct impact on IFRS
equity, thus indirectly increasing or decreasing an ROE
result target in a way that makes little sense economic-
ally. In particular, interest-rate-induced increases in the
prices of fixed-interest securities are not accompanied
by any sustained additional earnings opportunities,
since the prices of the securities systematically return
to the face value on maturity.




— Furthermore, RoE does not reflect the risk assumedin a
given business activity. All other tHings being equal, a
high risk usually entails the expectation of a higher
profit, which is bought at a cost of additional volatility.
An ROE target that does not include any measure of risk
might encourage management to focus too much on the
earnings side and disregard the risk side. Hence the risk-
return relationship, which is decisive for increasing cor-
porate value, is not considered.

An insurance company - and especially a reinsurance com-

pany —whose exposure to risks is typically high, should

consequently choose a target which takes into account the
degree of risk assumed and minimises distortions from
accounting. In accordance with this principle, risk - meas-
ured by risk-based capital - plays a central role in our in-
ternal value-based management. To maximise Munich Re’s
value for our shareholders, we actively work on diversify-
ing our risks, and on optimising our financing structure
and the quality of our results.

A logical step on the way to achieving this is to integrate

the risk perspective more closely into the external com-

munication of our targets.

Taking risk assumed into account in our return target

In summer 2005, for the first time, Munich Re officially
presented its internal risk model in detail, including the
Group-wide, risk-based capital position derived from the
model, thus considerably enhancing transparency. Our
risk-based capital was divulged for both the reinsurance
and primary insurance segments, according to the risk
categories of underwriting, market and credit risk. The
risk-based capital in question quantifies the risk of the
individual units and enables us to make comparisons
between non-life, life and investments, as well as between
reinsurance and primary insurance.

The next step — after publishing our risk-based capital ~is
to integrate the risk perspective into our external Group
target. This move away from a return based on average
IFRS equity to a risk-adjusted return target (return on risk-
adjusted capital - RORAC) results in a closer convergence of
our internal value-based management and the external
communication of our targets. We thus also take greater
account of risk-based standards that shape the current and
future requirements of supervisory authorities and rating
agencies.

The most important advantages of the risk-adjusted return
target — particularly in comparison with our target to date -
are the risk-based capital’s independence from the above-
mentioned IFRS effects on equity, and the disclosure of the
annual result per unit of risk-based capita!l (important for
measuring added value).

The calculation of the target is based on published figures
that are regularly updated and are transparent to external
audiences. With the additional information provided on the
assumptions for important key indicators, shareholders
will find it easier to assess the likelihood of the target being
reached.

This will enable our investors to better judge Munich Re’s
business performance and economic value added in
future.

What is behind RORAC?
RORAC is defined as follows:

Net income-Interest rate x (1-tax rate) x Additional available equity
RORAC =

Risk-based capital

The numerator in the formula comprises the published
IFRS net income adjusted for post-tax income {interest rate
x [1 ~tax rate]) generated on capital not subject to risk
within the given risk tolerance.

The basis for the adjustment is the capital exceeding the
necessary risk-based capital (additional available equity).
This is calculated as follows: the starting point is the equity
recognised in the IFRS financial statements, from which the
“economic equity” is derived by means of various adjust-
ments. These include the addition of the unrecognised
valuation reserves and the unrecognised portion of the
embedded values in life and health insurance, and the
subtraction of goodwill and deferred tax assets. From this
economic equity a margin is deducted for the settlement
of existing obligations in following years. The difference
between the amount then remaining and the required risk-
based capital is the additional available equity, which

is also necessary for rating and solvency purposes, as well
as for profitable growth. The additional available equity in
the system presented here earns a risk-free interest rate, as
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all the risk components of the investment and underwriting
are covered with risk-based capital by the internal risk
model, and thus assigned appropriate return requirements.

How high should the RORAC target be set?

For determining the concrete RORAC target figure, we start
with our sustainable result expectation per unit of risk. In
doing so, we use among other things capital market prices
for comparable risks, bearing in mind that no precise
methodology exists. Thus, in setting our target, we con-
sider it important to make the level ambitious but also real-
istic.

After weighing up many factors, we have decided to aim
for a RORAC of 15%.

On the basis of our risk positioning and capitalisation at
the beginning of the year, this corresponds to a consoli-
dated profit of between €2.6bn and €2.8bn.

What assumptions is this target based on?

In both primary insurance and reinsurance, we are pro-
ceeding on the basis of statistically expectable claims
experience. Provided there are no significant shifts in the
composition of our business portfolio, we reckon with a
combined ratio of less than 97% in property-casualty and
health reinsurance, which includes an amount equivalent
to around 5% of premiums as projected claims expenditure
for natural catastrophes costing over €5m per event. In
property-casualty primary insurance, we expect a com-
bined ratio of under 95%.

On the investment side, we anticipate a result equivalent to
4.5% of the average market value of the investments.
Lastly, our target is based on a largely stable currency en-
vironment. Changes in tax treatment are only considered
to the extent that they are already known today.

Embedded values as additional performance indicators

in life primary insurance and reinsurance and in health pri-
mary insurance, we will use key indicators based on Euro-
pean Embedded Value (Eev), parallel to the new RORAC
perspective. Embedded value is a form of valuation for
long-term portfolios whose performance cannot be reason-
ably measured on the basis of a single year. Specifically,
embedded value is the present value of future net earnings
from business in force plus the value of shareholders’
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equity, less the cost of holding capital. A key performance
indicator in this case are EEV earnings. We aim to achieve

EEV earnings of between 8% and 9% both in primary insur-
ance and in reinsurance business in relation to the value

of the overall business in force at the beginning of the year.
The life and health insurance business managed and
measured on an embedded-value basis will also contribute
to the IFRS consolidated profit and thus to reaching the
RORAC target, even though IFRS consolidated profits follow
the narrower individual business-year perspective.

Our targets - Ambitious but attainable

In selecting suitable targets, contrasting aspects have to be
considered and weighed up. On the one hand, undue com-
plexity has to be avoided, in order to ensure transparency
forinvestors, staff and the public. On the other hand, the
challenge lies in reflecting economic realities as closely as
possible avoiding oversimplification, and enshrining
added value as the Group's overriding guiding principle.
As the above description shows, the background is com-
plex, especially as the paraliel use of different performance
indicators is unavoidable. That is why we have devoted
considerable space to this topic. We are convinced that we
are on the right track with the key performance indicators
of RORAC and European Embedded Value as our guiding
principle. Taking into account all the relevant factors, we
consider that our methodologically improved targets are
ecanomically meaningful - ambitious but nevertheless
attainable.

Binding standards for underwriting
and rating

In reinsurance, CUGC is not only responsible for business
with our global clients but also develops guidelines for the
underwriting of our reinsurance business. Corporate
Underwriting defines standards for the underwriting, pri-
cing and claims management of the reinsurance group. In
this way, we ensure that the quality of our business is
constantly high throughout our reinsurance operations
and that we respond swiftly to changes and new develop-
ments. Since Corporate Underwriting is closely linked to
our operative business, we can generate needs-oriented




products and services for our clients ‘there as well.

For terrorism, we basically strive for exclusions or liability
limits under our treaties. In particular, we do not provide
coverage of terrorism in the case of risks and perils for
which insurance protection can be obtained from a com-
bined private-state solution or pools. In those cases where
we offer cover against a separate premium, we do so sub-
ject to very restrictive underwriting criteria that ensure the
liability accepted is transparent, strictly limited and thus
controllable. For epidemics, we have exclusions or restrict-
ive treaty conditions in place for particularly exposed
regions. For major industrial risks, we have largely been
able to maintain the conditions and liability limits we
optimised in prior years. These measures consequently

Governing bodies of the Munich Re Group

The Board of Management

Dr. jur. Nikolaus von Bomhard

(Chairman of the Board of Management)

Group Development (formerly Strategic Planning)
Press

Internal Auditing

Executive Offices, Group Top Executives

Dr. rer. pol. Thomas Blunck (from 1 October 2005)
Special and Financial Risks

{until 31 December 2005 together with Dr. Jeworrek)
Information Technology |

{until 31 December 2005 together with Dr. Jeworrek)

Georg Daschner
Europe 2 and Latin America

Dr. jur. Heiner Hasford

Group Investments, Corporate Finance, M&A

(from 1 January 2006 without Reinsurance Investments)

Legal and Regulatory Affairs, Compliance (since 1 January 2006)
General Services
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Corporate Underwriting/Global Clients
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{from 1 January 2006)

Special and Financial Risks

(until 31 December 2005; from 1 October 2005 together with Dr. Blunck)
Information Technology ' _
{until 31 December 2005; from 1 October 2008 iogether with Dr. Blunck)

continue to make a sustained positive contribution to the
risk profile of our portfolio.

In primary insurance, we write both personal lines and
commercial business. This results in a heterogeneous port-
folio of risks. We therefore have line- and segment-related
guidelines for rating and underwriting designed to ensure
the requisite risk balance in the community of policy-
holders. Besides this, the actuaries responsible (life and
health insurance) and the heads of the actuarial depart-
ments (property-casualty insurance) make sure that rating
is appropriate and that sufficient reserves are set up to
cover the obligations assumed. We regularly check by
means of independent audit processes whether these
guidelines are appropriate.

Christian Kluge
Europe 1
Corporate Communications

John Phelan
North America

Dr. phil. Detlef Schneidawind (until 31 December 2005)

(Board member in charge of industrial relations,

within the meaning of Section 33 of the German Co-Determination Act)
Life and Health (from 1 October 2005 together with Dr. Strassl)

Human Resources

Dr. jur. Jorg Schneider

Accounting

(from 1 January 2006 without Accounting for Reinsurance)
Group Controlling

(from 1 January 2006 without Controlling for Reinsurance)
Integrated Risk Management

Taxes

Investor Relations

Dr. oec. publ. Wolfgang Strassl (from 1 October 2005)

(Board member in charge of industrial relations,

within the meaning of Section 33 of the German Co-Determination Act)
(from 1 January 2008)

Life and Health

(Until 31 December 2005 together with Dr. Schneidawind)

Human Resources (from 1 January 2006)

Karl Wittmann
Asia, Australasia, Africa
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Chairman of the Supervisory Board of E.ON AG

Dr. rer. nat. Rainer Janf3en
Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Prof. Dr.rer. nat. Henning Kagermann

Co-Chairman of the Executive Board and Chief Executive Officer of sap aG

Prof. Dr. rer. nat. Drs. h. c. mult. Hubert Markl

Former President of the Max Planck Society
Emeritus Professor of Biology

Wolfgang Mayrhuber

Chairman of the Board of Management of Deutsche Lufthansa AG

Kerstin Michl
Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Prof. Karel Van Miert
Professor at the University of Nyenrode

Ingrid Miller

Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Prof. Dr. jur. Dr.-Ing. E. h. Heinrich v. Pierer
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Siemens AG

Dr.e. h. Dipl.-Ing. Bernd Pischetsrieder

Chairman of the Board of Management of Volkswagen AG

Dr.rer. nat. Jirgen Schimetschek
Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Dr.jur. Dr. h.c. Albrecht Schmidt
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Bayerische Hypo- und Vereinsbank AG
{until 27 November 2005)

Dr. phil. Ron Sommer
Former Chairman of the Board of Management of Deutsche Telekom AG

Wolfgang Stogbauer

Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Josef SURI

Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Judy Vo

Employee of Munich Reinsurance Company

Membership of the Supervisory Board committees

Personnel Committee

Dr. Hans-Jirgen Schinzler (Chairman)
Herbert Bach

Dr. Bernd Pischetsrieder

Standing Committee

Dr. Hans-Jiirgen Schinzler (Chairman)
Herbert Bach

Dr. Bernd Pischetsrieder

Dr. Albrecht Schmidt

Josef SURBI

52

Audit Committee

Dr. Albrecht Schmidt (Chairman)
Hans-Georg Appel

Prof. Dr. Henning Kagermann
Dr. Hans-Jiirgen Schinzler
Wolfgang Stogbauer

Conference Committee

Dr. Hans-Jiirgen Schinzler (Chairman)
Herbert Bach

Dr. Bernd Pischetsrieder

Judy Vo6




Other seats held by Board members

Board of Management'

Seats held on supervisory
boards of other German
companies

Membership of comparable bodies
of German and foreign business
enterprises

Dr. jur. Nikolaus von Bomhard
Chairman

ERGO Versicherungsgruppe AG* (Chairman)

Dr. rer. pol. Thomas Blunck
{from 1 October 2005)

New Reinsurance Company, Geneva®
(Chairman)

Georg Daschner

Muinchener Riick Italia S. p. A., Milan* {Chairman)

Dr. jur. Heiner Hasford

Commerzbank AG

D.A.S. Deutscher Automobil Schutz
Allgemeine Rechtsschutz-Versicherungs-AG*

ERGO Versicherungsgruppe AG"

Europdische Reiseversicherung AG (Chairman)

Niirnberger Beteiligungs-AG

VICTORIA Lebensversicherung AG*

VICTORIA Versicherung AG™

WMF Wirttembergische Metallwarenfabrik AG

American Re Corporation, Wilmington, Delaware’

Stefan Heyd (until 31 December 2005)

EXTREMUS Versicherungs-AG
Minchener und Magdeburger
Agrarversicherung AG

Dr. rer. nat. Torsten Jeworrek

Christian Kluge

Karlsruher Versicherung aG {Chairman)
Mercur Assistance AG Holding (Chairman)

John Phelan

American Re Corporation, Wilmington, Delaware”
{Chairman)

American Re-Insurance Company, Princeton”
{Chairman)

Munich Reinsurance Company of Canada, Toronto”

Dr. phil. Detlef Schneidawind
{(until 31 December 2005}

DKv Deutsche Krankenversicherung AG*
Hamburg-Mannheimer Sachversicherungs-AG”
Hamburg-Mannheimer Versicherungs-ac*
Karlsruher Lebensversicherung AG (Chairman)
Mecklenburgische Kranken Versicherungs-AG
Mecklenburgische Leben Versicherungs-AG

Munich American Reassurance Company, Atlanta”

Dr. jur. Jorg Schneider

MEAG MUNICH ERGO
Kapitalanlagegesellschaft mbH"*

American Re Corporation, Wilmington, Delaware”

Dr. oec. publ. Wolfgang Strassl|
(from 1 October 2005)

DKv Deutsche Krankenversicherung AG™
Hamburg-Mannheimer Sachversicherungs-AG~
Hamburg-Mannheimer Versicherungs-aG*

Munich American Reassurance Company, Atlanta”

Karl Wittmann

Jordan Ins. Co. p.l.c., Amman
Saudi National Insurance Company E.c., Jeddah

1Status: 31 December 2005/1 January 2006 (in the case of members who have left the Board of Management, the information shows the status at the

date of their departure).

*Own group company within the meaning of Section 18 of the German Stock Companies Act.
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Supervisory Board?

Seats held on supervisory
boards of other German
companies

Membership of comparable bodies
of German and foreign business
enterprises

Dr. jur. Hans-Jirgen Schinzler
Chairman

Deutsche Telekom AG
METRO AG

Ulrich Hartmann

Deutsche Bank AG

Deutsche Lufthansa AG

E.ON AG { Chairman)

Hochtief AG

k8 Deutsche Industriebank AG {Vorsitz)

Henkel kGaa
Arcelor s. A., Luxembourg

Prof. Dr. rer. nat. Henning Kagermann

DaimierChrysler Services AG
Deutsche Bank aG

Prof. Dr.rer. nat. Drs. h.c. muft. Hubert Markl

Bayerische Motoren Werke aG

Sanofi-Aventis s. A., Paris
Georg von Holtzbrinck GmbH

Wolfgang Mayrhuber

Bayerische Motoren Werke AG
Eurowings Luftverkehrs ac
Thomas Cook AG

LsG Lufthansa Service Holding AG™
Lufthansa Cargo AG"

Lufthansa CityLine GmbH* { Chairman)
Lufthansa Technik AG™

Heico Corporation, Miami
Swiss International AG, Baste

Prof. Karel Van Miert

RWE AG

Agfa-Gevaert nv, Mortsel

Anglo American plc, London

De Persgroep, Asse

Royal Philips Electronics Nv, Amsterdam
Solvay s. A, Brussels

Vivendi Universal s. A., Paris

Prof. Dr.jur. Dr.-Ing. E. h. Heinrich v. Pierer

Deutsche Bank a6
Hochtief AG

Siemens AG ( Chairman)
ThyssenKrupp AG
Volkswagen AG

Dr. e. h. Dipl.-Ing. Bernd Pischetsrieder

Dresdner Bank AG
METRO AG
Audi ag”™ { Chairman)

Tetra-Laval Group, Pully
Scania AB, Sodertalje” (Chairman)
SEAT S.A., Barcelona®

Dr. jur. Dr. h. ¢. Albrecht Schmidt

Siemens AG

Thyssen’sche Handelsgesellschaft m. b. H.

Dr. phil. Ron Sommer

" Celanese AG

Motorola Inc., Schaumburg
Sistema, Moscow

2Status: 31 December 2005. -

*Own group company within the meaning of Section 18 of the German Stock Companies Act.
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Parameters

General parameters

Our business environment is marked to an increasing
extent by growing complexity and the upward trend in nat-
ural catastrophes. There has also been a disproportionate
rise in man-made losses in relation to economic activity.
The reasons are many and varied, ranging from techno-
logical progress and the advancing geopolitical interde-
pendencies to climate change and trends in international
liability. Besides this, concentrations of values are increas-
ing strongly, while economic units and regions are becom-
ing more dependent on each other, giving rise to new risk
potentials and accumulation hazards. These phenomena
pose demanding challenges for the insurance industry. It is
therefore imperative to carry on refining risk models and to
swiftly incorporate new findings. \

Fundamental changes are also resulting from unpreced-
ented demographic trends. People are living longer - good
news, but also an enormous strain on sociat security sys-
tems. In Europe in the year 2030, every two people in paid
work will have to finance one person who is not. This
means Europeans can only maintain their standard of liv-
ing and high-quality healthcare in the medium term if they
make additional private provision - a great opportunity
forinsurers. Many countries are in the process of realign-
ing their social security systems to these demographic
requirements, and so for the time being insurers will have
to cope with uncertain legal and political parameters.
Flexibility and fast response times in product design are
becoming increasingly important competitive factors. At
the same time, primary insurers are having to adjust to

the growing new target group of older people with their
specific needs.

One of the most important issues for private health insur-
ance in Germany at present is the future of statutory health
insurance and the implications of possible reforms for the
private sector. In the course of 2006, a reform conceptisto
be devised, and a hill for refarming long-term care insur-
ance is scheduled to be submitted by summer 2006.

In addition, the insurance industry's regulatory environment
is being affected by profound changes. The introduction of
Solvency Il in Europe and new accounting standards have
implications for insurers’ capital requirements and income
statements. The new circumstances will have considerable
implications for primary insurers’ business models. They
will also influence the demand for reinsurance cover and
trigger changes in its supply. A group like Munich Re,
among the leaders in integrated risk management, can
utilise the changing industry dynamics to its advantage
and exploit the business opportunities they present ~in
both reinsurance and primary insurance.

Economic parameters

The general economic parameters for the insurance indus-
try became slightly less favourable in 2005. Despite higher
oil prices, the global economy continued to expand, albeit
with somewhat lower growth rates than in 2004. Share prices
rose appreciably in Europe and Japan, compared with only
a moderate upward trend in the USA. Long-term vyields on
the bond markets fell in the first half of the year. But aftera
further interim low in autumn they recovered, with the
interest rate level in the USA -~ in contrast to Germany -
higher at the end of the year than at the beginning.

Owing to higher energy prices, inflation rates climbed sig-
nificantly throughout the world. In this environment, some
central banks increased their interest rates. The Us Federal
Reserve raised its reference interest rate in eight steps
from 2.25% at the start of the year to 4.25%. At the end of
the year, the European Central Bank followed suit and
increased its reference interest rate by 0.25 percentage
points to 2.25%. Of the major central banks, only the Bank
of England reduced its key interest rate.

Over the course of the year, the qil price rase substantially,
mainly because global demand remained at a high level.
Following the hurricanes in the Gulf of Mexico in the sec-
ond half of August and at the beginning of September, the
Uss$ 65 per barrel mark was clearly exceeded at times.
Since then, prices have receded a little.




Economy

The global economy continued to expand in 2005,
although with slightly tower growth rates, mainly owing to
the much higher oil prices. By contrast, the negative effects
of the Atlantic hurricanes in the second half of the year
were limited. The USA and China remained the principal
engines of the global economy.

Inthe USA, the pace of economic growth cooled some-
what. This was due not only to drastically higher energy
prices but also to the continued interest-rate increases of
the us Federal Reserve, which further reduced the expan-
sive effect of monetary policy. The Us economy was again
buoyed by private consumption and corporate investment.
Altogether, GDP grew by 3.5% in real terms compared with
the previous year.

Supported by private consumer demand, the economy in
Japan gained mementum compared with the previous
year, the slackened growth in the third quarter proving to
be temporary. GDP increased by 2.8% in real terms for the
year as a whole.

Economic development in the eurozone was somewhat
more subdued than in 2004, albeit with marked regional
differences. Growth in Spain and Ireland, for instance, was
above average, whereas in ltaly it remained below the
average level.

Especially the first half-year was characterised by weak
domestic demand, mainly due to persistently low consump-
tion. The high oil price was a detrimental factor, aggravated
by the depreciation of the euro, and the main growth stimu-
lus came from exports. For 2005 as a whole, real growth
stood at 1.3%. In other words, compared with the USA,
momentum in the eurozone was again weak.

At 0.9%, real economic growth in Germany in 20605 was
considerably down on the previous year, since 2004 had an
above-average number of working days. Adjusted to elim-
inate this calendar effect, however, real growth in 2005
was exactly the same as in the previous year, namely 1.1%.
Exports were again the mainstay of economic development,
with corporate investment also increasing in the second
half of the year. Some early indicators, such as the much
heeded ifo business climate index, brightened as well. But
domestic consumption remained very disappointing,
curbing the growth rate of the economy as a whale. The
persistently high unemployment rate {11.1% at year-end)
and uncertainties about future reforms had a negative
impact on consumer confidence.

In the United Kingdom, economic momentum slowed sig-
nificantly compared with the previous year. Not least
owing to weak domestic demand, the growth rate achieved
in real terms fell to only 1.8%.

Growth in the emerging markets generally flattened slightly
in 2005, a development even oil-exporting countries like
Russia, Venezuela and Mexico were not spared. With a real
growth rate of 9.9%, however, expansion in China continued
almost unabated. Measures by the Chinese government to
cool the economy have borne little fruit so far. The Chinese
current account surplus reached a new record. In July, a
new exchange rate policy was introduced as a first step
towards making exchange rates more flexible.

India’s economy also grew strongly, whereas economic
momentum in the other Asian emerging markets slack-
ened in line with the global economy.

With only a small increase in domestic demand and weak
exports to the European Union, growth in the countries of
central and eastern Europe atso decreased. Despite the
failed ratification of the EU constitution, Bulgaria and
Rumania are still expected to join the European Unionin
2007. in autumn, the EU additionally began accession
negotiations with Turkey.

Growth rates in Latin America slowed as well. In Brazil and
Mexico, this was partly owing to interest-rate increases by
the Brazilian and Mexican central banks.

Capital markets

Prices on the international stock markets showed a largely
upward trend in 2005. The EURO STOXX 50, for instance,
improved by 21.3% and the DAX by 27.1%. The Japanese stock
market performed particularly well, achieving an increase
of 40.2%. Price gains in the USA were distinctly more maod-
est, even though prices rose in the last few months of the
year. By the end of 2005, the S&P 500 was up 3.0%.

Starting from a level of 3.7% at the beginning of the year,
yields on ten-year German government bonds initially fell
owing to an expected weakening of economic growth,
recording a low of 3.0% in September. However, budding
concerns about inflation and a somewhat more optimistic
estimate of the economy caused them to turn upwards
again to 3.3% by the end of the year. Having stood at 4.2%
at the start of 2005, yields on ten-year US government
bonds reached their low (3.9%) in June and rose to 4.4%

at year-end.




The us dollar gained considerable ground against the
euro and the Japanese yen in 2005. The euro closed at

US$/€ 118 — a year-on-year loss in value of around 13.2%. /1
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The closing exchange rate for the yen stood at ¥/US$ 118.03,
representing depreciation against the dollar of around 13.2%.
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Insurance industry

Writing business at risk-adequate prices was again the
central issue on the insurance markets in 2005.

Prices generally remained at a risk-adequate level in the
renewals in reinsurance at the beginning of the year,

at 1 April and at 1 July 200s. Virtually all market players
gave priority to selective and result-oriented under-
writing.

Whilst some price erosion was initially observable in
property insurance, the high losses in the third quarter
again underlined the need for appropriate pricing and
conditions.

Hurricane Katrina caused the highest insured loss in the
history of insurance. Quite a few market players and also
risk modelling firms had to change their assessments of
the frequency and size of loss potentials. In'the case of
some companies, the losses amount to more than half
their equity capital. The windstorms of the |{ast few years
have also shown that it is no ionger capital but knowledge
that is the decisive factor required in reinSU(ance. Major

V

reinsurers with extensive internal resources for risk model-
ling and own risk capital allocation are clearly at an advan-
tage here compared with smaller companies that, in many
cases, only use vendor models. All in all, the re-evaluation
of the risk and loss estimations has stabilised the pricing
environment, especially in property insurance.

Reinsurers’ capital base continues to be good. Presentable
underwriting results improved capitalisation in the first
half of the year, until the heavy losses in the third quarter
subjected it to a substantial burden. Altogether, however, it
appears that the effects on the capitalisation of the insur-
ance industry have been limited. On the one hand, the
industry’s earnings situation is otherwise good; on the
other hand, capital increases by some of the reinsurers
particularly affected and the formation of new comparies,
especially in Bermuda, have provided additional capacity.
With the announced acquisition of GE Insurance Solutions
by Swiss Re, moreover, the global reinsurance market's
number 2 and number 5 in terms of premium are combin-
ing forces.

[




Demographic changes and increasing demand for private
provision had a positive impact on the development of life
reinsurance. Especially the ageing of society worldwide
and the resulting pressure on social security systems are
causing the market for private life insurance to grow more
strongly than the overall economy. Besides this, the global
and long-term trend towards liberalising state-run health-
care systems, whose financial situation is tight in a number
of countries, was beneficial to health reinsurance.

Important insurance markets

Premium growth in the insurance industry, in particularin
property-casualty business, is strongly influenced by the
overall economic situation. In life and health insurance,
market dynamics are also impacted by changes in the legal
and tax environment.

The still relatively robust global economy was generally
helpful for most insurance markets.

According to initial estimates, growth in premium income
in property-casualty insurance cooled noticeably in the
USA, the main causes being a slight decline in economic
growth and cyclical aspects. Nevertheless, until the hurri-
cane losses occurred, the insurers’ technical results and
profitability developed positively. The improved resilience
and mechanisms of global reinsurance helped the industry
to cope with the huge hurricane losses.

In line with the weak economic development in Germany,
the nominal increase in gross premiums written by the
German insurance industry in 2005 fell to just over 2%
(3.0%) according to preliminary estimates. Premiums in
private health insurance climbed significantly {projected
3.7%). Nevertheless, this increase was lower than in the
previous year, particularly because of uncertainties about
future healthcare reforms. Life insurance recorded pre-
mium growth estimated at 6%. The German Retirement
Income Act led to a boom in life insurance at the end of
2004 in anticipation of the change in the law. Premium
income in property and accident insurance fell marginally
by around 0.5%, essentially owing to the already high mar-
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ket penetration and increasing price competition.

Initial estimates indicate that premium volume in life insur-
ance grew by a strong 14% in France. Based on the figures
for the first three quarters, health and accidentinsurance
also recorded solid growth, whereas the increase in pre-
mium income in property-casualty business is likely to be
only very moderate overall. As preliminary estimates sug-
gest, the Spanish life insurance market grew by 8.2%, with
non-life insurance expanding at a rate of 7.3%. Growth in
health insurance was above average, at 9.4%. In Switzer-
land, non-life premium income expanded at an estimated
2.7%. The increase in single life insurance was significantly
lower, at about 1.3%, whereas group life business {occupa-
tional retirement provision) showed an estimated decline
of 8.4% compared with the previous year. Premium volume
in Poland’s life insurance market recorded very marked
growth of 19.1% in the first three quarters, while the rise in
non-life insurance was more modest at 4.1%.

The Japanese insurance industry profited from a further
improvement in its domestic capital markets, which should
be particularly beneficial to life insurers.

Premium again grew most strongly in the emerging mar-
kets, where above-average macroeconomic growth rates
and the gradual development of the insurance markets led
to increasing insurance penetration. In China, for instance,
premium volume in life business showed a rise of 14.5%
and the increase in non-life amounted to 12.8%. Premium
growth in the Indian market remained healthy, with non-
life premium rising by 16.4% in the first three quarters of
the fiscal year 2005/2006.

Legal parameters

The regulatory environment for German primary insurance
and reinsurance is in a state of flux. Various European and
global initiatives in the field of supervisory law have
altered the parameters and will continue to provide for a
restructuring of the regulatory landscape in future.




Atthe initiative of the Eu Commission, work has been going
on in Europe for some time under the rubric of "Solvency n”
to restructure insurance supervisory law 'as a whole. One
of the core ideas is to consider individual risk exposure as
far as possible in future (risk-based approach). Internal
company risk models will play an impaortant part in this,
provided they meet certain quality criteria. The EU Com-
mission plans to submit a draft Solvency 11 directive by
mid-2007.

The 2004 amendment to the German Insurance Control Act
(VAG), which entered into force on 21 December 2004,
changes the rules governing direct supervision of reinsur-
ance companies. At the centre of this legislation is the
introduction of an authorisation procedure and the creation
of solvency regulations. In future, reinsurers in Germany
require authorisation to commence or extend business
operations. As the result of a transitional provision, estab-
lished reinsurers like Munich Re are automatically granted
this authorisation, but are still obliged to submit a business
plan in order to determine the authorisation’s scope.

The second main component of the new Fegulations is the
introduction of statutory solvency requirements. They
stipulate that in future a specified minimum capitalisation
will be obligatory for reinsurance companies as well, and
are essentially based on the solvency provisions for pri-
mary insurers. Munich Re already meets these statutory
solvency requirements. Thus we do not have to avail our-
selves of the transitional period granted by the law, which
allow the requirements to be complied with gradually by

1 March 2007. Further information on Group solvency can
be found on page 101.

There have been no significant changes to the investment
regulations, where reinsurers continue to be subject
merely to the general investment principles of security,
profitability, liquidity, mix and spread. ‘

The new rules in the 2004 amendment to the German
Insurance Control Act must be seen against the back-
ground of the EU reinsurance directive, which has applied
since December 2005. German legislation anticipated cen-
tral elements of this directive and translated them into Ger-

man law. This means that probably no major adjustments
for further implementation will be necessary.

The EU reinsurance directive will make supervision more
efficient by introducing the principle of “home country
control”. The supervisory authority of the reinsurer’s home
country will be responsible for all questions relating to
financial supervision. For Munich Re's European branches,
this will in future be the German Federal Financial Super-
visory Authority (BaFin) and not, as previously, the super-
visory authority in the country where the branch in question
is located. This creates the same situation for reinsurers in
Europe as has existed for primary insurance companies
for more than a decade. The member states have to imple-
ment the EU reinsurance directive by the end of 2007 (or by
the end of 2008 for certain rules).

Changes are also pianned in Germany as regards the legal
parameters for primary insurance.

In two judgements of 26 July 2005, the German Federal
Constitutional Court pronounced on rules for endowment
insurance with policyholder bonuses and on portfolio
transfers between insurance companies. The court con-
sidered it necessary to amend the existing statutory regu-
lations to protect consumers. The main point is that life
insurance policyholders’ participation in surplus should
include valuation reserves (hidden reserves). At present,
at least 90% of valuation reserves are allocated to policy-
holders —but not until they are realised in accordance with
the German Commercial Code. The Federal Constitutional
Court demands a regulation according to which policy-
holder bonuses are partially taken into account when life
insurance policies are surrendered, without hidden reserves
having to be realised. The court provided for legal certainty
with regard to the past: the previous arrangements con-
tinue to apply. However, by the end of 2007 the legislature
is called upon to set more concrete rules for portfolio trans-
fers and for determining profit shares in life insurance. On
12 October 2005, the Federal Court of Justice also requested
greater transparency and consumer protection in its judge-
ments requiring the removal of ineffective clauses in
endowment insurance policies. The Federal Court of
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Justice criticised the fact that the formulations regarding
surrender values in the event of premature termination
were incomprehensible to clients. The life insurers of the
Munich Re Group are actively and constructively looking
for solutions in collaboration with the legislators.

But other lines of insurance will also be affected by legal
changes. An expert commission set up by the German
Federal Government has submitted proposals for reform-
ing insurance contract law. It remains to be seen to what
extent the new Federal Government acts on these recom-
mendations; a draft statue is expected in the first half of
20086.

The situation of private health insurance continues to be a
subject of political debate. The new German government’s
coalition agreement does not contain any decision on the
concepts of flat-rate health contributions or “citizens’
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insurance scheme”, debated in the preceding election
campaign; it advocates "portability” of individual ageing
reserves when a policyholder changes insurers.

An U directive of 9 December 2002 on insurance medi-
ation was supposed to have been translated into national
law by 15 January 2005. in Germany, there is so faronly a
draft bill that takes into account parts of the EU directive. It
is foreseeable that professional requirements for insur-
ance agents will be made more stringent and that an
authorisation procedure will apply. In addition, agents will
have to be entered in a central public register. In order to
protect consumers, the directive states there should be
rules requiring that clients be given appropriate consult-
ation which is documented. This will also result in changes
for around 400,000 insurance agents in Germany.
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Overview and important key figures

Excellent business performance despite very high burdens
"Profitability before growth” strategy consistently pursued
Return-on-equity target surpassed, with a profit of over €2.7bn

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Gross premiums written €bn 38.2 38.1 40.4 40.0 36.1
Combined ratio
- Reinsurance non-life % 110.5 98.8 96.7 122.4 135.1
- Primary insurance property-casualty % 93.1 93.0 96.4 99.9 101.4
Consolidated result €m 2,743 1,887 -434 288 250

*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1as 1 (rev. 2003).

Overall, in the past year, the Munich Re Group's business
performed very well. We achieved a return on equity of
12.3% (9.5%) after tax, thus surpassing our return target
(the previous year’s figure has been adjusted owing to a
change in the method of calculation; see page 47). The
sound and profitable basic business in primary insurance
and reinsurance helped to compensate for the record
losses from natural catastrophes. Our inve:stment result
also contributed significantly to our success.

In 2005, reinsurance was affected by a hurricane season
hitherto unprecedented in terms of loss amount (see

page 70). Particularly Hurricane Katrina, for which our
expenditure was over €2.0bn, hit us hard. Qur retrocession
agreements allowed us to reduce the burdens from Katrina
by approximately €400m. In the year under review, we also
incurred high expenditure in strengthening the claims
reserves of our Us subsidiary American Re by Us$ 1.4bn
net {see page 69f).

Owing to these significant exceptional burdens, we did
not achieve our combined ratio target of 87%. Our profit-
oriented underwriting policy has nevertheless continued to
pay off, because our business performed well apart from
these major events. Especially in the life and health seg-
ment, business experience was very positive. Thanks to an
excellent investment result, we achieved a good operating
result overall in reinsurance, where, as expected, total pre-
mium volume declined somewhat owing to our strictly
risk-adequate underwriting policy.

Primary insurance significantly exceeded its result targets.
Our strategy of writing both reinsurance and primary
insurance is effective. Towards the end of the year under
review, we sold our holding in the Karlsruher insurance
Group. It would not have made sense to integrate it into
the much larger ERGO, given the companies’ incompatible

sales channels. However, this sale hardly had any effect

on growth in the year under review. Premium income in
primary insurance was up slightly, chiefly attributable to
the healtth segment. In life insurance, premium volume
was down as anticipated following the changes in fiscal
parameters. Claims experience in the year under review
was again very satisfactory, with no exceptional burdens.
Furthermore, we concluded the cost-reduction programme
initiated in 2002 and were even able to clearly outperform
the combined ratio target of 95%.

For the reporting on individual fields of business, the following principle
applies: volumes and results that derive from business within a segment
are eliminated, whereas figures that derive from business with companies
from other segments {e.g. intra-Group reinsurance cessions from primary
insurers to reinsurers) are included in the data. Where the information
relates to national accounting law, this is mentioned specifically.

Result

Compared with the previous year, the consolidated result
improved to an excellent €2.7bn (1.9bn). The investment
result, which was outstanding thanks to considerable
realised capital gains, largely offset the burdens from the
increase in reserves at American Re and from the hurricanes.
At €976m {432m), the life and health reinsurance segment
accounted for the largest share of the result. However,
primary insurance contributed more significantly to the
Munich Re Group’s success than in the previous year. Here,
the consolidated result climbed by 270.7% to €1,1775m (317m)
and was thus well above our planned figure.

The operating result rose by 36.5% to €4.1bn (3.0bn). Tax
expenditure incurred at Group level for the reserve
strengthening at American Re had an adverse effect on the
consolidated result.
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Consciidated result

All figures in €m 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Result before amortisation and impairment losses of goodwill 4,137 3,389 1,971 -20 -445
Operating result 4,130 3,025 1,284 -391 -875
Consolidated result 2,743 1,887 -434 288 250

*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1As 1 {rev. 2003).

The operating result was influenced in particular by the fol-

lowing factors:

- In reinsurance, our expenditure for the hurricanes to-
talled €2.3bn after retrocessions and before tax. Some 17.7
(4.5) percentage points of the overall combined ratio of
110.5% (98.9%) were attributable to losses from natural
catastrophes.

- The reserve strengthening at American Re reduced the
Munich Re Group’s operating result by €388m and
impacted the combined ratio with 2.6 percentage points.
The relief effect of €906m from the release of the IBNR
reserve is included in this figure.

— In primary insurance, the pleasingly low claims expend-
iture was once again a major success factor. The com-
bined ratio, including legal expenses insurance, was
only 93.1% (93.0%), much better than the 95% we had

aimed for. The cost-reduction programme ted to a signifi-
cantimprovementin the result.

— Realised capital gains greatly increased the investment

result in reinsurance and primary insurance alike. We cut
back our investments in German financial stocks by sell-
ing shares in Allianz, Commerzbank and BHwW. We also
disposed of our stake in MAN. We exchanged our HVB
shares into UniCredit shares, realising capital gains to
the tune of €988m. Compared with the previous year, the
return on investment rose t0 5.9% (4.5%).

Premium

As in the previous year, we earned about 54% of our Group
premium income from reinsurance and 46% from primary
insurance.

Share of reinsurance and primary insurance - Life and health and property-casualiy —in Group premium income”

Reinsurance 56.5%
2001

Life and health 13.9% Property-casualty 42.6%

Reinsurance 58.6%
2002

Life and health 13.9% Property-casualty 44.7%

2003 Reinsurance 56.4%

Life and health 14.6% Property-casualty 41.8%

2004 Reinsurance 54.0%

Life and health 30.8%

Life and health 29.4%

Life and health 31.0%

Primary insurance 43.5%

Total 100%

ml;r-bb‘erﬂ/‘—casualty 12.7%

Primary insurance 41.4%

Total 100%

Property’-.é‘asuahy 12.0%

im in .69
__Primary insurance 43.6% Total 100%

~ Property-casualty 12.6%

Primary insurance 46.0% Total 100%

Life and health 17.3% Property-casualty 36.7%

2005 Reinsurance 54.1%

Life and health 18.2% Property-casualty 35.9%

*After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.

W Reinsurance
M Primaryinsurance
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Life and health 32.4%

Life and health 32.3%

’ Property-casualty 13.6%

Primary insurance 45.9% Total 100%

Pro;;n»y-casualty 13.6%



The following diagram shows the percentage of premium

from foreign business. In reinsurance we operateona 7

global basis, whereas in primary insurance our activities
are focused on the German market.

2001 1 84.2% Total 54.8%
15.8%

2002 T I ‘ i _ 86.2% Total 56.9%
13.8%

2003 [T ~ ] 86.2% Total 54.8%
13.8% .

2004 [T - ] 84.2% Total 54.0%

2005 Total 54.5%

16.7%

" After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.

B _ Reinsurance
Primary insurance

Premium income in reinsurance was down\‘as aconse-
quence of our consistently profit-oriented underwriting
policy and the scheduled termination of individual reinsur-
ance treaties. However, the decrease came to only 0.2%
compared with the previous year (9.7%). In ‘particularin
the property-casualty segment, we suffered substantial
losses in premium volume in North Americé, as a number
of treaties did not meet our strict underwriting guidelines.
In Asia by contrast, premium income rose noticeably. The
life and health segment also experienced a rise. In 2005,
currency translation effects had a much smaller influence
on the development of premium than in the previous year. A
Croup premium income

84.3%

In primary insurance, there was a slight increase of 0.3%
(-0.6%) in premium income overall. Growth was primarily
driven by health insurance, the notable expansion in pre-
mium volume attributable to premium adjustments and
additional sales of supplementary insurance policies. As
expected, the change in fiscal parameters caused premium
in life insurance to lag behind the high levels achieved in
previous years. The fact that the Karlsruher Insurance
Group was deconsolidated as at 1 October 2005 accentu-
ated the decline in premium volume. In line with the mar-
ket, growth in property-casualty insurance was marginal,
due in particular to declining prices in motorinsurance.

All figures in €bn 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Reinsurance 22.3 224 24.8 25.4 222
Primary insurance 17.6 175 17.6 16.6 15.7
Consolidation -1.7 -1.8 -2.0 -2.0 -1.8
Total T 38.1 40.4 40.0 36.1

Events after the balance sheet date !

In December 2005, ERGO Versicherungsgruppe AG signed
agreements with GFKL Financial Services AG“ under which
the latter would acquire its majority stake in the ADA-HAS
Group, an IT systems specialist. In the meantime, the

governing bodies and cartel authorities have provided the
formal approvals still outstanding when the agreements
were signed, so that the sale will be completed in the cur-
rent business year. ADA-HAS will continue to be our partner
for T issues.
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Reinsurance

Burdens cushioned by successful basic property-casualty business

Excellent performance in life and health

The Munich Re Group operates in virtually all classes of
reinsurance. We offer a full range of products — from trad-
itional reinsurance to innovative solutions for risk assump-
tion.

Our reinsurance business is divided between seven div-
isions (see page 43): Life and Health; Europe 1; Europe 2
and Latin America; Asia, Australasia, Africa; North Amer-
ica; Corporate Underwriting/Global Clients; and Special
and Financial Risks.

Marketing

As reinsurers, we write our business predominantly in
direct collaboration with the primary insurers, but also via
brokers. This includes business offered to us by industrial
clients through their captives or risk retention groups
{alternative market business), which we accept via Munich-

Overview and important key figures

The past year impressively demonstrated the quality of our
basic business, even though it was affected by certain
burdens on the result. We had to strengthen the claims
reserves of our Us subsidiary American Re for past acci-
dent years by US$ 1.4bn net. Owing to the relief effect of
€906m from the release of the IBNR provisions, however,
the reserve strengthening reduced the Munich Re Group’s
operating result by €388m. The result was also impacted
by the unusually strong Atlantic hurricanes. These two fac-
tors alone accounted for 2.6 and 15.4 percentage points of
the combined ratio of 110.5% (98.9%), a figure far in excess
of our planning for reinsurance. However, these burdens
were largely offset by our excellent performance in the life
and health segment and our very good investment result.

American RiskPartners (MARP). A

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Gross premiums written:
- Property-casualty €m 14,547 14,857 17919 18,884 16,296
- Life and health €m 7,811 7,540 6,876 6,561 5,900
Loss ratio non-life % 82.0 71.0 69.6 95.8 104.5
Thereof natural catastrophes Percentage points 17.7 4.5 1.6 33 1.5
Expense ratio non-life % 285 279 27.1 26.6 30.6
Combined ratio:
- Non-life % 110.5 98.9 96.7 122.4 135.1
Consolidated resultin property-casualty €m 418 1,234 1,370 788 -1,203
Consolidated resultin life and health €m 976 432" 262 1,648 1,181

*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1As 1 (rev. 2003).

At €2,629m, the share of natural catastrophe losses in our
total expenditure for major losses (€£3,293m) was especially
high in the business year ended. The exceptional number
and severity of the hurricanes in the Gulf of Mexico made
2005 a record year for us in terms of insured natural catas-
trophe losses. This development, which began to manifest
itself in 2004, confirmed our strategy of systematically
refining our risk management in the Group.

In the year under review, we continued to gear our under-
writing policy consistently to profitability. Although the
favourable market environment led to an increased supply
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of reinsurance, we obtained attractive conditions for both
new business and renewals. Claims-free treaties came
under moderate price pressure. In loss-affected areas of
property insurance, we raised prices across the board.
Premiums for natural hazards rose above all in regions
affected by losses. The substantial natural catastrophe
losses served as a pertinent reminder of the necessity for
risk-adequate prices, terms and conditions. We were thus
able to improve the adequacy of our portfolio prices at
generally stable conditions.



Result ‘

The two reinsurance segments property-casualty and life
and health accounted for €0.4bn (1.2bn) and €1.0bn (0.4bn)
of the consolidated result respectively. Qur ove“rall result
for reinsurance was thus 16.3% below that of the previous
year. ‘

The operating result of the property-casualty segment
reflects the reserve increase at American Re and the con--
siderably higher burden from natural catastrophes com-
pared with business year 2004. Nevertheless, thesetwo 7

Reinsurance result

effects were largely offset by the solid result in basic busi-
ness and high income from investments. In contrast to the
operating result, the consolidated result in the property-
casualty segment was additionally affected by tax expend-
iture incurred at Group level as a consequence of the
reserve strengthening at American Re.

Despite the outstanding business experience in the life and
health segment and the excellent investment result, our
operating result for reinsurance dropped by 9.8% to €2.4bn
{2.6bn).

All figures in €m 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Operating result 2,384 2,642 2,606 1,639 -834
Consolidated result 1.394 1,666" 1,632 2,336 -52

*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1as 1 (rev. 2003).

Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma left their mark on the
combined ratios, in particular in the divisions Corporate
Underwriting/Global Clients; North America; Europe 2 and
Latin America; and Special and Financial Risks. The div- 7

Combined ratio by division

ision Europe 1 was not only affected by Winter Storm
Erwin but above all by the floods in the German, Austrian
and Swiss Alps in August 2005.

All figures in % 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Life and Health™ 974 98.9 978 104.4 113.9
Europe 1 94.2 89.1 96.5 1177 106.7
Europe 2 and Latin America 100.1 ag.s 96.6 96.4 115.3
Asia, Australasia, Africa 95.0 102.3 91.8 86.8 112.5
North America 134.0 119.3 99.1 168.1 156.8
Corporate Underwriting/Global Clients 126.0 94.0 98.0 120.8 160.4
Special and Financia! Risks 110.5 78.9 92.9 116.5 140.9

"Figures for health reinsurance only.

Premium

Premium volume in 2005 fell by 0.2% to €22.3bn (22.4bn).
With the euro down against most other important curren-
cies, we recorded premium growth due to changes in
exchange rates - in contrast to the previous year. Without
these currency translation effects, our premium income
would have been 0.9% lower. Approximately €15bn or 69%
of premiums was written in foreign currency, of Which 53%

was in us dollars and 17% in pounds sterling. 31% of our
premium volume was transacted in euros.

The main reasons for the decline in premium income were
the continuation of our strictly risk-adequate underwriting
policy and the scheduled termination of individual reinsur-
ance treaties. Where prices or conditions were not com-
mensurate with the risks, we refrained from renewing
treaties or writing new business.
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About 35% of our total premium income was attributable
to life and health reinsurance and 65% to the property-
casualty segment. While our selective underwriting policy
had an adverse impact above all on premium income in
property-casualty insurance, we experienced growth in A

Gross premiums by segment

the life and health segment, despite our high-level prof-
itability requirements. This growth was largely due to the
strong demand for private-provision products worldwide,
a positive effect that is partially offset by the loss of large-
volume business.

All figures in €m 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Life and health 7.811 7,540 6,876 6,561 5,900
Property-casualty 14,547 14,857 17918 18,884 16,296
Total RN 2239 24,795 25,445 22,196
Life and Health
Life reinsurance: 6.1% growth with high profitability
Health reinsurance: Result at an exceptionally high level and good growth opportunities
Responsible for: Life and health reinsurance worldwide

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Life
Gross premiums written £€m 6,491 6,119 5,461 5.277 4,769
Health
Gross premiums written €m 1,320 1,421 1,415 1,284 1,131
Combined ratio % 97.4 98.9 97.8 104.4 113.9

At €7.8bn (7.5bn), gross premiums written in life and health
reinsurance were slightly below the previous year's level.
The substantially increased operating result of €1,104m
{698m) and the consolidated result of €976m (432m) reflect
the success of our consistently profit-oriented strategy.

Life

Although we have begun to gradually reduce the volume
of a large life reinsurance treaty in Germany and growth
opportunities in a variety of important markets were limited,
gross premiums in the life segment rose significantly by
€372m {658m), equivalent to growth of 6.1%.

Business experience was determined not only by the main-
tenance of established large treaties under which we
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assume mortality risks but also by the unbroken demand
for reinsurance of the disability risk. The good develop-
ment is mainly ascribable to the fact that state benefits are
being cut back in many countries. In a number of important
markets, the penetration of our products has in the mean-
time reached a very high level. Primary insurers in the
USA, for example, are already ceding well over 50% of
their individual life insurance business in reinsurance.
These high penetration rates and price increases in some
areas could hamper future growth. All in all, we achieved
an outstanding result for 2005, with life reinsurance con-
tributing significantly to the success of the overall reinsur-
ance segment.



|
In Germany, our premium income totalled €1.5bn {1.7bn),
the decline being primarily linked to the scheduled reduc-
tion of a reinsurance treaty with a large pr{amium volume
over the course of three years. Given the difficult economic
environment, demand on the life primary insurance market
stagnated and new business remained jus“t under the level
of 2004. The new fiscal parameters applying to endowment
insurance lead us to expect that the trend towards private
and company pension products will contidue. The strong
fall in new business with endowment insurance products
had an adverse impact on premium income in reinsurance.
The high level of demand for disability covers remained
unchanged, which was pleasing as we are ihe market
leader in reinsuring these policies. The reinsurance of life
annuities is still not prevalent in Germany.|
Munich American Reinsurance Company (MARC), our
subsidiary in the USA, maintained its position among the
leading life reinsurers of the Us market by adhering to its
strategy of controlled organic growth. Gross premium
income rose to US$ 1.4bn (1.3bn), not least because of the
ongoing consolidation of the reinsurance mérket, especially
in the area of disability and long term care. The annual
result, by contrast, was impacted by one-off effects and
deteriorated compared with the previous yéar to US$ 29m
(35m). MARC’s financial strength, excellent service focus
and partnership with clients constitute the basis for a sus-
tained positive income and resulttrend.

Munich American Reassurance Company”

2005  Prev. year
Gross premiums written Us$s m 1,414 1,287
Net earned premiums US$ m 812 724
Result for the year UsSsm '+ 28.5 35.1
Investments Us$ m 3,642 3,183

"Financial statements in accordance with national accounting law.

In Canada, our subsidiary Munich Reinsurance Company
Canada Branch {Life) wrote gross premiums of €1.5bn

(1.3bn}, thus continuing to lead the market by a wide mar-
gin. The premium increase of more than 11% was accom-
panied by a very pleasing development of the result. The
branch provides a host of individual and group insurance
cavers ranging from maortality, disability and LTC risk cavers
to critical illness insurance. In addition, it has detailed
knowledge of the complex supervisory and accounting
regulations and draws on its long-standing experience to
provide reinsurance solutions tailored to the clients’ spe-
cific requirements. Our branch’s extensive know-how is the
foundation on which we will continue to profitably expand
Canadian business.

The life reinsurance market in the United Kingdom was
characterised in 2005 by increasing competition and price
pressure, especially in the high-volume business segments
of term insurance and critical iliness insurance. Neverthe-
less, gross premium volume was nearly constant compared
with the previous year at €1.04bn {1.05bn), with a very
satisfactory earnings position. Expansion of the promising
field of disahility coverage is important for further busi-
ness development. We anticipate appreciable growth in
business volume in this area for the coming year. We also
expect further positive impulses from the transfer of
responsibility for our business in the United Kingdom from
the UK supervisory authority to the German supervisory
sphere at the beginning of 2005, a regulation that was
made possible by the harmonisation of regulatory require-
ments within the EU. For us, this principally means greater
efficiency in the reporting of our business and better cap-
ital allocation.

As for the rest of western Europe, our premium income
was up substantially in some markets, with very marked
increases in Spain. Here, Munich Re consolidated its lead-
ing market position thanks to a rise in premium volume of
mare than 35%. The main reasons for this increase were
the expansion of our reinsurance relationships with indi-
vidual clients and our reinsurance of mortality and disabil-
ity risks transferred by private pension funds to primary
insurers.




In central and eastern Europe, the EU accession of eight
countries from this region had a positive impact on growth.
The average rise of 4% in GDP caused the insurance mar-
kets, and with them our reinsurance portfolio, to develop
very satisfactorily. Premium volume rose by a good 29% to
€40m as against the previous year. Our key task as a rein-
surer is to establish the concept of insurance in the central
and eastern European countries even more firmly with the
help of our clients and to provide attractive reinsurance
solutions.

On the major Asian growth markets Iindia and China,
sustained economic growth had a favourable impact on
life insurance, as the growing middle class increasingly
demands financial and life insurance products. Since the
need for professional assistance from international rein-
surers is on the rise, we see excellent opportunities for par-
ticipating in the dynamic growth of the primary insurance
markets. Our premium income in these regions is still very
low compared with our overall premium volume, but with
our service company in Mumbai and our offices in three
major centres of China (Beijing, Shanghai and Hong Kong)
we are well positioned to assume a leading role in these
markets of the future.

In Australia and New Zealand, we continue to write life
insurance business via our subsidiary Munich Reinsurance
Company of Australasia {MRA). With total premium income
of €143m {138m) and adequate profitability, our business in
these markets developed satisfactorily.

Health

The global health insurance market with its segments
“financial protection”, "health services” and " provision of
care” offers considerable growth opportunities. Our key
sector "financial protection” is particularly promising. Two
main factors are stimulating higher demand here: health-
care is gaining in significance and the healthcare systems
worldwide are undergoing further liberalisation and pri-
vatisation. The USA remains the largest single market for
us. However, we anticipate strong growth in the regions
outside the USA and Europe, in particular in China and the
Gulf region. As the world's leading provider, with a product
portfolio that integrates reinsurance and services, Munich
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Re is well prepared for this development.

Although we withdrew from unprofitable treaties, pre-
mium in the year under review declined only slightly to
€1.3bn (1.4bn)}, due to the acquisition of good new busi-
ness.

Thanks to the nearly unchanged combined ratio of 97.4%
(98.9%) and the very good investment result, we surpassed
the excellent result of the previous year.

In the USA, which with 35% of total premiums is our most
important health insurance market, premium income was
3% up on the previous year. The USA is also our most prof-
itable individual market. New laws such as the Medicare
Modernization Act will give rise to additional growth areas
for primary insurers and reinsurers. If healthcare for peo-
ple suffering from chronic diseases is partially privatised
as planned, the demand for insurance will climb. We are
building up skilis in this area and gearing up our organisa-
tion to take advantage of anticipated business opportuni-
ties.

In the year under review, the United Kingdom again
accounted for a significant share of overall premium
income, contributing a total of £187m (276m), partly due
to our major corporate clients.

Like many other countries, Germany is looking for ways to
fund its healthcare system so that it remains viable in the
longer term. The future role of private health insurance as
a fully fledged and equal-ranking alternative to statutory
health insurance is a key issue of the ongoing political
debate. Demographic trends as well as medical and tech-
nological progress are pushing up healthcare expenses.
Expensive treatments can lead to strong fluctuations in the
expenditure incurred by an individual insurer. Reinsurance
solutions for costly medical procedures are therefore in
ever greater demand among private health insurers and
statutory health insurers alike. Because there is a growing
risk awareness for new hazards such as pandemics (e.g.
avian flu), the potential interest in customised reinsurance
covers is rising as well. Premium volume and result in
Germany both increased in the past year, with premium
income totalling €258m (249m). We anticipate that the
German market, which is very important for us, will con-
tinue to develop favourably.



China currently accounts for less than 1% of the Group's
overall health reinsurance business but it is still one of the
most promising markets for the future. It is opening up
more and more to foreign investors. The formation of
several specialist health insurers reflects the fact that the
health insurance system is undergoing systematic privat-
isation. The Munich Re Group is represented in the Chinese
primary insurance market as well, where we have a minor-
ity shareholding in the specialist health insurer PiCC Health
via DKV. In the field of reinsurance, we support our Chinese
clients in all matters related to professional risk manage-
ment and work very closely with the respective supervis-
ory authorities on the creation of suitable parameters. An
example of this good cooperation is the market symposium
on managed care topics that we organised together with
the Insurance Institute of China at the end of 2005. A

Property-casualty

Underwriting policy still geared to profitability
Reserve strengthening of Us$ 1.6bn at Ameérican Re

The Gulf states are another growth region for health insur-
ance. Munich Re has been present in this market for sev-
eral years now, with managed care service companies that
support our clients in risk management and the acceptance
of insurance risks. Munich Re’s outstanding position in the
Gulf states is underlined by the fact that it was awarded the
contract for creating the first specialised health insurance
company in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi. We expect other
countries in the region to privatise their healthcare markets
as well, which will clearly boost our growth in the health
reinsurance sector. In 2005, the Guif states accounted for
2.3% (1.7%) of the Munich Re Group's total premium,

Other markets such as the Netherlands and ltaly were also
responsible for the health segment’s good performance in
the past business year. Since premium volume and result
are fed by many regions, our risk is broadly spread.

Natural catastrophes impact result after retrocessions and before tax with over €2.6bn

Our performance in property-casualty reinsurance business
was solid and satisfactory. In addition, our business in the
past year was marked above all by higher ciaims reserves
at our subsidiary American Re and severe natural catas-
trophes in North and Central America.
\
Result “
Owing to our good return on investment and favourable
result in basic business, we achieved an excellent operat-
ing result of €1,280m (1,944m) and a consolidated profit of
€418m (1,234m) in the property-casualty segment. Com-
pared with the operating result, the consolidated result
was additionally affected by tax expenditur¢ incurred at
Group level as a consequence of the reserve strengthening
at American Re. The exceptional number and severity of
the natural catastrophes in 2005 had a significant bearing

on our result. The combined ratio came to 110.5%; exclud-
ing natural catastrophes and the reserve strengthening, it
was as low as 90.2% (91.9%). The improvement in portfolio
quality that we have achieved over several years has thus
proved to be sustainable.

Following an internal analysis of the still outstanding losses
of our reinsurance subsidiary American Re, the Munich Re
Group allocated an additional uss 1.6bn to its claims
reserves after corporate retrocessions. Moreover, we
strengthened American Re's capital base by carrying out
extensive recapitalisation measures (see page 79).

Since we had already made general provisions for IBNR
losses at Group level, the additional reserving at American
Re did not affect the consolidated result as much as it did
American Re’s local result.




impact of the reserve strengihening on American Re and
the Miunich Re Group®

inussm

Reserve increase gross of corporate/net specific retrocessions 1,671
Ceded through third-party corporate retrocessions -42
Net to Munich Re Group 1,629
Ceded to Munich Re ~203
Net to American Re 1,426
in€mn

Net to Munich Re Group 1,294
{converted into € at 1.25887 US$/€)

Already provided for through Group IBNR reserve -906
Profit impact for Munich Re Group before tax 388
Taxes on income 362
Profit impact for Munich Re Group after tax 750

"The figures above are net of statutory workers’ compensation
discount in accordance with Us Gaap.

After 2004, with its tropical cyclones in the Atlantic and Pa-
cific, had gone down in the history of natural catastrophes
as the most expensive year ever in terms of insured losses,
the insurance industry sustained even greater losses in 2005.
The year of extreme natural hazards was preluded by
Winter Storm Erwin, which affected northern Europe in
early January with losses, before tax, totalling €56m.

The tropical cyclone season in the Atlantic Ocean began
uncommonly early in 2008, with Hurricanes Dennis and
Emily striking in mid-July. The Munich Re Group’s losses
from these two natural catastrophes before tax amounted
to €21m.

‘Katrina, the third major hurricane of the year, left a trail of
devastation in its path from the southern tip of Florida
across the Gulf of Mexico, especially where it made land-
fall on the us Gulf Coast. With wind speeds of up to 280
km/h and peak gusts of up to 350 km/h, Katrina was one of
the severest storms ever to hit the Gulf of Mexico and ane
of the worst natural disasters in United States history.
Although hundreds of thousands of people from the area
around New Orleans fled the storm, over a thousand per-
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ished. After the levees failed, parts of New Orleans lay
under more than seven metres of water. Only gradually did
the full extent of the considerable flood losses along a
broad coastal strip emerge. Unrestricted access to New
Orleans has only been possibie since the beginning of
December, which meant substantial delays in surveying
business interruption and building losses. The subsequent
storms Rita and Wilma also had a retroactive impact on the
loss amount from Katrina because they led to a further
increase in demand and prices for materials and wages in
the construction and craft sectors, thus inflating the cost of
Katrina claims. The losses are covered under commercial
and industrial policies and largely protected by reinsur-
ance. According to our updated estimate as at the end of
December 2005, Hurricane Katrina - with insured market
losses of over US$ 45bn —is the largest ever insured loss
event. Economic losses amounted to approximately

Uss$ 125bn. Since we limit liability for natural hazard events
and purchase retrocession covers as part of our risk manage-
ment, the burdens for the Munich Re Group were reduced.
Nevertheless, Munich Re was affected by losses from Hur-
ricane Katrina totalling over €1.6bn net before tax.

The Us coast in the Gulf of Mexico was again hit by a
severe hurricane when Rita made landfall in September. 1t
caused severe flood damage and fresh levee breaches in
New Orleans. Rita had a loss potential similar to Katrina's
but caused far less devastation. The losses we incurred
totalled approximately €270m net before tax.

Hurricanes Stan and Wilma occurred in October. The heavy
rain accompanying Stan led to severe flooding, landslides
and mudslides in southern and eastern Mexico and large
areas of Central America. As a Category 1 hurricane, Stan
was significantly weaker than its predecessors, yet it
claimed the lives of 2,000 people —the heaviest human toll
of the 2005 hurricane season. Given the low insurance
penetration along its track, however, the insured losses
caused were few. The Munich Re Group's burden from Hur-
ricane Stan came to just under €6m net before tax. From a
meteorological point of view, Hurricane Wilma was tem-
porarily the strongest hurricane ever recorded. It caused



billion-dollar losses in the state of Florida'and devastated
wide areas of the Mexican peninsula of Yukatan. In terms
of losses, Wilma cost the Munich Re Group around €330m
net before tax and was thus the second most expensive
hurricane (after Katrina) of the 2005 seasan.

In other parts of the world too we recorded substantial
losses from floods. In August, heavy rainf?ll flooded the
valleys of the German, Austrian and Swiss Alps, impacting
the result with approximately €140m net b"efore tax. It was
the most expensive natural catastrophe in Switzerland to
date. On top of this, the Indian city of Mumbai was ravaged
by floods caused by the heaviest monsoon rains in nearly
100 years, claiming hundreds of fatalities. This natural
catastrophe also had a negative influence on the resulit for
2005. !

The total insured losses from natural catastrophes in 2005
cost the insurance industry over Us$ 90bn, a burden far
above the average that impacted us with €2,629m (713m)
net before tax, above all in property insurance and off-
shore energy insurance. These losses mainly left their
mark on the results of the divisions Corporate Underwrit-
ing/Global Clients, North America, Europe 2 and Latin
America, Special and Financial Risks, and Europe 1. The
burdens from natural catastrophes in 2005 thus accounted
for 172.7 {4.5) percentage points of the combined ratio of
110.5% (98.9%) for the property-casualty segment.
Compared with the dramatic natural catastrophes, Munich
Re's burden from man-made losses in the business year
2005 was on the low side, totalling €664m net before tax.
Worthy of particular mention in this context are the fires

Gross premiums hy class of business

that occurred at a German electronics company and in
Madrid’s Windsor Tower, each requiring loss expenditure
of about €30m.

Premium

The renewal negotiations in 2005 showed that the reinsur-
ance markets are stable, despite the worldwide rise in
capacity. In view of the high losses from the windstorm
events in the Atlantic and Pacific and the low level of inter-
est rates worldwide, many market players continued to
charge risk-adequate prices. We were largely able to imple-
ment our pricing expectations and treaty conditions and to
stabilise the good premium levels achieved in previous
years. We consistently refrained from writing business that
could not be concluded at risk-commensurate and prof-
itable conditions.

Owing to our rigorous underwriting policy, our premium
volume of €14.5bn was 2.1% down on the level achieved in
2004. In contrast to the previous year, changes in exchange
rates had a positive effect on premium income

in 2005. Adjusted to eliminate effects from changes in
exchange rates, premium declined by 2.6%.

In the liability, motor and fire classes of business, the
reductions in premium volume were especially pro-
nounced, the main reason — apart from our selective
withdrawal from business - being that large-volume
treaties were terminated as agreed. in the reinsurance
markets, it was apparent that cedants were seeking

higher retentions, especially for claims-free business,

as a consequence of their improved capitalisation.

All figures in €m 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Liability 2,561 2,606 3,444 3,514 2,402
Accident 1,052 1,080 1,293 1,302 1,213
Motor 2,671 2,890 3,186 3,337 3,448
Marine, aviation, space 1,654 1,609 1,742 1,896 1,398
Fire 3.701 3,775 4,874 5,294 4,481
Engineering 1,299 1,281 1,393 1,443 1,449
Other classes of business 1,609 1,616 1,987 2,098 1,905
Total m 14,857 17,919 18,884 16,296
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Gross premiums by property-casuaity division 2005

Special and Financial Risks 14% (14%)

Europe 112% (11%)

Corporate Underwriting/Global Clients 23% {23%]

North America 19% (22%)

In property reinsurance, premiums came under pressure,
especially for claims-free treaties. However, in the case of
natural hazards covers where there had been claims in the
previous year, we were able to raise prices across the
board. The continued trend towards more frequent and
extreme weather events confirmed our assessment that
the insurance industry’s exposure to natural hazards risks
is growing. It is therefore necessary to adapt prices, terms
and conditions to the rising loss trend if these risks are to
be covered in the future. A

Europe 1

Premiums at the same level as last year
Expenditure of €181m for major losses
Result target slightly surpassed

Responsible for:

Europe 2/Latin America 19% (20%)

Asia, Australasia, Africa 13% [10%)

In liability reinsurance, the pricing structure largely re-
mained stable at a good level. We attached great importance
in treaty design to transparent loss exposures, clearly
defined scopes of cover and the avoidance of unlimited
liability in motor third-party business.

We raised prices both in marine and motor reinsurance. In
credit and aviation reinsurance, prices came under pres-
sure owing to the good results of recent years.

Germany, Austria, Switzerland, Eastern Europe, Greece

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Gross premiums written £€m 1,669 1,666 2,056 2,161 2,151
Combined ratio % 94.2 89.1 96.5 1177 106.7

The division Europe 1 recorded virtually unchanged pre-
mium income of €1.7bn due to our strictly profit-oriented
underwriting policy and the shift from proportional to non-
proportional treaties. Decreases in premium volume in
Germany were largely balanced by increases in Turkey,
Switzerland and Russia. Currency translation effects barely
affected premium income.

72

The impact of major losses from natural catastrophes and
of individual losses in industrial property insurance busi-
ness was much greater than in the previous year. The
floods in the Alpine region in August 2005 led to a clear
increase in the claims burden, especially in Switzerland
but also in parts of Austria and southern Germany. The
combined ratio deteriorated to 94.2% (89.1%) but was still
very satisfactory, despite the substantial expenditure
incurred.



With premium income of €1.1bn (1.2bn) oﬁ 68% of total pre-
miums, Germany is the division’s most irﬁportant market.
Our withdrawal from business with unattractive prices
had a negative impact on premium income, and new busi-
ness in Germany could only partially make up for the lost
volume. i

We maintained our traditional leading market position.

The favourable claims experience among industrial risks in
the years 2003 and 2004 did not repeat itself in 2005. Prop-
erty insurance suffered a series of major losses.

In addition to Windstorm Erwin, we were hit by extreme
regional weather events involving hail and heavy rain,
entailing severe floods in the Bavarian Alpine region. The
result declined because of major-loss expé,nditure totalling
€107m but still remained positive. ;

Premiums in motor insurance, the class of business with
the largest premium volume, came under significant pres-
sure due to growing competition — but this development
still did not have a negative impact on the combined ratio
or result. :

in facultative business, segment development was varied.
Prices, terms and conditions in commercial and personal
lines remained stable. The industrial segment with high
sums insured experienced individual reductions in prices
in the first half of the year; but, because of the higher cost
burden from major losses compared with the previous
year and the natural catastrophe losses in Europe in the
second half of 2005, prices, terms and conditions stabilised
or improved again.

We consider the reinsurance conditions for the treaty
business in our portfolio to be adequate, and were able

to improve the prices, terms and conditions in some
areas.

Austria, which accounts for 9% of the division’s overall pre-
mium volume, is our second most important market. Hav-
ing carried out portfolio remedial measures in 2004, we
lost distinctly less premium volume in the period under
review than in the previous year. The profit recorded was
even higher than planned. Since our Austrian clients are
very active and successful in the neighbouring eastern
European countries, Austria remains a highly attractive
market for Munich Re.

In Switzerland, the August floods were responsible for the
largest insured loss in the country’s history. Between 21
and 22 August, 100 to 300 I/m2 of rain fell on the northern
side of the Alps. Not only rural areas were affected by the
floods but also the towns of Berne and Lucerne. The floods
damaged buildings, contents and infrastructure and,
above all, gave rise to business interruptions. The insured
losses came to well over €1bn. The division’s loss from the
floods totalled €104m net before tax, so that the result of
our Swiss business was distinctly negative. Premium
income totalled €96m (94m).

In the acceding EU member states, insurance penetration
continued to rise in 2005, and we profited from the growth
of the markets. Business development in the individual
countries and regions of eastern Europe continued to vary
greatly. We again recorded the highest premium income in
Poland, Russia and the Czech Republic, and we see further
good growth opportunities in eastern Europe. The result
situation was positive throughout the region.

Our premium income from Greece and Turkey developed
pleasingly and rose to €131m (111m). Our result remained
stable at a good level.
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Europe 2 and Latin America

Leading market position retained
Result burdened by hurricanes

Responsible for:

Northern, western and southern Europe; Latin America

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Gross premiums written €m 2,769 2,873 3,193 2,952 2,883
Combined ratio % 100.1 98.5 96.6 96.4 115.3

The result of the division Europe 2 and Latin America was
influenced by the hurricane losses in the Caribbean. The
storms had a major impact on treaties that cover this
region and on our international facultative business, written
via London. The combined ratio deteriorated to 100.1%
(98.5%), despite the good performance of basic business.
Our premium income in the year under review fell by 3.6%
to €2.8bn (2.9bn)}, largely due to the non-renewal of busi-
ness. The prices in our core markets, where we maintain a
leading position, remained largely stable.

The United Kingdom is still the division’s largest individual
market. We see growth potential here, especially for in-
novative business segments. Compared with 2004, premium
volume dropped by 3.9% to €946m (984m). Two develop-
ments were chiefly responsible for this reduction:

On the one hand, the trend towards converting propor-
tional into non-proportional treaty covers was unbroken,
causing a decrease in reinsurance cessions. On the other
hand, we did not renew a number of non-proportional
treaties because their prices, terms and conditions were
unsatisfactory. In the United Kingdom, there was no sig-
nificant expenditure for major losses and natural catas-
trophes in 2005, which led to a gratifying result.

in France and Belgium, we essentially maintained our
premium volume despite extensive portfolio remedial
measures, especially in the French motor liability portfolio.
Premium income totalled €237m (239m). Performance in
property and marine business was again pleasing,
whereas motor liability insurance registered a further
deterioration in the run-off results of treaties written many
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years ago. The main reason for this decline was the infla-
tionary trend among long-term care costs in France. We
therefore strengthened our claims reserves again.

The premium volume of our subsidiary in ftaly, which oper-
ates in property-casualty, health and life business, declined
by 5.0% to €603m {635m), above all due to a reduction in
life premium. Although there was also a slight decline in
property-casualty business, we affirmed our market lead-
ership. After posting a loss in 2004 owing to negative one-
off effects, Miinchener Rlick [talia again achieved a profitin
2005. Overall, the ltalian reinsurance market is currently
stagnating. Mergers in primary insurance could cause
market volume to shrink in future, especially in property-
casualty insurance.

Mnchener Riick italia

2005 Prev. year
Gross premiums written €m 603 635
~ Life and health €m 114 139
~ Property-casualty €m 489 486
Net earned premiums €m 395 353
~ Life and health €m 135 103
~ Property-casualty €m 260 250
Loss ratio non-life % 68.7 86.8
Expense ratio non-life % 27.2 22.8
Combined ratio non-life % 95.9 109.4
Result for the year €m 3.1 -~47.1
Investments £€m 1,557 1,408




Since we see hardly any growth opportuni‘\ties in traditional
reinsurance in the Netherlands, we have further expanded
our business in the non-traditional sector. Premium income
nevertheless decreased by 14.4% to €137rh {160m). The
result, however, developed positively. We managed to
maintain our strong market position. ‘

In the Nordic countries, premium volume fell from €222m
to €118m, mainly because a large-volume motor liability
treaty was not renewed. In addition, some of our clients
increased their retentions. Winter Storm Erwin burdened
our result with approximately €40m after retrocessions
and before tax. Rising prices for natural haz“ard covers and a
number of promising openings for innovative insurance
solutions lead us to expect moderate premium growth and
above-average profit potential.

At €381m (408m), premiums in Spain were down some-
what, since we reduced several treaty shares as planned.
We continue to hold a leading market position here. 2

Asia, Australasia, Africa

Premium volume significantly increased by 26.5%
Pleasing business performance

Responsible for:

Despite the skyscraper blaze in Madrid and several
medium-sized fire losses, the result was positive.

In Portugal, with premium totalling €48m (54m), we
achieved adequate margins and a positive result. We were
not affected by major losses from the forest fires in the
summer of 2005. We expect that premium volume in Portu-
gal will fall in 2008, since we decisively forged ahead with
the conversion of the earthquake covers into non-propor-
tional reinsurance.

In Latin America, we recorded an increase in premium vol-
ume of 23.1% to €389m (316m) thanks to new business
acqguired. The hurricanes in the Gulf of Mexico burdened
the result by approximately €271m befaore tax. The focus of
our business activities in Latin America is on engineering
and agricultural insurance. Our strategy of providing com-
prehensive services on the spot and being represented in
the markets through local offices has proved successful - a
fact reflected by our leading position.

Middlie East, Africa, Asia, Australasia, Greater China, Southeast Asia

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Gross premiums written €m 1,910 1,510 1,676 1,619 1,487
Combined ratio Y% 95.0 102.3 91.8 86.8 1125

In contrast to 2004, when Asia - in particular Japan — was
badly hit by natural catastrophes, business performance in
2005 was pleasing for the division Asia, Australasia and
Africa, despite unchanged exposure to natural hazards in
the regions concerned. Especially tropical storms caused
less damage in Asia in 2005. Premium volume rose appre-

ciably by 26.5% 10 €1.9bn {1.5bn). A major portion of this
increase was achieved - as planned - in Asian countries
with dynamic economic development. The regions of
Greater China (Taiwan, Hong Kong, PR China) and South-
east Asia deserve special mention in this context, repre-
senting 41% of the division’s premium volume.




In addition to the region of Greater China, the markets of
Japan, Korea and Australia — producers of some 50% of its
premiums - remain the division’s core markets. To support
the expansion of our business, we therefore provide indi-
vidual and innovative solutions as well as additional ser-
vices, e.g. in the area of integrated risk management. Higher
cedant retentions — above all in Japan and Australia ~ work
against the expansion of our business. Nevertheless, our
premium income in Japan rose by 15.0% to €269m {234m),
with positive value added, given the price increases we
were able to achieve following the above-average claims
burden of the previous year.

In Korea, we expanded our business, partly through covers
for direct insurers selling motor insurance. Premium volume
climbed by a significant 30.9%, reaching a total of €250m
(191m).

As at 1 January 2005, we optimised the structure of our
units in Australia and New Zealand. Here, property-casu-
alty business is written directly by our local branch offices,
under the umbrella of Munich Holdings of Australasia
{MHA). However, with effect from 2005 this business has
been booked within the legal entity of Munich Reinsurance
Company and is thus directly recognised in its financial
statements. Compared with the previous year, premium
income for these segments declined by 11.3%, from €406m
to €360m. Besides negative currency translation effects,
the main reasons for this were consolidations of large local
primary insurers and higher client retentions. Strategic
partnerships with selected cedants and solutions for spe-
cific client requirements - in combination with the ongoing
portfolio optimisation of recent years - led to a gratifyingly
positive annual result.

As a consequence of supervisory regulations, our subsidiary
Munich Reinsurance Company of Australasia (MRA) con-
tinues to be responsible for the life and health segments.
Premium volume for these segments remained largely
unchanged in comparison with the previous year. The fol-
lowing table therefore only includes the figures for the life
and health segments for 2005.
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Munich Holdings of Australasia”

2005  Prev.year
Gross premiums written A$ m 234 882
- Life and health AS m 234 234
~ Property-casualty A$ m - 648
Net earned premiums ASm 234 243
- Life and health ASm 234 136
— Property-casualty ASm - 107
Loss ratio non-life Yo - 76.3
Expense ratio non-life Yo - 10.2
Combined ratio non-life % - 86.5
Result for the year ASm 10.3 54.3
Investments A$m 460 709

*Financial statements in accordance with national accounting law.

The outstanding position of Munich Re in Australasia is
illustrated by the fact that it was twice named reinsurer of
the year in August 2005. The basis for these awards was a
vote by the jury of the “Australia and New Zealand Insur-
ance Industry Awards” and a survey among the companies
of the Australian and New Zealand financial and insurance
sector.

In the Greater China Region, we participated fully for the
first time — as planned —in the economy’s dynamic growth.
This is, on the one hand, the logical consequence of being
the first foreign reinsurer to be granted a licence to open a
branch in China and, on the other hand, the result of the
exponential rise in primary insurers’ demand for reinsur-
ance services. Qur premium growth in Taiwan largely stems
from motor and marine reinsurance, where we tapped new
business opportunities. Owing to the cyclical slump in
original rates and in line with our rigorous underwriting
policy, we reduced our participation in property lines {(a
sector that is important for Taiwan). In Hong Kong, the
result was again very satisfactory. We are the leading for-
eign reinsurer in this dynamic region, both in terms of
result and premium income. Our premium volume in the
Greater China region is €438m (200m).



in Southeast Asia we concluded the remediation of our
partfolio in 2005. Qur premium income grew marginally,
and we generated a satisfactory result. Wé see a further
stabilisation of the political conditions in Southeast Asia
and expect additional growth impulses for the region, in
particular against the background of closér cooperation
between the ASEAN nations and China. We positioned our-
selves at an early stage in Takaful insurance and anticipate
that premium and results will develop positively.

In India, we envisage reinsurance demand reaching about
€1bnin ceded premiums in the medium térm. Owing to
local restrictions, only about a third of market volume is
currently accessible to foreign providers. In addition, a
major share of the business is strongly underpriced and
therefore not interesting to us. Qur present premium
income still remains low, but given the prospect of the
reinsurance market opening up, we expect a significant
increase over the next few years. Munich Re is still seeking
an adjustment of the legal parameters so that it can obtain
a licence to operate an indian property-casualty branch.
The monsoon rains in July had a negative impact on the
result for 2005. Since we have steadily optimised our port-
folio quality in recent years and have written new policies
more selectively, the burden on our portfolio remained
limited, despite the severity of the event.

Our subsidiary in Africa, Munich Reinsurance Company of
Africa (MRoA), remains the leader in the main market of
South Africa and in the other 44 African countries south of
the Sahara.

In property insurance, we took advantage of the business
opportunities offered by the reinsurance of infrastructure
projects, such as those launched in preparation for the FIFA
World Cup in South Africa in 2010. As a result, our overall
premium income rose by 7.5% to R 2,574m {(2,384m}). Since
our claims expenditure was also low, our résult for the year
grew by 7.4% to R 277.1m.

Munich Reinsurance Company of Africa

2005 Prev.year
Gross premiums written Rm 2,574 2,394
- Life and health Rm 656 554
~ Property-casualty Rm 1,918 1,840
Net earned premiums Rm 1,217 1,148
- Life and health Rm 652 548
- Property-casualty Rm 565 600
Loss ratio non-life % 76.7 55.6
Expense ratio non-life Yo 8.5 28.6
Combined ratio non-life % 85.2 84.2
Result for the year Rm 2771 2578
Investments Rm 2,715 2,760

In the Middle East and North Africa, we benefited from
high economic growth in individual countries. Premium
income climbed by 33.3% to €84m (63m}. Moreover, we
exploited interesting business opportunities that arose as
a result of market openings in Saudi Arabia, Libya and
Syria. Despite the harder competition, business perform-
ance was in line with our expectations. This also applies to
the countries of northern Africa, where insurance penetra-
tion is still very low.

In Israel, there was a decline in the price of indemnity
insurance — especially industrial fire insurance. In many
cases, we nevertheless maintained the shares we had
accepted, as we were able to compensate for the price
reductions by taking accompanying measures, for instance
by lowering commissions. However, we had to relinquish
part of the portfolio.
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North America

American Re draws a line under the past

Record hurricane season 2005 raises the demand for reinsurance capacity

Canadian units meet their goals

Responsible for:

American Re-Insurance Company, Munich Reinsurance Canada Non-Life Group

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Gross premiums written €m 2,672 3,178 3,987 4,868 4,373
Combined ratio Y% 134.0 119.3 99.1 168.1 156.8

Gross premiums written by the North America Division
decreased by 15.9% to €2.7bn (3.2bn) in 2005. Our strict
adherence to a profit-oriented underwriting policy was the
main reason for the decline.

The result was burdened by the reserve strengthening of
Uss$1.6bn, after corporate retrocessions, at American Re
and the losses from the 2005 hurricane season. The com-
bined ratio for the division increased from 119.3% to 134.0%.
The relief effect from the IBNR reserve is included in this
figure (see page 69).

The Munich Reinsurance Canada Non-Life Group achieved
its objectives despite lower premium volume and the loss
burden from a severe storm in Toronto.

American Re

2005 Prev. year
Gross premiums written USs m 3,760 4,206
- Life and health US$m 617 563
- Property-casualty USsm 3,143 3,643
Net earned premiums Ussm 1,258 1,803
- Life and health Uss m 60 295
- Property-casualty Ussm 1,198 1,508
Loss ratio non-life % 182.9 95.1
Expense ratio non-life % 21.2 26.9
Combined ratio non-life % 204.1 122.0
Result for the year Ussm -1,530.1 78,9
Investments UsSsm 14,544 13,917
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Thanks to American Re's disciplined underwriting policy,
the profit from business written in 2005, adjusted to elimi-
nate the losses from the hurricanes, was again satisfying.
As in previous years, premiums in 2005 declined due to
strict cycle management based on our “profitability before
growth” policy. Business that did not meet our underwrit-
ing and pricing guidelines was not underwritten or was
terminated.

The annual result of ~Us$ 1,530.1m is primarily the conse-
quence of the reserve strengthening at American Re for the
years 2002 and earlier. The gross loss caused by the cyclones
in 2005 totalled Us$ 831m. After retrocessions and before
tax, however, the impact of the hurricanes on American Re's
result was fairly modest.

In 2005, the losses from the hurricanes in the USA hit a
new record, with primary insurers and reinsurers conse-
quently incurring higher-than-expected losses. In the wake
of this, prices and the demand for high-security reinsur-
ance covers rose. As one of the most strongly capitalised
us reinsurers, American Re is one of the main beneficiaries
of this trend.




After an extensive review of the reserves as at 31 March
2005, American Re strengthened its reserves in the second
quarter of 2005 by US$ 1.4bn net after corporate retroces-
sions. This reserve strengthening had become necessary
in particular because the run-off of losses i‘ncurred in gen-
eral liability, professional indemnity and workers’ compen-
sation in the years 1997 until mid-2002 did'not develop as
well as expected. Besides this, American Re strengthened
the reserves for asbestos and environmental claims as well
as for other latent liabilities related to covers written
decades ago. The underwriting years in question have
become more mature, enabling us to determine the level
of reserving with sufficient certainty to draw a line under
the various reserve strengthenings of recent years. Ameri-
can Re fundamentally altered its underwritjng policy after
carrying out organisational and personnel changes in
2002; the successful outcome is reflected in the profitable
performance of underwriting years 2003-2005.

To position American Re for future business opportunities,
Munich Re executed a comprehensive recapitalisation
plan for American Re consisting of a capital injection of
US$ 1.1bn, a conversion into capital of intra:Group loans to
two intermediate holding companies of us$ 1.6bn (which
were virtually irrecoverable), and an optimisation of Ameri-
can Re's retrocession structure as at 1 July 2005. Collect-
ively, these measures significantly enhanced American
Re’s financial strength, ensuring that it remains one of the
most strongly capitalised reinsurers in the USA.

For the second consecutive time, the US insurance market
rated American Re "Best Overall Reinsurer in the USA” in
the renowned Flaspdhler survey 2005. This'award is an
incentive for American Re to keep moving on its current
path and to remain its clients’ preferred reinsurer.

Munich Reinsurance Canada Non-Life Group

2005  Prev.year
Gross premiums written Cang$m 475 614
- Property-casualty Can$ m 475 614
Net earned premiums Can$m 349 480
—~ Property-casualty Can$ m 349 480
Loss ratio non-life % 60.2 £64.9
Expense ratio non-life % 31.3 30.0
Combined ratio non-fife % 91.5 94.9
Result for the year Can$ m 715 61.4
Investments Can$ m 1,592 1,621

Temple Insurance Company and Munich Reinsurance
Company of Canada (MROC) together make up the Munich
Reinsurance Canada Non-Life Group, which plays a lead-
ing role in the Canadian market. For the first time, the
results of the two units in the year under review are shown
combined.

In setting up Temple Insurance Company about seven
years ago, we embraced an innovative concept. Temple
primarily provides niche products, such as windfarm busi-
ness, film insurance or contractors’ equipment insurance,
which it writes nationwide via a network of specialised
underwriters. It also supports the global activities of the
Munich Re Group. In 2005, Temple issued primary insur-
ance paolicies for aviation business written by the Munich
Re Group in Canada.

Canada, too, was not spared natural catastrophes in 2005.
On 19 August, a severe rainstorm in the Taronto region
caused insured losses of Can$ 400m-500m, although
MRoC's share of this was only about Can$ am.

The Group’s gross premiums written decreased by 22.6%
to Can$ 475m (614m), mainly due to the non-renewal - as
planned - of a very large global proportional treaty. With a
profit for the year of Can$ 71.5m (61.4m) and a combined
ratio of 91.5% (94.9%), however, we achieved our objectives
and recorded a very good result.
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Corporate Underwriting/Global Clients

Premium income 3.0% lower than in the previous year
Expenditure of €1.1bn as a result of hurricanes

Responsible for:

Global clients, Lloyd’s, us business, special lines

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Gross premiums written £€m 3.359 3,464 4,552 4,699 3,615
Combined ratio % 126.0 94.0 98.0 120.8 160.4

CUGC determines the underwriting standards for the Munich
Re Group’s non-life business and assures the quality of
the business (see page 50f.), tasks which are to become
the responsibility of the Group Corporate Centre within
the division. In addition, the division’s underwriters write
business for specific segments.

The underwriting field comprises a defined number of
international cedants, the Lloyd’s insurance market and us
business written in Munich. We devise comprehensive
reinsurance concepts, write major industrial risks and,
where possible, participate in mass business. The special
segments agriculture, workers’ compensation and cus-
tomised portfolio solutions round off our range of activ-
ities.

The high-volume treaties in the portfolio can trigger signifi-
cant fluctuations in the portfolio’s size. In the period under
review, the scheduled termination of a large proportional
treaty alone led to a reduction in premium in the range of
€418m compared with 2004. Premium income dropped by
a total 3.0% to €3.4bn (3.5bn).

Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma had a major effect on
the underwriting result for 2005. The combined ratio there-
fore rose by 32.0 percentage points to 126.0% {94.0%).

Our book of liability business consists mainly of highly
exposed risks such as industrial liability and specific seg-
ments like pharmaceutical risks, professional indemnity,
and directors’ and officers’ liability reinsurance. Accident
reinsurance is experiencing a further rise in the demand
for catastrophe covers for accumulation events. Our mass
business chiefly comprises motor reinsurance. The results
of these classes of business are positive.
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In marine reinsurance, the lion’s share of the premium
volume is generated by our Watkins Syndicate at Lloyd's
in London, which also writes policies for oil platforms
(offshore energy insurances). Because of the hurricanes,
the losses in this area were high and the results were
consequently burdened.

In property reinsurance, there is an increased need for
protection from high exposures to natural catastrophes
such as windstorm or earthquake. The business year was
marked by Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma. The prices
for such reinsurance covers had come under a certain
amount of pressure before these major hurricanes, but
rose significantly in the renewals as at 1 January 2006.

We hold a leading position in agricultural reinsurance. The
bulk of our agricultural business stems from the USA and
derives largely from federally supported multi-peril crop
insurance. The result we achieved in the year under review
was also good.

We consolidated our portfolio in workers’ compensation
reinsurance. Premium volume was therefore down but the
result was positive. With a view to realising business
potentials, we actively supported reform processes at
international level, in particular with regard to adjusting
national legal parameters for workers’ compensation
insurance.

In the highly specialised segment of customised portfolio
solutions, we provide our international clients with tailor-
made reinsurance solutions for loss portfolios. We con-
tinue to see attractive long-term business opportunities
here.



Special and Financial Risks

Performance of aviation, space, trade cr@dﬁ& and bonding reinsurance again very pleasing

Natural catastrophes impact result with €395m

Responsible for:

Aviation and space, credit and bonding, enterprise and contingency risks, Munich-American RiskPartners,

New Re Geneva, Great Lakes UK, Munich American Capital Markets

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Gross premiums written €m 2,031 2,044 2,284 2,485 1,787
Combined ratio % 110.5 78.9 92.9 116.5 140.9

The division Special and Financial Risks ag‘ain achieved
very satisfactory results in trade credit and'bonding, avi-
ation and space reinsurance in 2005. Never‘\theless, we
were not able to offset the exceptionally high burdens from
natural catastrophe losses incurred by major industrial
clients. \

Our expenditure for large and very large losses increased
3.6-fold compared with the previous year. The combined
ratio, including recoveries from our retrocessionaires for
Hurricane Katrina, deteriorated to 110.5% (')8.9%). The
income from and expenses for our retrocession cover for
the reinsurance group as a whole are accouinted for in
Special and Financial Risks. :

Premium volume decreased slightly to €2.03bn (2.04bn),
in particular because we also declined business trans-
actions for which we could not obtain the nécessary prices.
We anticipate stable premium income for 2006.

In 2005, the premium volume in aviation and:ispace declined
by around €100m to €748m. The results we achieved in both
segments were again clearly positive.

In aviation, market loss expenditure was lower than the
long-term average, despite the higher number of plane
crashes compared with 2004. Premium levels continued to
fall but largely remained within the range we had expected.
We turned down individual offers whose prices were sig-

nificantly below our requirements. ‘
\

|
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Our space underwriting unit, which was founded 25 years
ago, is by far the greatest risk carrier in the global market.
The premium rates for the operation of satellites (in-orbit
insurance) remained stable, whereas those for launch
insurance dropped marginally.

In credit and bonding business, we reinsure default risks
that are related to the sale of goods and services or accepted
via bonds. The worldwide primary insurance and reinsur-
ance market in this segment again recorded good results in
2005, with a lower number of major losses and stagnating
or even marginally decreasing insolvencies in the core
markets of France, Germany and Spain having a positive
impact.

Munich Re again achieved a clear profitin its core field of
business trade credit and bonding in 2005. However,
reinsurance premium volume in the European industrial
countries barely increased and growth was predominantly
generated by the USA and Asia. For this reason and owing
to higher client retentions, total premium income reduced
to €484m (574m). As we set up additional reserves for the
financial institutions segment, which is also included in our
credit business, we recorded a lower overall profit.

The structuring of capital market solutions for the Munich
Re Group, which we have concentrated in our subsidiary
Munich American Capital Markets, was expanded as
scheduled. Growth was especially significant in the
weather derivatives segment.
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Business written in the summer months performed very
favourably. For the winter months 2005/06 we achieved a
viable volume with a well-diversified portfolio. We also
concluded contracts for intellectual property financing and
other structured credit derivatives. Beyond this, Munich Re
acquired additional protection through the securitisation
of catastrophe risks on the capital markets. The transaction,
carried out by Ajolos Ltd., protects us against loss events
from windstorms in western Europe in the period from
November 2005 to April 2009.

If peak wind speeds of over 27 m/s are recorded at five
adjoining weather stations in Germany and four other
countries and an exposure-weighted windstorm index
value is exceeded, Munich Re will receive the proceeds
from placing the bond {€110m). The funds, invested in

AAA bonds, are held in a trust account and investors
receive interest of 4.75% over EURIBOR for assuming the
windstorm risk.

The transaction does not give rise to any risks for us as
potential beneficiary. Aiolos Ltd. has not been consoli-
dated in the financial statements.

In the previous year, we had already initiated the centralisa-
tion of our underwriting for enterprise risks, contingency
risks and political risks. This allowed us to take advantage
of significantly more business opportunities and to raise
our premium volume. We focused not only on established
business fields such as cancellation-of-events insurance
{in the area of sports and music) but also on future-oriented
technologies, such as cover for renewable energies, as
well as on individual insurance concepts in the areas of
residual value insurance and weather insurance.

Our clients in the alternative markets segment are large
industrial firms that generally offer their business either
direct or via captives, i.e. via insurance companies belong-
ing to an industrial group. This business segment is han-
dled by our subsidiary Munich-American RiskPartners
(MARP}, which has offices in Munich and London.

In 2005, we were able to expand liability business outside
the USA in special segments such as directors’ and
officers’ liability at risk-adequate prices. Moreover, we
developed and implemented innovative cover concepts
with selected clients. In property reinsurance ~ above all
inthe USA and in the global energy sector ~ we achieved
appreciably better prices in the last quarter of the year. On
the whole, premium income was higher than last year.
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Owing to the hurricanes in the USA - Katrina, Rita and
Wilma —this sector of our business recorded a negative
result.

Our Swiss subsidiary New Re, whose focus in traditional
reinsurance is on non-proportional covers, enhanced its
position in most European markets. It profited from the
continued shift in demand from proportional to non-pro-
portional covers. New Re also acquired new business in
life reinsurance and in non-traditional forms of reinsurance.
Premium volume grew to Sfr 86sm (830m).

High burdens from natural catastrophes, for instance from
the hurricanes in the USA and the severe floods in Switzer-
land, led to a combined ratio of 117.6%. The result for the
business year totalled Sfr 18.9m.

New Reinsurance Company”

2005 Prev.year
Gross premiums written Sfrm 868 630
- Life and health Sfrm 375 240
- Property-casualty Sfrm 493 390
Net earned premijums Sfrm 827 693
- Life and health Sfrm 379 298
- Property-casualty Sfrm 448 395
Loss ratio non-tife % 117.6 75.7
Expense ratio non-life % 19.9 21.3
Combined ratio non-life % 137.5 970
Result for the year Sfrm 18.9 85.9
Investments Sfrm 3,542 2,876

*Financial statements in accourdance with national accounting law.

QOur retrocession programme, which we redefine every
year, is an important instrument of our risk and capital
management. Based on principles drawn up in integrated
risk management, the Corporate Retrocessions Depart-
ment manages and optimises the retrocession cover for
the whole reinsurance group. This cover employs trad-
itional reinsurance solutions and capital market products
and centres on protection against major losses from nat-
ural catastrophes. In 2005, the retrocession programme
proved very effective and contributed significantly to the
Group's result. Altogether, retrocession cover for 2005
reduced the combined ratio for the reinsurance segments
by 1.4 (-1.6) percentage points.
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Primary insurance |

Health insurance strongest growth engine thanks to supplementary insurance preducts

Combined ratio again low at 93.1%

High investment result of €5.9bn thanks to favourable capital markets

The Group's primary insurers essentially c;omprise the
ERGO Insurance Group, Européische Reiseversicherung
and the Watkins Syndicate. Until the fourth quarter, they
also included the Karlruher Insurance GI’OU‘JD. A

Overview and imporiant key figures

Together, they are active in nearly all branches of life,
health, property and casualty insurance. Around 81% of
their premium income derives from Germany. The remain-
ing 19% stems above all from other European countries.
The bulk of business is therefore transacted in euros.

2005 2004 2003 2002
Gross premiums written:
- Property-casualty £€m 5,242 5,202 5,082 4,841
- Life and health £€m 12,330 12,324 12,558 11,752
Loss ratio property-casualty % 57.8 575 60.2 62.7
Expense ratio property-casualty % 335 33.8 35.4 36.4
Combined ratio property-casualty % 913 91.3 95.6 99.1
Combined ratio legal expenses % 99.8 388.8 99.2 101.8
Combined ratio property-casualty including legal expenses insurance % 931 93.0 96.4 99.9
Consolidated resuit property-casualty £€m 581 2927 -131 -348
Consolidated result life and health €m 594 25" -860 -591

*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1a5 1 (rev. 2003).

'

Our primary insurers performed very well in the past year.
The operating result improved by 242.9% to €1,519m
(443m) compared with the good previous yé;ar, thanks

to a pleasingly low number of losses and the very good
investment result. All in all, the consolidated result grew
by 270.7% 10 €1,1775m {317m) and thus clearly exceeded
our original expectations.

Gross premiums written were up 0.3% to €17.6bn (17.5bn),
with health insurance accounting for most of‘;this growth.

In the fourth quarter, we sold our majority stake in Karls-
ruher Lebensversicherung AG, the parent company of the
Karlsruher Insurance Group, to Wirttembergische Lebens-
versicherung AG for €338m. The deconsolidation of the

Karlsruher Insurance Group contributed approximately
€120m after taxes on income to our consolidated result.

The extensive restructuring of ERGO’s management organ-
isation reinforced our view that it would not make sense to
integrate Karlsruher’s sales channels, with their strong
regional orientation, into ERGO’s nationwide sales forces.
In addition, in its existing form the Karlsruher Insurance
Group was not large enough to subsist onitsownina
market that is increasingly consaolidating.

We considered the various bidders and concluded that
Wirttembergische with its business concept and bid price
was the most convincing.
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Result

The two primary insurance segments property-casualty
and life and health contributed €581m (292m} and €594m
{25m) to the consolidated result. The overall result for pri-
mary insurance was thus 270.7% higher than in the previ-
ous year. A

Primary insurance resuli

The operating result of the two segments climbed from
€0.4bn to €1.5bn, a 242.9% increase. This was attributable
to the favourable performance of the bond and equity
markets, which we used to further reduce our shares in
the financial sector.

All figures in €m 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Operating result 1,519 443" -369 -895 463
Consolidated result 1,175 317" -1,091 ~959 561

*Adjusted owing to first-time application of ias 1 (rev. 2003).

In property-casualty insurance (including legal expenses
insurance) the combined ratio of 93.1% (93.0%) was only
marginally higher than the previous year’s extremely low
tevel but it was nevertheless well within our target of 95%.
This is all the more pleasing given that there were several
major losses. Loss frequency in motor insurance remained
low.

Premium

Premium income developed positively especially in health
insurance, where it increased by 7.8%. in life insurance,
gross written premiums, which include savings premiums
for unit-linked life insurance and capitalisation products
(e.g. “Riester” pensions), rose somewhat more slowly

Cress pramivms overall in €bn
Status: 31 December 2005

2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
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than overall premium income. The growth of 0.8% in
property-casualty business was on the same level as the
market as a whole.

Allin all, our primary insurers wrote premium income of
€17.6bn (17.5bn), representing growth of 0.3%. The de-
consolidation of the Karlsruher Insurance Group as at

1 October 2005 had an impact on the development of pre-
mium volume. If the Karlsruher Insurance Group had been
included in the consolidated group for the whole year,
growth would have been approximately 1.6 percentage
points higher.

As in the previous year, the premium volume of our pri-
mary insurers accounts for about 46% of the Munich Re
Group’s total premium income.



In the business year ended, our life insurers’ premium The sale of unit-linked products was satisfactory, and life

income was down 4.5% to €7.4bn (7.8bn). As expected, new insurance products such as “Riester” pensions also sold

business remained 11.7% below the high lével of the pre- better than planned.
vious year, when policies were being purchased in antici-
pation of the change in fiscal parameters |n 2005. A
|
Cross pramiums in the life segmeant in €50
Status: 31 December 2005
2001 } L7
2002 j | 75
2003 ‘ ! 80
2004 ' |78
2005 3 74
|
Our health insurers’ premium income showed a strong healthcare costs, strengthened growth in German busi-
rise of 7.8% 10 €4.9bn (4.5bn). Price increases at the begin- ness. Moreover, we achieved good results with supple-

ning of 2005, which had become necessary duetorising - mentary insurance sales.

Cross premiums inthe heaith segment in bn

o

Status: 31 December 2005

2001
2002
2003
2004
2005

Premium income in property-casualty insurance, including  insurance declined. Adjusted to eliminate the effect of the

legal expenses insurance, grew slightly by 0.8% to €5.3bn sale of ERGO's subsidiary Nieuwe Hollandse Lloyd Ver-
(5.2bn). Personal lines business expanded especially in li- zekeringsgroep N.V. (NHL) as at 30 June 2005, premium
ability and homeowners’ insurance, whereas motor A growth amounted to 1.6%.

. . i oy Al - e PO -~ i D
CGrees oremitums in the properiv-cesueily segmentin €bn

Status: 31 December 2005

2001
2002
2003
2004
2005

Reporting by subgroup ! to our subsidiaries” individual or consolidated financial
In reporting on our primary insurance operations, we fol- statements in accordance with IFRS.
low the structure of our subgroups, in each case referring
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ERGO Insurance Group

Consolidated result of €782m significantly higher than in previous year

Further reinforcement of franchise strength
Implementation of new management structure completed

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Gross premiums written £€m 15,919 15,569 15,566 14,775 13,922
Net earned premiums £m 14,253 13,738 13,700 12,954 11,978
Combined ratio % 90.0 90.1 89.7 97.6 98.2
Consolidated result €m 782 236" -1,431 -1,212 655
Investments €m 100,193 97,001 91,370 87012 89,271

*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1As 1 {rev. 2003).

In the year under review, ERGO clearly improved its result
in all areas thanks to continued good underwriting results
and favourable capital markets. In addition, with its new
management organisation, ERGO made its decision-mak-
ing channels, structures and processes simpler and more
efficient. Thus, in 2005, we took a great step forward on the
way to achieving homogeneous management structures —
a path we have pursued consistently since ERGO’s forma-
tion. We have optimised steering and planning processes.
At the same time, we are working on standardising the iT
landscape by creating a common health insurance plat-
form to complement the ones we have already set up for
life and property-casualty {see page 108f.). We have also
largely harmonised our pricing - for instance in motor
insurance.

Marketing

The brand names of ERGO’s operative insurance com-
panies continue to be of great significance. They are the
cornerstones of ERGO’s great franchise strength, as its
strategy involves using multiple sales channels to gain
access to clients. ERGO has a sales force of over 21,000 self-
employed insurance agents working closely with brokers
and strong partners. lts exclusive cooperation with Hypo-
Vereinsbank, which will not be ended by the merger be-
tween HVB and UniCredit, generated new business volume
of €293m (334m) in 2005.
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The joint venture KarstadtQuelle Finanz Service con-
tributed €85m (87m) of new business volume. Moreover,
in March of the year under review, an agreement was
concluded with parts of Postbank AG to cooperate on
cross-selling the insurance products offered by Hamburg-
Mannheimer and DKv, as well as the fund products pro-
vided by MEAG.

Result

in 2005, the ERGO Insurance Group’s operating and consoli-
dated results exceeded the previous year’s figures and
planning values. Its operating result increased by 192.1% to
€1,128m (386m). The underwriting result was again good
owing to satisfactory loss ratios and unchanged cost disci-
pline, factors which in combination with the exceptionally
high investment income were responsible for the increase
in the consolidated result by 231.0% to €782m (236m).
Favourable capital markets were helpful in reducing shares
above all in the financial sector. For instance, we realised a
substantial capital gain from the sale of shares in BHW and
Commerzbank and from the merger between HVB and Uni-
Credit. This gain and higher regular income caused the
investment result to rise by 30.7% to €5,597m (4,283m).
Claims expenditure in 2005 remained at the same low level
as in past years. Consequently, the very good combined
ratio of 90.0% in property-casualty insurance was again
slightly better than the previous year's exceptionally low
90.1%. In legal expenses insurance, the combined ratio
remained below the 100% mark, at 99.7% (98.9%]}.



The cost-reduction programme initiated in 2002, allowing
us to achieve sustained reductions of €300m per year, was
successfully concluded as planned in 2005. Cost discipline
will continue to play a major role at ERGO éoing forward.
Premium ‘

As in primary insurance as a whole, the ERGO Group's pre-
mium income developed positively, especially in health 7

Gross premiums by segment
Life oo
Health

Property-casualty

ey

Legal expenses T 5% (5%)

ERGO gross premiums

insurance. In life insurance, there was a 2.5% rise in total
premium income, i.e. including savings premiums for unit-
linked life insurance and capitalisation products {e.g.
“Riester” pensions). Gross premiums written, by contrast,
experienced a slight decline of 0.2%. In property-casualty
insurance, our gross premiums remained nearly stable, as
did the market volume. Overall, gross premiums written
were up 2.2% to €15.9bn (15.6bn).

o i I 42% (44%)
1 31% {29%)

22% {22%)

All figures in €m 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Life 6,757 6,768 6,954 6,443 6,029
Health 4,892 4,537 4,547 4,238 4,010
Property-casualty 3,419 3,420 3,278 3,352 3,160
Legal expenses 851 844 787 742 723
Total } m 15,569 15,566 14,775 13,922

i

In life insurance, the ERGO Group recorded “an increase in
premium income of 2.5% to €7.5bn (7.3bn). Unit-linked poli-
cies and capitalisation products sold especially well. We
benefited considerably from the surge in demand for
"Riester” products. Gross written premiums under IFRS,
which do not include the savings premiumsi of unit-tinked
life insurance and capitalisation products, were down by a
marginal 0.2% to €6.76bn {6.77bn). :

New business in Germany was influenced by changes in
the tax environment at the beginning of 2005. As antici-
pated, it was significantly lower (by 11.7%) than in the previ-
ous year because of a moderate first half-year and the
particularly strong fourth quarter of 2004. Sales (especially
in the first quarter of 2005) clearly show that policies were
taken out in the fourth quarter of 2004 in anticipation of the
tax changes. In the second quarter, however, sales started
to pick up again. Not surprisingly, the strong? fourth quarter

of the previous year could not be matched in 2005. For our
clients, however, endowment insurance continues to be an
attractive product, despite the new tax rules.

In the health segment, premium income appreciated
strongly by 7.8% to €4.9bn {4.5bn). This was attributable to
good organic growth abroad and above all to higher
volumes of German business, the latter being mainly the
result of price increases at the beginning of 2005, which
had become necessary due to rising healthcare costs. We
were also very successful in selling supplementary insur-
ances. Here, we expanded our client base by 10.7%, due

to some extent to our partnerships with statutory health
insurers in Germany. In addition, the good sales figures
point to the growing awareness among clients that they
themselves must bridge the gaps in state health insurance
coverage by taking out private insurance.

fale]




In our comprehensive health insurance business, the
number of insured persons remained nearly constant. The
integration of the insurance companies we had acquired
in the previous year is going according to plan and was
successfully concluded for Ziirich Krankenversicherung in
2005, for Globale Krankenversicherung integration will be
finalised by the end of the first quarter 2006.

Various ventures in other countries have created new mar-
ket potential. One example is the project adopted in the
year under review by ERGO’s Spanish subsidiary DKv
Seguros to provide cover for the public healthcare system
in the Spanish province of Denia for a period of 15 years
starting in 2007.

Premium income in property-casualty insurance remained
constant at €3.44bn (3.44bn), as there was virtually no
growth in our most important market, Germany. Domestic
business, which accounts for the major share of the seg- 7

Karlsruher Insurance Group

ment's premium volume, only registered a slight decrease
of 1.6%. The sale of the Dutch ERGO subsidiary, NHL, as at
30 June 2005 had the effect of reducing growth in our for-
eign business, which increased by 5.5%. Adjusted to elim-
inate the effect of this sale, growth totalled 13.5% in foreign
business.

With our introduction of a new motor tariff as at 1 July to
take account of additional and more individual client risk
features, we have responded to the keener price competi-
tion in German motor insurance, while remaining true to
our principle of “profitability before growth”. Thus, we
recorded a decrease in premium income of 2.8% in motor
insurance. In Germany, personal lines business expanded
especially in liability and homeowners’ insurance.

Gross premiums in legal expenses insurance rose margin-
ally by 0.8% to €851m (844m}, the increase in foreign busi-
ness being somewhat more pronounced.

Consclidated result of €10.2m, lower than in the same period of the previous year

Strengthened risk provision in property-casualty
Deconsolidation with effect from 1 October 2008

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Gross premiums written £€m 890 1,285 1,328 1,346 1,350
Net earned premiums €m 701 1,028 1,056 1,082 1,278
Combined ratio % 110.3 101.5 104.9 112.3 104.3
Consolidated result £€m 10.2 21.2 1.0 17.9 -18.0
Investments £€m 12,708 12,320 11,810 12,368 12,183

*For the business year 2005, the consolidated financial statements include the Karlsruher Insurance Group only until 30 September 2005, as the company
was sold to Wirttembergische Lebensversicherung AG (see page 61), making a comparison with the previous year's figures of limited value.

Marketing

Karlsruher Insurance Group pursues a multi-channel distri-
bution strategy focused on an exclusive Germany-wide
sales organisation. In life insurance, it also cooperates
closely with banks, partnerships that are especially suc-
cessful in southwestern Germany. In addition, Karlsruher
works with brokers.
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Result

The operating and consolidated results of the Karlsruher
Insurance Group in the first nine months of the year were
below the high level reached in the same period of the
previous year, partially owing to weak new business in life
insurance. Besides this, the claims reserves in property-
casualty insurance were significantly increased for numer-



I
ous legacy losses, in particular severe personal injuries. In
establishing these reserves, Karlsruher toc‘?k into account
the rise in health and long term care costs,'which are likely
to continue to considerably exceed regular inflation rates.
Owing to this special effect, the combined “ratio inthe first
nine months of the year deteriorated to 110.3% compared
with the same period of the previous year (100.9%).
Thanks to the positive developments in thé financial mar-
kets, the investment result reached €479m by 30 Septem-
ber 2005, an improvement of 12.2% compared with the first
three quarters of the previous year. \ A

Européische Reiseversicherung

Profitable growth above all in foreign business
Consolidated result stabilised !

Premium

In life insurance, there was a substantial overall decline in
new business in 2005 following a record year in 2004, and
Karlsruher did not escape this trend. In the first nine months
of the year, total new business premiums in relation to the
overall term of insurance dropped by 20.6% to €1.14bn
compared with the same period last year. Karlsruher’s
development was thus better than that of the insurance
industry as a whole.

The decrease in new business caused gross premiums
written in life insurance in the first nine months to fall to
€681m.

In property-casualty insurance {including legal expenses
insurance) gross premiums written reduced as a result of
our consistent remediation of the portfolio.

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Gross premiums written €m 343 316 305 307 309
Net earned premiums €m 286 267 255 260 272
Combined ratio % 97.1 94.6 96.4 102.7 107.9
Consolidated result £€m 2.0 10.8 5.0 —4.5 -16.1
Investments £€m 151 179 156 148 159
Marketing medium-sized enterprises. Its Scandinavian subsidiaries

Europaische Reiseversicherung (ERv) works with over 17,000
partners in the tourist industry, making it the market leader.
These partners include major groups as weI;I as individual
travel agents. Europaische Reiseversicherung, the Euro-
pean Travel Insurance Group, is represented in all the main
European countries through its international network of
subsidiaries and affiliates. It accompanies its marketing
partners in their expansion throughout Europe.

in order to be able to react to frequent changes in travel
patterns, EUROPAISCHE offers products specially tailored to
budget travel, city trips, package tours, study tours and
cruises.

EUROPAISCHE continued to expand the segment of business
travel insurance in Germany. It successfully launched
products for groups of companies as well as for small and

are leaders in their markets in business travel insurance. In
Sweden and Denmark, more than 50% of EUROPAISCHE's
gross premium income is attributable to this line of busi-
ness.

In cooperation with ETIG (European Travel Insurance Group),
an alliance of European travel insurers, EUROPAISCHE

has created an international online booking platform. By
introducing innovative technology, it has gained a major
competitive edge in the growing market of online travel
reservation.

In recent years, Germans have booked a rising number of
inland trips. To tap this potential, EUROPAISCHE has
launched a marketing campaign, including a new commis-
sion-based system for brokering travel insurance that
takes this trend into account.




Result

EUROPAISCHE’s result was generated primarily outside
Germany, in particular in the Scandinavian countries. As
part of its remediation programme initiated in 2002, it
divested itself of loss-making sales partners. Agencies and
other sales partners are strongly involved in the result
planning.

As a consequence, the expense ratio was stabilised in
2005. Because of additional loss burdens, the ERV Group's
combined ratio climbed to 97.1% (94.6%). Much more sig-
nificant for the development of the Group's result, how-
ever, was the change in the way the German fiscal author-
ities view the issue of insurance tax on health insurance
provided in insurance packages. This insurance will be
subject to taxation in future and, as the tax will also apply
with retroactive effect, EUROPAISCHE had to set up an
almost double-digit million euro tax provision at short
notice. The consolidated result therefore fell to €2.0m

(10.8m). A

Watkins Syndicate

Premium

Although in 2005 the trave! industry was not affected by
exceptional events like the tsunami, subdued demand
curbed premium growth in Germany. The uncertain eco-
nomic situation in Germany contributed to this weak
performance. In addition, there was a continued trend
towards booking bargain holidays, for which insurance is
often not taken out.

In 2004, ERV Munich set up new branch offices in Poland
and the United Kingdom which, in their first full year of
business, accounted for more than 10% of premium income.
EUROPAISCHE improved its gross premiums group-wide
from €316m to €343m, with the share of foreign business in
its premium volume remaining more or less constant at
46% (47%).

Core business severely affected by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita
Annual result in the medium-term target range, despite natural catastrophes

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Gross premiums written” £m 258 208 229 208 172
Net earned premiums” £m 197 172 162 103 98
Combined ratio” % 110.0 83.5 87.2 93.3 124.8
Result for the year” £m -13 33 23 10 -23
Investments” £m 403 378 282 187 99

*Financial statements in accordance with national accounting law.

Marketing

The syndicate, which operates within Lioyd’s of London, is
one of the leading primary insurers in international marine
business. For Munich Re, the market leader in global marine
business, the syndicate is an integral part of our corporate
strategy and maintains close contact with Lloyd's, still the
most important marine insurance market.

In addition to its presence at Lloyd’s, the syndicate has
developed a wide and efficient distribution network through
its branch offices in Hong Kong and Singapore. Pursuing
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our strategy of organic growth, we established a branch
office in Dubai in 2005. These branch offices allow us to
make the best use of the growth potential offered by the
emerging markets in the Middle and Far East. In addition,
we diversify the risk with our subsidiaries Northern Marine
Underwriters Ltd. and Groves John & Westrup Ltd., spe-
cialising in local marine cargo and pleasure craft hull insur-
ance. They significantly contribute to profitable growth
and act as a stabilising balance to the volatility of Lloyd's
business. The syndicate writes business in the main marine



classes, excluding ocean hull business, frofm which it with-
drew in 2000 due to inadequate profitability expectations.
It focuses on the areas of offshore energy insurance, where
Munich Re is recognised as the global market leader, and
on cargo and marine liability, in which it can draw upon
sound underwriting expertise and high prdfessional com-
petence.

Result

The devastating hurricane season in the GQlf of Mexico
had a massive impact on the result for 2005. The local oil
platforms were affected by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita to
an unprecedented degree. The two hurricapes are among
the largest losses ever to affect the marine market. Owing
to our strongly diversified partfolio and out risk manage-
ment, we succeeded in keeping the result for the year
within reasonable bounds at ~-£13m (33m). The highly
positive results of previous years ensured that, despite

|
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the year's burdens, we achieved our return targets on a
multiple-year average. The combined ratio amounted to
110.0% (83.5%), of which approximately 23.8 percentage
points were attributable to the enormous hurricane
burdens.

Premium

We systematically used the favourable market cycle of
recent years to achieve selective growth. As a conse-
guence, premium volume rose by 24.0% to £258m (208m)
in 2005, allowing us to secure an outstanding position in
the market. To consolidate this position, we improved our
risk profile through diversification in other markets and
business segments such as local cargo and yacht insur-
ance, thus complementing traditional Lloyd’s business by
building up a balanced portfolio with broad market pene-
tration and less volatility.
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Asset management

Very good investment result of €10.8bn for the Munich Re Group
Further reduction of shareholdings in the banking and insurance sector
Increase in business with third-party institutional investors

In this section, we report on the performance of the Group’s
own investments, derived almost entirely from our core
business fields of reinsurance and insurance. In addition,
we provide information on third-party business, where we
manage the assets of non-Group institutional investors
and private investors.

Overview and important key figures

Around 94% of the assets under management derive from
the Munich Re Group’s own investments. The vast majority
of these are managed by MEAG MUNICH ERGO AssetMan-
agement GmbH, a 100% subsidiary of Munich Re and

ERGO, while ERGO Trust GmbH for the most part develops
and markets real estate products with an international
orientation for Group companies and external investors. A

Asseis under management

Together, MEAG and ERGO Trust had investments of €154.9bn
(143.5bn) under management for the Group as at 31 De-
cember 2005. The other Group investments are managed
by the units MEAG New York and MEAG Hong Kong and by
the insurance companies of the Munich Re Group them-
selves.

At the same time, we also offer our expertise in asset man-
agement to partners outside the Group, thus tapping
additional sources of earnings. As at 31 December 2005,
therefore, MEAG Munich and ERGO Trust had investments
of €10.2bn (12.8bn) under management for investors not
belonging to the Group. ERGO Trust’s concentration on the
real estate sector and its resulting withdrawal from other
financial investments led to a decline of the assets man-
aged for third parties.

2005 2004
Group’s own investments €bn 168.6 158.4
Third-party investments €bn 105 13.2
Group asset management resuit €m 30 -45°

*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1As 1 (rev. 2003).

After recording a loss of €45m in 2004, our asset manage-
ment segment achieved a positive result again in the year
under review, posting a profit of €3om.

With the formation of MEAG in 1999 and the related concen-
tration of asset management within the Group, we created
the basis for optimising the management of our Group’s
investments. In 2005, we further consolidated the Munich
Re Group’s asset management activities under MEAG: with
effect from 21 June 2005 MRACM (Munich Re Asia Capital
Management Ltd.) was renamed MEAG Hong Kong Ltd.,
whilst as from 15 July 2005 MRCM {Munich Re Capital Man-
agement Corp.) became MEAG New York Corporation. We
will continue the bundling of our asset management oper-
ations in 2006 by merging the real estate activities of ERGO
Trust GmbH and MEAG under the roof of MEAG in Munich.
Our motivation is to take greater advantage of the oppor-
tunities offered by the international real estate markets for
meeting the Munich Re Group’s investment requirements
and to systematically expand institutional third-party busi-
ness.
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Investments of the Munich Re Group

Investment principles

We only make investments in assets from which we expect
an appropriate return, at the same time attaching great
importance to security, liguidity and diversification. We
reduce currency risks by matching our expected liabilities
with assets in the correlated currencies.

Besides this, the Munich Re Group keeps sufficiently liquid
funds available to meet its payment obligations at all
times. Finally, we take care that the maturities of our
investments are geared to patterns of our liabilities.

We provide details on asset-liability management on

page 99. The methods we use for controlling the various
investment risks are described in detail in the risk report on
page 123.



Munich Re’s investment strategy also takes account of sus-
tainability criteria. One of the goals we have set ourselves
is to ensure that 80% of our equities and corporate bonds
are included in recognised sustainability indices. We have
already surpassed this target. In the case of government
bonds, we have achieved a gratifying rate of around 95%
compliance in terms of the indices in quest"ion.

' Reinsurance

Life and health Property-casualty

Development and structure of investments

As at 31 December 2005, the Munich Re Group's invest-
ments amounted to €177.2bn (178.1bn}, down 0.5% on the
previous year. The deconsolidation of the Karlsruher Insur-
ance Group reduced Group investments by around €12bn
compared with the previous year, especially in the area of
fixed-interest securities. In our portfolio of non-fixed-inter-
est securities, on the other hand, we recorded price gains.
We invested the cash flows from underwriting business
largely in fixed-interest securities and loans.

Primary insurance Asset management Total

Life and health Property-casualty

31.12. 31.12. 31.12. 31.12. 31.12. 31.12. 31.12. 31.12. 31.12. 31.12. 31.12. 31.12.
All figures in €m” 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Land and buildings, including
buildings on third-party land 663 731 | 759 928 4,169 6,634 179 710 28 43 5,798 9,048
Investments in affiliated
companies 18 14 20 16 34 45 101 69 1" 14 184 168
Investments in associates 64 625 175 753 451 1,726 400 543 38 78 1,128 3,725
Loans 74 40 ‘ 68 34 23,192 18,279 1,444 929 17 28 24,795 20,310
Other securities held
to maturity - - ) - - 432 518 13 a4 - - 445 562
QOther securities available 1
for sale
- Fixed-interest 17,478 15,230 27,487 24,707 50,106 57,791 4,010 4,533 25 99,106 102,270
~ Non-fixed-interest 5,883 4,373 ‘6,912 5,473 10,198 10,822 2,345 1,999 8 19 25,346 22,686
Other securities held
fortrading
~ Fixed-interest 13 - 545 - 32 61 310 290 - - 900 351
- Non-fixed-interest - - 4 - - 1 5 [ - - 9 6
~ Derivatives 133 54 151 61 685 185 1 - - - 970 300
Deposits retained on assumed
reinsurance 6,740 6,554 7,610 7778 225 191 6 7 - - 14,581 14,530
Other investments 321 264 . 539 576 638 1,403 276 253 705 373 2,479 2,869
Investments for the benefit i
of life insurance policyholders ‘
who bear the investment risk - 1,430 1,318 - 1.430 1,319

Total

soiEEEY =Y .o REES

" After elimination of intra-Group reinsurance across segments.

27,88;m 40,326 [JBERY 99975
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Distribution of investments as at 31.12.2005 (31.12.2004)

Real estate 3% (5%)
Participating interests 1% (2%)
Loans 14% (11%)

Miscellaneous investments 12% (12%)

Shares and equity funds 13% (12%]}

Fixed-interest securities 57% (58%)

The structure of our investments has changed only slightly
compared with the previous year. The decrease in our

real estate portfolio is partly due to the reclassification of
owner-occupied land and buildings to the item “other
assets”, which has now been concluded. The portfolio also
declined owing to the sale of the Karlsruher Insurance Group.
The proportion of the interest-sensitive items fixed-interest
securities and loans increased by 2 percentage points to
71% as a consequence of new investments and price gains
on bonds. Investments in affiliated companies and associ-
ates fell markedly, owing to sales of shareholdings as part
of our diversification and streamlining strategy. Hypo-
Vereinsbank AG was previously recognised as an associate
of the Munich Re Group. After exchanging our HVB shares
into UniCredit stock, we show the resultant equity invest-
ment under securities available for sale, since we do not
exercise a significant influence on UniCredit. By contrast,
our portfolio of shares shows an increase due to the posi-
tive performance of share prices. Together, the two items
make up some 14.1% of our total investments at carrying
amounts at the end of 2005, compared with 13.9% in the
previous year.

The majority of the derivatives in our portfolio at year-end
(see notes to the consolidated financial statements, page
170ff.) are for hedging our equity investments against pos-
sible price losses. The life insurers in the ERGO Group in
particular use interest-rate derivatives to protect their
regular investment income in the long term against the
reinvestment risk in the event of falling interest rates.

Real estate

The focus in our real estate investments is on further opti-
mising the return profile and risk profile. To this end, we
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continually monitor existing items with regard to their
long-term profitability and future exposure to risks. The
size and liguidity of the market is an important criterion for
our investment decisions. We are rejuvenating the port-
folio on an ongoing basis. To provide for greater regional
diversification, we are selling directly held property in Ger-
many and investing instead in top-class real estate primar-
ily located in major European cities. In some cases we also
invest in Asia and the USA to give the portfolio a more
international spread. Our aim is to ensure a predictable
earnings contribution from real estate.

In 2005, we continued our portfolio remediation, selling
property which had reached a pointin its life cycle where
value development was likely to be below average. This
resulted in gains on disposal of some €33m.

Owing to losses in value, various items had to be written
down to their recoverable amount in the period under
review. Impairment losses and depreciation on the overall
portfolio totalled €446m.

Shareholdings in insurance companies and other financial
services providers

In the past business year, the Munich Re Group further
reduced its shareholdings in German financial services
providers, thus lowering the concentration risk. The ERGO
Insurance Group sold its 9.2% interest in BHwW Holding in
the first quarter with a gain on disposal amountingto a
good €60m. In the second quarter, we cut back our stake in
Commerzbank to just under 5%, realising a gain of around
€130m. Qur shareholding in Allianz, which still amounted
10 9.0% at the start of the year, was reduced to just under
5% in the second and third quarter, yielding an overall
capital gain of €550m.



The Munich Re Group had a total stake of 15.3% inthe
share capital of the HVB Group and accepted UniCredit's
exchange offer to HvB shareholders. After the exchange,
the Munich Re Group sold 1.86% of its resultant stake in
UniCredit's share capital and now has a shareholiding of
under 5%. A little under half of this is held by Munich Rein-
surance Company and the remainder Iarge@y by companies
of the ERGO Insurance Group. The exchange transaction
resutted in a net capital gain of €1.15bn. Through its partici-
pation in the newly formed major Europeah bank and the
subsequent partial sale, the Munich Re Group has further
diversified its investment in the banking sector.

The sale of Munich Re’s 90.1% shareholding in Karlsruher
Lebensversicherung focuses Munich Re’s p“rimary insur-
ance activities on the ERGO Insurance Group, the Europa-
ische Reiseversicherung Group and Watkins Syndicate.
This transaction resulted in a one-off profit ontribution of
around €120m. l

Fixed-interest securities “

Bearing in mind the interests of their policyholders, the
primary insurance companies in the Munich Re Group
concentrate on achieving a competitive net return. In order
to earn sufficient regular income for this, they‘/ have invested
in fixed-interest securities with longer termsTto maturity
and correspondingly higher coupon rates. In the year
under review, we only slightly changed the duration—i.e.
average capital commitment — of the bond portfolios in the

|
Group. As at the balance sheet date, the durationwas at A

Valuation reserves not recognised in the balance sheet

the same level as in the previous year (6.2 years). Owing to
pronounced low-interest-raie phase and the further fatl in
interest rates over the course of the year, the valuation
reserves of our fixed-interest securities and loans devel-
oped positively.

Equities and equity funds

In 2005, we continued our strategy of diversifying our equity
investments more strongly. As described above, we sold
shares in the banking and insurance sector and reduced
our shareholding in MAN in the first quarter from around
7% to a small stake.

in the course of the year, there was nevertheless growth in
the portfolio of equities and equity funds, which are carried
at fair value in the balance sheet. The reason for this was
the good performance of the stock market, which caused
the balance sheet reserves of our equity holdings to grow.
We took advantage of the low volatility of the equity mar-
kets to hedge parts of the portfolio cost-effectively using
derivative financial instruments. Atthe end of the year, the
ratio of equities to total investments — on a market-value
basis - amounted to 14.0%. After taking account of hedging
transactions, it was 13.4%.

Valuation reserves

The difference between the fair value of our investments
and their balance sheet value developed very positively on
the whole:

Valuation  Fair value Carrying Valuation  Fair value Carrying

reserves amount reserves amount

All figures in €m 31.12.2005 31.12.2005 31.12.2005 Prev.year Prev.year Prev.year
Land and buildings” 1,528 10,006 8,478 1,768 11,497 9,729
Associates 225 1,353 1,128 466 4,191 3,725
Loans 871 25,666 24,795 949 21,259 20,310
Other securities 19 464 445 30 592 562
Total 2,643' 37,489' : 34,846 3.213 37,539 34,326

*Including owner-occupied property.

|
Through the exchange of our HVB shares into UniCredit
stock, we realised valuation reserves. ‘
The valuation reserves of the significantly enlarged port-
folio of loans were positively affected by fallir“\g interest
rates but were reduced by the sale of Karlsruher Insurance

|
|
|

Group; the sale was also responsible for the decrease in
the case of land and buildings.

information on the valuation reserves recognised in the
balance sheet is provided on page 179 of the notes to the
financial statements.
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Result

Prices on the European stock markets surpassed their
upward trend of 2004. The EURO STOXX 50 rose by 21.3% in
the course of the year. The Japanese Nikkei registered an
even more pronounced increase of 40.2% in the same
period. By contrast, the lead index for Us shares —the

S&P 500 - climbed by only 3.0%. The German bond markets
for ten-year government bonds closed with a yield of 3.3%,
whilst the yield on US government bonds stood at 4.4% at
the end of the year. 7

investment result

A detailed report on the development of the capital markets
can be found in the section “Economic parameters” on
page 55.

Our investment result increased by €2.8bn or 34.5% to
€10.8bn in 2005. We achieved a return on investment of
5.9% in relation to the average investment portfolio at
market value, thus exceeding our target of 4.5%.

All figures in €m 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Regular income 7.649 7498 7,328 7,778 9,654
Write-ups/write-downs =748 =778 «1,177 -6,004 -324
Net realised capital gains 4,511 2,339 2,484 5,853 1,765
Other income/expenses -584 ~1,021 -1,504 -2692 -675
Total 8,041 7131 4,935 10,420

The growth in the investment result is primarily attributable
to the high gains on the disposal of non-fixed-interest
securities, especially shareholdings in the financial sector.
The positive result from the sale of HVB is reflected in the
greatly increased result from associates. These contrast
with write-downs of €1,150m in our real estate, mainly

invesiment result by type of invesiment

necessitated by the continuing market weakness in Germany.
Regular income includes a profit contribution for the first
three quarters of €108m from the proportionate annual
result of HVB, Despite persistently low interest rates, regular
income from interest-bearing investments reached nearly
the same level in 2005 as in the previous year.

2005 Prev. year Change

€m €m in %

Real estate 103 194 -46.9
Investments in affiliated companies 140 -36 ~
Investments in associates 1,131 -331 ~
Mortgage loans and other loans 1,165 1,009 15.5
Other securities 8,026 7,154 12.2
Deposits retained on assumed reinsurance and ceded business and other investments 575 522 10.2
Investments for the benefit of life insurance policyholders who bear the investment risk 170 53 220.8
Expenses for the management of investments and other expenses 492 524 -6.1
Total 8,041 345
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Third-party investments

MEAG offers retail and segregated funds fon‘r private and
institutional investors. It largely uses the distribution chan-
nels of the ERGO Insurance Group companies for marketing
retail funds in the personal sector. An increasingly signifi-
cant role is also being played by asset-manégement con-
sultancy, which has established itself as an ‘independent
service in MEAG's asset management operations.

Provision for old age remains a very import“ant topic for
private and institutional investors. in personal lines busi-
ness, MEAG's investment funds are offered as a supple-
ment to conventional insurance products. When newly
investing in MEAG investment funds, private investors con-
tinue to place great emphasis on security. Client demand is
increasing especially for bond funds, where“ MEAG gener-
ally pursues a conservative investment strategy. With our
offerings for institutional investors, we mainly mest the

needs of insurance companies and pension funds. In 2005,
MEAG acquired new mandates for important pension funds
in the retirement provision market.

In business with external investors, MEAG surpassed its
targets for assets under management. As at 31 December
2005, the figure was €3.0bn (2.3bn) for institutional
investors outside the Munich Re Group. Assets managed
in retail funds totalled €2.7bn {2.4bn).

MEAG's retail funds recorded net inflows of €226m (134m)
in 2005, whilst in institutional third-party business MEAG
recorded growth of €5617m (€598m) overall.

In addition to the positive new business, the favourable
performance of the capital markets played a significant
part in the development of third-party business, given that
the earnings contribution of asset management for clients

outside the Group primarily depends on the volume of the
assets managed.

A=




Financial situation

Analysis of our capital structure

Our primary insurance and reinsurance activities have a
significant influence on the capital structure of the Munich
Re Group. Investments on the assets side of the balance
sheet mainly serve to cover underwriting provisions A

Capital structure

Other liabilities 12.5%

Underwriting provisions 74.1%

Reinsurance business accounts for approximately 41% of
underwriting provisions and primary insurance business
for about 59%. Further information on these provisions may
be found in the notes to the financial statements on page
180 ff. As distinct from liabilities from loans and securities
issued, we cannot foresee with certainty how high our li-
abilities from underwriting business will be and when they
will occur. This is especially true in the case of reinsurance
business. The payout pattern of the underwriting provisions
varies from one segment to another and from one line of
business to another. In property insurance, for instance, a
major portion of the reserves is generally paid out after
one year, whereas in life insurance substantial amounts
are still due decades after the contracts were concluded.
The currency distribution of our provisions refiects the
global orientation of our Group. Besides the euro, our main
currencies are the Us dollar and pound sterling.

We ensure that our business is sufficiently capitalised at
all times by monitoring the situation on an ongoing basis
and taking suitable measures, which are dealt with in the
section on capital management.

To optimise our capital position and reduce capital costs,
we have not only employed internal forms of financing in
previous years but have also used strategic debt, primarily
in the form of subordinated and/or exchangeable bonds.

A detailed analysis of the structure of our outside capital is
provided in the section on strategic debt.

g8

(74% of the balance sheet tota!l). Equity {11% of the balance
sheet total) and bonds classified as strategic debt

{2% of the balance sheet total) are the most important
funds (see chart).

Equity 11.3%

Bonds and subordinated liabilities 2.1%

In the year under review, the amount of new external funds
acquired by the Munich Re Group was insignificant, as
were extensions of credit lines. Qutside capital reduced by
€1,239m, mainly because we redeemed the Munich Re-
insurance Company bonds exchangeable into Allianz AG
shares.

At Group level, our capital structure remained largely
unchanged in comparison with the previous year. Within

the Group, however, some shifts occurred, as we increased
the reserves of our US subsidiary American Re: we strength-
ened American Re's capital base by Us$ 1.1bn in the third
quarter and converted two intra-Group financing instru-
ments granted to two intermediate holding companies
totalling Us$ 1.6bn {(owing to de facto irrecoverability) into
equity.

Since we are an international (re)insurance group, some
of our funds are subject to restraints on disposal. For ex-
ample, the supervisory authorities in some countries
require foreign reinsurers to establish premium and reserve
deposits with the primary insurer. As at the balance sheet
date, investments totalling €4.9bn were subject to restraints
on disposal. In addition, there were contingent liabilities,
which are described on page 206 of the notes to the finan-
cial statements. Off-balance-sheet financing measures do
not play a significant role in the Munich Re Group.



Asset-liability management
The structure of our underwriting provnsmns and other li-
abilities is the basis for the Munich Re Group's investment
strategy. The main focus of this strategy is asset-liability
management, which is geared to ensuring that economic
factors influence the value of our investments and the
value of the underwriting reserves and liabilities in the
same way. This stabilises our position Withlregard to cap-
ital market fluctuations. For this purpose, we reflect im-
portant features of the liabilities, such as maturity patterns,
currency structures and inflation sensitivities, on the assets
side of the balance sheet. If, for instance, there is a strong
rise in inflation, our nominal outflows as a result of claims
payments increase significantly. This applies in particular
to lines of business with long payout patterns, e.g. liability,
as multi-period inflation rates accumulate here. To an
increasing extent, we are endeavouring in our asset-liability
management to structure our investment portfolio in such
a way that inflows from investments increaée in line with
rising inflation rates. ‘

To configure our asset-liability management as effectively
as possible, we also use derivative financial instruments,
which are described on page 170ff. of the notes to the
financial statements.

Capital management

In our capital management, we monitor the capltal of the

Munich Re Group on an ongoing basis. We thereby ensure

at all times that

~ the Munich Re Group’s capitalisation is adequate but
does not significantly exceed the required level,

— its financial strength is guaranteed even after the
occurrence of large loss events,

- we fulfil the requirements of the insurance superwsory
authorities, and

- we meet the criteria of the leading rating agencies.

The aim of our value-based management (see page 46) is
that every investment permanently achieves a risk-ade-
quate return. To limit fluctuations in results owing to major
losses, we have also developed guidelines and limit sys-
tems for underwriters within the framework of our inte-
grated risk management and corporate underwriting for
the reinsurance companies. We protect the results and
capital of the primary insurance companies against unac-
ceptable fluctuations by means of suitable reinsurance
covers.

Ourinternal risk model plays a central role in capital man-
agement. We use it to analyse how certain risk scenarios
affect the resuits of the segments life and health, property-
casualty and the investments of the reinsurance group.
We determine our economic capital on the basis of the
internal risk model data so that we are able to absorb two
successive annual losses of a size only to be expected
every 100 years. In the next step, the capital so determined
is allocated proportionately to the individual divisional
units on a proportional basis in line with the volatility of
their business activities. The procedure we use in the pri-
mary insurance group is similar, but substantially affected
by other steering aspects, as supervisory restrictions and
clients’ participation in surplus play a greater role in that
field of business.

We regularly review the assumptions on which the internal
risk model is based and adjust them as required.

Group equity

In the year under review, our equity increased by €4.0bn or
19.4% to €24.7bn (for details see page 177 ff. of the notes to
the financial statements).
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Development of Group sguity in 2005 — Net unrealised gains rose by €1,507m compared with the

in€bn position at the beginning of the year due to the rise in
the net unrealised gains in our share portfolio resulting
25 +3.3% +45.7%  24.7 :
0.8 1 = from the favourable development of the capital markets.
0 T - Owing to the deconsolidation of the Karlsruher Insur-
R Bl L R ‘ : ance Group, retained earnings decreased by €76m and
10 : ' e ; the other reserves fell by €3am. We realised gains by
5 ‘ | — exchanging our HVB stake {which we valued at equity

T.U0%
for the last time in the quarterly financial statements as

3112.2004 3112.2005 at 30 September 2005) into UniCredit shares. This trans-
action led to a realisation of valuation reserves previ-
ously not recognised in the balance sheet.

Consolidated result — Since the euro declined chiefly against the us dollar, the

Other reserves reserve for currency translation rose by €650m. In this

reserve, we recognise the effects of changes in exchange

rates arising from the translation into euros of our foreign
subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities.

¢

I Minority interests

3 Retained earnings

Issued capital and capital reserve

The most important changes in equity are due to the fol-

lowing:

— The increase mostly derives from the consolidated profit
of €2,671m attributable to Munich Re equity holders. The
previous year’s profit of €1,833m, net of the dividend
payment of €457m for 2004, was offset against retained
earnings. A

Changes in Group equity and in the valuation reserves not recognised in the balance sheet

All figures in €bn 31.12.2005 31.12.2004 31.12.2003 31.12.2002 31.12.2001
Group equity 24.7 20.6° 19.3* 13.9 19.4

Valuation reserves not recognised in the balance sheet, including those
apportionabie to minority interests and policyholders (before tax) 2.6 3.2 1.8 1.1 16.4

“Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1As 1 (rev. 2003).

For further information regarding the valuation reserves for ~ our operative business. It supplements our equity and is

assets not accounted for at fair value, please see page 95. essentially designed to reduce the cost of capital and
ensure that we have sufficient liquidity at all times. To

Strategic debt make our capital structure transparent, we quantify our

We define as strategic debt all borrowing with the charac- debt leverage. This is the percentage ratio of strategic debt

ter of outside financing that does not have a direct link with  to the sum of Group equity and strategic debt.
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Our strategic debt as at 31 December 2005“is made up as
follows:

leverage was 17.6%, having decreased by 6.4 percentage
points compared with the previous year due to a reduction
of the strategic debt and an increase in Group equity. There

All figures in €m 31.12.2005 Prev. year | | ; d i . ith id
r I e n { ¥

Sudordinated bonds fssued by 1 are currently no plans to expand our financing with outside
Munich Re Finance B.v., Amsterdam | 3,408 3,393 funds.
Exchangeable bonds .
of Munich Reinsurance Campany, Munich | - 1,223 All figures in €m 31.12.2005 Prev. year
Exchangeable bonds of ERGO International AG, ‘ Strategic debt 5,277 6,516
Disseldort 674 652 Group equity 24,653 20,644
Senior notes of American Re Corporation, \ 5 Total 29,930 27,160
Princeto 423 367

ineeton : Debt leverage 17.6 24.0
Bank borrowing of ERGO AG, Disseldorf | 504 636
Bank borrowing of American Re Corporation, : If the own funds recognised under supervisory law are taken as the basis
Princeton I 212 184 instead of the balance sheet equity, the strategic debt is reduced to
Other I 56 61 €1,869m (3,123m). This resuits in a debt leverage of 6.2% (11.5%).
Total ﬂ 6,516

In 2003, the Munich Re Group strengthened: its capitalisa-
tion with the subordinated bonds issued by Munich Re
Finance B.v. These subordinated liabilities are recognised
as own funds by the German Federal Financial Supervisory
Authority (BaFin) but do not meet the strict %equirements
of 1as 32 for recognition as equity. They were placed in two
tranches with nominal values of €3,000m and £300m each
and will mature in 2023 (euro tranche) and 2i028 (pound
sterling tranche). The first possible redempt‘ion dates are
21 June 2013 (euro tranche) and 21 June 2018 {pound ster-
ling tranche). i

We issued the exchangeable bonds in arder f(o actively
manage the underlying shareholdings. In the second quar-
ter of the business year ended, we redeemed a Munich
Reinsurance Company bond exchangeable into Allianz AG
shares with the very strong cash flow from our operating
activities. Two further exchangeable bonds erre issued by
ERGO International AG in 2001. These are backed by E.ON
AG and Sanofi-Aventis S. A. shares and will both mature in
2006.

The other strategic debt was incurred to finance our oper-
ating activities in the long term. ‘

We show the interest expenses for strategic debt separately
in the consolidated income statement under "finance costs”
and present these in detail in the notes to the financial
statements (Note 33). As at 31 December 200%, our debt

Group solvency

The Munich Re Group is subject not only to the supervisory
requirements applying to individual insurance companies
but also to supervision at Group level. Munich Reinsurance
Company as the parent has introduced suitable cantrol
methods and its reports to the German Federal Financial
Supervisory Authority {(BaFin) responsible for the Munich
Re Group include supplementary aspects at Group level,
such as shareholdings, consolidated financial data and
intra-Group transactions.

Solvency in the case of insurance companies is generally
understood to be the ability of an insurer to always meet
the obligations assumed under its contracts. In concrete
terms, this means an insurance company must fulfil spe-
cific minimum capital requirements. “Adjusted solvency”
focuses on the prevention of multiple use of equity to
cover risks from underwriting business at different levels
of the Group hierarchy. To calculate the adjusted solvency,
the minimum equity required for the volume of business
(required solvency margin) is compared with the eligible
equity actually available (actual solvency margin) on the
basis of the {FRS consolidated financial statements. In
determining the eligible capital elements, the IFRS equity
is adjusted; specifically, it is increased by portions of the
subordinated liabilities and reduced by intangible assets.
The Munich Re Group's eligible capital is more than three
times as high as that required by law.




Adjusted solvency

2005 2004
Eligible capital of the Group €bn 245 16.1
Adjusted solvency ratio % 326.1 206.8

The increase in eligible capital is attributable to the fact
that our shareholders’ equity has risen by around €4bn and
the Solvency Adjustment Ordinance has been improved.
Since 1 January 2008, locally established claims equalisa-
tion provisions totalling just under €5bn, which are not
allowed under IFRS, no longer have to be deducted from
IFRS equity when determining eligible capital for solvency
purposes.

All insurance companies in the Munich Re Group met their
pertinent solvency requirements in the year under review.

negative to stable. In the third quarter, A. M. Best placed its
rating for the Munich Re Group (A+ Superior) under review,
while Fitch lowered our rating from AA to AA- (Very strong).
In the fourth quarter, A. M. Best took the Munich Re Group
off the watch list and lowered its outlook from stable to
negative.

The rating agencies A. M. Best, Fitch and Moody’s put
Munich Re in their second-best category for financial
strength, and Standard & Poor’s placed us in its third-best
category. The Munich Re Group’s market position, expertise
and capitalisation are cited by the rating agencies as its
particular strengths. Given the tough competition in the
reinsurance markets, however, Munich Re's ability to sus-
tain the strong increase in earnings was still seen critically.

Financial strength ratings for the Munich Re Group

Raﬂ‘mg . . . Rating agency Rating Outlook
Mun.lch Re's flnanmall strength is ger?e.rally evaluated.bythe A M Best A+ (Superior] Negative
leadlr.wg rating agencies as very posntlYe, and our_ratmgs Fitch AA— (Very strong) Stable
remain at a high level. In 2005, our rating was adjusted as Moody's Aa3 (Excellent) Stable
follows. In the first quarter, Moody’s revised the outlook Standard & Poor's A+ (Strong) Stable
for our financial strength rating (Aa3 - Excellent) from A
The ratings for our subsidiaries on 22 February 2006 at a glance:
Reinsurance group Primary insurance group

A.M. Best Fitch Moody's S&P A.M. Best Fitch Moody’s S&P
American Alternative b.A.S. Legal Insurance Co. Ltd, A
Insurance Corporation A A+ DKy Deutsche Krankenver-
American Re-Insurance sicherung Aktiengesellschaft A+ A+
Company A AA- Aa3 A+ ErGO Previdenza SpA A
Great Lakes Reinsurance Hamburg-Mannheimer
{uK] PLC A+ A+ sachversicherungs-ag A+
Miinchener Ruck Jtalia A+ A+ Hamburg-Mannheimer
Munich American Versicherungs-Aktien-
Reassurance Company A+ A Geselilschaft A+ Aa3 A
Munich Reinsurance KarstadtQuelle Lebens-
Company of Africa A- versicherung Aktien-
Munich Reinsurance geselischaft BBB+
Company of Australasia A+ A+ VICTORIA Lebensversicherung
Munich Reinsurance Aktiengeselischaft A+ Aa3 A+
Company of Canada A+ A+ VICTORIA Versicherung
New Reinsurance Company A+ A+  Aktiengeselischaft At
Princeton Excess and Surplus
Lines Insurance Company A A+

Temple Insurance Company A
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Notes and debentures
The notes and debentures issued by our Group are rated as follows:

A M. Best Fitch Moody's S&P
Munich Re Finance B.v.,
6.75%, €3.0bn,
Subordinated Bonds
2003/2023 a A A2 A-

Munich Re Finance B.v.,

7.625%, £300m,

Subordinated Bonds

2003/2028 a A A2 A-

American Re Corporation,
7.45%, US$ 500m,

Senior Notes 1996/2026 bbb A2 BBB+

ERGO International AG,

0.76%, €345m,

Bonds Exchangeable into

Sanofi-Aventis s.A.

Shares 2001/2006 A A-

ERGO International AG,

2.25%, €345m,

Bonds Exchangeable into

E.ON AG Shares 2001/2006 A- A-

I

Analysis of the consolidated cash flow s&att\\emem

The Munich Re Group’s cash flow is strongly influenced by
our insurance and reinsurance operations. We first collect
the premiums for the risks assumed and do not make pay-
ments until later in the event of loss. The caéh flow state-
ments of insurance companies are thereforq of limited
relevance. ;

The cash flow statement is adjusted to elimitnate the effects
of changes in exchange rates and influences from changes
in the consolidated group. “

|
Consolidated cash flow statement (in€m)

All figures in €m 2005  Prev. year
Cash flows from operating activities é,1 19 5,308
Cash flows from investing activities -i,928 -4,223
Cash flows from financing activities ~-2,901 -932
Cash flows for the business year 290 153

'

The strong cash inflow from operating activities is attribut-
able to the excellent performance of these ac“tivities. The

\
|
|

|

already satisfying consolidated result of €2,743m is adjusted
in the consolidated cash flow statement by €10,804m to
take account of the change in underwriting provisions. On
the one hand, there was an increase in the loss reserves of
the Munich Re Group’s reinsurers for the Atlantic hurri-
canes and the reserve strengthening at American Re. On
the other hand, there was an increase in provisions for
future policy benefits posted by the Munich Re Group’s
primary insurers as a result of the satisfactory decline in
policy terminations and due to portfolio development and
new business with young companies. Cash outflows
totalling €1,374m for the acquisition of securities held for
trading partially derived from a greater use of derivatives
to hedge our investment portfolio against adverse market
developments. The net gains on the disposal of invest-
ments — which in adjusting the consolidated profit have to
be deducted from the cash flows from operating activities —
are essentially ascribable to gains from the sale of shares -
and the exchange of HvB shares into UniCredit stock.

The cash outflows from investing activities were deter-
mined by the outflows for the acquisition of investments.
These exceeded the inflows from the sale/maturity of
investments by a pleasing €2,529m. The inflows from the
sale of consolidated companies include the Karlsruher
Insurance Group and Nieuwe Hollandse Lloyd Verzeker-
ingsgroep N.V. In the business year 2005, our disposals of
consolidated companies totalled €398m. The sales prices
were settled in cash and offset in the consolidated cash
flow statement against the total cash of €226m held by the
subsidiaries sald. Moreover, the Munich Re Group disposed
of atotal of €12,858m in investments and €12,881m in under-
writing provisions by selling consolidated companies. In
2005, no major company acquisitions were made.

The cash outflows from financing activities stem mainly
from the dividend payment for 2004 of €473m and the
redemption of the bonds exchangeable into Allianz AG
shares totalling €1,223m.

Overall, in the year under review cash — which includes
cash with banks, cheques and cash in hand - rose by
€290m to €2,337m.
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Other success factors

Competence and up-to-the-minute knowledge for our clients

Intelligent solutions for new challenges
Highly qualified and motivated staff

Instrumental in securing the Munich Re Group’s sustained

economic success are not only the high quality of our busi-

ness operations but also a number of factors that cannot

be measured by financial performance alone. These include:

— Open dialogue with our clients

— QOur firm commitment to new, needs-oriented products
and services

— Our corporate responsibility towards employees,
society and the environment

- Efficient business processes for managing our Group
and identifying or avoiding risks

Clients and client relationships

The Munich Re Group has different client bases in reinsur-
ance and primary insurance. The reinsurance group works
together with some 5,000 corporate clients - traditional
insurers and captives - from around 160 countries. By con-
trast, our primary insurance companies service around

30 million policyholders throughout Europe, most of
whom are private clients. The products and services we
offer therefore differ accordingly.

Reinsurance

As reinsurers, we aspire to be the preferred partner in risk
for our clients. Our operative business consequently pro-
vides companies wishing to cede insurance risks with the
full range of underwriting products. In addition, they can
benefit from our strengths that go beyond the provision of
actual reinsurance cover: our financial strength, our know-
ledge, our solution-oriented approach and the treatment of
our clients as partners.

We also share our know-how with our cedants. In 2005, for
instance, we again organised a large number of seminars
on fundamental topics in all lines of insurance. We also stage
numerous specialist events at our clients every year -
forums, symposiums and seminars —~ dealing with current
developments in the individual markets and ensuring a
continual transfer of knowledge.
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Our two scholarship programmes, which offer high-quality
advanced training for our clients’ prospective managers,
have enabled us over the years to strengthen the partner-
ships we enjoy with our cedants.

We also pass on our competence to our business partners
in printed form, of course: in 2005 we brought out a total of
75 technical publications incorporating Munich Re’s con-
centrated knowledge —in German, English, French, ltalian,
and Spanish. How much our clients appreciate this service
is indicated by the access figures for our publication portal
at www.munichre.com, where last year nearly 750,000
Munich Re publications were downloaded.

Qur solution-oriented approach to collaboration is clearly
illustrated by connect.munichre, our internet client portal,
where we provide our cedants with round-the-clock assist-
ance: useful knowledge, services, analysis and quotation
tools from the property-casuaity and the life and health
segments. This both supports primary insurers in their
daily business and presents a direct and secure interface to
Munich Re. With its swift, efficient and safe interactive
facilities, connect.munichre supplements and aptimises
Munich Re’s range of services and rounds off personal client
relationships. The portal is already used by 203 insurers
worldwide.

Last but not least, our cedants worldwide benefit from our
local presence. Branches and subsidiaries around the
world ensure that our clients can always find us where and
when they need us. We thus combine international know-
how with in-depth knowledge of local conditions, to offer
our clients individual solutions in every case and continue
to be their preferred partner in risk.

Primary insurance

In primary insurance, our products and services are mainly
for private clients throughout Europe, who make up the
bulk of our clientele, along with small and medium-sized
firms. They can choose from the full range of product
groups: life and health insurance, property-casualty insur-
ance, legal expenses insurance, travel insurance and as-
sistance services, fund products offered by MEAG as the



asset manager of Munich Re and ERGO, and bank products
from our cooperation partner HypoVereinsbank. With this
all-round offering, our companies are well.positioned in the
market: their clients can cover all their finan¢ial-service needs
comfortably from one familiar and proven:source.
ERGO's professional client management has been tested
for client satisfaction and service by the Gé\rman technical
inspection agency TUV and rated as “good?!. The quality of
its claims management is certified to DIN EN 1509001, for
which regular on-the-spot checks are madé in addition to
extensive audit and claims controlling. Client service is
dealt with by a centrally managed unit covering all ERGO’s
business segments and companies. I

|
Research and development \

As outlined in the general parameters sectio‘ln, the (re)insur-
ance market is subject to a wide variety of influences. The
Munich Re Group concerns itself with these factors at an
early stage so as to help shape them wheréyer possible
and to adapt its products and services to the new circum-
stances or devise innovative solutions. i

Our 23 centres of competence play a specia! role here: they
are active in many different fields, and the sjgnificance of
their work sometimes goes far beyond the immediate
world of insurance. Not only do they create the basis for
identifying new risks; they also help control\‘them by mak-
ing them insurable. Geo Risks Research, forexample,
supports our underwriting of natural hazard risks and is

a much sought-after partner for our clients a“s well as for
scientists and politicians. The Centre of Com“petence for
Biosciences focuses on genetic engineering\and explores
the opportunities and risks of this key techm.‘?|ogy forthe
insurance industry. Other centres of competence deal
with topics like the assumption of old loss pértfolios
(“customised portfolio solutions”), IT risks and jewellers’
block —a line of insurance covering all the risks of jewellery
business and diamond trade — and also workers’ compen-
sation. !

Last but not least, Knowledge Management provides the
methodological and institutional foundations for the con-
stant updating and exchange of knowledge within the
Munich Re Group. In over 50 operative topic networks,
staff from 20 countries work with our most important nat-
ural resource for a successful future: our knowledge, of
which ever greater demands are being made in a rapidly
changing environment. Qur experts expand our know-
how, package it, and act as contacts for colleagues and
clients alike.

In 2004, we set up six cross-divisional innovation teams in
underwriting, i.e. interdisciplinary groups made up of
highly qualified experts who work in close contact with
the underwriting units to identify and tap new business
opportunities. We combine resources in this way in order
to come up with intelligent solutions, which we are con-
vinced are the key to a profitabie future. Collaborating with
the staff responsible in the divisions, our innovation teams
develop new products, services and distribution channels.
Our cedants benefit from their solutions in many areas, be
it in the individual design of policies, in claims manage-
ment, or in analysing and optimising a client’s portfolio
structure. Thus, for example, salutions have been devised
for motor own damage cover for a leasing fleet that re-
define the interaction of brokers, primary insurers and
reinsurers.

Our primary insurers place the emphasis of their research
and development on forecasting demographic trends and
incorporating the results into product design. For these
trends constitute important parameters for calculating pol-
icy terms and thus for structuring products. Besides this,
demographic change is affecting social security systems
and consequently influencing our clients’ need for private
provision.

in order to be able to work with all the available informa-
tion, ERGO collaborates closely with the Intergenerational
Compacts Research Centre at the Albert Ludwig University
in Freiburg, whose areas of research include old-age pro-
vision, healthcare, long-term care and tax. Our product de-
velopment combines the scientific findings of the research
centre with our own knowledge and ERGO insurers’ own
extensive experience with clients.
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ERGO's life and health insurers also keep their own mortal-
ity tables in order to have customised data available for
their specifically structured portfolios. Their actuaries
liaise with the German Association of Actuaries to con-
stantly extend and update their knowledge of client life
expectancy.

Staff

Our staff provide the basis for our success with their com-
petence, motivation and commitment. They embody the
qualities with which Munich Re turns risk into value. That
is why we invest consistently in further developing their
skills.

Munich Re Group siaff

Primary insurance companies 80.3%

Reinsurance — Staff by region

Africa, Near and Middle East5.6%
Asia and Australasia 5.5%

Rest of Europe 11.7%

Primary insurance ~ Staff by region

Germany 77.6%
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Facts and figures

On 31 December 2005, a total of 37,953 {40,962} staff were
employed with the Munich Re Group worldwide, 6,798
(6,612) in reinsurance, 30,465 {(33,703) in primary insurance
and 690 (647) in asset management.

The distinct reduction compared with the previous year
results mainly from the sale of the Karlsruher Insurance
Group, in which 2,282 were employed as at 30 September
2005. In addition, with due regard to social aspects, the
ERGO companies cut 574 jobs (2.8%}, partly as a result of
their continued cost-savings programme. [n reinsurance
and asset management, on the other hand, staff numbers
increased slightly by 186 (2.8%) and 43 (6.6%) respectively.

Reinsurance companies 17.9%

Asseat management 1.8%

North America 25.9%

Latin America 1,8%

Germany 49.5%

Rest of Europe 22.3%

Rest of the world 0.1%




Cverell stafi zurnover at the main Group compeanies in Germany

ERGO

Munich Reinsurance

Company X C . | 2.8%
MEAG )

I
I
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Imitial and further training ‘
Initial and further training rank among our strategic tasks,
not least for reasons of risk management in the human
resources sector. Our staff must be highly dualified and
motivated to ensure the continued success of our operations.
Their knowledge edge is critical to designin“g solutions for
new market developments at an early stagq and to meeting
the growing requirements of our business. yVe ensure the
necessary qualifications and skills through systematic per-
sonnel measures that take into account indi“vidual abilities
and future requirements. Hence, we consistently offer a
large number of internal seminars for perso\\nal and spe-
cialist training. |
We are also firmly committed to giving young people sound
professional training and good career perspectives: in 2005,
a total of 1,450 trainees were employed in th:e Munich Re
Group. At ERGO, far example, the percentage of trainees —
6.5% —was better than the industry average ‘1(2004: 5.9%).

International promeotion of talent ‘

Since 1997, Munich Re Munich has been sysiematically
identifying and preparing staff for future management
tasks with its scheme for assessing and devéloping staff
potential. We have now extended this syster%w to the inter-
national reinsurance group. Highly talented and qualified
staff are selected and groomed for management functions
in Munich and for leading functions at busint:ass units
abroad. As a result, we create career prospects for our staff
internationally, throughout the reinsurance group. In 2005,
candidates were nominated for the scheme f\\rom Asia,
Australia, South Africa, North America, the United King-
dom and Germany. ERGO managerial staff benefit from

the rich opportunities offered by the ERGO Ma“nagement
Academy (EMA), whose programmes suppor'f employees

l

| 6.8%

| 6.2%

assuming executive functions for the firsttime, as well

as experienced managers. Above and beyond this, it pro-
motes the exchange of views and ideas between execu-
tives of the ERGO companies.

Environment

Munich Re’s business is inextricably linked with ecological
aspects, even if as a service provider we place compara-
tively little burden on the environment ourselves. We are
directly affected by environmental impacts, such as the
growing number and intensity of weather-related natural
catastrophes. A particular focus of our commitment is
therefore climate protection: for many years Munich Re
has been contributing its specialist knowledge to numer-
ous organisations and associations concerned with global
climate change, especially UNEP FI, the Finance Initiative of
the United Nations Environment Programme, which pro-
motes understanding of climate change in the financial
sector.

In addition to this, in April 2005, Munich Re became a
founder-member of the Munich Climate Insurance Initiative
for insurance solutions intended to benefit people in devel-
oping countries. In the Climate Group, we work for the re-
duction of greenhouse gases from the 20 economies with
the highest emission levels and the 500 largest firms.

And we do not except ourselves from these endeavours:
Munich Re Munich and VICTORIA have had their environ-
mental management systems certified to EMAS (EU Eco-
Management and Audit Scheme) and to 1SO 14001; the
ERGO Insurance Group is also currently aiming to obtain an
EMAS certificate.




Social commitment

As a globally operating corporation, the Munich Re Group
accepts its responsibility towards society and supports
various social and cultural projects. Knowledge obligates ~
that is the conviction that led to our setting up the Munich
Re Foundation, whose operations were publicly launched
in April 2005, with a capital of €so0m. Under the motto
“From Knowledge to Action”, the Munich Re Foundation
has set itself the aim of helping people in risk situations
and improving their situation — especially in countries
where the people are too poor to make use of financial
services like insurance. The Foundation not only provides
direct support but also devotes itself to promoting know-
ledge, heightening awareness and networking, which
facilitates self-help. In its work, the Munich Re Foundation
can build on the highly developed risk knowledge of its
benefactor.

Munich Re staff also practise solidarity. Their voluntary
work is supported by the Dr. Hans-Jiirgen Schinzler Foun-
dation, which provides a platform for private initiatives.
The foundation makes it easier to exchange ideas with like-
thinking individuals and to provide mutual support. As a
result, numerous charitable projects in Germany, Latin
America and Asia benefit.

People cannot and should not be considered purely in terms
of their economic needs. That is why, for example, we sup-
port the Gustav Mahler Jugendorchester on its concert
tours. This orchestra of young musicians keeps classical
music very much alive and well. The past year's intinerary
took these highly talented musicians to venues like London
and Madrid. Beyond this, Munich Re supports environ-
mental, social and cultural projects through regular dona-
tion programmes.
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IT processes

IT security

Munich Re ensures the security of all its data, computers
and networks through a system of complementary func-
tions and processes.

The Chief Information Security Officer sees to it that there
is an active exchange of information between the primary
insurance and reinsurance groups on information security
issues. in DISK (the Munich Re data protection and infor-
mation security group), all the parties responsible meet
regularly to discuss project results and risk evaluations,
compare notes, utilise synergy effects and launch ideas for
Group-wide projects.

Beyond this, IT security in primary insurance and reinsur-
ance is organised in separate, but individually effective
structures.

At the top of our security pyramid in the reinsurance group
is the 1s Office, which defines uniform global standards
and guidelines applied by all the companies. It is also
responsible for information-security crisis management
and for quality assurance in the enforcement of the rele-
vant directives. In addition, it instructs our Security Centre
of Competence in Toronto, whose functions include testing
the IT infrastructure of the reinsurance group and central IT
applications for weaknesses and possible security risks.
We attach great importance to the security training of all
our staff.

Regular external audits have confirmed that Munich Re’s
information security is at a high level. Nevertheless, given
that we see security as a process rather than a state, we are
constantly refining our strategies and standards. In doing
$0, we are concentrating especially on reducing those risks
which are related to the “human factor” in the broadest
sense.
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ERGO's IT security is part of our cross-corpt‘nrate IT security
management, which embraces four Ievels:\ security policy,
guidelines, concepts and technical implementation. Exist-
ing security management is being continuélly refined and
extended, with a view to abtaining IT security certification
from the Bsi (German Federal Office for |nf‘ormation Secur-
ity) by 2008. This will be followed by furthe\‘r steps to gear
ERGO’s IT security management to international standards.

[
Gloria

Qur reinsurance platform Glabal Reinsuradce Application
{Gloria) will provide the reinsurance group with a consist-
ent data basis and an integrated system for all business-
relevant core processes. Building on variou:s SAP modules,
we are thereby harmonising the business processes in our
reinsurance, not only enhancing the quality and efficiency
of individual process steps - such as underwriting, claims
and accounting - but also improving the analysis, manage-
ment and administration of our reinsurancé\ business as a
whole. The harmonisation of all core business processes
will also serve our global risk management, which will
have extensive data available even more qu‘lickly.

|

The project is very compiex, and the risks are considerably
higher than they would be if we were implementing
proven standard products. We have therefore incorporated
additional test cycles, especially for the accounts closing
process, and put back the roll-out originally planned for
2005 to 2006. This will begin with Munich Re Munich and
its branches and will be extended to the subsidiaries in the
following years, starting with American Re.

GENESYS

Our primary insurers are alsa standardising their business
processes and developing new software applications for
this purpose. Since 2003, ERGO has gradually been intro-
ducing a uniform IT landscape as the precondition for har-
monised processes in the different segments. The Hamburg-
Mannheimer companies were successfully integrated into
the system in 2003, followed by D.A.S. and VICTORIA in
2004. At the start of 2005, we began work on the project
GENESYS in the health segment.

These measures will make a major contribution to reducing
IT costs and to modernising ERGO’s IT platforms. Although
they require high investment, they will enhance our com-
petitiveness in the long term.
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Co rporate governance

Corporate governance as an ongoing process

Taking account of national features

Corporate governance report”

How we view corporate governance

Corporate governance stands for a form of responsible
company management and control geared to long-term
creation of value. Of particular importance to us in this
context are the promotion of shareholders’ interests, effi-
cient practices on the Board of Management and Supervis-
ory Board, good collaboration between these bodies, and
corporate communications that are open and transparent
both internally and externally.

We see corporate governance as an ongoing process,
whose rules must not only be clearly stated but also lived
out in practice. Major contributors to ensuring this are
Internal Auditing, Risk Management and the Compliance
Office.

What rules apply to Munich Re?

With its international organisation, the Munich Re Group
has to consider corporate governance rules in different
national legal systems. Clearly, we observe not only the
respective national standards but also internationally
recognised best practices. In Germany, where Munich Re
has its registered seat, corporate governance rules are laid
down above all in the German Stock Companies Act, the
German Co-Determination Act and the German Corporate
Governance Code. The latter, which entered into force in
2002 and has since been amended severa!l times, contains
the main legal rules that must be observed by German
listed companies. In addition, it inciudes recommendations
and proposals based on nationally and international recog-
nised standards of good and responsible management.
Every year, Munich Re’s Board of Management and Super-
visory Board publish a declaration stating how far the
Code's recommendations have been complied with. The
declaration we published in November 2005 can be found
at the end of this section.

Overview of corporate legal structure

Munich Re is a joint-stock company (“Aktiengesellschaft”)
within the meaning of the German Stock Companies Act.
As prescribed by the Act, it has three governing bodies: the
Board of Management, the Supervisory Board and the
Annual General Meeting.

The Board of Management is responsible for managing
the Company and representing it vis-a-vis third parties. it
reports regularly to the Supervisory Board. Certain types
of transaction, such as investments of substantial size,
generally require the Supervisory Board’s consent.

The members of the Board of Management are appointed
by the Supervisory Board and may be dismissed by the
latter at any time for good cause. On initial appointment,
members of the Board of Management are usually given
contracts for a term of between three and five years. One or
more extensions of up to five years each are possible.

Rules of procedure issued by the Supervisory Board deter-
mine the distribution of responsibilities and cooperation on
the Board of Management. At the end of 2005, the Board of
Management set up two committees from amongst its
ranks ~ one for Group operations and the other for reinsur-
ance operations - in order to enhance the efficiency of its
work.

The Supervisory Board monitors the Board of Management
and gives counsel where appropriate. Certain transactions,
such as major investments or capital measures, require its
approval, but it is not authorised to execute management
measures. The Supervisory Board also appoints the exter-
nal auditor. Remuneration of the members of the Supervis-
ory Board is regulated in the Articles of Association, i.e. is
determined by the shareholders.

In compliance with the law and the company’s Articles of
Association, Munich Re’s Supervisory Board has a total of
20 members. Half of these are elected representatives of
the employees. The other ten members are elected by the
Annual General Meeting.

Munich Re’s Supervisory Board has four committees: the
Standing Committee, the Personnel Committee, the Audit
Committee and the Conference Committee.

Annual General Meeting

At Munich Re’s AGM, the principle of “one share, one vote”
applies. Shareholders may exercise their vating rights per-
sonally or authorise a proxy appointed in writing, a bank or
a shareholders’ association to cast their votes. Munich Re
also offers its shareholders the opportunity to have their
voting rights exercised in accordance with their personal
instructions by one of the proxies nominated by the Com-

pany.

*Joint corporate governance report of the Board of Management and Supervisory Board in accordance with item 3.10 of the German Corporate Governance

Code.
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Taking due account of differences
The legal framewaork for corporate governance rules varies
from country to country. A standard that incorporates
“good” corporate governance in one legal system may
contravene mandatory law in another, whe\lre its obser-
vance by a company would be deemed ”ba‘\d" corporate
governance. Despite the fact that there are now numerous
international best practices, national law always needs to
be considered as well when assessing a cor"npany’s cor-
porate governance. Here are two related ex“amples:
German joint-stock companies have two boards, the Board
of Management and the Supervisory Board[, which are
strictly separate bodies. The Board of Management man-
ages the company and conducts its busineés; the Super-
visory Board monitors and advises the Board of Manage-
ment. It is not possible to be a member of bbth bodies.

By contrast, Anglo-American companies in particular have
only one board, meaning that both management and moni-
toring are performed by the same body. This explains the
special attention Anglo-American investors\pay to whether
a company’s audit committee has members'who are non-
executive directors. As Munich Re’s Supervisory Board
(and consequently the latter’'s committees) are not allowed
to contain any members of the Board of Mar‘)agement, we
naturally fulfil this criterion. \

The German Co-Determination Act mandatdrily deter-
mines the composition of Munich Re's Supefvisory Board.
Half of the members of the Supervisory Board are repre-
sentatives of the shareholders and half are employee rep-
resentatives, elected by the staff. The Chairn‘\an -who has
a second, casting vote in the event of voting on the Super-
visory Board ending in a tie - is generally oné of the share-
holder representatives. In the Anglo-American legal
sphere, there is no comparable form of co-dqtermination.
The Us Securities and Exchange Commission nevertheless
recognises that employee representatives oﬁ the Super-
visory Board of a German joint-stock company make a
valuable contribution to providing an indepehdent check
on management (SEC in Final Rule Relating to Listed

Company Audit Committees, p. 18802). |

Corporate governance topics in 2005

One topic that had dominated public debate in Germany in
2004 was the individualised disclosure of remuneration
paid to management boards. In summer 2005, a law on the
disclosure of management board remuneration (Vorst0G)
was passed in Germany. Under this law, the remuneration
of the Board of Management will have to be published in
individualised form as from 2007 for the business year
2006. Munich Re will comply with this provision. The
Board of Management and Supervisory Board will not be
seeking a resolution from the Annual General Meeting that
allows for an opt-out from individualised disclosure.

As stated in aur annual report for 2004, we have found it
disquieting how far the important topic of corporate gover-
nance has been reduced to the question of individualised
disclosure of board compensation. On mature reflection,
the Board of Management has therefore again decided
against publication in this form because it does not con-
sider such disclosure to be appropriate. The remuneration
report provides details of how much the Board of Manage-
ment as a whole earned in the business year 2005, broken
down according to the different remuneration compon-
ents. By giving such information as a clear overview of
individual components and their weighting, fringe bene-
fits, pension entitltements and reserves, we show the
structure of the compensation system in great detail. Even
without individualised disclosure, Munich Re thus informs
investors and shareholders objectively and extensively,
enabling them in their investment decisions to assess the
relationship between the Board of Management's perform-
ance and compensation on the basis of the details they
receive regarding the Board of Management as a collegial
body.

Last year, too, the Supervisory Board reviewed the effi-
ciency of its activities. This showed that the efficiency
enhancement measures decided on in previous years had
been effective. Despite some room for improvement in the
details, the form, content and timing of reports from the
Board of Management to the Supervisory Board, and the
flow of information between the committees and the full
Supervisory Board were assessed as generally positive
and efficient.
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Recommendations and suggesticns of the German
Corporate Governance Code

In November 2005, the Board of Management and the
Supervisory Board published the following declaration of
compliance, in accordance with Section 161 of the German
Stock Companies Act:

"Between the last declaration of compliance in December
2004 and 20 July 2005, Munich Re fulfilled the recommen-
dations of the Government Commission’s German Code of
Corporate Governance in the version of 21 May 2003, with
the exception stated below. Since 21 July 2005, Munich Re
has fulfilled the recommendations of the Government
Commission’s German Code of Corporate Governance in
the version of 2 June 2005 (published on 20 July 2005) and
will continue to fulfil these recommendations, with the
exception stated below:

- Iltem 4.2.4 sentence 2
For the business year 2004, the remuneration of the
members of Munich Re’s Board of Management was
shown in detail for the whole Board in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements, broken down accord-
ing to fixed compensation, performance-related com-
ponents and components with long-term incentive
effect, although not individualised as recommended by
the German Code of Corporate Governance. For the
business year 2005, too, the Board of Management’s
remuneration will be published in detail for the whole
Board but not individualised.”

In summary, Munich Re again complies with all the recom-

mendations of the German Corporate Governance Code,
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with only one exception.

Likewise, Munich Re complies with all the suggestions of
the German Corporate Governance Code with only one
exception. This concerns item 5.4.7 para. 2 sentence 2 of
the Code, which suggests that the result-related remuner-
ation of members of the Supervisory Board should include
components based on the company's long-term perform-
ance. We consider that a convincing remuneration model
for this is still lacking and that our remuneration mode],
approved by the Annual General Meeting in 2005, is a
good solution in terms of corporate governance aspects.

Remuneration report

Structure of the remuneration system for the Board of
Management

In compliance with the German Corporate Governance Code,
we here explain the principles of the remuneration system
for Munich Re’s Board of Management and the structuring
of the individual remuneration components.

The structure and amount of the remuneration are deter-
mined by the Supervisory Board’s Personnel Committee,
whose three members comprise the Chairman of the
Supervisory Board, another of the shareholder representa-
tives and one of the employee representatives. The full
Supervisory Board discusses the remuneration structure
and reviews it regularly.



|

The remuneration of the members of the Board of Management is made up of fixed and variable components.

g . . |
Specifically, these comprise the follownng:\l

|

Component Assessment basis/parameters Corridor Precondition for payment Payment
Basic remuneration, remuneration Function, responsibitity, Fixed Contractual stipulations Monthly
in kind/fringe benefits {company risk-based capital,
car, healthcare, security measures, length of service on Board
insurances, special remittances)
Annual bonus 50% annual result 0-100% Achievement of objectives Annually,
50% achievement 0-100% in the following year
of personal objectives
Medium-term incentive plan 50% annual result 70-100% Achievement of objectives In the fourth year
50% achievement 70-100% at least 70% on average
of personal objectives over three years
Long-term incentive plan Appreciation in share price 0—-150% > End of vesting period As from third year
{stock appreciation rights; ' (two years) of plan until end of
term: seven years) > 20% share price increase plan
> MR shares have outperformed
EURO STOXX 50 twice at the
end of three-month period
during the term of the plan
Pension entitlement Basic remuneration, Fixed Insured event -

number of years on the Board

or retirement

|
!

Fixed components

Basic remuneration
The fixed annual basic remuneration is paid in the form of
a monthly salary. \

|
|
l
|
|
|

Remuneration in kind/fringe benefits \
Remuneration in kind and fringe benefits are'granted to
differing extents, depending on function, and are in line
with market trends. Tax has to be paid on the\related bene-
fits individually. i
|
|

Variable componenis ‘

In the annual bonus, the result for the year and the achieve-
ment of personat objectives are each weighted 50%. The
portion linked to the annual result depends on the attain-
ment of an objective for the whole Munich Re‘\iGroup ora
corporate objective; the achievement of personal object-
ives is based on divisional financial targets and individual
objectives. In the case of the Group objective, we use key
indicators of external accounting, whilstin the case of the
corporate and division objectives, we use the ;\".)erformance

measures embodied in value-based management.
|

Annual bonus \
|
|

|

i

Medium-term incentive plan

The medium-term bonus is based on performance over a
three-year period. Like the annual bonus, it is measured on
the basis of the objective-based categories with a weighting
of 50% far annual results and 50% for personal abjectives.
Payments are made only if the achievement rate is at least
70% on average for the three-year period.

Long-term incentive plan

This remuneration component with a long-term incentive
is linked to the sustained appreciation of Munich Re’s share
price. The long-term incentive plan is set up at annual
intervals, and the participants receive a certain number of
stock appreciation rights. These can only be exercised if,
after a two-year vesting period, Munich Re’s share price
has risen by at least 20% since inception of the plan and the
shares have outperformed the EURO STOXX 50 at least twice
at the end of three-month period during the term of the
plan. The exercise hurdles are exacting and in keeping with
the German Corporate Governance Code.

Whether the stock appreciation rights can be exercised and,
if so, when, is not certain at the time they are granted. The
exercising and proceeds depend on the development of
the share price and the exercise price and date. The amount
of income is limited. Up to now, it has only been possible




to exercise stock appreciation rights under the plans set up
in 1999 and 2003. Further information on the long-term
incentive plans can be found on pages 202 to 205 of the
notes to the financial statements.

In the case of 100% achievement of objectives (annual
bonus, medium-term incentive plan) and a 35% share price
increase (long-term incentive plan), the weightings of the
individual components are as follows: basic remuneration
approx. 30%, annual bonus approx. 35%, medium-term
incentive plan approx. 15%, and long-term incentive plan
approx. 20%.

Annual bonus, medium-term incentive plan and long-term
incentive plan together form a well-balanced incentive sys-
tem.

In accordance with the recommendations of the German
Corporate Governance Code, the total remuneration of the
Board members thus comprises fixed and variable com-
ponents, ali of which are appropriate in themselves and

as a whole. Criteria for this are in particular the respective
Board member’s duties, the Board member’s personal per-
formance, the performance of the Board as a whole and
the financial situation, performance and future prospects
of Munich Re, taking into account the relevant benchmarks
for Board remuneration.

A different arrangement applies to the remuneration struc-
ture of Mr. Phelan, who is not only a member of the Board
of Management but also the President, Chief Executive
Officer and Chairman of the Board of American Re Corpor-
ation, and therefore has special remuneration agreements,
with the major portion of his income derived from the USA.

Other remuneration

In the case of seats held on other boards, remuneration for
board memberships must be paid over to the Company or
is deducted in the course of regular compensation compu-
tation. Excepted from this is remuneration for personal
memberships, which do not exist at present.

Pension entitlement

In addition to the regular remuneration, the members of
the Board of Management are members of a defined bene-
fit plan under which they will receive a fixed pension
whose amount depends on their basic remuneration and
their years of service on the Board. The pension level starts
at 30% and can reach a maximum of 60% of annual basic
remuneration.
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Total remuneration of the Board of Management

In the year under review, after allocation to the appropriate
periods, the remuneration of Munich Re’s Board of Man-
agement showed an overall rise of €5.8m or 31.5% from
€18.6m to €24.4m. Of this, €0.4m was attributable to an
increase in the fixed components and €3.3m to growth in
the variable remuneration, mainly due to the good result
for the year under review. In addition, with a comparable
calculation approach for the long-term incentive plan,
there was an increase of £2.1m resulting largely from the
appreciation in the share price.

Expenses for the remuneration received by Munich Rein-
surance Company's Board of Management for fulfilment of
their duties in respect of the parent company and its sub-
sidiaries in the year under review totalled €32.6m (18.2m),
€8m (3m) of which is apportionable to previous years. This
includes the compensation components that Mr. Phelan
received for his work as President, Chief Executive Officer
and Chairman of the Board of American Re Corporation.
The accounting method for the long-term incentive plans
was changed in 2005 from measurement at intrinsic value
(difference between current share price and initial share
price for the stock appreciation rights) to measurement at
fair value. The latter includes not only the intrinsic value
but also the possibility of growth in value up to the date of
forfeiture

or expiry of the rights and is determined on the basis of
recognised valuation models, taking into account the exer-
cise conditions. From now on, we will include the personal
expenses for the stock appreciation rights granted in the
year under review so that the stock appreciation rights
granted are transparent and presented in relation to the
correct periods. In addition, we show the personnel ex-
penses incurred in the business year from the development
of stock appreciation rights issued in previous years. The
higher personnel expenses shown in 2005 for previous
years derives primarily from the one-off adjustment
required by the new accounting method. If the stock appre-
ciation rights granted in 2004 had been measured using
the new accounting method, the personne! expenses for
these would have amounted to €3,365 thousand. This figure
is comparable with the €5,476 thousand shown for 2005.
The expenses incurred in 2005 for previous years would be
reduced accordingly.



2005 2004

For For For For
All figures in €000 2005 prev. years 2004 prev. years
Total remuneration? 24,393 8,087 15,306 2,894
Fixed components 6,732 - 6,328 -
Basic remuneration 6,176 - 5,674 -
Remuneration in kind/fringe benefits 556 - 654 -
Statutory social benefits 22 - 20 -
Voluntary social benefits 33 - 35 -
Company car 100 - 97 -
Healthcare 4 - 4 -
Security measures - - - -
Insurance 55 - 59 -
Special remittances? 205 - 278 -
Tax for remuneration in kind/fringe benefits 137 - 161 -
Variable components 17,661 8,087 8,978 2,894
Annual bonus 2003
Expenses3 - - - 1,635
Annual bonus 2004
Allocation to provision - - 4,860 -
Reduction of provision? - -71 - -
Annual bonus 2005
Allocation to provision 7,682 - ~ -

Medium-term incentive plan (2003-2005)5

Allocation to provision 3,340 - 2,430 832
Long-term incentive plans

Personnel expenses for newly granted stock appreciation rights 5,476 - 79 -

Personnel expenses for stock appreciation rights granted in previous years - 8,1237 - 427

Provisions/expenses subsidiaries

Annual bonus 2004 - =243 627 -
Annual bonus 2005 627 - - -
Long-term bonus 536 599 982 -

' Presentation on an accruals basis as from 2005. The previous year's figures have been partially adjusted for comparative purposes.

2For example, gifts on special birthdays/anniversaries, travel expenses for Mr. Phelan from Princeton to Munich,
other American Re personnel expenses for Mr. Phelan.

¥ Annual bonus payment for 2003 higher than estimated and reserved bonus amount,

4 Annual bonus payment for 2004 lower than estimated and reserved bonus amount.

5 The provisions for the medium-term incentive plan 2003-2005 total €8.042m as at 31 December 2005.

82004 provisions shown on the basis of intrinsic value; as from 2005 personnel expenses shown on fair-value basis.
Higher expenses in 2005 for previous years derive from one-off adjustment required.

7 Thereof €0.562m for the stock appreciation rights of retired members of the Board of Management,
who were granted these rights during their period of active service on the Board.

8 Annual bonus payments for 2004 at subsidiaries lower than estimated and reserved amount.

% Expenses in business year 2004 for bonuses at subsidiaries higher than estimated and reserved amount,




Basic remuneration made up 25% of overall compensation
for 2005, and remuneration in kind and fringe benefits
amounted to 2%. The variable remuneration includes allo-
cations to provisions for the annual bonus probable on the
basis of current estimates, for the medium-term incentive
plan and the long-term incentive plans. Whether these
amounts will actually be paid out to the Board members,
and if so how high the sums will be, is not yet certain and
will depend on the degree to which individual objectives
are achieved, and on the exercise conditions of the long-
term incentive plans. In accordance with the plan condi-
tions, no payments were made under the medium-term
incentive plan in the business year. Munich Re shares have
been acquired to cover future obligations arising from the
long-term incentive pians so as to neutralise the expenses
resulting from a growth in value of the stock appreciation
rights with an increase in the value of the share portfolio.

Pension entitlements

In 2005, the average level of provision for the pension en-
titlements of the members of Munich Reinsurance Com-
pany’s Board of Management amounted to 40% (38%) of
basic remuneration. Personnel expenses of €1.1m (1.3m}
were incurred for the increase in the pension obligations
for active members of the Board of Management. As at

31 December 2005, the pension provisions and provisions
for comparable benefits for the active members of the
Board of Management amounted to €om (—) after deduc-
tion of plan assets held by a separate entity (e.g. under a
contractual trust agreement). The value of the defined
benefit obligations pursuant to IFRs for active members of
the Board of Management amounted to €46.2m (38.1m) as
at 31 December 2005.

Total remuneration of former members of the Board of
Management

Payments to retired members of the Board of Management
or their surviving dependants totalled €4.3m (4.3m).

Pension commitments

Personnel expenses of €0.1m {0.3m) were incurred for the
increase in pension commitments for retired members of
the Board of Management. As at 31 December 2005, the
pension provisions and provisions for comparable benefits
for the retired members of the Board of Management or
their surviving dependants amounted to €om (=) after
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deduction of plan assets held by a separate entity (e.g. under
a contractual trust agreement). The value of the defined
benefit obligations pursuant to IFRS for former members of
the Board of Management or their surviving dependants
amounted to €58.4m {57.9m) as at 31 December 2005.

Total remuneration of the Supervisory Board

The remuneration of the Supervisory Board was restruc-
tured by resolution of the 2005 Annual General Meeting to
take account of the increased demands placed on Super-
visory Board members in connection with the corporate
governance discussion concerning transparent company
management. At the same time, the change counters
reservations about linking the performance-oriented remu-
neration component to the dividend. The new remuner-
ation structure will apply for the firsttime to the business
year 2005 and provides for a fixed remuneration component
of €45,000 (instead of the previous €25,000) and a variable
result-related {instead of dividend-related) remuneration
component. The muitipliers for calculating the fixed and
variabie remuneration of the Chairman of the Supervisory
Board and Deputy Chairman remain unchanged. The add-
itional remuneration for work on committees is based on
the fixed remuneration only.

By significantly increasing the fixed remuneration, we
ensure that in economically difficult times in which greater
demands are made of the Supervisory Board, its overall
remuneration remains appropriate and is less dependent
on Company performance.

The dividend-related remuneration paid previously had
come in for increasing criticism, in particular because the
Supervisory Board could indirectly influence its compensa-
tion through the dividend proposal at the Annual General
Meeting. The result-related annual remuneration is based
on the undiluted earnings per share from continuing oper-
ations, as shown in the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (1FRS): each Supervisory Board member
receives €4,500 for each full euro by which earnings per
share exceed €4, but a maximum of €36,000.

The work of Supervisory Board members on the commit-
tees has gained in significance and weight in the light of
increased corporate governance requirements. The higher
fixed remuneration component and the use of only the
fixed remuneration as the basis for calculating the commit-
tee remuneration takes account of the consistently high



|

importance of the committee work, regard|ess of corporate
performance and the economic situation. We thus comply
with the recommendation of the German ¢orporate Gover-
nance Code for committee remuneration relating to chair-
manship and membership of committees.’

. J
The overall remuneration for each Supervisory Board

member is limited to two-and-a-half times “the fixed remu-
neration, thus ensuring that the overali rerhuneration of
individual Supervisory Board members rer\\nains appropri-
ate even if further committees are set up.
Remuneration of Supervisary Board members in the busi-
ness year 2005 in accordance with Article 1‘5 of the Articles
of AssociationV is as follows: E

|

"

There were no pension commitments for former members
of the Supervisory Board or their surviving dependants.

Advances and loans

The members of the Supervisory Board and Board of Man-
agement did not receive any cash advances or loans in the
year under review. Nor were there any notifiable transac-
tions between Board members and the Munich Re Group.

Share trading and shares held by members of the Board of
Management and the Supervisory Board

No acquisition or sales transactions notifiable under Sec-
tion 15a of the German Securities Trading Act had occurred
up to the end of the business year 2005. The total number
of Munich Re shares held by all members of the Board of
Management and Supervisory Board amount to less than
1% of the shares issued by the Company.

Femuneration of Supervisory 3oard membsrs in {he business year 20C5 in accordance with Article 18 of the Articles of
Assccigliontine
Fixed remuneration Result-
related
remuner-
ation3
Name Annual For Annual Total
committee
work?
Dr. Schinzler, Chairman 90,000.00  66,250.00  63,000.00 219,250.00
Bach, Deputy Chairman 67,600.00 22,500.00 47,250.00 137,250.00
Prof.Dr. Kagermann 45,000.00 19,250.00  31,500.00  95,750.00
Dr. Pischetsrieder 45,000.00  22,500.00 31,500.00  99,000.00
Dr. Schmidt 45,000.00  43,750.00  31,500.00 112,500.00%4
Appel 45,000.00 21,250.00  31,500.00  97,750.00
Stogbauer 45,000.00 21,250.00 31,500.00  97750.00
SRl 45,000.00  11,250.00 31,500.00  87,750.00

All other members of the Supervisory Board (Prof. Dr. Markl, Mayrhuber, Prof. Van Miert, Prof. Dr. v. Pierer, Dr. Sommer, Emmert, Dr. JanRBen, Michl,
Muiler, Dr. Schimetschek, V) each received total remuneration of €76,500 (fixed remuneration of €45,000 and dividend-related remuneration? of €31,500).

1 Plus turnover tax in each case, in accordance with Article 15 para. & of the Articles of Association.
2{n the case of members of the Audit Committee, the amount includes attendance fees in accordance with Article 15 para. 4 of the Articles of Association.

3 Based on the earnings per share of €11.70.

4 After capping in accordance with Article 15 para. 5 of the Articles of Association.

|
|
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Prospects

Adherence to “profitability before growth” strategy
New target: Return on risk-adjusted capital (RORAC) of 15%

There is a growing tendency among some capital market
players to sue companies in connection with statements
they have published on future development, a trend that
involves considerable loss potential for the companies
concerned and for their other shareholders. This practice
inevitably affects transparency, as many companies tend
to be reluctant about the information they give on future
business performance and disclose only what is required
by law.

For this reason, we wish to emphasise the following: pre-
dictions about the forthcoming deveiopment of our Group
are based primarily on planning figures, forecasts and
expectations. Consequently, the following assessment of
the Munich Re Group’s development merely reflects our
assumptions and views. It follows that we cannot accept
any responsibility or liability in the event that they are not
realised in part orin full.

For information on the risks emanating from our business,
please consult pages 123 ff.

Overview

In primary insurance and reinsurance, we will adhere to
our “profitability before growth” strategy in the years to
come.

In reinsurance, we will continue to focus on adequate
prices and wordings. There is no alternative to profitable
underwriting and active risk diversification. It is the only
way we can create added value for our shareholders and
clients alike. .

Primary insurance, especially the life and health segment,
is going through a period of change. The public’s need for
care and provision is rising and increasingly needs to be
funded privately, as state social security systems through-
out Europe are being scaled back. This opens up major
opportunities in the medium and long term for our life,
health and personal accident insurers. The changes in the
legal parameters already underway or still in the pipeline -
e.g. the fiscal treatment of life insurance or the debate on a
reform of the German state health insurance system -
entail certain risks. With their products, however, our com-
panies are well prepared for the future.
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Our successful performance in 2005 and the gratifying
trend of the past two years are proof that we are on the
right track with our strictly profit-based corporate policy.
The exceptionally high burden from natural catastrophes
and the reserve strengthening at American Re on the one
hand and an especially good investment result on the
other may tend to mask the fact that we actually slightly
exceeded our target by achieving a profit for the year of
over €2.7bn and a return on equity of 12.3% in 2005. As
specified in the section “What we aim to achieve”, our
targets for 2006 have been developed further, taking into
account the extent of the risks we assume. The goal for the
Group is a return on risk-adjusted capital (RORAC) of 156%
which, on the basis of our situation at the turn of the year
2005/2006, is equivalent to a consolidated profit for the
year of between €2.6bn and €2.8bn. Details on our corpo-
rate steering systems and in particular on our new RORAC
target figure are provided on page 46ff.

We remain committed to active capital management and a
shareholder-friendly dividend policy. The Board of Manage-
ment and Supervisory Board will propose at the Annual
General Meeting that the dividend per share be increased
by €1.10 t0 €3.10, thus enabling our shareholders to partici-
pate in Munich Re’s good result.

Economic parameters

Macroeconomic parameters and the situation in the capital
markets are likely to be somewhat less positive in the com-
ing year. In the year-end renewais of reinsurance treaties,
risks affected by last year’s natural catastrophes saw some
substantial price increases. Prices, terms and conditions
for other business generally continued to be stable. It
remains in the common interests of end-clients, primary
insurers and reinsurers alike that we focus on sustained
risk-adequate prices, terms and conditions, as was again
illustrated by the loss events in 2005.



Economy ‘

The moderate slowdown of the global ecohomy is likely to
continue in the course of 2006. In the USA, higher interest
rates are curbing consumer and investmeﬁt activity. In
addition, oil prices are unlikely to decline significantly in
the foreseeable future, given the turbulent political situ-
ation in the Persian Gulf. The substantial deficits in the us
current account and fiscal budget could alsjo have a nega-
tive impact on the exchange rate of the Us dollar and thus
on economic development. \

The Japanese economy will in all Iikelihooti:l recover further
in 2006, albeit with a somewhat lower growth rate. in add-
ition, we expect a marginally positive rate of increase in
prices, which means the almost seven-year‘l deflation
would be overcome. !

In contrast to the general trend of the globa}l economy,
there are indications of a slight economic recovery in the
eurozone. Besides exports, which have thus far acted as
the stimulator for expansion, a moderate rise in domestic
demand should increasingly do its part to revive the econ-
omy. Nevertheless, growth will still lag behind that of the
USA. Within Europe, Germany looks set to achieve only
below-average growth again. For the United Kingdom, we
anticipate further subdued economic activity.

The slight decrease in global dynamics will probably even
make itself felt in the emerging markets. Growth should
decelerate somewhat in most regions, including Latin
America. The strangly export-oriented Asian markets in
particular are likely to suffer from the anticipated slowdown
in the USA and China. In central and eastern Europe, by
contrast, economic momentum should remain relatively
strong.

Capital markets ‘

We assume that the expected gradual cooling of the global
economy will mean that upward movement on the stock
markets will tend to be modest. Despite interest-rate
increases by a number of central banks, theré seemsto be
only limited scope for markedly higher long-term yields in
the bond markets. There is still validity in the arguments
that price-increase rates in the global econon‘a‘y will continue

to decline (disinflation). These include high productivity
growth and increased competition resulting from the
ongoing trend towards globalisation, so that the risk of
inflation will remain limited.

Insurance industry

If global dynamics slow down gradually as expected in
2006, growth of the global insurance industry is likely to be
subdued. But demand for insurance cover should remain
high, above all in the emerging markets. Private provision
continues to be a major issue in the industrial nations and,
at least in the medium term, its effect on the demand for
life, health and personal accident insurance products
should be positive. :

The German economy will probably provide only weak
impulses for property-casualty insurance in 2006. How-
ever, the concept of private provision should come more
strongly to the fore in the medium to long term, not only in
Germany but also in many other industrial nations, given
that state social security systems are increasingly reaching
their limits because of demographic trends. Private health
insurance is likely to profit from this environment, although
the political risks remain. Only by strengthening, not weak-
ening, private provision and by expanding its funding basis
can Germany'’s structural problems be solved in the long
term.

On the reinsurance markets, it will he impaortant to under-
line the need for risk-adequate prices, terms and conditions
in the course of the year. We reckon with keener competi-
tion but not with a drastic decline in prices.

Risks

The economic prospects are subject to certain impaonder-
ables such as geopalitical threats — in particular in the
Middle East and the Gulf region - and the risk of major new
terrorist attacks. Other major risks are the global economic
imbalances, especially the substantial deficit in the us
budget and current account deficit, which could weaken the
us dollar and cause interest rates there to rise —creating a
burden for Europe’s economic situation. Furthermore, it is
difficult to predict how energy prices will develop.

a1n




Uncertainties facing the insurance industry are macro-
economic and political risks, including sociopolitical de-
velopments such as fiscal policy and a possible reform of
the German health insurance system. The significance of
potlitical influences has steadily increased in recent years
and is making business management prognoses more
difficult. There are regulatory risks too as supervisory regu-
lations undergo revision woridwide and requirements for
reporting, capitalisation and even fundamental assess-
ment of individual types of business change.

Markets continue to be subject to the risk that surprisingly
intense competition - whether from new or established
providers ~ may have a negative impact on the insurance
cycle. A clear focus on profitability before growth, and
efficiency of management systems, will remain crucial for
success.

Development of the Munich Re Group

Relnsurance

As expected, the renewals at 1 January 2006, which in-
volved approximately 66% of our property-casualty busi-
ness, went well. In property reinsurance and offshore
energy business, prices for natural catastrophe covers

in some cases rose significantly in the wake of the 2005
hurricane season, with especially steep increases for
loss-affected treaties and the coastal regions of the USA
and the Caribbean.

We do not anticipate any shortages in reinsurance cap-
acity. On the contrary, the attractive price levels are likely
to give rise to greater competition from new reinsurers
specialised in stop-loss covers.

In classes of business and markets not directly affected
by catastrophe losses, prices, terms and conditions have
largely remained stable at a high level, with a slight
upward trend.

For the forthcoming renewais on 1 Aprif 2006 (Japan and
Korea) and 1 July 2006 (parts of the Us market, Australia
and Latin America), we expect a similarly stable environ-
ment to that prevailing on 1 January 2006.

The reinsurance of natural hazards will continue to be a
significant part of our business. With Atlantic cyclones
becoming potentially more frequent and maore extreme,
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we must be prepared for further high burdens in future.
However, we consider these risks insurable, provided
prices, terms and conditions remain commensurate with
the risk.

In life reinsurance, the strong growth of the past few years
is unlikely to be repeated. We expect that premium rates
will remain stable or rise slightly. At present, a host of
opportunities for growth in various business models is
opening up worldwide in the health segment. To tap these
opportunities in primary insurance and reinsurance,
Munich Re and DKv will work together more closely in
specific foreign markets.

Provided there are no strong shifts in exchange rates, rein-
surance should record gross premiums of between €22bn
and €23bn overall in 2006, which is roughly equivalent to
the previous year’s level. We expect a combined ratio of
less than 97% in property-casualty and health reinsurance.
Altogether, we anticipate a profit for the year in reinsur-
ance inthe range of €2.1~2.3bn.

Primary insurance

Recent developments in the individual segments are likely
to continue in the next few years: in life insurance, we
consider that there will be increased demand for private-
provision products. The trends towards pension insurance
products will probably be maintained. On top of this, we
expect a further rise in the sale of “Riester” pension prod-
ucts qualifying for subsidisation. With demand for private
provision growing, sales of supplementary health insur-
ances should continue to develop positively. It may be
assumed that the ongoing political debate about a restruc-
turing of the German heaith insurance system wili fead to
further uncertainty in the area of comprehensive health
cover in 2006. Even if the ramifications of such reforms are
not yet foreseeable, the uncertainty is curbing the dynamics
that would normally be present in this segment.

In the property-casuaity segment, overall economic devel-
opment will again not provide any strong impulses. For
this reason and because of consistent adherence to our
profit-oriented underwriting policy, our premium volume
will not experience more than a modest rise. In other words,
we are prepared to sacrifice premium volume for the sake
of profit. This will be most significant in the fiercely com-
petitive German motor insurance market.



In legal expenses insurance, we see medidm-term oppor-
tunities in the field of legal advice, which is increasingly
being offered as a supplement to purely financial cover-
age. ‘\

Allin all, we expect gross premiums written for 2006 to
total between €16.5bn and €17.0bn in priméry insurance,
which in addition to ERGO Insurance Group essentially
comprises Europaische Reiseversicherung and the Watkins
Syndicate. Adjusted for the sale of the Karlsruher Insur-
ance Group, our premium income is therefore likely to
remain stable. At the same time, we assum“e that the com-
bined ratio will remain below 95%. We aim fto achieve a
profit for the year in the range of €600m to \\€700m.

Asset managemaent

The current investment environment is in ajpronounced
low-interest-rate phase, the end of which is'still notin
sight. For this reason, the primary insurers i\n the Munich
Re Group in particular have extended the terms of their
fixed-interest securities in recent years to benefit from the
higher interest rates. If interest rates remain low, however,
fixed-interest securities (which make up the|lion’s share of
our investments) will not earn the same regular income as
in previous years. \

We strongly gear the composition of our inv\‘estment port-
folio to the structure of our liabilities as well|as reserves,
and this asset-liability management also takes into account
the guarantees and options granted to policyholders in our
life insurance business. With our clients and\;shareholders
in mind, we have hedged against sustained low-interest
scenarios using interest-rate derivatives in arder to secure
the interest rates guaranteed on savings pre‘miums.

If interest rates were to rise, we would suffer price losses

in our fixed-interest securities: in the case of the fixed-
interest securities accounted for at market value, this would
cause our equity to decrease. We consider th“e resultant
hazards to be low, in particular since these assets match fong-
term liabilities that would likewise fall in vallie economic-
ally even though their carrying amount in acc\(ordance with
the valid accounting rules would not decrease.

The prices of European and Us shares developed positively
in the past three years, although the volatility of the stock
markets has increased since mid-2005. Given the risks
described, we will, if required, further reduce our equity
exposure, currently at 13.4% of total investments on a
market-value basis, after taking hedging transactions into
account.

In 2005, we consistently pursued our strategy of reducing
the historically evolved concentration of our investments
in the German financial services sector and will continue to
actively diversify our investment risks.

By achieving a 5.9% return on investment in the past busi-
ness year, we again exceeded our target of 4.5%. For the
coming year, we do not think comparably high realised
capital gains will be possible, and therefore aim for a 4.5%
target for our Group companies’ investments. This would
amount to an investment result in the range of €7.8-8.0bn
{which will be credited to the segment results in primary
insurance and reinsurance).

MEAG intends to selectively extend business with private
and institutional investors. It will also offer more guaran-
teed and portfolio protection products to meet investors’
increased need for more security. Private provision for old
age continues to be a crucial topic. Here, MEAG is planning
to market new retail products in the form of special savings
plans to support private provision.

Result and premium of the Munich Re Group

If exchange rates remain steady, we expect gross pre-
miums written for 2006 in primary insurance and reinsur-
ance to total between €37bn and €38bn (consolidated) and
thus to attain last year's level, adjusted for the sale of the
Karlsruher Insurance Group. Proceeding on the basis of
statistically expectable claims experience, we project a
combined ratio of less than 97% in property-casualty and
health reinsurance and of less than 95% in property-casualty
primary insurance. In life primary and reinsurance business
and in health primary insurance, we aim to achieve EEV
earnings in the range of 8-9%, in relation to the value of the




business in force at the beginning of the year. In the invest-
ment sector, we anticipate a result equivalent to 4.5% of the
average market values of the investments.

Overall, our goal for the business year 2006 is a return on
risk-adjusted capital (RORAC) of 15%, which on the basis of
our situation at the turn of the year 2005/20086, is equivalent
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to a consolidated profit for the year of between €2.6bn and
€2.8bn.

These are ambitious yet achievable goals. Our sharehold-

ers will continue to participate in Munich Re’s success: for

the coming business years we plan to pay out at least 25%

of the IFRS consolidated result as dividends.
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Recent years have shown that the Munich Re Group’s risk
landscape can change quickly and withoutl;warning, owing
to a wide range of events and influences. Wé are constantly
refining the tools with which we monitor ana manage risks,
so that in our view they have now reached l? high degree of
sophistication. Whilst we are in a position to adequately
assess risk situations, the growing comple*ity and dyna-
mism of the environment in which we operate means that
there are natural limits. There cannot - and\‘never will be -
absolute security when it comes to identifying risks at an
early stage, measuring them sufficiently, or correctty esti-
mating their real hazard potential. This was'clearly shown
last year by the unexpectedly high losses w%: incurred from
Hurricane Katrina. |
The risk report is based on German Accounting Standard
DRS 5—20. In accordance with IFRS 4, Insurar‘;ce Contracts, it
is supplemented by “Disclosures on the uncertainties of
future cash flows from insurance contracts”|. Following a
short description of the functions, organisatibn and import-
ant tools of risk monitoring and control, we focus onthe
main risks and key risk management measures. At the end
of the report, we evaluate the risk position of the Munich

Re Group as a whole. ‘

1

Functions, organisation and important ﬂ@@ﬂé

We adopt a holistic risk management approach, the main
objective of which is to analyse and control t“he interde-
pendencies between risks on the asset and liability sides,
and between strategic and operational risks.\‘This entails
considering economic parameters as well as“the require-
ments and expectations of clients, shareholders, super-
visory authorities and rating agencies. !

By separating accountability and monitoring\‘, we ensure
the effective management of our risks. The fuﬁctions and
responsibilities of all participants — be they mfembers of
the Board of Management, executives, decentralised or
central risk cantrollers or risk managers — are¥ clearly
defined. ‘\‘

The Board of Management is responsible for the Group-
wide, cross-divisional planning, steering and\controlling
of the risk landscape as a whole. It has to be consulted

regarding measures that may appreciably aiter the com-
position of the risk capital and also where there are cross-
divisional concentrations or loss scenarios, significant
operational risks and operational measures or risks that
may have a negative impact on the Munich Re Group's
reputation. The tasks that are the preserve of the Board of
Management and its committees include the following:
~ Defining an investment portfolio which synchronises as
closely as possible with fluctuations in the value of
underwriting provisions and liabilities and on the basis
of which investment opportunities and risks can be
specifically identified
— Determining the Munich Re Group’s risk capital
— Deciding on optimisations of the net underwriting
portfolio
—- Selecting suitable measures to reduce accumulations
across the balance sheet where necessary
~ Ensuring that supervisory requirements for risk
management are met
In the Munich Re Group, integrated Risk Management,
headed by the Chief Risk Officer, is centrally responsible
tor preparing these Board decisions and for identifying,
evaluating, steering, monitoring and communicating risks
on the asset and liability sides. At the beginning of 20086,
Central Risk Controlling and important functions (such as
asset-liability management, the control of risk accumula-
tions across the balance sheet and capital modelling) were
integrated into this unit. We manage business portfolios
by assigning return expectations, derived from the size of
the risks assumed, to individual business activities. Our
internal risk model plays a central role here. We use it to
analyse how certain risk scenarios affect the results of the
segments life and heaith, property-casualty and the invest-
ments of the reinsurance group. We determine our eco-
nomic capital on this basis so that we would be able to
absorb two successive annual losses of a size only to be
expected every 100 years. In the next step, this capital is
allocated proportionately to the individual divisional units
on a proportional basis in line with the volatility of their
business activities. The procedure we use in the primary
insurance group is similar, but substantially affected by




other steering aspects, as supervisory restrictions, clients’
participation in surplus and accounting play a greater role
in that field of business.

in this way, we provide incentives to efficiently evaluate
risks. Mismatched risks between assets and liabilities, for
example, are significantly diminished by means of appro-
priate investment and hedging strategies, thus reducing
the risk capital required while improving capital productiv-
ity.

Through our Central Risk Controlling unit, we conduct risk
assessments each quarter using a standardised risk ques-
tionnaire and, together with the experts, examine the rele-
vant risks, thus evaluating the risk situation holistically. We
compare the findings with our operative corporate plan-
ning. Where risks or hazards suddenly emerge, we perform
ad-hoc surveys. The staff of Central Risk Controlling inform
the Board of Management — on the basis of the information
from the risk assessment — about the current risk situation
and check measures relating to risk policy, proposing new
ones where necessary. Central risk management/control-
ling sets standards and develops methods and tocls as a
basis for consistent Group-wide risk management. The
decentralised risk controllers in the units throughout the
Group adapt these to the current situation when necessary.
In day-to-day business, our executives are responsible for
systematically handling individual risks in insurance and
reinsurance. They identify, analyse, manage and monitor
the risks on an ongoing basis with support from the decen-
tralised risk controliers. The basis for handling risks is
determined by management requirements and decisions
on risk tolerance, which are defined by the Group’s risk
strategy and risk policy, and geared to capitalisation as
well as liquidity. Before we assume underwriting liabilities,
far instance, we examine what claims burdens can be
borne or are still tolerable in the event of catastrophes. We
also use simulations of pre-defined catastrophe scenarios
to ensure that extremely improbable events are also con-
sidered.
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The Munich Re Group complies both with the German Law
on Corporate Control and Transparency (KonTraG) and
with local regulations on risk management in the different
countries in which it operates. Our risk early-warning sys-
tem is regularly examined independently, both by internal
auditing units at the individual Group companies and by
the external auditor as part of the annual audit.

Main underwriting risks

One of the risks relevant for insurance business is the risk
of change, meaning how changes in risk parameters and
unforeseen factors may result in unexpectedly large claims.
Often the risk of change coincides with the risk of random
fluctuations, making it more difficult to identify and quan-
tify the risk potential. For instance, the exceptional hurricane
seasons in 2004 and 2005, with greater storm frequencies
and intensities, led to record losses in Florida and the Gulf
of Mexico. With a market loss estimated at US$ 45bn,
Hurricane Katrina caused the largest insured loss in insur-
ance history. Such increased exposures, which are attribut-
able to the natural climate cycle on the one hand {current
warm phase, see page 16) and anthropogenic climate
change on the other, look set to continue in the next few
years. At the same time, we are witnessing an increasing
regional concentration of insured values, especially in
highly exposed flood-prone regions. Extensive know-how,
well-maintained data resources and underwriting based
on this information are imperative for determining risk-ad-
equate prices, terms and conditions in these circumstances.
Prior to the hurricanes of the last two years, we had essen-
tially observed the weather phenomena correctly, foresee-
ing the risks from windstorms, and had largely taken them
into account in our models. What we underestimated,
however, was the extent of the storm surges that could
occur with the cyclones, as well as the price increases
resulting from shortages of loss inspectors and adjusters,
craftsmen and building materials after severe natural
catastrophes. Particularly the latter effect was exacerbated
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by the subsequent Hurricanes Rita and Wilma, which
inflated the costs for Katrina. Therefore the‘losses from
Hurricane Katrina were significantly higherithan we would
have expected on the basis of our models for a hurricane
of comparable strength. From such experience, current
geoscientific research, far-reaching proprieiary loss analy-
ses and models, and benchmarking of our models against
external calculations, our Geo Risks Resear‘c‘:h Unit obtains
the necessary findings used in underwriting.

The interaction of risks of change and risk concentrations
may lead to considerable loss potential. This not only
involves the regional concentrations descril‘;ed above but
can also occur within a class of business or across several
classes (owing to events like natural catastrophes, pan-
demics or terrorist attacks). :

In addition, scientific and technological innovations such
as new products or production methods reshlt inindustry
risk concentrations. In the pharmaceutical sector, for ex-
ample, new products can simultaneously give rise to losses
in pharmaceutical product liability and professional indem-
nity, possibly also due to exposures from other lines of
insurance, thus resulting in very large losses. This concen-
tration effect is intensified by socio-political \Frends like
increased litigiousness. !

Large losses in industry may also impact ourl investment
portfolio if the firms affected suffer a fall in tﬁe prices of
their shares or bonds. We consistently control the relevant
accumulation risks across the balance sheet as far as pos-
sible, so that the resulting residual risk remains within the
risk tolerance limits defined by managementi. The close
link between knowledge management and risk manage-

ment at Munich Re is an advantage in this re%pect, asis
|

Combined retio for the last ten years

the analysis of historic major losses. These provide valu-
able pointers for identifying the respective risk drivers and
incorparating them as parameters to be monitored in
future in a suitable early-warning system.

The potential effects of the risk of change influence both our
premium calculations and our reserves. Through selective
underwriting, close collaboration with clients in claims
handling and various methods for calculating appropriate
claims reserves, we endeavour to minimise balance sheet
risks emanating from expenses that can often drastically
increase many years after the losses occur. Nevertheless,
in 2005 we had to once again substantially strengthen

the claims reserves of our subsidiary American Re for long-
past underwriting and accident years. By generally select-
ing the highest indexed reserve amounts in each case from
the results of differently oriented calculations, we are con-
fident that we have drawn a line under the problems of the
past years with a reserve strengthening of uss 1.6bn. Only
with liabilities for asbestos-related diseases is the degree
of uncertainty still high: given the unpredictability of court
decisions, the scope for estimation is very broad indeed.
But we are proceeding on the assumption that here, too,
the reserves we have posted are adequate.

The notes to the consolidated financial statements include
a differentiated analysis of the factors influencing the under-
writing provisions in property-casualty insurance, such as
estimating claims expenditure. This presentation is in com-
pliance with IFRS 4 accounting requirements.

In addition to other key indicators, combined ratios are
important for us in monitoring the premium/claims risk in
non-life (re)insurance (cf. page 47 ff.).

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
Including natural catastrophes 110.5 98.9 96.7 122.4* 135.1° 115.3 118.9 105.7 100.0 98.3
Excluding natural catastrophes 92.8 94.4 95.1 119.1™ 133.6" 113.3 108.2 101.7 99.1 98.2

“Thereof World Trade Center and reserve strengthening at American Re: 22.4%.
“*Thereof World Trade Center and reserve strengthening at American Re: 15.9%.




In life insurance and reinsurance, biometric, lapse and
interest-guarantee risks are especially relevant. The calcu-
lation of underwriting provisions is based on “bhiometric”
actuarial assumptions, i.e. on assumptions with regard to
mortality and disablement, which also take future trends
into account. In primary insurance, the assumptions are
determined by the requirements of the supervisory author-
ities or institutes of actuaries, depending on the specific
nationai regulations, and include appropriate safety mar-
gins.

In reinsurance, we calculate the biometric risk mainly on
the basis of tables relating to mortality and claims develop-
ment, published by national actuarial associations. These
tables are modified in accordance with the termination
rates observed in the reinsured portfolios. Lapse risks can
be reduced in insurance and reinsurance by means of suit-
able product and contract design. We estimate the residual
lapse risk by means of product-specific portfolio analyses
and take this into account in our pricing.

As far as the interest-guarantee risk in primary insurance is
concerned, the guaranteed actuarial interest rate applic-
able atthe time a policy is effected is used in calculating
the actuarial reserve for that policy. Should capitat market
interest rates fall to a very low fevel for a prolonged period,
our life, health and personal accident insurers might not be
able to earn the required guaranteed interest rate.

In reinsurance, we exclude the interest-guarantee risk in
many cases through suitable treaty design. Furthermore,
as a matter of principle, we use prudent assumptions
regarding the probable interest rate when fixing the actu-
arial interest rate in premium and reserve calculations.

The notes to the consalidated financial statements include
a differentiated analysis of how the parameters determin-
ing the underwriting items of the balance sheet affect the
risks in life insurance and reinsurance. This presentation is
in compliance with IFRS 4 accounting requirements.

Control measures for underwriting risks

The selective acceptance of risks in primary insurance and
reinsurance business is at the core of the Munich Re Group's
business model. As a global reinsurer, we can systematic-
ally diversify our portfolio through the broadest possible
mix and spread of individual risks, thus significantly re-
ducing the volatility of total underwriting payments and
substantially increasing the value added by all divisional
units.

To ensure optimal diversification of our portfolio, we use a
balanced range of measures, of which risk measurement is
a central prerequisite for the controlled management of
our portfolio. Risk measurement is based on our internal
risk model (see page 125), with which we analyse effects of
diversification and concentration.

The diversification approach has its limits, however, where
systematic effects such as fluctuations in interest rates,
exchange rates and inflation impact a majority of the treaties
or even whole classes in equal measure, so that an overall
balance within the portfolio cannot be achieved. To control
such systemic risks, we use asset-liability management,
which simultaneously monitors investments, underwriting
provisions and other liabilities. its aim is to synchronise
fluctuations in the value of assets with those in the value of
underwriting provisions and other liabilities, thus stabilis-
ing corporate value. The section “Financial situation” deals
with this topic in greater detail.

Since the Group’s overall risk profile can be broken down
into its individual components, we can measure the effects
of significant risks. This allows us to accept risks on the
basis of conscious economic decisions. In accordance with
the principles of value-based management, capital in bath
insurance and reinsurance is only made available at con-
ditions that promise an appropriate return. Thanks to the
regular evaluation provided by the internal risk model, we
are in a position to respond promptly to any errors identi-
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fied, to changes in individual parameters or in our portfolio
composition and to resultant alterations inour overall risk
situation, by taking suitable action. \

For events with low occurrence probabilitiés but poten-
tially high severity, we devise scenarios wiﬁh which we test
the robustness of our portfolio on both the asset and liabil-
ity sides. Thus, for example, we have subje\cted our current
life insurance portfolio to a stress test involv‘ing a pandemic
scenario, in order to establish the effect of c“hanges in mor-
tality rates, taking this into account in determining the risk
capital. \

In addition to risk measurement, we use the~ following tools
for controlling risks, including concentration effects.
Binding underwriting guidelines and limits and clear under-
writing authorities precisely regulate who is authorised
and accountable for concluding insurance and reinsurance
contracts in the Munich Re Group and at what conditions.
We regularly check compliance with these g?uidelines and
closely observe developments in the glabal and local mar-
kets, reacting where necessary with appropriate measures
that are translated without delay into underWriting guide-
lines if required. As a general rule, our treaties and original
business ceded to us contain clear liability limits {(excep-
tion: unlimited motor liability cover, which still exists in
certain markets). ‘

Reinsurers assume very large liabilities for earthquake and
windstorm losses, and to a lesser extent for hailstorm and
flood risks, which often affect many clients afc the same
time. We monitor and control our liabilities by means of
established accumulation assessment and control systems
and a clearing process. This preventive risk-c“ontrolling
measure, with which we limit concentrations, was intro-
duced many years ago for the hazards ear‘chduake and
windstorm in the form of accumulation budgets for the
individual reinsurance companies of the Munich Re Group.
Although we regularly check the loss scenarios underlying
the accumulation budgets, we are nevertheless not immune
to misestimation. Thus the effects of Hurricane Katrina
significantly exceeded our expectations with \regard toa
natural catastrophe of this type and intensity.‘\

An excellent toal for risk prevention, and thus for risk con-
trolling, is careful reserving to ensure that sufficient funds
are available to cover future IBNR claims - losses which
have been incurred but not yet reported or not reported
enough, and have not yet been settied. Therefore, using
recognised underwriting methods, we set up appropriate
provisions for IBNR losses and for known claims (case
reserves). In addition, where required under national rules
of insurance supervision and accounting, we establish pro-
visions for fluctuations in claims experience, which are
recognised as part of equity under IFRS rules. Further infor-
mation on how claims reserves are posted is provided in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Another important risk control measure in the field of
underwriting is the transfer of a portion of cur risks to third
parties via external reinsurance and retrocession. Most of
our companies have intra-Group and external reinsurance
and retrocession cover. The core component is an accumu-
lation excess-of-loss cover placed on the international rein-
surance market, which provides protection against losses
from natural catastrophes. This enabled us, for instance, to
reduce the burdens from Katrina by approximately €400m.
In addition, Munich Re is the sponsor and potential benefi-
ciary of a catastrophe bond for windstorms in the UK, the
Netherlands, Belgium and Germany. Its term began in mid-
November 2005 and will end on 31 March 2009. As a result,
we have additional protection from the capital markets for
almost four years of seasonal windstorm activities and, if
the specifically defined criteria are met, will receive pay-
ments totalling €110m.

Risks from defaults on receivables from underwriting
business

6.4% of all our receivables on underwriting business at the
balance sheet date were outstanding for more than 90 days.
The average default rate of the last three years amounts to
2.8%.
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As at 31 December 2005, our accounts receivable on ceded
business were split between the following ratings (based
on those of Standard & Poor’s):

Reling of accounts receivable

AAA 52.9%
AA 23.5%
A 9.8%
BBB or lower 1.6%

12.2% of our accounts receivable were from companies
without an external rating.

Main investment risks

The market value of our fixed-interest securities as at

31 December 2005 totalled €100.6bn, representing 56.0% of
the market value of the Munich Re Group’s overall invest-
ments. These securities thus make up the largest portion of
our investments available for sale and our investments
held to maturity in accordance with asset-liability-manage-
ment criteria.

Fixed-interest investments are exposed to an interest-rate
risk. Falling interest rates result in increases in the market
value of fixed-interest securities, and rising interest rates
to reductions in their market value. In order to earn higher
regular income from such investments, the primary insur-
ers in the Munich Re Group gave preference in 2005 to
securities with longer terms. Looked at only in relation to
the portfolio of fixed-interest securities, this increases the
risk of losses in market value. Besides this, the low inter-
est-rate level leads to a reduction in the difference between
the interest rates guaranteed by our life insurers and the
reinvestment return. in 2005, we countered the risk of a
possible further decline in investment returns with inter-
est-rate derivatives that enable free funds to be invested
by the major life insurers in our Group in the future at a
guaranteed interest-rate level already fixed today. Since
the derivative financial instruments are measured at mar-
ket value on the respective balance sheet dates and any
changes in value are recognised in the income statement,
strong interest-rate movements can give rise to major
fluctuations in value.
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The market value of our equity investments, including par-
ticipating interests, amounted to €25.1bn at 31 December
2005. We aim to spread equity risks by means of system-
atic diversification in different sectors and regions. In the
year under review, companies in the Munich Re Group also
made use of derivative financial instruments for hedging
purposes. We continued to systematically reduce the his-
torically evolved overweight of our equity investments in
the banking and insurance sectors. For example, we cut
back our stakes in the Allianz Group and in Commerzbank
to under 5% and completely sold our shares in BHW Hold-
ing. The Munich Re Group accepted UniCredit’s exchange
offer for their shares in the HvB Group. After the exchange,
we sold a portion of the shares and now hold a stake of
less than 5% in UniCredit. We thus further reduced our
concentration risks.

Besides addressing the internal structure of our equity
portfolio, we also constantly review the percentage of
equities in our overall portfolio. As at 31 December 2005,
on a market value basis and taking hedging transactions
into account, our ratio of equities to total investments
amounted to approximately 13.4% (31 December 2004:
13.4%).

Our real estate holdings round off our investment portfolio
from the return and risk point of view. The market value of
our real estate, including buildings on land owned by third
parties, amounted to €7.1bn at 31 December 2005. Owing to
losses in value, various items had to be written down to
their recoverable amount in the period under review.
Impairment losses and depreciation on the overall port-
folio totalled €446m.

The Munich Re Group's reinsurance business is geared to
the global market. The investments of Group companies
that write a substantial part of their business in foreign
currencies are subject to currency risks, as exchange rates
fluctuate against the euro. However, these risks are bal-
anced by partially similar changes in value among the
liabilities.

The following sensitivity analyses for market-price risks
serve to estimate potentiai changes in the value of invest-
ments under hypothetically possible market scenarios. The
basis for the review are the investments of the Munich Re
Group at 31 December 2005,
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The changes in share price assumed in these scenarios,

+10% and £20% respectively, a corresponding shift in the

interest rate curve of #100

and £200 basis points (BP)

respectively, and a fluctuation in exchange rates of £10%,

would produce the followi
of the investments:

ng changes in thz“a market value
|
|

Mizrket srice risk - Share prices

Change in share prices

Change in market value
of investments
sensitive to share prices

Increase of 20% +£4.926bn

Increase of 10% +£2.448bn

Decrease of 10% -€2.419bn

Decrease of 20% ~€4.808bn

Market values

at 31 December 2005 €26.006bn

|

Mearket orice risk - interest rates

Change in interest rates

Change in market value
of investments
sensitive to share prices

Increase of 200 BP -€12.905bn
Increase of 100 BP -€7.210bn
Decrease of 100 BP +€£8.724bn
Decrease of 200 8P +£18.962bn
Market vaiues

at 31 December 2005 €129.198bn

Viarket price risk— Exchange rates

Change in exchange rates

Change in market value
of investments
sensitive to share prices

Increase of 10% +€4.664bn
Decrease of 10% —€4.664hn
Market values

at 31 December 2005 €46.635bn

\

The changes in market value shown in the table can only
be taken as rough indicators of actual market value losses

l

that might occur in the future, as they do not qonsider any
counteractive measures. Moreover, the effects on the
Group’s annual result and equity would be reduced as a
consequence of policyholders’ shares and the‘ltax implica-

tions.

\

Credit assessment is of central importance for the manage-
ment of credit risks relating to fixed-interest securities. The
main factor here is the quality of the issuer or the respect-
ive issue, which is primarily reflected - according to the
investment principles of the Munich Re Group - in the rat-
ings of international rating agencies: 94.3% of our invest-
ments in fixed-interest securities at 31 December 2005 had
arating of A or better {according to Standard & Poor's rat-
ing classification). The majority of fixed-interest securities
in our portfolio have been issued by governments or banks
with excellent ratings or top security, e.g. German govern-
ment bonds, US Treasuries, or mortgage-backed bonds.

Investment principles and risk controlling

Within the framework of asset-liability management (see
page 101), the Munich Re Group is guided by the following
investment principles: only investments are to be made
from which an appropriate return can be expected and
which offer a high degree of security, as reflected in high-
quality ratings of the relevant issuers and counterparties,
for example. Also important is sufficient liquidity at all
times to cover obligations from underwriting business, as
is a targeted diversification in terms of region and type of
investment. in addition, the Munich Re Group meets the
regulatory solvency requirements stipulating a specified
minimum capitalisation.

The investment process for the Group’s own investments
is controlled by the individual companies in the Munich Re
Group themselves. In line with our asset-liability manage-
ment, we match the maturities of our bond investments
with the calculable cash outflows. In other words, besides
return and risk aspects, our investment strategy considers
requirements relating to underwriting, supervisory regula-
tions, accounting, tax, liquidity and currencies.
Furthermore, in reinsurance for individual products involv-
ing explicit financial risks, such as interest-rate or currency
risks, we already carry out asset-liability management at
micro level when the product is being designed. This is
especially the case with life business and long-tail property-
casualty business, owing to the long periods involved. The
companies entrusted with our asset management, in par-
ticular MEAG, are given mandates by the insurance and
reinsurance companies in the Munich Re Group, based on
uniform investment criteria. The status of the individual
mandates is continually monitored on the basis of various
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key risk and earnings figures as part of a Group-wide early-
warning system for investments. This is designed to en-
sure the achievement of result targets, the fulfilment of
solvency requirements and sufficient equity capital protec-
tion at individual company level. At all companies, we
have established asset-liability teams that advise on and
monitor strategic decisions relating to investments. This
has enabied us to standardise the Munich Re Group’s risk
management activities in the investment sector. In the asset
management units of the Group, we pursue a policy of clear
functional separation between partfolio management,
trading and risk controlling at all hierarchical levels, in line
with the requirements of banking supervision.
Market-price risks in investments are measured and limited
using the value-at-risk approach, which is also employed
in our strategic investment planning to modei the optimum
investment portfolio according to risk preference. Applying
stress tests, sensitivity and duration analyses, we also
simulate market fluctuations and devise strategies for
counteracting them where necessary.

We counter market-price risks from real estate by optimis-
ing the return and risk profile of our real estate investments.
We are doing this by rejuvenating our portfolio on an on-
going basis, diversifying internationally and investing in
top-class commercial real estate primarily located in major
European cities. In addition, we are pursuing the aim of
reducing the concentration of our real estate investment in
Germany, which used to be very pronounced and has not
vet been fully resolved. We counter the risk of rent losses
by means of high credit-standing requirements with regard
to our tenant structure.

We only run currency risks to a very small extent, since we
practise a policy of currency matching. This means that for
the main currency liabilities in underwriting business,
matching items are established on the assets side. We use
derivative financial instruments to hedge parts of the port-
folio against price fluctuations, to optimise earnings and to
implement planned purchases and sales. There is trading
in these instruments with a view to realising individual
result targets, albeit only to a limited degree. Particular
care is paid to limiting risks, choosing top-quality business
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partners and strictly monitoring adherence to specifica-
tions in mandates and investment guidelines. In the first
half-year, as part of our asset-liability management, we
aligned the duration profiles of the asset and liability sides
of the major life insurers in our Group for the eventuality of
falling interest rates. In so doing, we made use of derivative
financial instruments. Credit derivatives are only employed
in our investment portfolio to a limited extent. We show
the volumes of the derivatives on page 95.

Credit risks in the investment portfolio are measured and
limited using the credit-value-at-risk approach. The main
elements for measuring the credit risk are the investment
volume, the term of the investment, the quality of the col-
lateralisation, and the default probability of the individual
issuers in the portfolio.

Our counterparty system, with which we restrict default
risks within the Group in respect of individual issuers, con-
siders a whole range of factors. These include the issuer's
individual rating, its capitalisation as a basis for covering
the liability, the quality of the collateralisation and of the
respective issue, the sector concerned, and our internally
defined risk tolerance. Munich Re’s investments were not
affected by any significant defaults in 2005.

The liquidity risks of companies in the Munich Re Group
are managed by the insurers and reinsurers themselves.
Detailed liquidity planning ensures that the Group com-
panies are able to make the necessary payments at all
times. This planning concept, which has been in place for
many years, has proved its value after major loss events
such as the recent severe hurricanes in Central and North
America.

Main operational risks

By operational risk we mean the possibility of losses as a
result of inadequate processes, technical failure, human
error or external events. These include criminal acts com-
mitted by employees or third parties, insider trading,
infringements of antitrust law, business interruptions,
inaccurate processing of transactions, non-compliance
with reporting obligations or disagreements with business
partners.



We minimise such risks through systemati(‘; application of
specific risk management measures. It is ou*iJr declared
corporate aim, which we consistently pursue, to sensitise
employees to possible risks and to establish an appropriate
risk culture. This includes the willingness to learn from
mistakes and to recognise and grasp oppor‘;tunities for
change and improvement. To this end, we organise sem-
inars and information events, support open communication
in the field of risk management and give th(~\)rough consid-
eration to constructive criticism. !

To prevent infringements of insider law, Munich Re has
appointed a Compliance Officer who ensure‘?s that inside
information is handled in conformity with the law and
checks whether the other insider regulations are complied
with. The Compliance Officer is also responsible for seeing
that all price-sensitive information directly concerning the
Group and legally requiring an ad-hoc announcement is
published without delay. Finally, he makes sure that all the
relevant supervisory regulations are adhereb to.
Compliance with antitrust regulations is a basic principle
of Munich Re's business policy. A vialation can have far-
reaching implications for the particular member of staff
involved and for the Group company. To prevent viola-
tions, staff are informed about antitrust regulations and
are expected to comply with them. ‘

We attach particular importance to precautionary measures
that ensure continuity of our operations in an emergency
or crisis. Business processes critical to value‘creation can
be maintained or resumed as quickly as possible in such
cases. Responsibility for establishing and menitoring this
business continuity process in the Munich Re Group has
been entrusted to a separate unit, which is g@lided by inter-
nationally recognised business continuity management
standards (e.g. PAS 56).

Risks in the area of information technology an;d project risks

Munich Re’s global business requires a netwarking of our

business units and systems worldwide, both organisation-
|

ally and technically. The consequence of this is a growing
dependency on electronic communications technology,
the complexity of which is continually increasing. The sig-
nificance of the processed information is also growing. As
aresult, we are also increasingly exposed to IT risks such
as breakdowns and outages, disruptions due to viruses,
attacks by hackers and theft of data.

These risks are identified and limited by decentralised
security organisations that liaise closely. Their procedures
are constantly being improved and adjusted to take into
account the latest knowledge and state-of-the-art tech-
nigues. Our security regulations embrace not only the
technical design of hardware and software systems but
also functional security structures and organisational
measures, including training staff in the proper handling of
systems and data.

Various major projects are currently being realised in our
primary insurance and reinsurance business that will,
among other things, develop integrated information archi-
tecture in the back-office area. Proceeding from project
management, Munich Re’s project landscape will be made
more transparent and the interfaces of individual projects
enhanced by means of multi-project management de-
signed to assess and control interdependencies better. In
addition, the dependencies and priorities within the sys-
tems architecture are analysed and addressed by specially
appointed committees.

The aim of our Gloria project is to unify the entire reinsur-
ance group's IT and process landscape on the basis of an
SAP standard product. We plan to put the system into oper-
ation at Munich Reinsurance Company in 2006 and to suc-
cessively expand it to the other reinsurance companies in
the Group. - is also conducting important major projects,
such as the ongoing convergence of IT systems and pro-
cesses in the health segment (GENESYS). The size and com-
plexity of such undertakings naturally entail substantial
project risks. Risk management and problem-handling are
therefore central tasks of the project management.

ana




With the reorganisation of the management structure at
ERGO, we have laid the foundations for a uniform manage-
ment organisation based on classes of business, which has
been in effect since 2005. The related changes in processes,
tasks, allocations of responsibility and functions harbour
the risk of short-term inefficiencies. By preparing ourselves
thoroughly for the systematic implementation of the new
structure, we have been able to make these risks sufficiently
manageable.

Risks in the human resources sector

The companies in the Munich Re Group have binding rules
setting out minimum standards of corporate integrity for
conduct within the companies themselves, their business
transactions and other relationships with external parties.
These standards are tailored to the special features of each
company and serve to prevent conflicts of interest for staff,
thus ensuring that we use only fair and legal means of
competition. The clear separation of management and
control functions limits the risk of internal and external
regulations being breached.

Staff who have to deal with confidential information under-
take to comply with the relevant regulations and to handle
the information responsibly.

The main human resources risks are shortages of qualified
personnel, insufficient adaptation, demotivation and loss
of staff. We identify these risks by means of appropriate
indicators and metrics. Targeted personnel marketing meas-
ures, staff potential assessment and development schemes,
and systematic succession planning are designed to reduce
the risk of shortages in qualified staff. Individual develop-
ment planning and suitable training offers enable our staff
to adapt to current market requirements. Modern manage-
ment tools and adequate monetary and non-monetary
incentives ensure a high level of motivation. Our human
resources tools as a whole serve to strengthen our staff’s
ties with the Group and consequently to safeguard our
business intelligence.

Legal and supervisory risks

Legal risks may arise on the one hand from court decisions
and legislation (changes in legal parameters) and on the
other from legal disputes and arbitration proceedings in
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which we as an international insurance group are involved,

especially in the area of claims settlement.

We counter risks from changes in legislation and court

decisions by constantly monitoring current developments

and by actively participating in relevant bodies and associ-
ations in order to contribute our views.

The following are examples of currently relevant legal

risks:

- Inthe pending preliminary antitrust proceedings against
VICTORIA Versicherung AG, the Federal Cartel Office
imposed a fine in March 2005 for alleged coliusion in
restraint of competition in industrial insurance business.
A fine was also imposed on nine other industrial insur-
ers. VICTORIA Versicherung AG has lodged an appeal,
which has a suspensive effect. The Diisseldorf regional
appeal court will rule on the appeal.

— In April of 2004, New York State Attorney General Eliot
Spitzer started an investigation into the use of Placement
or Market Service Agreements {PSA) in the insurance
industry. Several other US state regulators subsequently
commenced similar probes into this matter, as have
other regulators. We have received requests to provide
information in connection with these investigations and
are cooperating fully with the authorities. Entities of the
Munich Re organisation, together with severai other
insurers and brokers, have been named defendants in
several PSA-related class actions by Us policyholders.
Munich Re denies any wrongdoing and will defend itself
vigorously.

~ Inthe USA, the Fairness in Asbestos Injury Resolution
Act 2005 is currently going through the federal legisia-
tive procedure. A decision on the bill, which envisages
the formation of a privately financed fund to compensate
asbestos victims, will in all probability be taken after
2006. What consequences this proposed legislation will
have for our companies in the USA and to what extent
the financial burden may impact our current provisions
depends on how the individual regulations are framed.

— There are still uncertainties regarding the size of our
final claims burden in connection with the attack on the
World Trade Center of 11 September 2001. A portion of
the claims resulting from this event are the subject of
pending cases concerning the amount and scope of the



|
claims filed. in the case of the Wilprop p(glicy underwrit-
ten by us, the courts in question take the'view that only
one loss event was involved, but a final a‘\nd absolute
judgement is still pending. As far as the Qllianz policy we
also underwrote is concerned, however, the court before
which the case was brought ruled that there were two
loss events involved. Appellate proceedings are cur-
rently pending in New York. A case is alsc\) pending in
New York regarding the claims amount té which the
leaseholder of the WTC site is entitled. Decisions on this
are to be expected in autumn 2006. To wnat extent
appeals will be admissible and filed is not“ yet fully fore-
seeable. !

- In the Us states hit by Hurricane Katrina, there are vari-
ous lawsuits pending which are aimed at ?ircumventing
the exclusion of flood damage routinely included in pri-
vate buildings insurance policies. The claimants are of
the opinion that this damage falls under ci)vered wind-
storm lasses, since the storm surges on the coast and
levee breaches in New Orleans were caus?d by Katrina.
The insurers, on the other hand, take the view that the
exclusion is clear ~ having been established for decades -
and was approved by the regulatory authorities. Further-
more (particularly in view of this exclusion) the National
Flood Insurance Program provides for special flood
insurance. Not least owing to political preésure onthe
insurance industry and the unpredictability of jury deci-
sions, it is difficult to estimate the claiman'@s’ prospects
of success. ‘

As aresult of our global activities, we are subject to a large

number of supervisory regulations in different countries.

These may give rise to legal and regulataory risks.

In late 2004, the US Securities and Exchange Commission

(sec) and the Office of the New York State Attorney General

{NYSAG) initiated inquiries of Munich Re with kespect to

“certain loss mitigation insurance products”. Subsequently,

a number of other authorities in the USA and elsewhere

made both formal and informal requests for similar infor-

mation from Munich Re and various of its subgidiaries.

Munich Re and its subsidiaries are fully coope“rating in

these inquiries.

Main other risks

As insurers and reinsurers, we are dependent on econamic
and political parameters in the different markets in which
we operate, as well as on macroeconomic and geopolitical
risks. The development of the economy not only affects
our insurance business but also influences the capital mar-
kets and hence our investment portfolio. An economic
downturn can lead to payment defaults and downgradings
of credit ratings among our debtors, which may require
write-downs in our books.

When developing new markets, such as those in Asia and
eastern Europe, the Munich Re Group is largely dependent
on the prevailing economic, political and regulatory condi-
tions, the accessibility of market segments, and the local
sales channels. But even in developed markets, social or
political changes may result in a deterioration of iegal, fis-
cal or economic conditions, and this may ultimately affect
the assets, liabilities, financial position and results of indi-
vidual companies or the Munich Re Group as a whole.
Thus, for instance, the ongoing discussion about the reform
of the social security systems in Germany harbours sub-
stantial risks for the health insurers in the ERGO Insurance
Group. As the reform proposals are still not sufficiently
concrete {even after the Federal election) and given that
the new Federal Government has not yet submitted a con-
cept for the restructuring of healthcare financing, the
prospects for private health insurance in Germany con-
tinue to be unclear. In the most extreme case, the private
health insurance model and its future existence would be
in jeopardy. We are therefore closely monitoring develop-
ments by - among other means - being active at insurance-
association level and making prompt scenario calculations
that simulate the effects of possibie changes in basic par-
ameters.

As a matter of general principle, our economists constantly
study and monitor the economic and political situation of
our main markets and inform the Board of Management
without delay about relevant developments so that, if ne-
cessary, suitable risk minimisation measures can be taken.
Possible scenarios are also discussed and coordinated
with our asset management company MEAG to enable us to
react promptly and appropriately at any time on the invest-
ment side as well.




Strategic risks arise if the strategy at overall Group level or
business-segment level is not compatible with existing
and future client requirements, market conditions or other
parameters (e.g. economic or regulatory). If these dispar-
ities were not recognised, our objectives and initiatives
would not take sufficient account of developments. In our
strategic planning, we therefore carefully analyse the
strategic risks, which are evaluated in individual projects
{e.g. investment or market-entry projects) using scenarios
and at an aggregate level on the basis of “wild cards”. in
addition, we systematically perform “sSwoT analyses”
{strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, threats) and, build-
ing on these, specify what action is to be taken.

One of the main risks for any company is being too conser-
vative and failing to recognise new business opportunities.
We counter this danger by, among other things, integrat-
ing innovation teams into our operative reinsurance units
in order to tap into new product and client segments at an
early stage. This approach is also designed to ensure that
we identify and work on topical market and client issues, as
well as fields of knowledge that are of critical importance for
the future.

Outlook

The external requirements for Group-wide risk manage-
ment will increase further as a result of the continued
development and introduction of national and international
initiatives such as IFRS, which is setting new standards for
accounting, and Solvency 11, which is fundamentaily
restructuring state insurance supervision. Rating agencies
increasingly and explicitly take the quality and effective-
ness of risk management into account in their ratings, a
trend we welcome. Insurance associations and research
institutions such as the Geneva Association, actively pro-
mote an exchange of views on best practices and their
establishment.

In keeping with its leading market position, the Munich Re
Group provides input for these initiatives. The European
Commission’s Solvency Il project continues to be actively
partnered by interdisciplinary working groups, and we
have ensured internal transfer of the relevant knowledge
in the Group's divisionat units and central divisions. We
constantly review changes in the parameters affecting our
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product portfolios as well as those of our clients and
evaluate the resultant business opportunities. Besides
this, we participate in working groups and projects of
actuarial associations {Groupe Consultatif, DAV), industry
associations (CEA, GDV) and research institutions (the
Geneva Association, CRO Forum) at national and inter-
national level, thus playing a major role in shaping future
parameters like those of Solvency 11

Summary of the risk position

Despite the high costs for the reserve increase at American
Re and the Atlantic hurricanes, we see ourselves on course
to sustain the level of profitability we have achieved. We
therefore assess the Munich Re Group's risk situation as
controlled and viable. The particularly heavy burdens from
the reserve strengthening at American Re and the natural
catastrophes in 2005 contrast with our good basic business
and the high realised capital gains from the reduction of
our portfolio of participating interests. We cannot expect
comparably high investment earnings in future, but are
convinced that we have taken adequate measures to con-
trol our risks from investments and reinsurance, especially
as regards claims reserves. Where we identify a need for
further action, we will initiate the necessary steps.

With our risk management instruments, we will system-
atically control the risks in our reinsurance business and,
against the background of last year’s natural catastrophe
losses, ensure that we firmly adhere to our policy of risk-
adequate prices, terms and conditions (e.g. exclusions),
even if this means having to refrain from participating in
some business. With the reinforcement of American Re’s
capital base, we have substantially strengthened its market
position. In addition, we have integrated American Re even
more closely into the Group through extended retrocession
COVers.

In primary insurance, we returned to the profit zone in 2004
and were able to significantly increase our profitin 2005. By
systematically implementing its new structure, ERGO has
created a uniform group-wide management organisation,
based on classes of business. And through the sale of the
Karlsruher Insurance Group, our activities in primary insur-
ance business are now clearly focused on ERGO.
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We are intent on maintaining clear strategi‘c management
of the Munich Re Group, with its equal-ranking business
segments of primary insurance and reinsuﬁ‘ance, and pro-
viding for a clear assignment of responsibility. We have
therefare separated Group and business-ségment respon-
sibilities more distinctly at our parent, Mun{ich Reinsurance
Company. In order to give integrated risk management
more weight, the head of our IRM Division \}vill, as Chief
Risk Officer, take part in all meetings of the Board of Man-
agement’s Group Committee in future. We are thus pursu-
ing our risk-conscious business policy consi?tently and with

utmost priority. We see opportunities and risks as inextric-
|

Management report_Risk report

ably linked. Only through first-class identification, analysis
and continual monitoring of our risks can we also recognise
business opportunities and exploit these decisively for the
benefit of our shareholders, clients and staff.

This principle and the above examples demonstrate how
we concern ourselves with the whole of the Munich Re
Group’s risk landscape and consider all facets of possible
and necessary control measures.

According to our assessment, there are no risks which could
have a significant, lasting adverse effect on the assets,
liabilities, financial position and results of our Group.
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dated financial statements

onsaé dated balance sheet as at 31 December 2005

Assets Notes Prev. year Change
€m £€m €m €m €m %
A. Intangible assets
1. Goodwill (1) 3,264 3,144 120 3.8
Il. Other intangibie assets (2) 1,036 1,243 -207 -16.7
4,300 4,387 -87 -2.0
B. Investments
I. Land and buildings. including buildings
on third-party land (3) 5,798 9,046 -3,248 -35.9
1. Investments in affiliated companies and associates 4) 1,312 3,883 -2,571 -66.2
iti. Loans (5) 24,795 20,310 4,485 22.1
IV. Other securities
1. Held to maturity () 445 562 -17 -20.8
2. Available for sale (7} 124,452 124,956 -504 ~0.4
3. Held for trading (8) 1,879 657 1,222 186.0
126,776 126,175 601 0.5
V. Deposits retained on assumed reinsurance {9} 14,581 14,530 51 0.4
VI. Other investments (10} 2,479 2,869 -330 ~13.6
175,741 176,813 ~1,072 -0.6
C. Investments for the benefit of life insurance policyholders
who bear the investment risk 1,430 1,319 111 8.4
D. Ceded share of underwriting provisions (1 7,980 6,964 1,016 14.6
E. Receivables (12) 9,707 8,683 1,024 11.8
F. Cash with banks, cheques and cash in hand 2,337 2,027 310 15.3
G. Deferred acquisition costs (13}
- Gross 8,222 8,450 -228 -2.7
- Ceded 98 54 44 815
~ Net ‘ 8,124 8,396 ~272 -3.2
H. Deferred tax assets (14) 5,056 4,326 730 16.9
i. Other assets (15} 3,964 1,876 2,088 111.3
Total assets I I 218,639 214,79 3,848 1.8




Financial statements

Equity and liabilities Notes Prev. year Change
€m €m €m €m Y%

A. Equity ‘ (16)
|. Issued capital and capital reserve 7,388 7,388 - -
Il. Retained earnings 8,021 7018 1,003 14.3
lll. Other reserves 6,110 3,957 2,153 54.4
IV. Consolidated profit attributable to Munich Re equity holders 2,671 1,833 838 45.7
V. Minority interests 463 448" 15 3.3
24,653 20,644 4,009 19.4
B. Subordinated liabilities (17) 3,408 3,393 15 0.4

C. Gross underwriting provisions

I. Unearned premiums (18) 6,153 5,874 279 4.7
1l. Provision for future policy benefits ) 19 94,445 101,926 -7.481 -73
I1I. Provision for outstanding claims (20) 49,380 42,839 6,541 15.3
V. Other underwriting provisions (21) 10,551 9,324 1,227 13.2

160,529 159,963 566 0.4

D. Gross underwriting provisions for life insurance policies

where the investment risk is borne by the policyholders (22) 1,516 1,328 188 14.2

E. Other accrued liabilities (23) 4,555 3,450 1,105 32.0
F. Liabilities

|. Notes and debentures ‘ (24} 1,097 2,242 -1,145 -51.1

1. Deposits retained on ceded business (25) 3,392 2,900 492 17.0

Ill. Other liabilities (26) 12,288 13,830" -1,542 -11.1

16,777 18,972" -2,195 -11.6

G. Deferred tax liabilities (14) 7.201 7,041 160 2.3

Total equity and liabilities } I 218,639 214,791 3,848 1.8

"Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1as 1 (rev. 2003). Details are provided in the notes on recognition and measurement.
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Consolidated income statement
for the business year 2005

Items Notes Prev. year Change
(adjusted)”
£€m £€m €m €m €m Y%
Gross premiums written (27) 38,199 38,071 128 0.3
1. Earned premiums (27}
- Gross 38,251 38,288 -37 ~-0.1
- Ceded 2,041 1,754 287 16.4
- Net 36,210 36,534 -324 ~0.9
2. Investment resuit (28) 10,818 8,041 2,777 34.5
Thereof:
~Income from associates 1,131 -331 1,462 -
3. Otherincome (29) 1,465 1,116 349 31.3
Total income (1-3) 48,493 45,691 2,802 6.1
4, Expenses for claims and benefits (30)
- Gross 35,559 32,546 3,013 9.3
- Ceded 2,208 910 1,298 142.6
- Net 33,351 31,636 1,715 5.4
5. Operating expenses {31}
- Gross 9,611 9,312 299 3.2
~ Ceded 444 465 -21 -4.5
- Net 9,167 8,847 320 3.6
6. Other expenses (32) 1,838 1,839 -1 -0.1
Total expenses (4-8) 44,356 42,322 2,034 4.8
7. Result before amortisation and impairment losses
of goodwill 4,137 3,369 768 22.8
8. Amortisation and impairment losses of goodwill (1) 7 344 -337 -98.0
9. Operating resuit 4,130 3,025 1,105 38.5
10. Finance costs {33) 378 426 -48 ~11.3
11. Taxes onincome {34) 1,009 712 297 41.7
12. Consolidated result 2,743 1,887 856 45.4
Thereof:
- Attributable to Munich Re equity holders 2,671 1,833 838 45.7
- Attributable to minority interests (16) 72 54 18 33.3
Notes € € € %
Earnings per share (50) 11.70 8.01 3.69 46.1

“Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1As 1 {rev.
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Group statement of changes in equity

|
l Equity attributable to Munich Re equity holders  Minority Total
\ : interests” equity”
Issued Capital Retained earnings Other reserves  Consoli-
capital reserve dated
result
Retained Own Unrealised Reserve Valuation
earnings shares gainsand from result from
before held losses currency cash flow
deduction translation hedges
of own
All figures in €m shares
Status at 31.12.2003 588 6,800 7.930 -107 4,511 -399 10 ~434 399 19,298
Currency translation - - - - - -284 - - 3 -281
Allocation to retained earnings - - ~720 - - - - 720 -~ -
Change in consolidated group - —; -13 - - 9 - - - ~4
Change resulting from \
valuation at equity - - -1 - 102 - - - -1 100
Unrealised gains and losses
on investments - - - - 8 - - - 26 34
Consolidated result - - - - - - - 1,833 54 1,887
Dividend - - - - - - - -286 - -286
I
Share buy-backs - —\ - -51 - - - - - -51
Other changes - —\ ~20 - - - ~ - -33 -53

tatus at 31.12.2004

*Adjusted owing to first-time application of tas 1 {rev. 2003).

141




Group statement of changes in eguity

Equity attributable to Munich Re equity holders  Minority Total
interests” equity”
Issued Capital Retained earnings Other reserves  Consoli-
capital reserve dated
result
Retained Own Unrealised Reserve Valuation
earnings shares gains and from result from
before held losses currency cash flow
deduction translation hedges
of own
All figures in €m shares
Status at 31,12.2004 588 6.800 7.176 -158 4,621 -674 10 1,833 448 20,644
Currency translation - - - - - 650 - - 1 651
Allocation to retained earnings - - 1,376 - - ~ - -1,376 - -
Change in consolidated group ~ - -94 - ~49 - - - 6 -137
Change resulting from
valuation at equity - - -62 ~ ~98 - - - 3 -157
Unrealised gains and fosses
oninvestments - - - - 1,654 - - - 3 1,657
Consolidated result - ~ - - ~ - - 2,671 72 2,743
Dividend - ~ - - - - - ~457 - -457
Effects pursuant to 1As 8 - - -59 - - - - - -14 -73
Share buy-backs - ~ - ~-43 - - - - - -43
Changes from cash flow hedges - - - - - - -4 - - -4
Other changes - - -115 - - - - - -56 =171

Status at 31.12.2005 6,800 8.222|

*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1as 1 (rev. 2003).

The increase in the unrealised gains and losses recognised  tions and €1,315m (1,511m) in withdrawals, without impact
in equity of €1,657m comprises €2,972m (1,545m) in alloca-  on profit or loss in both cases.
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the business year 2005

Prev. year
€m €m
Consolidated result 2,743 1,892
Net change in underwriting provisions 10,804 5,396
Change in deferred acquisition costs | -309 -407
Change in deposits retained and accounts receivable and payable -1,268 -177
Change in other receivables and liabilities -1,400 -995
Gains and losses on the disposal of investments -4,511 -2,339
Change in securities heid for trading -1,374 -100
Change in other balance sheet items . 961 29
Other income/expenses without impact on cash flow ' 473 2,009
I. Cash flows from operating activities 6,119 5,308
Inflows from the sale of consolidated companies 173 373
Outflows for the acquisition of consolidated companies 28 78
Change from the acquisition, sale and maturities of investments -2,529 -3,389
Change from the acquisition and sale of investments for unit-linked life insurance =20 -252
Other -524 -877
1. Cash flows from investing activities ~-2,928 ~-4,223
Inflows from increases in capital ‘ - -
Dividend payments 473 295
Change from other financing activities ~2,428 -637
lil. Cash flows from financing activities -2,901 -932
Cash flows for the business year (1+H+1H) | 290 163
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 20 -10
Cash at the beginning of the business year 2,027 1,884
Cash at the end of the business year 2,337 2,027
Additional information
Income tax paid (net) 404 707
Interest paid 421 644

Our reporting on the Group cash flow is based on 1As 7 and the principles of German Accounting Standard No. 2 {DRsS 2) issued by the
German Standards Board (DsR) for the presentation of cash flow statements. This has been supplemented by the requirements of brs 2-20,
which applies specifically to insurance companies.

In accordance with the recommendations of the psr for insurance companies, we have applied the indirect presentation method.

The “cash fund” within the meaning of the German Accounting Standard is limited to cash and cash equivalents shown under balance
sheet item F “cash with banks, cheques and cash in hand”.

Further information on the consolidated cash flow statement can be found in the management report on page 103.
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Segment reporting

Assets Reinsurance
Life and health Property-casualty

31.12.2005 Prev. year 31.12.2005 Prev. year

€m £€m em £€m
A. Intangible assets 267 239 1,374 1,206
B. Investments
1. Land and buildings, including buildings on third-party land 663 731 759 928
H. Investments in affiliated companies and associates 2,910 3,449 3,238 3.842
IIl. Loans 310 244 323 258
IV. Other securities
1. Held to maturity - - - -
2. Available for sale 23,361 19,603 34,399 30,180
3. Held for trading 146 54 700 61
23,507 19,657 35,099 30,247
V. Deposits retained on assumed reinsurance 9,089 9,685 10,205 11,314
V1. Other investments 321 264 539 576
36,800 34,030 50,163 47,159
C. Investments for the benefit of life insurance policyholders
who bear the investment risk - - - -
D. Ceded share of underwriting provisions 1,647 1,403 4,077 3,483
E. Other segment assets 6,179 4,720 10,402 9,173
Total segment assets 44,893 66,016 61,021
The Munich Re Group’s segment reporting is based on The individual fields of business are shown after consoli-
IAS 14 and the principles of German Accounting Standard dation of internal transactions within the individual field
No. 3 (DRs 3) issued by the German Standards Board but before consolidation across segments. This is shown
(DsR). This has been supplemented by the requirements separately in the “consolidation column”.
of DRS 3-20, which applies specifically to insurance com- Goodwill has been allocated to the segment of the re-

panies. spective subsidiary.
In accordance with the recommendations of the DSR, we

have made the primary segmentation between the fields

of reinsurance, primary insurance {each broken down into

life and health and property-casualty) and asset manage-

ment.
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PrimaryinSt‘Jrance Asset management Consolidation Total

Life and health Property-caisualty
31.12.2005 Prev. year 31.12.2005 Prev. year 31.12.2005 Prev. year 31.12.2005 Prev. year 31.12.2005 Prev. year
€m £€m €m £€m €m €m €m €m €m €m
1,748 1,961 929 1,014 6 5 -24 -38 4,300 4,387
4,170 6,642 179 710 28 43 -1 -8 5,798 9,046
994 3,008 3,506 3,361 95 118 ~9,431 -9,897 1,312 3,883
24,808 20,893 1,514 1,011 151 185 -2,311 -2,281 24,795 20,310
432 518 13 44 - - - - 445 562
60,304 68,613 6,385 6,532 33 28 -30 - 124,452 124,956
717 247 316 295 - ~ - - 1,879 657
61,453 69,378 6,714 6,871 33 28 -30 - 126,776 126,175
229 194 18 137 - - -4,960 -6,800 14,581 14,530
638 1,403 276 253 705 373 - - 2,479 2,869
92,292 101,519 12,207 12,343 1,012 748 -16,733 -18,986 175,741 176,813
1,430 1,319 - - - - - - 1,430 1,319
6,817 8,756 1,701 1,529 - - -6,262 -8,207 7,980 6,964
-1,570 29,188 25,308

-2,607

214,71
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Segment reporting

Equity and liabilities

Life and health

Reinsurance

Property-casualy

31.12.2005 Prev. year 31.12.2005 Prev. year
€m €m €m €m
A. Subordinated liabilities 1,453 1,453 1,561 1,587
B. Gross underwriting provisions

I. Unearned premiums 208 230 4,865 4,571
il. Provision for future policy benefits 18,675 19,468 702 642
{ll. Provision for outstanding cfaims 5,493 5,238 38,080 31,988
IV, Other underwriting provisions 888 722 190 214
25,265 25,658 43,837 37415

C. Gross underwriting provisions for life insurance policies where
the investment risk is barne by the policyholders - - - -
D. Other accrued liabilities 712 300 1,327 785
E. Other segment liabilities 3,807 3,154~ 8,397 9,337
Total segment liabilities 31,237 m 55,122 49,124

*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1as 1 (rev. 2003).
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Primary insurance Asset management Consolidation Total

Life and health Property-casualty

31.12.2005 Prev. year 31.12.2005 Prev. year 31.12.2005 Prev. year 31.12.2005 Prev. year 31.12.2005 Prev. year

€m €m €m £€m €m €m £m £m €m €m

19 - 404 353 - - -29 - 3,408 3,393

86 79 1,221 1,208 - - -228 -214 6,153 5,874
79,647 88,155 224 278 - - -4,803 -6,617 94,445 101,926
1,993 2,010 4,765 4,837 - - -951 ~-1,034 49,380 42,839
9,686 8,604 104 108 - - -317 -324 10,551 9,324
91,412 98,848 6,314 6,231 - - -6,299 -8,189 160,529 169,963
1,516 1,343 - - - - - -15 1,516 1,328
1,175 1,024 1,355 1,287 65 84 =79 -30 4,555 3,450
14,698 17,735~ 5,319 5,224" 1,035 773" -9,278 -10,210" 23,978 28,013"

194,147

Total equity and liabilities

Equity

214,791
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Segment reporting

Income statement

Life and health

Reinsurance

Property-casualty

2005 Prev. year 2005 Prev. year
{adjusted)” {adjusted)”
€m €m €m €m
Gross premiums written 7.811 7,540 14,547 14,857
Thereof:
- From insurance transactions with other segments 859 957 848 869
- From insurance transactions with external third parties 6,952 8,583 13,699 13,988
1. Earned premiums
- @Gross 7.852 7575 14,643 15,131
~ Ceded 456 281 1,078 950
- Net 7,396 7254 13,565 14,181
2. Investment resuit 1,897 1,431 2,859 2,166
Thereof:
~Income from associates 51 -24 208 -87
3. Otherincome 272 125 487 350
Total income (1-3) 9,565 8,850 16,911 16,697
4. Expenses for claims and benefits
- Gross 6,358 6,264 12,490 10,651
- Ceded 354 20 1,145 473
~ Net 6,004 6,244 11,345 10,178
5. Operating expenses
- Gross 2,315 1,836 4,089 4,054
- Ceded 87 148 262 197
- Net 2,228 1,688 3,827 3,857
8. Other expenses 229 214 459 624
Total expenses (4-6) 8,461 8,146 15,631 14,659
7. Result before amortisation and impairment losses of goodwill 1,104 704 1,280 2,038
8. Amortisation and impairment losses of goodwill - 6 - 94
9. Operating result 1,104 698 1,280 1,944
10. Finance costs 80 106 212 255
11. Taxes on income 48 160 650 455
12. Consolidated result 1,234
Thereof
~ Attributable to Munich Re equity holders 1,229
~ Attributable to minority interests 5

“Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1As 1 {rev. 2003).

The ERGO Insurance Group has concluded profit-transfer
agreements with nearly all of its German insurance com-
panies. In our segment reporting, expenditure incurred as
a result of profit transfer is deemed appropriation of net
income. The segments are thus adjusted to eliminate these
expenses, the elimination being carried out in the consoli-
dation column.
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Primary insurance Asset management Consolidation Total
|

Life and health Property-casualty
2005 Prev. year 2005 Prev. year 2005 Prev. year 2005 Prev, year 2005 Prev. year
(adjusted)” {adjusted)” (adjusted)” (adjusted)” {adjusted)”
€m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m €m
12,330 12,324 5,242 5,202 - - -1,731 -1,852 38,199 38,071
1 2 23 24 - - -1,731 ~1,852 - -
12,329 12,322 5,219 5,178 - - - - 38,199 38,071
12,323 12,323 5,121 5,145 - - -1,688 -1,886 38,251 38,288
1,079 1,202 1,116 1,207 - - -1,688 -1,886 2,041 1,754
11,244 11,121 4,005 3,938 - - - - 36,210 36,634
5,054 4,163 853 424 40 19 115 -162 10,818 8,041
233 -198 221 -28 2 [ 416 - 1,131 -331
873 711 787 734 267 250 -1,221 -1,054 1,465 1,118
17,171 15,985 5,645 5,086 307 269 -1,106 -1,216 48,493 45,691
14,711 14,093 3,439 3,047 - - -1,439 -1,509 35,559 32,546
1,057 1,207 1,049 719 - - -1,397 -1,509 2,208 910
13.654 12,886 2,390 2,328 - - -42 - 33,351 31,636
2,049 2,181 1,706 1,707 - - ~548 -466 9,611 9,312
321 242 316 333 - - ~542 -455 444 465
1,728 1,939 1,390 1,374 - - -6 -1 9,167 8,847
1,062 973 1,067 912 241 271 -1,220 -1,165 1,838 1,839
16,444 15,798 4,847 4,614 241 271 -1,268 -1,166 44,356 42,322
727 197 798 482 66 -2 162 -50 4,137 3,369
1 167 5 69 1 8 - - 7 344
726 30 793 413 65 -10 162 ~50 4,130 3.025
3 4 82 65 3 - -2 -4 378 426
1 130 56 32 35 20 5 1,009 712
1,887
1,833
54
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Segment reporting

Investments® Reinsurers Primary insurers Asset management Total

31.12.2005 Prev. year 31.12.2005 Prev. year 31.12.2005 Prev. year 31.12.2005 Prev. year

£€m £€m €m £m £m £€m €m €m

Europe 43,942 43,074 97,902 106,802 804 515 142,648 150,391

North America 27,360 21,540 1,426 1,669 23 38 28,809 23,247

Asia and Australasia 2,776 2,517 1,024 625 5 3 3,805 3,145
Africa, Near and

Middle East 753 595 81 119 - - 834 714

Latin America 826 485 249 142 - 8 1,075 635

Total 75,657“ 100,682 832” 177471 178,132

*After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.

Secondary segmentation is based on the geographical origin of our investments and gross premiums written.
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Gross premiums written” Reinsurers Primary insurers Total
2005 Prev. year 2005 Prev. year 2005 Prev. year
€m €m €m €m €m €m
Europe
Germany 3,122 3,275 14,272 14,243 17,394 17518
UK 3,838 4,516 245 224 4,083 4,740
Italy 562 549 732 720 1,294 1,269
Spain 527 525 371 348 898 871
Netherlands 314 456 242 283 556 739
Others 2,060 1,934 1,460 1,459 3,520 3,393
10,423 11,255 17,322 17,275 27,745 28,530
North America
USA 4,774 4,969 112 80 4,886 5,049
Canada 1,929 1,842 6 4 1,935 1,848
6,703 6,811 118 84 6,821 6,895
Asia and Australasia
Australia 445 453 5 3 450 456
China 362 71 - - 362 71
Japan 335 288 4 3 339 291
Korea ‘ 270 201 1 - 271 201
Others 514 465 47 50 561 515
1,926 1,478 57 56 1,983 1,534
Africa, Near and Middle East
South Africa 330 267 17 60 347 327
Israel 140 136 - 1 140 137
Others 202 164 24 15 226 179
672 567 41 76 713 643
Latin America 927 460 10 9 937 489

Total

*After elimination of intra-Group reinsurance across segments.
Presentation of the figures in the management report differs from this (cf. note on page 61).

| 20,651 20,571

17.548 17,500
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Application of International Financial Reporting Standards
{1FRS)

Munich Re’s consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the basis of Section 315a para. 1 of the Ger-
man Commercial Code in conjunction with Article 4 of
Regulation {EC) No. 1606/2002 of the European Parliament
and of the Council of 19 July 2002 concerning the applica-
tion of international accounting standards. We have com-
plied with the international accounting standards adopted
in accordance with Articles 2, 3 and 6 of the aforemen-
tioned Regulation and with the Commercial Code rules
designated in Section 315a para. 1 of the German Commer-
cial Code. The consolidated financial statements also meet
all the requirements of IFRS. OQur presentation currency is
the euro (€).

Since 2002, the standards adopted by the international
Accounting Standards Board (1AsB) have been referred to
as International Financial Reporting Standards (iFRS); the
standards from previous years continue to bear the name
International Accounting Standards (1AS). Insofar as we do
not explicitly refer to a particular standard, we use the two
terms synonymously.

We have also observed the German accounting standards
(DRs) adopted by the German Standardisation Council
(DSR) provided they do not contradict the applicable IFRS.

Declaration of compliance with the German Corporate
Governance Code in accordance with Section 161 of the
German Stock Companies Act

In November and December 2005 respectively, the Board
of Management and Supervisory Board of Munich Reinsur-
ance Company and the corresponding Boards of ERGO Ver-
sicherungsgruppe AG published, in each case, an updated
declaration of compliance with the German Corporate
Governance Code as per Section 161 of the German Stock
Companies Act and made this declaration permanently
available to shareholders on the internet.

Figures for previous years

Insofar as under the transitional rules of IFRS 4 compara-
tive information relating to annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2005 is not required, we have in certain
cases dispensed with the disclosure of previous year’s
figures in the notes to the consolidated balance sheet and
to the consolidated income statement.
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Consclidation

Cansolidated group

In accordance with 1AS 27, the consolidated financial state-
ments include Munich Reinsurance Company (the parent)
and all the entities in which Munich Re owns, directly or
indirectly, more than half of the voting power or over which
it has the factual ability to exercise control (subsidiaries).
This applies analogously to the special funds held by
Munich Re and its subsidiaries. The only exceptions are
subsidiaries and special funds determined as being not
material for assessing the Group’s financial position; insur-
ance and reinsurance companies are consolidated regard-
less of their size. As a result of the sale of our majority
stake in Karlsruher Lebensversicherung AG, the parent of
the Karlsruher Insurance Group, in the fourth quarter and
the resultant deconsolidation of the Karlsruher Insurance
Group, the consolidated group was reduced by a total of
14 German subsidiaries. Our Dutch subsidiary Nieuwe
Hollands Lloyd Verzekeringsgroep N.v. was also sold in
2005. An overview of the group of consolidated companies
and other important shareholdings is provided on page 208.
The list of all our shareholdings is deposited with the
Commercial Registry in Munich under registration number
HRB 42039.

Consolidated subsidiaries”

Germany Qther Total

countries
31,12, previous year 93 141 234
Additions 3 3 6
Reductions 22 ] 28
3112, business year 74 138 212

*In addition, 67 German and 8 non-German special funds were included
in the consolidated group.

The changes among our unconsolidated subsidiaries in the
business year were as follows:

Number of unconsolidated subsidiaries

Germany Other Total

countries
31.12. previous year 207 80 287
Additions 11 6 17
Reductions 12 10 22
31.12. business year 206 76 282




\
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Consolidation principles “
The balance sheet date of the consolidated companies is
generally 31 December. Some of the specidl funds have
other balance sheet dates. These funds are“consolidated
on the basis of interim accounts as at 31 December.

We generally consolidate subsidiaries and special funds as
soon as the Group holds the majority of the voting shares
or has the factual ability to exercise control“. Acquisitions
are accounted for by the purchase method./In order to
determine the equity capital at the time of aicquisition,

we measure the assets and liabilities of the\subsidiary or
special fund at fair value. The equity capital‘ apportionable
to the Group at the time of acquisition is netted against

the acquisition costs of the shares. Any resi:dual positive
amount is capitalised as goodwill. |

Profits earned by the subsidiaries or special funds after their
first consolidation are included in Group eqhity.

Amounts relating to intra-Group transactions {receivables
and liabilities, expenses and income betweén consolidated
companies) are eliminated unless they are determined as
being not material. \

Associates \‘

Pursuant to I1AS 28, associates are generally jall entities
which are not subsidiaries but on whose fine\mcial and
operating policies the investors can exercise a significant
influence. In the case of shareholdings amounting to
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights, tl'zue entities in
guestion are deemed to be associates. Investments in
associates are valued at equity unless they are not material
for assessing the Group’s financial position.

Number of companies valued at equity

Germany Other Total
countries
31.12. previous year 33 41 74
Additions 2 2
Reductions 5 3
31.12. business year 30 40 70
GCther associates
(not valued at equity)
Germany Other Total
countries
31.12. previous year 36 19 55
Additions - 3 3
Reductions 12 3 15
31.12. business year 24 19 43

Recognition and measurement

The annual financial statements of the consolidated
subsidiaries and special funds are subject to uniform
accounting policies. For the annual financial statements
of significant associates we have, in accordance with

IAS 28.27, made appropriate adjustments for the purposes
of the consolidated financial statements. Valuations used
in the financial statements of associates not classified as
significant are maintained.

Changes in accounting policies

Application of the recognition, measurement and disclos-
ure methods follows the principle that a method once
chosen should be applied consistently. Changes have be-
come necessary as a result of new or revised IFRS. We have
complied with all new and revised IFRS whose application
is compulsory for the first time for periods beginning on

1 January 2005. The following standards are of signifi-
cance in this context:

IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, stipulates that
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005, the part
of the result attributed to minaority interests has to be shown
in the consolidated income statement not as expenses
befare the consolidated result but as appropriation of profit
after the consolidated result. Correspondingly, minarity
interests in the balance sheet have to be recognised as part

183




of equity. Direct minarity interests in special funds, how-
ever, are not equity within the meaning of 1As 32, We there-
fore disclose direct minority interests in special funds
under “other liabilities”. in accordance with iAS 8, adjust-
ment has been made retrospectively. The carrying amount
of the reclassified direct minority interests in special funds
totals €83m (93m) for 2005. In connection with the reclassi-
fication, we have measured the items at fair value, The
valuation effect of €7m attributable to previous years is
refiected by a reduction in retained earnings in 2005. In
order to provide a better insight into our operating result,
we show finance costs separately in the income statement
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005. By finance
costs we understand all interest and other expenses attrib-
utable to strategic debt. Debt has a strategic character for us
if it does not have an original, direct link with our operative
business. The previous year’s figures have been adjusted
accordingly.

Under 1FRS 2, Share-based Payment, obligations arising
out of our long-term incentive plans {stock appreciation
rights) have to be measured at fair value for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2005. Previously, these
obligations were measured at their intrinsic value (differ-
ence between current share price and initial share price for
the stock appreciation rights). The fair value takes into
account not only the intrinsic value but also the possibility
of growth in value up to the date of forfeiture or expiry of
the rights and is determined on the basis of recognised val-
uation models, taking into account the exercise conditions.
The fair value at the balance sheet date is reserved in full.
The changeover to fair value requires a one-off increase of
€36.1m in the provisions concerned, which has been recog-
nised in the income statement in the business year.

Under the new IFRS 3, Business Combinations, amortisa-
tion of goodwill has to be discontinued. in accordance with
the revised 1AS 36, Impairment of Assets, goodwill has to
be tested for impairment, i.e. the carrying amount of good-
will is compared with the recoverable amount and written
down for impairment to the extent necessary. In keeping
with the transitional provisions of IFRS 3, the rules have to
be applied prospectively.
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The amended rules of I1AS 16, Property, Plant and Equip-
ment, for the calculation of depreciation (component
approach) have been taken into account in measuring
developed property. For the buildings in our partfolio as
at 1 January 2005, the component approach has been
implemented prospectively, with their carrying amounts
at this date being allocated over the newly resulting
remaining useful lives.

First-time application of IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, has
resulted in major changes only in terms of disclosure. As
hitherto, the underwriting items are recognised and meas-
ured in accordance with US GAAP (United States Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles). The definition of insurance
contracts under IFRS 4 has not had an appreciable effect on
the product classifications underlying the accounting. Pre-
sentation of the ceded portion of deferred acquisition costs
and the income and expenses from ceded reinsurance
business has been changed compared with the previous
year.

We have accounted for changes in accounting policies

and corrections of errors in accordance with 1AS 8. As

from 2005, the revised 1AS 8 generally requires changes

in accounting policies and corrections of errors to be
recognised retrospectively and without impact on profit

or loss. In cases where it was not possible to make a retro-
spective adjustment on the basis of the available data

and for non-material circumstances, we have recognised
the adjustiments in the year under review without impact
on profit or loss. Resultant changes to retained earnings
are explained in Note (16) Equity.

In the notes to the consolidated balance sheet and the con-
solidated income statement, we dispense with the disclos-
ure of additional information in accordance with IFRS inso-
far as the details involved are of minor relevance. As far as
underwriting items are concerned, we regard information
as significant if the amount or change to be disclosed
represents at least 1% of the value of the relevant balance
sheet item.

First-time application of other new or amended !FRS has
had no material impact.



Standards or changes in standards that have not yet
entered into force 1

IAS 19, Employee Benefits, allows the optio‘n for business
years beginning on or after 1 January 2006/0f recognising
all actuarial gains and losses from pension!obligations out-
side profit or loss. We plan to take advantaée of this option
and to replace the previously prescribed corridor method
for determining the actuarial gains and Ioss“es to be recog-
nised in the income statement. Its application will probably
resultin a higher disclosure of pension prO\‘/isions. We will
apply this change retrospectively as from 1 ‘\January 20086,
in accordance with 1AS 8. |

IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, will be applicable
as from 1 January 2007. In addition to the e;dsting disclos-
ure obligations in respect of recognition and measure-

ment of financial instruments, the new stan“dard requires
\

|

|
|

enhanced disclosure of information on the type and extent
of risks from financial instruments. Parallel to this, the
revised IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements,
requires qualitative disclosures on objectives, policies
and processes for managing capital. We will probably
already meet the requirements of both standards in the
business year 2006.

IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measure-
ment, and IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, were modified in
August 2005 with regard to financial guarantees and credit
insurance contracts. As from 1 January 2006, there is the
option of accounting for credit insurances in accordance
with 1As 39. We will not take advantage of this option,
however, and will continue to account for the transactions
concerned in accordance with IFRS 4.
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Assets

(A Intangible assets

In accordance with {FRS 3, goodwill from the first-time con-
solidation of subsidiaries is tested for impairment at least
once annually, i.e. the carrying amount of goodwill is com-
pared with the recoverable amount and written down for
impairment if necessary.

Other intangible assets mainly comprise purchased and
internally generated software and acquired insurance
portfolios. The software is carried at cost less straight-line
amortisation. The useful life assumed is three to five years.
Acquired insurance portfolios are recognised at their pres-
ent value on acquisition (PVFP: present value of future prof-
its). They are amortised in accordance with the realisation
of the profits from the insurance portfolios underlying the
PVFP calculation.

The other intangible assets are tested for impairment at
each balance sheet date and write-downs made if required.
Write-downs of software and other intangible assets are
distributed in the consolidated income statement between
the investment result, expenses for claims and benefits
and operating expenses. If it is not possible to allocate the
expenses to these functional areas, they are shown under
“other expenses”. Write-downs of purchased insurance
portfolios are recognised under operating expenses. Write-
ups of software and other intangible assets are included in
“other income”.

Investments

Land and buildings shown under investments comprise
property used by third parties and are carried at cost.
Maintenance expenses are recognised as an expense.
Structural measures equivalent to 5% or more of the histor-
ical cost of a building are generally assessed with regard
to whether they have to be capitalised. Buildings are
depreciated in accordance with the component approach
over 40 to 55 years, depending on the useful life deter-
mined for their specific building class. If the recoverable
amount of land and buildings falls below their carrying
amount, the carrying amount is written down to the re-
coverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as
investment expense in the consolidated income state-
ment, and reversals of impairment losses as investment
income.
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investments in affiliated companies that we do not consoli-
date because they are not material are carried at their fair
values insofar as these can be reliably measured pursuant
to IAS 39. If the investments are quoted on a stock exchange,
we use the share prices at the balance sheet date; for other
investments, the fair value is measured using the discounted
earnings approach or the net asset value method. Changes
in fair value are recognised in “other reserves” under un-
realised gains and losses.

Investments in associates are valued by the equity method
atthe Group's proportionate share of their net assets. The
associate’s earnings attributable to the Group are included
in the investment result. As a rule, the most recent individ-
ual or consolidated financial statements of the associate
are used; exceptional transactions of material importance
for a true and fair picture of the associate’s financial position
are recognised in the same business year. Investments in
associates that are determined as being not material for
assessing the Group’s financial position are carried at fair
value insofar as this can be reliably measured pursuant to
1AS 39. To determine the fair value, we use the share prices
at the balance sheet date; for investments not quoted

on a stock exchange, the fair value is measured using the
discounted earnings approach or the net asset value
method.

Loans are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are carried at amortised cost, i.e. any pre-
miums or discounts are deducted or added to the acquisi-
tion costs according to the effective interest method, with
impact on profit or loss, until the redemption amount
becomes payable. Write-downs for impairments are made
in cases where the repayment of a loan can no longer

be expected. This item includes promissory notes and
registered bonds.

Fixed-interest securities held to maturity are carried at
amortised cost.

Fixed-interest and non-fixed-interest securities available
for sale are accounted for at fair value, with interest
deferrals being made as with loans. Unrealised gains or
losses are recognised directly in equity, after deduction of
deferred taxes and the amounts apportionable to policy-
holders by the life and health insurers on realisation
{provision for deferred premium refunds). This item also
includes registered bonds and promissory notes.



|
|
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With all fixed-interest and non-fixed-intere\st securities,
impairments in value ~ in contrast to tempc‘erary diminu-
tions — are recognised as an expense in the consolidated
income statement. IAS 39.59 contains a Iist‘\of factors pro-
viding objective evidence of impairments in the value of
such investments. In addition, 1AS 39.61 states that for
equity investments a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the investment below its aé‘quisition cost
is abjective evidence of impairment. Acquisition cost is
determined on the basis of the average company purchase
prices. In the case of an impairment, a write-down is made
to the fair value at the balance sheet date, i.\e. generally the
publicly guoted market price. In the case of “a further fall in
the fair value of equity investments that have already been
written down once, a further write-down reéognised inthe
income statement is made again immediateﬂy, even if the
impairment is only temporary. 0
Securities held for trading comprise all fixed—interest and
non-fixed-interest securities that we have acquired for
trading purposes to earn short-term profits from price
changes and differences; in addition, they include all deriv-
ative financial instruments with positive fair}values which
we have acquired for hedging purposes but ‘yvhich do not
meet the strict requirements of 1As 39 for hedge account-
ing. Securities held for trading are accounted for at fair
value at the balance sheet date. If there are no stock market
prices available, fair values (particularly witH derivatives)
are based on recognised valuation methods. Alf unrealised
gains or losses from such valuation are included in the
investment result. \‘
Deposits retained on assumed reinsurance are receivables
from our cedants for cash deposits that have‘;been retained
under the terms of reinsurance agreements; they are
accounted for at face value. |
Other investments are also carried at face value.
Financial assets in our direct portfolio are genérally account-
ed for at the settlement date. Investments held in special
funds are accounted for at the trade date. |

|
[T Investments for the benefit of life ﬁnsuram‘gce policy-
holders who bear the investment risk i
These are investments for policyholders under unit-linked
life insurances. They are measured at amortisl‘ed cost.
All unrealised gains or losses from changes in fair value

|
|

are included in the investment result. Unrealised gains and
losses are matched by corresponding changes inthe
underwriting provisions {equity and liabilities item D),
which are taken into account in the underwriting result.

[@] Ceded share of underwriting provisions

The share of underwriting provisions for business ceded
by us is determined from the respective underwriting pro-
visions in accordance with the terms of the reinsurance
agreements; cf. the notes to the equity and liabilities item C.
Appropriate allowance is made for credit risks.

[B] Receivables

Receivables on primary insurance business, accounts
receivable on reinsurance and other receivables are
carried at face value; adjustments of value are made
where necessary.

[F] Cash with banks, cheques and cash in hand
Cash and cheques are accounted for at their face value.

[@] Deferred acquisition costs

Deferred acquisition costs comprise commissions and
ather variable costs directly cannected with acquisition

or renewal of insurance contracts.

In life primary and reinsurance and in health primary insur-
ance, the deferred acquisition costs are also capitalised
and amortised over the terms of the contracts either pro-
portionally to the premium income (FAS 60) or proportion-
ally to the respective contracts’ expected gross profit mar-
gins calculated for the relevant year of the contract term
(FAS 97, 120). The allocation of individual contracts to the
FAS concerned is shown in the notes to equity and liabil-
ities item C. In determining the amount of amortisation,
an actuarial interest rate and changes resuiting from the
disposal of contracts from the portfolio are taken into
account.

In other reinsurance and in property-casualty insurance,
the deferred acquisition costs are amortised on a straight-
line basis over the average term of the policies, from one
to five years.

Deferred acquisition costs are regularly tested for impair-
ment using a liability adequacy test {(cf. notes to equity and
liabilities item C).




(f] Deferred tax assets

Under iAs 12, deferred tax assets must be recognised in
cases where asset items have to be valued lower, or liabil-
ities items higher, in the consolidated balance sheet than
in the tax accounts of the Group company concerned and
these differences will even themselves out again with
effect on taxable income (temporary differences). Also
included are tax assets deriving from tax loss carry-for-
wards. We take into account the tax rates of the countries
concerned and the company’s respective tax situation;

in some cases, for purposes of simplification, we use
uniform tax rates for individual circumstances or sub-
sidiaries.

Where unrealised losses on securities available for sale
are recognised in equity (see “other securities available
for sale”), the resulting deferred tax assets are recorded
but not recognised in income.

Deferred tax assets are reversed if a realisation of the
corresponding receivable is not probable.

1] Other assets
Other assets are generally carried at cost. Owner-occupied

property is accounted for as outlined under B. Investments.
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Equity and liabilities

(A] Equity

The item issued capital and capital reserve contains the
amounts that the equity holders of the parent have paid in
on shares. The capital reserve is reduced by the externally
generated costs directly connected with equity capital
measures, after taking into account tax effects. Under
retained earnings, we show the profits which consolidated
companies and special funds have earned and retained
since becoming part of the Munich Re Group, and income
and expenses resulting from consolidation measures. In
addition, the adjustment amount resulting from changes
in accounting policies for earlier periods not included in
the consolidated financial statements is recognised in

the opening balance of the retained earnings and other
reserves for the earliest prior period presented. Other
reserves contain unrealised gains and losses resulting
from the recognition of other securities available for sale
at fair value and investments in unconsolidated affiliated
companies; they also include unrealised gains and losses
resulting fram the valuation of associates at equity, differ-
ences resulting from the currency translation of foreign
subsidiaries’ figures, and the valuation result from the
hedging of cash flows. Besides this, write-ups of other
equity investments available for sale are also recognised
in this equity item.

In accordance with 1as 32, own shares held by Munich Re
at the balance sheet date have been deducted directly from
retained earnings.

Minority interests are accounted for as part of equity in the
balance sheet. These are the shares of third parties in the
equity of subsidiaries that are not wholly owned directly or
indirectly by the parent. Direct minority interests in special
funds are recognised under “other liabilities”. The portion
of the result attributable to minority interests is shown as
appropriation of profit in the consolidated income state-
ment.

(] subordinated liabilities

Subordinated liabilities are liabilities which, in the event of
liquidation or insolvency, are only satisfied after the claims
of other creditors. They are recognised at amortised cost,
i.e. any premiums or discounts are deducted from or
added to the acquisition costs according to the effective
interest method, with impact on the income statement,
until the redemption amount becomes payable.



|
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Gross underwriting provisions I‘l

Underwriting provisions are shown gross in our balance
sheet, i.e. without deduction of the share apportionable to
business ceded by us; cf. the explanatory reharks on assets
item D. The ceded share is calculated and aFcounted foron
the basis of the individual reinsurance agreements. Acqui-
sition costs are capitalised and amortised over the terms of
the contracts {cf. notes on assets item G). ‘

|
Unearned premiums are accrued premiumslaiready written

for future risk periods. For primary insuranée, these pre-
miums are calculated separately for each insurance policy
pro rata temporis; for reinsurance, nominal\percentages
are used in some cases where the data for ajcalculation pro
rata temporis is not available. The posting of unearned
premiums is generally restricted to short-term underwrit-
ing business. |

The provision for future policy benefits is posted for the
actuarially calculated value of obligations arising from
guaranteed entitiements of policyholders in life and
personal accident insurance. It also includeé the ageing
reserves for health primary insurance conducted like life
insurance. The actuarial assumptions used ﬁor its calcula-
tion include, in particular, assumptions relating to mortal-
ity, disablement, morbidity, interest rate development,
lapses and costs. These are estimated on a rfaa!istic basis
at the time the insurance contracts are concluded and
they include adequate provision for adverse'deviation to
take account of the risks of change, error and random
fluctuations. The actuarial assumptions are é;djusted if the
original provisions for adverse deviation are'no longer
considered sufficient. |

The measurement of the provision for futureipolicy bene-
fits depends on the type of contract, being based either on
FAS 60 (for life primary insurance without performance-
related participation in surplus, health primary insurance
and the bulk of reinsurance in the life and heetalth segment),
on FAS 97 {life primary insurance contracts with limited
premium payment, life primary insurance onlthe universal
life model, unit-linked life insurance and life r\‘einsurance
for assumed policies based on FAS 97) or on FAS 120 (life
primary insurance with performance-related bar’ticipation
in surplus). \

For contracts in accordance with FAS 60, the provision for
future policy benefits is calculated from the ptresent value
of estimated future policy benefits (including claims
adjustment expenses) less the present value of future

net level premiums. Net level premium is that part of the

gross premium that is needed to finance future policy
benefits.

Life primary insurance contracts with limited premium
payment as per FAS 97 are generally valued in the same
way as contracts falling under FAS 60. For all other con-
tracts as per FAS 97, an account is kept to which premiums
and interest earnings are credited and from which risk
premiums and administration expenses are debited, not all
credits and debits being contractually fixed at the time the
contracts are concluded. Premium components exceeding
the net level premium are recognised as unearned revenue
liability and amortised over the remaining term of the con-
tracts.

The provision for future policy benefits for life primary
insurance where policyholders bear the investment risk
themselves (unit-linked life insurance) is shown separately
under equity and liabilities item D.

In the case of contracts as per FAS 120, the provision for
future policy benefits is made up of the net level premium
reserve and liabilities for terminal dividends. The net level
premium reserve is calculated from the present value of
guaranteed policy benefits (including acquired bonuses
but excluding claims adjustment expenses) less the pres-
ent value of future net level premiums. The net level pre-
mium is the net premium less the portion of the premium
envisaged for covering claims adjustment expenses. The
actuarial assumptions are generally the same as those
used for premium calculation. Provisions for terminal divi-
dends are built up proportionally with a fixed share of the
expected gross profit margins. The same method is used
for this as for determining the amortisation of the deferred
acquisition costs.

The provision for outstanding claims is for payment obli-
gations arising from insurance and reinsurance contracts
where the size of the claim or the date of the payment is
still uncertain at the balance sheet date. Part of the provi-
sion is for known claims for which individually calculated
provisions are posted. Another part is for expenses for
claims which are not yet known (e.g. because they have not
been reported yet or have not yet manifested themselves).
A third class of provisions covers claims which are basically
known but whose extent has turned out to be greater than
originally foreseen. All these provisions include expenses
for internal and external loss adjustment expenses. The
provision for outstanding claims is based on estimates:
the actual payments may be higher or lower.




The amounts posted are the realistically estimated future
amounts to be paid; they are calculated on the basis of past
experience and assumptions about future developments
(e.g. social, economic or technological parameters) and
using appropriate actuarial methods. Future payment obli-
gations are generally not discounted; exceptions are some
actuarially calculated provisions for annuities in workers’
compensation, motor insurance, personal accident and li-
ability insurance, which are discounted at a rate admissible
under supervisory law.

For determining the provision for outstanding claims, the
Munich Re Group uses a range of actuarial projection
methods. These include the chain ladder method and the
Bornhuetter-Ferguson method. In applying the statistical
methods, large exposures are regarded separately. The
standard actuarial methods we use are applied both to the
run-off triangles for the payments and to the run-off tri-
angles for the reported claims, so that we obtain a range of
estimates for the ultimate loss. Within this range, a realistic
estimated value for the ultimate loss is determined for the
balance sheet date. By deducting the payments already
made, we arrive at the provision for cutstanding claims
recognised in balance sheet.

Other underwriting provisions mainly include the provi-
sions for premium refunds in primary insurance and
provisions for profit commission in reinsurance.
Provisions for premium refunds are pasted in life and
health primary insurance for obligations involving policy-
holder bonuses and rebates that have not yet been irrevoc-
ably allocated to individual contracts at the balance sheet
date. Where these provisions are posted on the basis of
national regulations, a retrospective approach is usually
taken based on supervisory or individual contract regula-
tions. Besides this, there are provisions for deferred pre-
mium refunds, which are posted for the amounts appor-
tionable to policyholders from the valuation differences
between IFRS and German Commercial Code on the basis
of the expected future participation quota. If in this context
unrealised gains and {osses are recognised directly in
equity (see assets item B}, the resultant provision for
deferred premium refunds is also posted without impact
on profit or loss; otherwise, changes in the provision for
deferred premium refunds are recognised in the consoli-
dated income statement.

The underwriting provisions are regularly subjected to a
liability adequacy test. If the result of this test shows that
the carrying amount of the provisions — less the related

deferred acquisition costs — is inadequate in the light of the
estimated future cash flows, the underwriting provisions
are adjusted with recognition in profit or loss. The appro-
priateness of unearned premiums and the provisions for
outstanding claims are assessed in relation to the realisti-
cally estimated future amount to be paid. Assessment of
the appropriateness of the provisions for future policy
benefits is made on the basis of realistic estimates of the
actuarial assumptions, the proportional investment result
and, for contracts with participation in surplus, the future
profit sharing.

(D] Gross underwriting provisions for life insurance
policies where the investment risk is borne by the
policyholders

This item comprises the provisions for future policy bene-
fits in life primary insurance where policyholders bear the
investment risk themselves (unit-linked life insurance). The
value of the provisions for future policy benefits essentially
corresponds to the market value of the relevant invest-
ments shown under assets item C. Besides this, as under
the provisions for future policy benefits as per FAS 97, they
may include additional premium components; cf. the notes
to assets item C. Changes in these provisions are fully
recognised in the underwriting result. Insofar as these
changes derive from unrealised gains and losses from
alterations in the fair values of the related investments,
they are mirrored by opposite changes of the same
amount in the investment result.

[Z] Other accrued liabilities

This item includes provisions for post-employment bene-
fits. The companies in the Munich Re Group generally
give commitments to their staff in the form of defined
contribution plans or defined benefit plans. The type and
amount of the pension obligations are determined by the
conditions of the respective pension plan. In general, they
are based on the staff member’s length of service and
salary.

Under defined contribution plans the companies pay fixed
contributions to an insurer or a pension fund. This fully
covers the companies’ obligations.

Under defined benefit plans the staff member is promised
a particular level of retirement benefit either by the com-
panies or by a pension fund. The companies’ contributions
needed to finance this are not fixed in advance.



If pension obligations are cavered by assets held by a
legally separate entity (e.g.afund or a contl"actua! trust
agreement in the form of a two-way trust) —|{assets that
may only be used to cover the pension com‘mitments given
and are not accessible to creditors — the pension obliga-
tions are shown less the amount of these plan assets. If the
fair value of the plan assets exceeds the related outsourced
pension obligations, this repayment claim its shown under
“other receivables”. \

Pension obligations are recognised in accordance with

1AS 19, Employee Benefits, using the project‘ed unit credit
method and based on actuarial studies. This includes not
only the pension entitlements and current pensions known
on the balance sheet date but also their expécted future
development. The interest rate at which the pension obli-
gations are discounted is based on the yields for long-term
high-quality bonds (e.g. government bonds)“.

Actuarial gains or losses from pension obligations and
plan assets result from the deviation of actual risk experi-
ence from estimated risk experience. They are recognised
by means of the corridor method laid down in 1As 19.
According to this, actuarial gains or losses afre recognised
in the income statement if they exceed the higher of the
following amounts at the beginning of the business year:
10% of the present value of the vested benefi“ts or 10% of
the fair value of the plan assets. “

Tax provisions for current taxes are posted -—‘lwithout dis-
counting - in accordance with the probable tax payments
for the year under review or previous years. |

Other provisions are posted in the amount of the probable
requirement; such amounts are not discounted if insignifi-
cant.

F] Liabilities

The liabilities shown under this item ~ notes and deben-
tures, accounts payable, deposits retained on ceded busi-
ness and other liabilities — are recognised at the settlement
value, except for the option components of the exchange-
able bonds of Munich Reinsurance Company and ERGO
International AG. The value of the option components is
determined as the difference between the market price of
the exchangeable bonds and the value of the bond com-
ponents calculated on the basis of current market yields.
Direct minority interests in special funds are measured at
fair value.

[&] Deferred tax habilities

Under 1S 12, deferred tax liabilities must be recognised if
asset items have to be valued higher, or liabilities items
lower, in the consolidated balance sheet than in the tax
accounts of the reporting company and these differences
will even themselves out again with impact on taxable
income (temporary differences); cf. the notes on assets
item H.
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Foreign currency transiation

Munich Re’s presentation currency is the euro (€). The bal-
ance sheets of foreign subsidiaries whose national cur-
rency is not the euro are translated in accordance with the
functional currency principle using the year-end exchange
rates, and their income statements using quarterly average
exchange rates; any exchange differences arising in the
process are recognised in equity (other reserves) and
excluded from earnings.

Foreign-currency transactions are essentially translated
into the Group companies’ respective national currencies
in accordance with 1AS 21. In the case of reinsurance, the
principle of currency matching aiso applies. This means

Currency {ranslation rates

Balance sheet

that Group companies which write a significant portion of
their business in foreign currency generally safeguard
themselves against exchange losses by attempting to
match assets and liabilities in the same currency. Where
exchange gains or losses occur nevertheless in the trans-
lation of foreign-currency transactions into the national
currencies of the consolidated companies, they are
accounted for under “other income” and “other expenses”
respectively.

The following table shows the exchange rates of the most
important currencies for our business:

Income statement

Rate for €1 31.12.2005 Prev. year Q4 2005 Q3 2005 Q2 2005 Q12005 Q4 2004 Q32004 Q2 2004 Q12004
Australian dollar 1.60800 1.73395 1.59865 1.60501 1.83782 1.68700 1.71287 1.72222 1.68814 1.63427
Canadian dollar 1.37790 1.62860 1.39511 1.46595 1.56661 1.60773 1.58402 1.59919 1.63748 1.64815
Pound sterling 0.68710 0.70795 0.68021 0.68331 0.67843 0.69373 0.69539 0.67228 0.66688 0.68042
Rand 7.48125 7.65770 7.76097 7.93395 8.07194 7.87518 7.83521 7.79333 7.93235 8.46186
Swiss franc 1.55460 1.54565 1.54767 1.55348 1.54375 1.54902 1.53345 1.53623 1.53775 1.56825
US dollar 1.17955 1.35925 1.18880 1.21973 1.25887 1.31156 1.29814 1.22233 1.20494 1.25018
Yen 139.2220 139.2820 139.3170 135.6200 135.3510 137.0670 1371300  134.3640  132.1350  134.0120
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Notes to the consolidated balance sheet — Assets
|
|
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{1) Goodwill

All figures in €m

2005 Prev. year
Carrying amount at 31.12. previous year” 3,144 3,568
Currency translation differences 170 -106
Carrying amount at 1.1. business year 3,314 3,462
Additions 2 30
Disposals 45 4
Amortisation and impairment losses
- Amortisation (up to 31.12.2004) - 222
- Impairment losses 7 122
Carrying amount at 31.12. business year 3,264 3,144

“In accordance with IFRS 3.79 b, the gross carrying amount of €5,316m at 31 December 2004 has been netted against the relevant accumulated

amortisation and impairment fosses of €2,1772m.

|

The goodwill results mainly from the acquis‘ition of Ameri-

can Re in November 1996 and from the acquisition of the
additional shares in the ERGO Insurance Grgup in 2001 and
2002. The disposals of €45m stem largely fr%)m the sale of
the Karlsruher Insurance Group. |

|
Impairment test for the main items of goodiwill
For the purpose of impairment testing, IFRS 3 in conjunc-
tion with the revised IAS 36 stipulates that the goodwill has
to be allocated to the cash-generating units éxpected to
derive benefit (in the form of cash flows) from the business
combination. To ascertain whether there is any impair-
ment, the carrying amount {including aliocated goodwill)
of a cash-generating unit is compared with the recoverable
amount. The “recoverable amount” is the higher of
- its fair value less costs to sell and ;

- its value in use (present value of the future cash flows
expected to be derived from a cash-generating unit).
The future cash flows used for determining the value in
use are based on management’s most recent financial
plans/forecasts. Beyond the period covered by these
financial plans/forecasts, the future cash flows are es-
timated by extrapolating the prognoses on which the
financial plans/forecasts are based, applying constant or
declining growth rates for the subsequent years.

For impairment testing, the goodwill from the acquisition

of American Re (carrying amount of €1,5770m) and from the

acquisition of shares in the ERGO Insurance Group (carry-
ing amount of €1,754m) was allocated to the cash-generat-
ing units “reinsurance property-casualty segment” and

“ERGO" respectively. The recoverable amount of these

units was determined on the basis of the value in use. For

the business year 2005, the impairment test did not give
rise to any need for write-downs of goodwill for these
cash-generating units.
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Main assumptions for calculating the cash-generating
units’ value in use
The impairment test for the goodwill from the acquisition

of American Re and from the acquisition of ERGO was car-
ried out on the basis of the current cash flow plans at the
time of testing in the first quarter.

Underlying assumptions for the cash flow prognoses at the time of the impairment test

Reinsurance ERGO

property-casualty segment

Pricing and ~ Marginally declining premium income - Property-casualty insurance {including legal expenses
contractual insurance): Slight premium growth
conditions — Life insurance: Stable premium income

— Health insurance: Weakened premium growth
Claims ~ Slightincrease in combined ratios with stable absolute - Slightincrease in combined ratio (but within the
experience claims amount long-term target of 95%)

Return on investment

Our hasic assumptions for the planning period were moderately improving equity markets and virtually static interest rates,
albeit with a slight fall expected in the interest-rate level in 2006. These basic assumptions have been adjusted to take account
of national circumstances at the individual subsidiaries.

Detailed cash flow 3years 3 years
planning on the

basis of financial

plans/forecasts

Growth rate used 0-1.5%

for extrapolating
beyond the cash
flow planning
based on financial
plans/forecasts

1.5% as maximum growth factor as per Circular 2108/2003 of the German Insurance Association

Discount rate

10-13% 8-9%

The discount rate has been determined in the form of the weighted average cost of capital, using the Capital Asset Pricing
Model {caPm). The discount rate is caiculated from a risk-free basic interest rate plus a risk loading and the market interest
rate for borrowing, taking into account the capital structure. To derive the capital cost components (risk loading, capital struc-
ture), a peer group of international insurers and reinsurers is used, in accordance with 1as 36. The derivation of the risk-free
basic interest rate and the borrowing costs is based on market data. It is a pre-tax calculation. A reconciliation to Munich Re's
cost of capital is not possible.
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{2) Other intangible assets

Software Purchased Other 2005 Prev. year

. insurance
All figures in €m portfolios
Gross carrying amount at 31.12. previous year ' 958 1,079 305 2,342 2,177
Accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses
at 31.12. previous year 497 371 231 1,099 805
Carrying amount at 31.12. previous year 461 708 74 1,243 1,372
Currency translation differences 1 12 1 14 -6
Carrying amount at 1.1. business year 462 720 75 1,257 1,366
Change in consclidated group -37 -40 1 -76 32
Additions 98 13 6 117 160
Disposals 10 - 1 1 6
Changes under 1AS 8 - -75 - -75 -
Amortisation and impairment losses
~ Amortisation ) 119 36 15 170 238
- Impairment losses 1 5 - 6 71
Impairment losses reversed - - - - -
Carrying amount at 31.12. business year 393 577 66 1,036 1,243
Accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses
at 31.12. business year 450 520 232 1,202 1,099
Gross carrying amount at 31.12. business year 843 1,097 298 2,238 2,342

|

\
The figures shown under acquired insuranc‘e portfolios life and health and €1m (32m) to property-casualty; in the
include amortised carrying amounts of €39E%m resulting primary insurance segment, €3m (18m) is apportionable to
from the assumption of CNA Financial Corporation’s life life and health and €2m (-) to property-casuality.
reinsurance business and the acquisition of “additional The remaining other intangible assets include land rights
shares in the ERGO Iinsurance Group. | amounting to €1m {(1m).
An adjustment has been made to the acquiréd insurance Assets pledged as security and other restrictions on title
portfolios of ERGO Previdenza, in accordance with 1AS 8. amount to €1m (3m). Commitments to acquire other intan-
The additions for software concern €43m for“ the Gloria gible assets total €2m (11m).
project. ‘ Costs of €151m (59m) for research and development
The impairment losses are distributed between the differ- incurred in connection with software projects were not
ent Group segments as follows: \ capitalised but recognised as expenses.

In the reinsurance segment, €0m (20m) is ap‘portionable o




(3) Land and buildings, including buildings on third-party land

All figures in €m 2005  Prev. year
Gross carrying amount at 31.12, previous year 10,506 11,200
Accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses

at 31.12. previous year 1,460 1,125
Carrying amount at 31.12. previous year 9,046 10,075
Currency translation differences 7 -
Carrying amount at 1.1. business year 9,053 10,075
Change in consolidated group -668 ~18
Additions 104 282
Disposals 108 59
Impairment losses reversed 2 4
Depreciation and impairment losses

- Depreciation 127 338
—~Impairment losses 319 217
Reclassification -2,139 -683
Carrying amount at 31.12. business year 5,798 9,046
Accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses

at 31.12. business year 1,220 1,460
Gross carrying amount at 31.12. business year 7,018 10,506

In the business year 2005, owner-occupied property of
€2,139m (683m) was reclassified to the item “other
assets”.

The useful lives of the buildings were adjusted in the
business year, owing to the first-time application of the
component approach, and are now between 40 and 55
years (previous year: max. 50 years). The overall change
in depreciation volume resulting from this is insignifi-
cant.

The impairment losses largely result from market-value
adjustments at Hamburg-Mannheimer Versicherungs-
Aktiengesellschaft amounting to €152m and at Munich
Reinsurance Company amounting to €53m.

The impairment losses are distributed between the differ-
ent Group segments as follows:

in the reinsurance segment, €13m {18m) is apportionable
to life and health and €46m (77m) to property-casualty; in
the primary insurance segment, €252m (94m) is apportion-
able to life and health and €8m (4m) to property-casualty;
€0m (24m) is apportionable to the asset management seg-
ment.
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The reduction under “change in consolidated group” is
mainly due to the sale of the Karlsruher Insurance Group.
Property pledged as security and other restrictions on title
amount to €522m (688m). The expenditures recognised in
the carrying amount for assets in the course of construc-
tion total €39m (71m) at the balance sheet date, and con-
tractual commitments to acquire property amount to €25m
(12am).

The fair value of land and buildings at the balance sheet
date amounts to €7,132m (10,737m) and has been deter-
mined as follows: for directly held property, generally the
capitalised earnings value is calculated by internal experts
in accordance with the Statutory Order on Valuation. The
valuation is performed for each site individually as at

31 December 2005 except where valuation units are formed.
For developed and undeveloped property held through
real estate companies, the fair values are determined in
accordance with the statutory regulations by internal or
external experts.
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{4} Investments in affiliated companies and associates

i

All figures in €m 31.12.2005 Prev.year

Affiliated companies 184 158

Associates 1,128 3,725

Total | m 3,883
i

The decrease in investments in associateslis mainly due Re Group sold 1.86% of its stake in UniCredit’s share capital

to the acquisition of the HVB Group by UniCredit S.p.A., and now has a shareholding of under 5%, which is recog-

Milan. The Munich Re Group'’s total intereét inthe HvB nised under “other securities available for sale”.

Group amounted to 18.3%, and by acceptitﬁg the exchange The fair value of the investments in associates amounts to

offer in the fourth quarter of 2005, we acquired a share of €1,353m (4,191m) at the balance sheet date.

8.7% in UniCredit. Directly after the exchan“ge, the Munich An overview of the most important shareholdings is pro-
! vided on page 208.

|
|
|
|

(5) Loans

l
All figures in €m 31.12.2005 Prev.year
Mortgage loans 4,702 6,509
Loans and advance payments on insurance policies 587 692
Other loans 19,506 13,109

Total ? m 20,310

The fair values of the loans at the balance sheet date amounted to €25,666m (21,259m).

|
Contractuel period to meaturity

Carrying amounts

All figures in €m 31.12.2005 Prev. year
Up to one year 1,176 1,280
Over one year and up to two years 847 956
Over two years and up to three years 1,108 1,179
Over three years and up to four years 735 870
QOver four years and up to five years 1,061 1,083
Qver five years and up to ten years 11,331 9,696
Over ten years 8,637 5,266

Total } m 20,310

{8) Other securities held to maturity

Carrying amounts Fair values
All figures in €m 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev.year
Government bonds 13 37 13 37
Debt securities of banks } 432 525 451 555

\ T T o




Contraciua! period to maturity

Carrying amounts Fair values
All figures in €m 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev. year
Up to one year 167 82 169 84
Over one year and up to two years 39 164 40 171
Over two years and up to three years 61 a1 65 44
Over three years and up to four years 43 66 45 71
Over four years and up to five years 41 43 44 45
Over five years and up to ten years 94 166 101 177

Total

Rating con fair-value basis

All figures in €m

31.12,2005  Prev. year

AAA 13 23
AA 44 73
A 209 226
BBB and lower 2 74
No rating 196 1986
Total 592
The rating categories are based on those of the leading international rating agencies.
{7) Other securities available for sale

Carrying amounts Unrealised Amortised cost

gains/losses

All figures in €m 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev. year
Fixed-interest securities
- Government bonds
- Germany 12,513 15,478 467 507 12,046 14,971
- Rest of EU 17,725 18,422 549 561 17,176 17,861
- USA 4,671 3,178 17 -6 4,654 3,194
- Others 5,203 4,290 444 259 4,759 4,031
- Corporate debt securities 30,090 35,090 1,259 1,674 28,831 33,416
- Others 28,904 25,812 916 779 27,988 25,033
99,106 102,270 3,652 3,764 95,454 98,506
Non-fixed-interest securities
~ Shares 22,523 19,950 6,874 4,342 15,649 15,608
- Investment funds
- Equity funds 1,089 914 295 119 794 795
~ Bond funds 461 490 24 26 437 464
- Real estate funds 361 339 17 23 344 316
- Others 912 993 111 166 801 827
25,346 22,686 7,321 4,676 18,025 18,010

Total EIWEZ] 124,956 |

10,973 8,440 113,479 116,516




|
|
\
|
|
|
|

|
The corporate debt securities mainly com|‘3rise mortgage of €10,973m (8,440m) in comparison with amortised costs.

bonds with a high credit rating. \ Of this - after deduction of provisions for deferred premium
Iltems pledged as security and other restrictions on title refunds, deferred taxes, minority interests and consoli-
amount to €4,399m (6,257m). €6,166m (3,4\‘77m) of the dation effects — unrealised gains and losses of €6,036m
securities shown are loaned to third parties. {4,441m) have been posted in equity {other reserves).

Measurement at fair value results in valuation reserves

|
Disposal procseds in the business year

All figures in €m 2005 Prev. year
Fixed-interest securities 87.820 48,994
Non-fixed-interest securities

- Quoted 15,882 11,629
- Unquoted ‘ 242 990

Total | 103,944 61,613

Resglised gains and losses

All figures in €m 2005  Prev.year
Gains on disposal 3,748 2,835
Thereof:

- Fixed-interest securities 850 692
- Non-fixed-interest securities 2,898 2,143
Losses on disposal 403 495
Thereof: ‘

- Fixed-interest securities 225 149
-~ Non-fixed-interest securities , 178 346

Total i m 2,340

!
l

Ceniractual period to maturity of fixed-inierest securities

Carrying amounts Amortised cost
All figures in €m 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev.year
Upto one year 9,270 8,460 9,231 8,418
Over one year and up to two years 8,905 6,895 8,843 6,795
Over two years and up to three years 9,922 9,089 9,855 8,875
Over three years and up to four years 8,146 9,592 7,988 9,326
Qver four years and up to five years ' 6,742 9,021 6,568 8,687
Over five years and up to ten years ' 28,564 34,101 27,528 32,728
Over ten years 27,557 25,112 25,441 23,677

Total | EYRLE 102,270 95,454 98,506
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Rating of fixed-interest securities on fair-value basis

All figures in €m 31.12.2005  Prev. year
AAA 60,841 60,524
AA 22,917 27977
A 10,870 8,137
BBB 3,159 3,973
Lower 397 335
No rating 922 1,324
Total 99,106 102,270

The rating categories are based on those of the leading international rating agencies.

(8) Other securities held for trading

The securities held for trading include fixed-interest securi-
ties totalling €900m (351m), non-fixed-interest securities
totalling €am (em) and derivative financial instruments
(derivatives) totalling €970m (300m)

Derivative financial instruments

These are financial instruments whose fair value is derived
from one or more underlying assets.

A distinction is made between over-the-counter (0TC)
products and standardised transactions concluded on the
stock exchange.

Derivatives are used to hedge against currency, interest-
rate and other market-price risks. This is done at the Group

All figures in €m Qualifying for

companies within the framework of individual supervisory
regulations and additional company directives. The risk of
default is practically non-existent in the case of products
traded on the stock exchange. Over-the-counter products,
on the other hand, harbour a theoretical risk in the amount
of the replacement costs. Therefore, in the Munich Re Group,
only top-quality counterparties are selected for such trans-
actions.

Derivatives are measured at fair value. Depending on
whether they qualify for hedge accounting under the rules
of 1IAS 39 and whether they have positive or negative fair
values, derivatives are shown under the following balance
sheet items:

Fair value hedge accounting Balance sheet item 31.12,.2005 Prev. year
Positiv No Investments, other securities held for trading 970 300

ostive Yes Other assets 66 38
Negative \'\/‘eos Liabilities, other liabilities -128 -89
Total 9208 249

The following table shows the fair values and the related
notional principal amounts of our open positions, broken
down according to risk types and product categories.
Positive and negative fair values have been netted. At

31 December 2005, the open positions amounted to €308m
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(249m), i.e. less than 1% (1%) of the balance sheet total.
The fair values shown are either quoted prices or values at
the balance sheet date determined using recognised calcu-
lation models.




Cren positions

Periods to maturity in years

All figures in €m <1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 >5 31.12.2005 Prev. year
Interest-rate risks
Traded on the stock exchange
Futures Fair values -1 - - - - - -1 -1
Notional principal amounts 130 - - - - - 130 90
Over-the-counter
Options Fair values 35 64 69 73 78 334 653 111
Notional principal amounts 2,613 2,453 1,964 1,742 1,727 5,427 15,826 2,620
Swaps Fair values 2 - 1 9 - 130 142 96
Notional principal amounts 118 23 10 158 3 1,777 2,086 2,079
Eorwards Fair values - - - - - 4 4 -
Notional principal amounts - - - - - 318 318 -
Others Fair values - - - - - -42 -42 -
Notional principal amounts - - - - - 244 244 -
Total interest-rate risks
Fair values 36 64 70 82 78 426 756 206
Notional principal amounts 2,758 2,476 1,974 1,900 1,730 77686 18,604 4,789
Currency risks
Traded on the stock exchange
Futures Fair values - - - - - - - 3
Notionat principal amounts - - - - - - - 41
Over-the-counter
Forwards Fair values 8 -1 - - - - 7 10
Notional principal amounts 3,584 18 - - - - 3,602 1,676
Fair values - - - - - 1 1 -
Others Notional principal amounts - - - - - 244 244 -
Total currency risks
Fair values 8 ~1 - - - 1 8 13
Notional principal amounts 3,684 18 - - - 244 3,846 1,717
Equity and index risks
Traded on the stock exchange
Futures Fair values -9 - - - - - -9 -3
Notional principal amounts 366 ~ - - - - 366 404
. Fair values - 34 58 26 - - 118 84
Options . _—
Notional principal amounts 16 525 s11 336 - - 1,788 85
Others Fair values - - - - - - - -50
Notional principal amounts 1 - -~ - - - 1 26
Over-the-counter
Options Fair values 2 - - - - - 2 ~1
Notional principal amounts 1,716 - - - - - 1,716 1,209
Swaps Fair values - - - - 16 - 16 1
Notional principal amounts - - ~ - 100 - 100 4
Fair values - - - - - 11 1 -
Others MNotional principal amounts - - 1 - - 10 -
Total equity and index risks
Fair values -7 34 58 26 16 11 138 31
Notianal principal amounts 2,099 525 912 336 100 9 3,981 1,728
Credit risks ‘
Over-the-counter
Swaps Fair values_ ) - 1 - - 1 -2 - -1
Notional principal amounts - 4 - - 12 45 61 10
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Coen posiiions

Periods to maturity in years

All figures in €m <1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 >5 31.12.2005 Prev. year
Other risks
Traded on the stock exchange
Options Fair values 5 - - - - - 5 -
P Notional principal amounts 70 - - - - - 70 -
Over-the-counter
Ootions Fair values -1 - ~ - - - ~1 -
P Notional principal amounts 5 - ~ - - - 5 -
Swaps Fair values - - i - - 1 2 -
P Notional principal amounts 21 - 9 110 - 59 199 -
Total other risks
Fair values 4 - 1 - - 1 3 -
Notional principal amounts 96 - 9 110 - 59 274 ~
Total of all risks
Fair values 41 98 129 108 95 437 908 249
Notional principal amounts 8,537 3,023 2,895 2,348 1,842 8,123 26,766 8,244

Interest-rate risks in life primary insurance and life reinsur-
ance have been hedged using swaptions. These options to
receive a fixed interest rate are shown in the category
"interest-rate risks/over-the-counter/options”. If interest
rates fall, the value of these options increases; if interest
rates rise, the options lose value. The maximum loss is
restricted to the acquisition costs. At the reporting date,
the fair values of the swaptions amounted to €652m (111m).
Underlying notional principal amounts totalled €15,639m
(2,620m}. The investment result from derivatives includes
a gain of €82m (63m) from fluctuations in value of these
options. in the category “other risks”, we mainly recognise
weather derivatives.

Although the derivatives in the Munich Re Group essen-
tially serve to hedge against risks, only an amount of €6om
(35m}) meets the strict requirements of 1aS 39 for hedge
accounting.

IAS 39 distinguishes between fair value hedges and cash
flow hedges.

In the case of fair value hedges, the change in the fair value
of the hedging instrument and the change in the fair value
of the hedged instrument are recognised in profit or loss

under the item “investment result” in the consolidated
income statement. In the Munich Re Group, hedging
relationships in the form of fair value hedges are used to
selectively and efficiently reduce interest-rate risks of parts
of the portfolio and to mitigate other market-price risks.
The fair value of the derivatives used for this amounted to
€19m (—2m) at the balance sheet date.

Cash flow hedges play a role in countering fluctuations
that may be caused, for example, by variable interest
payments. In the Munich Re Group, derivatives are used
mainly to hedge against interest-rate risks. Changes in
the fair value of the hedging instrument are recognised
directly in equity for this purpose. Only when the actual
cash inflow or outflow takes place, as a result of the
hedged circumstance, is the relevant equity item reversed
with recognition in profit or joss. In 2005, a negative value
development of €4m was recognised in equity without
impact on profit or loss.

At the balance sheet date, there is an equity item of €6m
(1om) from cash flow hedges.

The net fair value of the derivatives falling into this cat-
egory amounted to €41m (37m) at the balance sheet date.

Periods to maturity and amouni of the hedged cash flows at the balance sheet date

<1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 Over5 Total Total
All figures in €m year years years years years years 31.12.2005 Prev. year
Notional principal amounts
of hedged transactions 115 23 " 169 3 401 712 555
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. . . |
(9) Deposits retained on assumed reinsurance

. . . \ .
Deposits retained on assumed reinsurance serve directly

as collateral for underwriting provisions covering business

. . |
assumed from cedants in reinsurance. The counterparty

risk is therefore limited. The amount of an(‘i changesin

deposits retained on assumed reinsurancé in the balance
sheet year generally derive from the value“s for the A

|
{11) Ceded share of underwriting provisions

|

changes in the related underwriting provisions for the
reinsured business.

{10) Other investments
This item includes deposits with banks totalling €2,479m
(2,829m).

| Reinsurance Primary insurance Total
Life and health Property-casualty Life and health Property-casualty

31.12. Prev. 31.12. Prev. 31.12. Prev. 31.12, Prev. 31.12. Prev.

All figures in €m” 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year
Unearned premiums ! 7 7 320 268 - -1 48 46 375 320
Provision for future policy benefits ‘ 1,470 1,208 - - 1,593 1,574 - - 3,063 2,782
Provision for outstanding claims ‘ 158 179 3,744 3,204 17 16 580 350 4,499 3,749
Other underwriting provisions ! 8 5 14 11 15 96 6 1 43 13

Total

m 1,399

4,078

3,4@ 1,685 634 397 QR 6964

" After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.

1

Details of the ceded shares of underwriting

|
|
{12) Receivables \

provisions are shown in Notes (18}, (19), {20} and (21).

All figures in €m 31.12.2005 Prev. year
Amounts receivable on primary insurance business 1,052 1,052
Accounts receivable on reinsurance business 4,133 3,710
Interest and rent 2,217 2,050
Tax 392 458
Other receivables 1,913 1,413

Total |

-E:ﬂ 8,683

I

The “other receivables” contain receivables from sales of
securities amounting ta €1,001m () and rec‘eivables of

€210m (294m) resulting from insurance contracts without
significant risk transfer, which do not fall within the scope

of application of IERS 4. “

Reference is made to the risk report for information on the
risks from defaults on receivables from underwriting busi-
ness.
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Contractual period to maturity

Carrying amounts

All figures in €m 31.12.2005 Prev. year
Up to one year 9,420 8,479
Over one year and up to two years 59 37
Over two years and up to three years 7 7
Over three years and up to four years 178 5
Over four years and up to five years 2 2
Over five years and up to ten years 25 140
Over ten years 16 13

Total

-z:ﬂ 8,683

(13) Deferred acquisition costs

Reinsurance

Primary insurance Total

All figures Life and health Property-casualty Life and health Property-casualty

in€m” 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev. year
Gross 1,873 1,644 1,068 1,041 4,815 5,314 466 451 8,222 8,450
Ceded share 15 25 70 64 5 41 8 B 98 54
Net 1,858 1,619 998 977 4,810 5,355 458 445 8,124 8,396
*After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.

Development of net deferred acquisitions costs

All figures in €m 2005
Status at 31.12. previous year 8,396
Change in consolidated group/Other -464
Currency translation differences 158
New deferred acquisition costs 1,101
Changes

— Amortisation -1,003
—Impairment losses -64

Status at 31.12. business year

Acquisition costs are capitalised and amortised over the

terms of the contracts, depending on the type of insurance.

This includes accrued interest. The impairment losses
stem from changes in the assumptions underlying the
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calculations, which require a retrospective adjustmentin
the measurement.

The change in the consolidated group mainly results from
the sale of the Karlsruher Insurance Group.




{14) Deferred tax
This involves the following items:

31.12.2005 Prev. year
All figures in €m Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
Losses carried forward 2,061 - 1,641 -
Intangible assets 10 259 14 252
Land and buildings ) 27 219 11 466
Investments {(other than land and buildings) ) 514 1,751 409 1,456
Underwriting provisions 2,139 1,389 1,934 1,538
Pension provisions 134 - 130 1
Claims equalisation provisions - 2,854 - 2,587
Others 171 729 187 741

Total

4,326 7,041

{15) Other assets \ totalling €352m (339m), deferred expenses from the

These mainly comprise owner-occupied property totalling conclusion of insurance contracts amounting to €82m (-)
€2,680m (683m), plant and equipment and inventories A and other deferred items of €175m {392m).

Development of owner-occupied property in the business year

All figures in €m 2005 Prev.year
Gross carrying amount at 31.12, previous year 824 -
Accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses at 31.12. previous year 141 -
Carrying amount at 31.12. previous year 683 -
Currency translation differences 1 ~
Carrying amount at 1.1. business year 694 -~
Change in consolidated group -79 -
Additions 67 -
Disposals 2 -
Impairment losses reversed 2 -
Depreciation and impairment losses

- Depreciation 54 -
- Impairment losses 87 -
Reclassification 2,139 683
Carrying amount at 31.12. business year 2,680 683
Accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses at 31.12. business year 736 141
Gross carrying amount at 31.12. business year 3,416 824
The useful lives of the buildings were adjusted in the The impairment losses are distributed between the different
business year, owing to the first-time application of the Group segments as follows:

component approach, and are now between 40 and 55 In the reinsurance segment, €6m (—) is apportionable to life

years {previous year: max. 50 years). The overali changein  and health and €20m (~) to property-casualty; in the pri-
the depreciation volume resulting from this is insignificant. mary insurance segment, €58m (-} is apportionable to life
The impairment losses largely result from market-value and health and €3m (~) to property-casualty; €om (-} is
adjustments at Munich Reinsurance Company amounting apportionable to the asset management segment.

to €26m and at DKV Deutsche Krankenversicherung

amounting to €38m.
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The reduction under “change in consolidated group” is
mainly due to the sale of the Karlsruher Insurance Group.
The fair value of the property at the balance sheet date
amounted to €2,874m.

Expenditures recognised in the carrying amount for assets
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in the course of construction total €57m for property and
€12m for plant and equipment at the balance sheet date.
Commitments to acquire property total €36m at the bal-
ance sheet date and commitments to acquire plant and
equipment amount to €12m.




Notes to the consolidated balance sheet — Equity and liabilities

{16) Equity

The total share capital of €587,725,396.48 as at 31 December
2005 is divided into 229,580,233 registered no-par-value
shares, each fully paid up and entitled to one vote.

By resolution of the Annual General Meeting on 26 May
2004, Munich Re was authorised to buy back shares
amounting to a maximum of 10% of the share capitalup 7

Sesveicoment of shares in circulation in the Susiness yeer

W

Number of shares

to 25 November 2005. This authorisation was cancelled by
the Annual General Meeting on 28 April 2005 and replaced
by a new one, authorising the Board of Management to
buy back shares amounting to a maximum of 10% of the
share capital up to 27 October 2006. The number of shares
in circulation developed as follows:

2005 Prev.year

Status at 1.1. business year

228,519,407 229,101,024

Additions

- issue of employee shares 17,248 10,123
- Sale of shares not held for safeguarding long-term incentive plans - 500
Reductions

- Acquisition of shares to issue to employees 15,942 10,000
—Acquisition of shares to safeguard stock appreciation rights under long-term incentive plans 513,050 582,240

Status at 31.12. business year

228,007,663 228,519,407

On 31 December 2005, a total of 1,572,570 Munich Re
shares with a calculated nominal value of €4,025,779.20
were held by Group companies. This represents 0.68% of
the share capital.

13,564 shares were purchased at an average price of €87.81
for the employee share programme set up by Munich Rein-
surance Company in 2005. After subscription by the
employees in 2005 and taking into account the 1,436 shares
left over from the 2004 employee share programme, a total
of 130 shares remain. For the employee share programme
of MEAG MUNICH ERGO AssetManagement GmbH set up in
2005, 2,378 shares were acquired at an average price of
€87.31, which were subscribed for by staff at a price of
€60.31. At 31 December 2005, there were no shares remain-
ing in the portfolio.

In addition, one subsidiary holds 1,203,269 shares to safe-
guard stock appreciation rights granted to the Board of
Management and top Munich Re executives since 1999. In
2005, a total of 400,000 shares were acquired for this at an
average price of €85.02,

In the business year 2005, companies of the ERGO Insur-
ance Group acquired 147,374 shares at an average price of

€89.78 to cover future commitments from the long-term
incentive plans launched since 2002 and sold 64,362
shares at a price of €115.18 each; it also sold 3,477 shares at
a price of €97.85 each. Together with the remaining Munich
Re shares acquired to safeguard the stock appreciation
rights granted in 2002-2004, the ERGO Insurance Group
has a total portfolio of 300,235 shares as at 31 December
2005.

Européische Reiseversicherung AG also acquired a further
5,300 Munich Re shares at a price of €85.40 per share in
the year under review and 7,372 at a price of €94.34 each to
safeguard future obligations from its long-term incentive
plan. As at 31 December 2005, together with the shares
acquired since 2003 to cover the long-term incentive plans,
it had a total portfolio of 16,872 shares.

MEAG MUNICH ERGO AssetManagement GmbH acquired
20,843 shares at €94.77 each in the business year 2005 to
safeguard obligations from its long-term incentive plan and
thus has a total portfolio of 52,064 Munich Re shares.

The acquisition costs of all Munich Re shares in the pos-
session of Group companies at the end of the business
year totalled €201,144,896.75.




Composition of capital authorised for capital increases

All figuresin €m 31.12.2005
Authorised Capital Increase 2004 {until 25 May 2009) 280.0
Authorised Capital Increase 2001 {(untif 18 July 2006} 3.8

Total

283.8

The Annual General Meeting on 28 April 2005 cancelled
the authorisation granted on 11 June 2003 to issue convert-
ible bonds and/or bonds with warrants, and Contingent A

Composition of contingent capital

Capital Increase 2003 11, replacing these with a new author-
isation to issue convertible bonds and/or bonds with war-
rants and a new cantingent capital {Contingent Capital
Increase 2005).

All figures in €m 31.12.2005
To safeguard subscription rights from exercise of warrants (Contingent Capital Increase 2003 1} 35
To safeguard conversion rights or subscription rights from convertible bonds or bonds with warrants (Contingent Capital Increase 2005) 100

Total

Composition of equity

All figures in €m 31.12.2005 Prev. year
Issued capital 588 588
Capital reserve 6,800 6,800
Retained earnings 8,021 7018
Other reserves 6,110 3,957
Consolidated result attributable to Munich Re equity holders 2,671 1,833
Minority interests 463 448"

Total equity

ulﬂ’ 20,644"

*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1AS 1 {rev. 2003).

The equity contains €4,933m of claims equalisation provi-
sions.

Retained earnings were reduced by €59m due to adjust-
ments under IAS 8. In the case of ERGO Previdenza S.p.A.,
Milan, modified actuarial methods had to be applied retro-
spectively for determining the fair value of acquired insur-
ance portfolios, which resulted in a reduction of the fair
value. After tax, this impacted retained earnings with an
amount of €44m. A further €3om is due to a correction
relating to reinsurance business between ERGO Previdenza
S.p. A, Milan, and Miinchener Rick Italia S.p.A., Milan. A
change in the method for measuring deferred acquisition
costs and underwriting provisions for life insurance policies
where the investment risk is borne by policyholders at

17Q

Vorsorge Lebensversicherung AG, Disseldorf, and Vorsorge
Luxemburg Lebensversicherung s.A., Munsbach, decreased
retained earnings by €13m. By contrast, a positive impact
of €39m resuited from the recalculation of deferred taxes
and provision for deferred premium refunds at Hamburg-
Mannheimer Versicherungs-Aktiengesellschaft, Hamburg,
New Reinsurance Company, Geneva, Europaeiske Rejse-
forsikring A/s, Copenhagen, Europeiska Forsakringsak-
tiebolaget, Stockholm, VICTORIA Lebensversicherung
Aktiengesellschaft, Disseldorf, KarstadtQuelle Lebensver-
sicherung AG, Flrth, and Deutsche Krankenversicherung
AG, Cologne. Further adjustments under 1AS 8, which
include the change in recognition of direct minority inter-
ests in special funds, reduced retained earnings by €11m.




The “other reserves” include €52m (150m) in unrealised prises and other securities. Unrealised gains and losses
gains and losses resulting from valuation of associates at apportionable to unconsolidated affiliated companies and
equity and €6,076m (4,471m) in unrealised gains and ather securities are distributed between the different items
losses on investments in unconsolidated affiliated enter- A as follows:

Urrealised gains and losses

All figures in €m 31.12.2005 Prev. year
Unconsolidated affiliated companies 42 33
Other securities available for sale

- Fixed-interest 3,652 3,764
~ Non-fixed-interest 7.321 4,676
Less:

~ Provision for deferred premium refunds recognised in equity 4,075 3,279
- Deferred taxes recognised in equity 845 721
- Minority interests 83 87
- Consolidation and currency translation effects -64 -85

Total -z:ﬂa 4,471

Minority interests Direct minority interests in special funds have been

These are mainly minority interests in the ERGO Insurance reclassified to “other liabilities” (see remarks under
Group. “Changes in accounting policies”).

All figures in €m 31.12.2005 Prev. year®
Unrealised gains and losses 85 87
Consolidated profit 75 54
Other equity 303 307

Total -!EI 448

*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1as 1 {rev. 2003).

(17) Subordinated liabilities

All figures in €m 31.12.2005 Prev. year
Munich Re Finance B.v.,, Amsterdam, 6.75%, €3,000m, Bonds 2003/2023 2,975 2,973
Munich Re Finance B.v., Amsterdam, 7.625%, £300m, Bonds 2003/2028 433 420

Total 3,408 3,393

The fair value of the liabilities at the balance sheet date amounts to €4,038m {3,974m).
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(18) Unearned premiums

Reinsurance Primary insurance Total
All figures Life and health Property-casualty Life and health Property-casualty
in€m* 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev.year
Gross 204 225 4,643 4,341 86 79 1,220 1,229 6,153 5,874
Ceded share 7 7 320 268 - -1 48 46 375 320
Net 197 218 4,323 4,073 86 80 1,172 1,183 5,778 5,554

* After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.

Unearned premiums in the life and health segment in pri-
mary insurance and reinsurance mainly concern health
insurance contracts.

Owing to the basically short-term nature of unearned

{18} Provision for future policy benefits

premiumes, the carrying amount mainly relates to premium
income from the year under review. It can generally be
reckoned that the corresponding liability will be settled

2 within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Reinsurance Primary insurance Total
All figures Life and heaith Property-casualty Life and health Property-casualty
in€m* 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12,2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev.year
Gross 13,810 12,882 702 642 79,644 88,152 189 150 94,445 101,926
Ceded share 1,470 1,208 - - 1,593 1,574 - - 3,063 2,782
Net 12,440 11,774 702 642 78,051 86,578 189 150 91,382 99,144
“After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.
Net provisions for future nolicy benefits according to insured risks
All figures in €m 31.12.2005
Life
- Mainiy mortality risk 42,450
- Mainly longevity risk (annuities) 16,638
- Mainly morbidity risk 1,378
- Combination of more than one risk 13,446
Health 16,579
Property-casualty 891
Total m
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The provision for future policy benefits involving a combin-
ation of more than one risk generally derives from reinsur-
ance contracts.

Provisions for future policy benefits in primary insurance
and reinsurance are determined on the basis of prudent
assumptions regarding expected mortality and morbidity.
For German life and health primary insurance, to which
approx. 92% of the provisions for future policy benefits in
primary insurance are apportionable, we mainly use the
biometric actuarial assumptions recommended by the
German Association of Actuaries. We also largely use the
tables of the national actuarial associations for the rest of
the primary insurance business. The actuarial assumptions
for calculating the provisions for future policy benefits in
reinsurance are derived mainly from tables published by
the national actuarial associations. These tables are modi-
fied in accordance with the termination rates observed in
the reinsured portfolios.

In determining the actuarial assumptions in primary insur-
ance and reinsurance, particular account is taken of the
future trend with regard to life expectancy. The termination
rates of the insured portfolios are regularly determined
and monitored over the course of time. Essentially the

same actuarial assumptions have been used as in the A
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previous year for measuring the provisians for future pol-
icy benefits for business in force.

In primary insurance, actuarial interest rates between 2.5%
and 5.0% are generally used. Of the net provisions for
future policy benefits posted by our life insurers, 69% are
calculated with actuarial interest rates of upto 3.5% and a
further 25% with actuarial interest rates of between 3.5%
and 4.0%. Around 6% of the provisions for future policy
benefits are apportionable to provisions for terminal divi-
dends whose interest rate is not guaranted. In health pri-
mary insurance, an actuarial interest rate of 5.0% is gener-
ally used for calculating the provisions for future policy
benefits.

For the most part, no guaranteed interest rate is explicitly
granted in reinsurance. However, the provisions for future
policy benefits are usually discounted. The relevant inter-
est on the provisions for future policy benefits is in many
cases collateralised by a corresponding deposit at the ced-
ing company, with the deposit interest guaranteed by the
cedant. Provisions for future policy benefits amounting to
€3,646m are not covered by deposits with cedants. For 49%
of the non-deposited provisions for future policy benefits,
the discount rate is a maximum of 5.0%; for 40% itis
between 5.0% and 6.5%; and for 11% it is above 6.5%.

All figures in €m 2005
Status at 31.12. previous year 101,926
Currency translation differences 3564
Change in consolidated group -10,949
Changes

- Scheduled 3,099
- Unscheduled 5

Status at 31.12. business year

The provision for future policy benefits derives from the
difference between the prospectively calculated present
values of future obligations and of future premiums.
Scheduled changes in the provisions for future policy bene-
fits contain changes resulting from premium payments,
benefit cases and the unwinding of discount in the year

94,445

under review. Unscheduled changes stem from alterations
in the assumptions underlying the calculations, which
required an adjustment in the measurement. The change
in the consolidated group mainly results from the sale of
the Karlsruher Insurance Group.
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(20) Provision for outstanding claims

Reinsurance Primary insurance Total
All figures Life and health Property-casualty Life and health Property-casualty
in€m* 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev.year
Gross 5,371 5,037 37,253 30,930 1,993 2,041 4,763 4,831 49,380 42,839
Ceded share 158 179 3,744 3,204 17 16 580 350 4,499 3,749
Net 5,213 4,858 33,509 27,726 1,976 2,025 4,183 4,481 44,881 39,090

*After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.

The expected timing of payments from the provision for
outstanding claims naturally involves considerable uncer-
tainties. We nevertheless expect a payout pattern for the
currently posted reserves that will not fundamentatly d

Net provisions in the life and health segment

change compared with past development. In particular, we
are proceeding on the assumption that — as in the past -
between 20% and 25% of the provision for outstanding
claims will become due for payment within 12 months.

Reinsurance Primary insurance

All figures in €m* 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev.year
Provision for benefit cases 2,267 1,802 1,232 1,235
Annuity provision 2,946 3,056 744 790
Total s.213 I3 1.976 2,025

*After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.

The provision for benefit cases is for claims already
incurred but not yet (fully) settled. These are usually due
shortterm and are largely measured at face value. The
provisions are subject to an underwriting risk only insofar
as they include, to a small extent, provisions for unknown
claims, whose amounts are estimated.

The annuity provision mainly involves ongoing disability
annuities. As with the provision for future policy benefits,
this is calculated as the present value of the expected future
(annuity) payments. The biometric actuarial assumptions 7

Net provisions in the property-casualty segment

are selected using appropriate actuarial principles. In pri-
mary insurance, a discount rate of between 2.5% and 4.5%
is applied. In reinsurance, the relevant interest on the provi-
sions for future policy benefits is in many cases collateral-
ised by a corresponding deposit at the ceding company,
with the deposit interest guaranteed by the cedant. An
interest-rate risk remains for undeposited provisions with
a volume of €835m, whose calculation is based on actuar-
ial interest rates of between 2.5% and 6.1%.

Reinsurance Primary insurance

All figures in e€m* 31.12.2005 Prev.year 31.12.2005 Prev.year
Provision for known claims {(case reserves) 18,211 15,621 2,974 3,261
IBNR reserves 15,183 12,018 965 938
Annuity provision 115 87 244 286
Total R 27,726 AL 4,481

* After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.
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The timing of the payment obligations varies according
to class of insurance, but altogether extends over a pro-
longed period.

IBNR reserves are calculated using actuarial methods on
the basis of current run-off triangles for payments made
and claims reported.

The annuity provision is for annuities in personal accident
and liability insurance. As with the provision for future pol-
icy benefits, this is calculated as the present value of the

expected future (annuity) payments. The biometric actuar-
ial assumptions are selected using appropriate actuarial
principles. A discount rate of between 2.5% and 4.0% is
applied.

In reinsurance, the provisions for known claims and the
IBNR reserves include a volume of €2,214m for us workers’
compensation business. This portion of the provisions is
discounted at a rate of 4.5%.

Development of the provisions for cutstanding claims in the property-casualty segment

All figures in €m Gross Ceded Net
Status at 31.12. previous year 35,761 3,554 32,207
Claims expenses

- For the year under review 14,321 1,499 12,822
- For previous years 595 168 427
Total 14,916 1,667 13,249
Less payments

— For the year under review 3,734 106 3,628
- For previous years 7,713 1,062 6,651
Total 11,447 1,168 10,279
Change in consolidated group -351 -41 ~-310
Currency translation differences 3,137 312 2,825
Status at 31.12. business year ‘ 42,016' 4,324' 37,692’7

The claims expenses shown for the year under review
comprise both payments made for the year under review
and expenses for posting the provision for claims in the
year under review.

The provisions for previous years are reduced by the pay-
ments made in the year under review for these years. As
the provisions are determined using best estimates based
on claims information and past claims experience, as well
as estimates of future claims development, it is inevitable
that the relevant estimate will regularly change as know-
ledge of claims cases grows in the year under review. This
change is shown under “claims expenses for previous
years”. A positive value here can be interpreted as a
strengthening of the provisions, and a negative value as

a reduction in the provisions posted in the past.

The strengthening of the reserves at American Re accounts
for €388m of the increase in net provisions shown. This
was due to deviations from the expected figures for
reported claims in workers’ compensation and liability
business, and to benefits for asbestos claims.

Changes in the consolidated group result mainly from the
sale of the Karlsruher Insurance Group and Nieuwe Hol-
landse Lloyd Verzekeringsgroep N.v.

Currency translation differences are mainly due to the
development of the US dollar against the euro.

Net run-off results in property-casualty business

The following table shows the provision for outstanding
claims in property-casualty business for the primary insur-
ers and reinsurers for the last ten years. This covers more
than 99% of the relevant provisions. What the table considers
is not the run-off of the provisions for individual accident
years, but the run-off of the provision posted at each bal-
ance sheet date, which contains the provisions for the
respective current accident year and for all previous acci-
dent years. The figures for the years 1997 and earlier were
determined on the basis of the relevant national account-
ing regulations; the figures for the years 1998 to the pres-
ent have been based on IFRS.




The table illustrates how the estimate of the respective bal-
ance sheet provision has changed in the course of time —
owing partly to payments made and partly to the re-esti-
mate of the outstanding payments. The net run-off result
reflects the difference between the current and original
estimate. It is often materially affected by changes in
exchange rates. The fluctuations in the value of important
foreign currencies for us (mainly the us dollar and the A

Net provision for outstanding claims and its run-off

pound sterling) against the euro led to significant changes
in the provisions. On the other hand, there have been
corresponding changes in the value of investments as a
consequence of our consistent currency matching policy.
Besides this, the strengthening of reserves in our US busi-
ness at American Re has had a negative impact on the
results.

31.12. 31.12, 31.12. 31.12. 31.12. 31.12. 31.12. 31.12. 31.12. 31.12. 31.12.
All figures in €m 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Net provision for outstanding claims 18,376 17478 19,080 18,857 22,429 23,509 28,764 32,316 31,415 31,955 37634
Aggregate payments for the year
concerned and previous years
One year later 3,791 4,636 4,148 5,250 7,137 7,126 8,242 7,178 6,925 6,632
Two years later 6,545 6,635 6,934 8,944 11,261 11,797 12,617 11,830 10,424
Three years later 7844 8,422 9,366 11,268 14,448 14,349 15,862 14,445
Four years later 9,162 10,154 10,821 13,241 16,155 16,788 17.928
Five years later 10,460 11,225 12,159 14,352 18,001 18,143
Six years later 11,320 12,268 13,016 15,727 18,841
Seven years later 12,202 12,992 13,995 16,256
Eight years later 12,786 13,684 14,352
Nine years later 13,272 14,104
Ten years later 13,572
Net provision for the year concerned
and previous years, plus payments
already made from the original
provision 16,376 17,478 18,080 18,867 22,429 23,509 28,764 32,316 31,4156 31,955 37,634
One year later 16,489 18,016 17,229 20,084 23,597 25,799 30,282 30,582 31,543 35,181
Two years later 17,001 16,925 17,749 20,602 24,708 27753 30,816 30,835 32,805
Three years later 156,757 17,223 17724 20,861 26,164 28,015 30,927 32,571
Four years later 16,168 17115 17839 21,996 26,041 28,396 33,406
Five years later 15,920 17,207 18,663 21,665 26,266 30,728
Six years later 16,005 17822 18,127 21,866 28,038
Seven years later 16,439 17407 18,254 23,457
Eight years later 16,034 17,461 19,440
Nine years later 16,066 18,694
Ten years {ater 17,115
Net run-off result of provision -739 -1,216 -350 -4,600 -5,807 ~7219  -4,842 -2565 -1,390 -3,228
Thereof currency translation
differences -1,760 -1,607 285 -1,680 -328 113 3,078 2,701 -87 -2,798
Net run-off result excluding currency
translation differences 1,021 331 -635 -2,920 -5,279 -7332 -7720 -2,856 -1,293 -428
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Provisions for asbestos and environmental claims

The provision for outstanding claims in the property-
casualty segment includes provisions for asbestos and
environmental claims. Since the mid-eighties industrial
insurers writing business worldwide have found them-
selves being confronted with losses from policies taken
out decades before. In particular, these include claims
under product liability policies in the USA involving as-
bestos-related injuries which manifest themselves after
along latency period. There are also potential claims
burdens under employers’ liability policies, especially

in some European countries. In addition, we have posted
provisions for claims under old general liability policies #

5 ’

Provisions for asbestos and envircnmental claims”®

which provided cover against environmental liability claims
under us law.

We have made provision for our share of these losses, con-
tinually adjusting our reserves in line with the latest know-
ledge of the loss potential.

As the result of a re-estimate, American Re increased its
net reserves for asbestos and environmental losses in 2005
by uss$ 259m.

Nevertheless, further loss burdens - particularly from
asbestos-related claims — cannot be ruled out. In view of
the unpredictable nature of court decisions in the markets
concerned, it continues to be difficult to make reliable esti-
mates of future development.

31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Allfigures in €m Gross Net Gross Net
Ashestos 1,447 1,114 1,405 1,083
Environmental 542 457 420 349
“The previous year's figures have been adjusted to take account of currency translation differences.
(21) Other underwriting provisions
Reinsurance Primary insurance Total

Life and health
31.12. Previous

Property-casualty
31.12. Previous

Life and health
31.12. Previous

Property-casualty

31.12. Previous 31.12. Previous

Alifigures in €m* 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year
Provision for premium refunds
based on national regulations - - - - 3,145 2,669 42 48 3,187 2,717
Provision for deferred premium refunds - - - - 6,492 5,811 - - 6,492 5,811
- Thereof resulting from unrealised gains

and losses on investments

{recognised directly in equity} - - - - 4,082 3,384 - - 4,082 3,384
~Thereof resulting from other revaluations

{recognised in profit or loss) - ~ - - 2,410 2,427 - - 2,410 2,427
Provision for profit commission 621 410 141 175 - - - - 762 6585
Other - 3 34 17 15 123 81 68 110 211

Total (gross)

92 B ees B v JEER] osa

“After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.

The ceded share of the other underwriting provisions
amounts to €43m (113m), of which €3m (3m) is

apportionable to the ceded share of the provision for pre-
mium refunds based on national regulations.




Development of provision for premium refunds based on national regulations

All figures in €m 2005  Prev, year
Status at 31.12, previous year 2,717 3,004
Allocations/Withdrawals 830 -287

-360 -

Changes in consolidated group

Status at 31.12. business year

-I!::I 2,717

The provision for premium refunds based on national reg-
ulations relates only to German primary insurance busi-

ness. The allocation is based on the statutory result of AN

Development of provision for deferred premium refunds

the relevant part portfolios after tax, with rates of between
85.0% and 92.5% after tax mainly being applied.

All figures in €m 2005  Prev. year
Status at 31.12. previous year 5811 3,790
Changes resuliting from unrealised gains and losses on investments (without impact on profit or loss) 899 1,553
Changes resulting from other revaluations (with impact on profit or loss) 50 468
Changes in consolidated group -268 -

Status at 31.12. business year

-z:a 5,811

Provisions for deferred premium refunds have to be set up
if the future participation of policyholders in realised gains
is provided for in the case of valuation differences between
the statutory and 1FRS basis. Changes in the provision for
deferred premium refunds are only recognised in the con-
solidated income statement to the extent that they result

from valuation differences recognised in profit or loss. A

For determining the portion of the valuation differences
allocable to the provision for deferred premium refunds,
rates of between 85.0% and 92.5% after tax were generally
used.

The changes in the consolidated group result mainly from
the sale of the Karlsruher Insurance Group.

(22) Gross underwriting provisions for life insurance policies where the investment risk is borne by the policyholders

All figures in €m 2005
Status at 31.12, previous year 1,328
Change in consolidated group and other influences ~-339
Savings premiums 461
Unrealised gains/losses on fund assets 170
Withdrawal for expenses and risk 27 -
Withdrawal for benefits 77

Status at 31.12. business year

These provisions are valued retrospectively. The with-
drawal for underwriting risks from the premiums and pro-
visions for future policy benefits is made on the basis of
prudent assumptions regarding expected mortality and
morbidity. Here, as with the provisions for future policy
benefits for non-unit-linked life insurance, the underlying
calculation is based on best estimates with appropriate
provisions for adverse deviation.

The provisions are directly covered by the investments for
the benefit of life insurance policyholders who bear the
investment risk. Small differences arise as a result of
including unearned revenue liability in these provisions.
The changes in the consolidated group stem chiefly from
the sale of the Karlsruher Insurance Group.




(23) Other accrued liabilities

All figures in €m

31.12.2005 Prev. year

Provisions for post-employment benefits 934 945
Tax provisions 2,032 1,084
Gther provisions 1,589 1,421

Total

-@ 3,450

Provisions for post-employment benefits

The companies in the Munich Re Group generally give
pension commitments to their employees in the form of
defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans. The
type and amount of the pension obligations are deter-
mined by the conditions of the respective pension plan.

Defined contribution plans
In the case of defined contribution plans, the company
commits itself to paying fixed contributions to a legally

Funded status of defined benefii plans

All figures in €m

independent entity and is not obliged to pay any further
amounts.

Expenses for defined contribution plans in the year under
review totalled €29m (29m).

Defined benefit plans

The amount of the defined benefits is largely dependent on
salary and length of service. These benefits may be par-
tially or fully financed through a pension fund.

31.12.2005 Prev. year

Present value of unfunded obligations 1,113 1,030
Present value of funded obligations 913 729
Fair value of pfan assets -726 -609
Actuarial gains/losses not recognised -430 ~249
Past service cost not yet recognised -2 -2
Other receivables 65 48
Other 1 -
Net balance sheet liability 945

For pension entitlements amounting to €68m {59m), there are reinsurances (reimbursement rights).
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Change in provision for defined benefit plans in the business year

All figures in €m 2005 Prev. year
Status at 31.12. previous year 945 879
Currency translation differences 15 -6
Expenses 167 134
Payments -40 -32
Capital transfer to pension funds -79 -16
Transfer to other receivables 19 -12
Change in consolidated group -100 -
Other 7 ~2
Status at 31.12. business year 945
3reaxdown cf expenses booked in the yeer under review

All figuresin €m 2005 Prev. year
Current service cost 76 67
Interest cost 9 88
Expected return on plan assets 34 31
Expected return on reimbursements 2 2
Net actuarial gains/losses recognised in year 15 8
Past service cost 24 7
Other -3 -1
Total m 134

The expenses are shown in the consolidated income state-
ment mainly under “operating expenses” and “expenses

The consolidated companies use the following actuarial
assumptions (weighted average values) for calculating

for claims and benefits”. A their pension obligations:

All figures in % 31.12.2005 Prev. year

Discount rate 4.4 5.2

Expected rate of return on fund assets 55 5.7

Expected rate of return on reimbursements 4.2 4.5

Future increases in entitiement/salary 3.9 3.6
2.0 1.9

Future pension increases

Tax provisions
Tax provisions comprise the provisions for current taxes
onincome and other taxes of the individual companies, A
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based on their respective national taxation. Deferred tax
obligations are shown under “deferred tax liabilities”.



Other provisions

Prev. year Allocations With- Reversal Other 31.12.2005
All figures in €m drawals changes
Earned commission 255 84 133 12 - 194
Early-retirement benefits/semi-retirement 172 62 41 15 1 179
Outstanding invoices 83 94 78 10 - 89
Anniversary benefits 52 10 1 1 1 61
Holiday and overtime pay 43 30 29 3 - a1
Bonuses 57 12 26 5 39
Miscellaneous 759 661 330 111 7 986
Total 1.421 953 638 157 10m

The miscellaneous other provisions comprise a large num-
ber of different items, including €66m (1m) for reconcile-
ment of interests, €65m (36m) for salary obligations, €28m
(26m) for competitions for sales staff, €22m (16m) far other
remuneration for desk and field staff, €10m (1om) for law-
suit risks, €8m (10m) for financial statement and reporting
expenses, €7m {8m) for social insurance against occupa- A

{24) Notes and debentures

tional accidents, and €61m (4m)} in connection with long-
term incentive plans.

The provisions for early-retirement benefits/semi-retire-
ment and anniversary benefits are mainly long term,
whereas the provisions for earned commission, outstand-
ing invoices, bonuses, holiday and overtime pay, and mis-
celianeous are essentially short term.

All figures in €m 31.12.2005 Prev. year
American Re Corporation, Princeton

7.45%, US$ 500m, Senior Notes 1996/2026 423 367
ERGO International Ag, Diisseldorf

2.25%, €345m, Bonds Exchangeable into E.ON AG Shares 2001/2006

0.75%, €345m, Bonds Exchangeable into Sanofi-Aventis s.A. Shares 2001/2006 674 652
Munich Reinsurance Company, Munich

1.0%, £1,550m, Bonds Exchangeable into Allianz AG Shares 2000/2005 - 1,223

Total

-l:EiI 2,242

The exchangeable bonds of ERGO International AG contain
embedded derivatives in the form of exchange options. In
accordance with 1As 39, they are each separated into a
derivative component and a liabilities component. Only the
liabilities components are shown under “notes and deben-
tures”, whilst the derivative components amounting to
€63m (16m) are included in “other liabilities”. The fair
value of our notes and debentures at the balance sheet
date amounts to €1,168m (2,321m).

Munich Reinsurance Company’s bonds exchangeable into
Allianz AG shares were redeemed with available funds in
the second quarter of the business year ended.

The bonds’ ratings are given on page 102f.

(25) Deposits retained on ceded business

Deposits retained on ceded business are collateral for
underwriting provisions covering business ceded to re-
insurers and retrocessionaires.

The changes in deposits retained generally derive from the
changes in the relevant underwriting provisions covering
ceded business. Except for an amount of €21m (23m), the
contractual period to maturity of the deposits retained on
ceded business is up to 12 months.
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{26) Other liabilities

All figures in €m 31.12.2005 Prev. year
Accounts payable on primary insurance business 4,697 5,993
Accounts payable on reinsurance business 3,194 3,243
Amounts owed to banks 2,126 2,519
Miscellaneous liabilities 2,271 2,075
Total 12,288 13,830"

* Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1as 1 {rev. 2003}

The accounts payable on primary insurance business
mainly contain liabilities towards policyholders resulting
from accumulated profit sharing, premium deposits and
insurance contracts without significant risk transfer. The
miscellaneous liabilities contain liabilities of €166m (305m)
resulting from reinsurers’ contracts without significant risk
transfer. In addition, €172m (197m) of the miscellaneous
liabilities is apportionable to tax liabilities, €37m (39m) to
liabilities for social security, and €143m (153m} to liabilities
for interest and rent.

Remaining terms of the other liabilities

Also included here are the derivative components of the

exchangeable bonds totalling €63m (16m). Further infor-
mation on this can be found under (24} Notes and deben-
tures.

In the business year 2005, the items shown under “other
deferred items” were completely reclassified to the item

“other liabilities”. The previous year's figures have been
adjusted accordingly.

All figures in €m 31.12.2005 Prev. year
Up to one year 9,206 10,318
Over one year and up to two years 180 758
Over two years and up to three years 37 69
Over three years and up to four years 348 34
Over four years and up to five years 99 305
Over five years and up to ten years 449 570
Over ten years 1,969 1,775

Total

- 2,288 13,830
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Notes
to the consolidated

(27) Premiums

All figures in €m~

income statement

Reinsurance Primary insurance Total

Life and health Property-casualty Life and health Property-casualty
Prev. Prev. Prev. Prev. Prev.
2005 year 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year

Gross premiums written

6,952 6,583 13,699 13,988 12,329 12,322 5,219 5,178 38,199 38,071

Change in unearned premiums
- Gross

Gross earned premiums

Ceded premiums written

-47 34 131 -245 5 6 121 56 -52 __ -217
T oot Ry 14.233
457 277 1,108 939 216 231 297 296 2,078 1,743

Change in unearned premiums

Net earned premiums

- Ceded share 1 2 31 -10
Earned premiums
- Ceded 275 949

6,342 JERER] 13284 ‘ ‘ 36,534

* After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.

In the case of life primary insurance products where the of the premiums used to cover the risks insured and asso-
policyholders bear the investment risk, only those parts > ciated costs are treated as premiums.
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{28) Investment result

investment resuli by type of investment and segment

{28} Ergebnis zus Kapitalanlagen

Life and health

Reinsurance

Property-casualty

Primary insurance Asset management Total

Life and health Property-casualty

Prev. Prev. Prev. Prev, Prev, Prev,
All figures in €m”* 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year
Land and buildings, including
buildings on third-party land 6 6 29 33 67 162 - 17 1 -24 103 194
Investments in affiliated
companies 39 -1 141 ~3 -1 -35 -38 3 ~1 - 140 -36
Investments in associates 175 -24 657 -87 76 -188 221 -28 2 <] 1,131 -331
Loans 4 3 12 4 1,101 970 47 31 1 1,165 1,008
Other securities held
to maturity - - - - 28 35 1 1 - - 29 36
Other securities available
for sale
~ Fixed-interest 735 708 117 1,110 2,673 2,855 219 212 1 1 4,799 4,886
~Non-fixed-interest 319 188 1,190 980 1,536 848 245 128 -1 -1 3,289 2,143
Other securities held
for trading
~ Fixed-interest - 1 14 1 5 5 5 -9 - - 24 -2
~ Non-fixed-interest - ~ - - 1 1 - - - - 1 1
- Derivatives 3 ~ 16 - -133 97 -2 -7 - - ~116 90
Deposits retained on assumed
and ceded reinsurance,
and other investments 527 460 87 110 -81 -90 10 10 32 32 575 522
Investments for the benefits
of life insurance policyholders
who bear the investment risk - - - - 170 53 - - - - 170 53
Expenses for the management
of investments, other expenses 37 27 145 128 283 337 27 28 - 4 492 524

Total 1771 1,314 3,172

*After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.

The result for land and buildings includes rental income
of €514m (663m). The expenses for the management of

investments include running costs and expenses for repair
and maintenance of property totalling €78m (121m).
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Investments in associates were affected in 2005 by the
exchange of HvB shares into UniCredit stock, which
realised a capital gain of €988m.
On “loans” and “other securities held to maturity”, we
earned interest income of €1,081m (911m} and €29m (36m}

respectively.



Investment income and expenses by segmeant

Reinsurance Primary insurance Asset management Total
Life and health Property-casualty Life and health Property-casualty
Prev. Prev. Prev. Prev. Prev. Prev.
All figuresin €m” 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year
Investment income
Regular income 1,331 1,234 1,633 1,507 4,282 4,368 353 348 50 41 7.649 7,498
Income from write-ups 43 24 1563 105 203 139 3 7 - - 402 275
Gains on the disposal
of investments 581 264 2,141 1,218 2,006 1,642 448 173 6 7 5,182 3,304
Other income - 12 - - 180 66 1 2 1 1 182 81
1,955 1,634 3,927 2,830 6,671 6,215 805 530 57 43 13,415 11,158
Investment expenses
Write-downs of investments 62 56 245 323 804 577 38 69 1 25 1,150 1,050

Losses on the disposal
of investments 58 79 264 205 279 601 56 77 14 3 671 965

Management expenses,
interestcharges and
other expenses 64 85 246 282 429 671 30 54 7 10 776 1,102

184 220 755 810 1,512 1849 124 200 22 38 2,597 3,117
Total m 1,314m z,ozom 4,366“ 330 35 1 R 804

*After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.

Write-downs of investments

All figures in €m 2005 Prev. year
Land and buiidings, including buildings on third-party land 446 498
Investments in affiliated companies 5 13
Investments in associates 9 1
Loans 11 11
Other securities held to maturity - -
Other securities available for sale 188 355
Other securities held for trading 491 172

Total -IB:’ 1,050

(29) Other income reduction of miscellaneous provisions and adjustments of
in addition to foreign currency exchange gains of €696m values of €69m (68m) for receivables, as well as - for the
{400m), the other income mainly includes income from first time - income from owner-occupied land and build-
services rendered of €266m (283m), interest and similar ings that are sometimes leased out amounting to €107m.

income of €157m (111m), income from the release/
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(30) Net expenses for claims and benefits

Reinsurance Primary insurance Total
Life and health Property-casualty Life and health Property-casualty

Prev. Prev. Prev. Prev. Prev.
Alj figures in €m~ 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year
Gross
Claims and benefits paid 5,331 3,987 8,656 9,324 10,050 10,178 2,791 2,743 26,828 26,232
Changes in underwriting provisions
- Provision for future policy henefits 574 656 60 18 2,439 2,432 37 23 3,110 3,128
-Provision for outstanding claims ~393 478 3,207 710 91 159 582 259 3,487 1,606
- Provision for premium refunds -9 -2 4 -1 1,889 1,020 17 17 1,901 1,034
Other underwriting result 8 173 16 73 200 301 9 -2 233 545
Gross expenses for claims and benefits m_ 5,292 m 10,124 L] 14,09@ 3,040 !@I 32,546
Ceded share
Claims and benefits paid 252 502 960 1,152 94 114 209 146 1,515 1,914
Changes in underwriting provisions
- Provision for future policy benefits 83 -308 - - 121 134 - - 204 -174
- Provision for outstanding claims 18 -175 186 ~677 2 -5 269 37 475 -820
- Provision for premium refunds - - - -1 - -2 1 1 1 -2
Other underwriting result - -1 - ~ - -6 13 -1 13 -8
Ceded share of expenses for claims and benefits m 18 m 474”; 235 m 183 m:!: 910
Net
Claims and benefits paid 5,079 3,485 7,696 8,172 9,956 10,064 2,582 2,597 25,313 24,318
Changes in underwriting provisions
~ Provision for future policy benefits 491 964 60 18 2,318 2,298 37 23 2,906 3,303
- Provision for outstanding claims -411 853 3,021 1,387 89 164 313 222 3,012 2,426
~ Provision for premium refunds -9 -2 4 - 1.889 1,022 16 16 1,900 1,036
Other underwriting result 8 174 16 73 200 307 -4 -1 220 553

B s

Net expenses for claims and benefits

9,650 m 13,855m

2,857 !z!al 31,636

*After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.

The change in the provision for future policy benefits (net)
contains €170m (53m) in unrealised gains/losses from unit-
linked life insurance.

Expenses for claims and benefits include expenses for
policyholders’ bonuses. Of this, €1,493m {559m) is for the
allocation to the provision for premium refunds on the
basis of national regulations, €5am (468m) for the change
in the provision for deferred premium refunds recognised
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in the income statement, and €202m (232m) for direct
crediting. The “other underwriting result” for life primary
insurance includes interest on policyholders’ accumulated

credit.

Expenses for profit commission in reinsurance are shown
under operating expenses, not under expenses for claims

and benefits.



{31) Operating expenses

Reinsurance Primary insurance Total
Life and health Property-casualty Life and health Property-casualty

Prev. Prev. Prev. Prev. Prev.

All figures in €m* 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year 2005 year
Acquisition costs 106 -238 45 27 1,514 1,639 993 981 2,658 2,309
Management expenses 249 229 787 718 488 516 696 700 2,220 2,160
Amortisation of pvFp 3 4 - - 26 96 - - 29 100
Reinsurance commission and profit commission 1,683 1,671 2,989 3,035 20 20 12 17 4,704 4,743
Gross operating expenses B o0l o o< ERE oo 9.611 [ JEEIE
Ceded share of acquisition costs 10 17 1 10 16 52 - 10 27 89
Commission received on ceded business 77 124 262 417 376

Operating expenses

- Ceded share 141

187 25 11 53 54

197 63

Net operating expenses

3,580

*After elimination of intra-Group transactions across segments.

(32) Other expenses

In addition to foreign currency exchange losses of €511m
(689m), the other expenses mainly include expenses for
services rendered of €278m (183m), interest and similar
expenses of €144m {196m), other write-downs amounting
to €70m (209m), and other tax of €32m (37m). They also
contain, for the first-time, expenses of €101m for owner-
occupied land and buildings, some of which are also

(33) Finance costs

By finance costs we understand all interest and other
expenses directly attributable to strategic debt. Debt has a
strategic character for us if it is does not have an original,
direct link with our operative business.

leased out. A

All figures in €m 2005 Prev.year
Subordinated bonds issued by Munich Re Finance B.v., Amsterdam 238 240
Exchangeable bonds of Munich Reinsurance Company, Munich 31 69
Exchangeable bonds of ERGO International Ag, Disseldorf 32 32
Senior notes of American Re Corporation, Princeton 30 30
Bank borrowing of ERGO AG, Diisseldorf 31 31
Bank borrowing of American Re Corporation, Princeton 13 13
Other 3 11
Total 426

The decrease in finance costs compared with the previous
year is mainly due to the reduction in strategic debt. Thus,
Munich Reinsurance Company’s bonds exchangeable into
Allianz AG shares were redeemed on schedule in the second

quarter of 2005. Information on the Group’s strategic debt
can be found in the management report on page 100f. and
under (17) Subordinated liabilities and (24) Notes and
debentures.
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(34) Taxes on income

This item shows the corporation tax and municipal trade
earnings tax paid by the German companies {including sol-
idarity surcharge) and the comparable taxes on earnings

Distribution of recognised tax expenses/income

Germany/Qther countries

paid by the foreign companies in the Group. In accordance
with 1AS 12, the determination of taxes on income includes
the calculation of deferred taxes.

All figures in €m 2005 Prev.year
Current tax 1,627 389
Germany 1,060 191
Other countries 467 198
Deferred tax -518 323
Germany -405 350
Other countries -113 -27

Taxes on income

-l:::EI 712

Main components of tax expenses/income

All figures in €m 2005 Prev.year
Current tax for business year 1,352 544
Current tax for other periods 175 -1565
Deferred tax resulting from the occurrence or reversal of temporary differences ~225 265
Deferred tax resulting from the occurrence or reversal of loss carry-forwards -293 165
Effects of changes in tax rates on deferred tax - -107
Taxes on income 712

The current tax is derived from the tax results of the busi-
ness year, to which the local tax rates of the respective sub-
sidiaries are applied. Deferred tax is also calculated using
the local tax rates. Sometimes for simplicity’s sake we use
uniform tax rates for individual circumstances or sub-
sidiaries. Changes in tax rates and tax legisiation that have
already been adopted by the government at the balance
sheet date are generally taken into account. In the year
under review, these effects were negligible.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused loss carry-
forwards to the extent that, on the basis of tax result plan-
ning, itis sufficiently probable that they will be utilised.

The following table shows the reconciliation between the
expected taxes on income and the tax on income actually
shown. The expected tax expenses are calculated by multi-
plying the operating result before taxes on income (but
after “other tax”) by the Group tax rate. The Group tax rate
amounts to 40%. This takes into account corporation tax
including solidarity surcharge, and a mixed trade-tax rate.




Reconciliation 1o effeciive tax expenses

All figures in €m 2005  Prev. year
Result before taxes on income (after “other tax”) 3,752 2,599
Group tax rate in % 40.0 40.0
Derived taxes on income 1,501 1,040"
Tax effect of:
Tax rate differences 42 -49
Tax-free income -1,634 -338
Non-deductible expenses 653 159
Valuation allowances for loss carry-forwards 370 70
Changes in tax rates and tax legislation - -107
Tax for prior years -49 -121
Municipal trade earnings tax 55 52
Miscellaneous 71 6"

Taxes on income shown

-l:I:EI 712

*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1As 1 {rev. 2003).

The effective tax burden is the ratio between the taxes on
income shown and the result before taxes on income {but
after “other tax”). In the year under review, as in the previ-
ous year, the tax burden amounted to 27%.

"Tax-free income” is made up of tax-free gains on the sales
of shareholdings in joint-stock companies, tax-free divi-
dend income and other tax-free income.

The non-deductible expenses are mainly for write-downs
of loans which are to be treated as non-deductible in the
opinion of the tax authorities. They also include write-
downs of non-fixed-interest securities available for sale
and non-deductible impairment losses of goodwill and
other non-deductible expenses.

In addition, with a view to the already existing loss carry-
forwards, we have treated a portion of the burdens
incurred at our subsidiary American Re as no longer utilis-
able tax losses for the time being.

The item “municipal trade earnings tax” includes the differ-
ences between the trade-tax rate applied by the respective
Group companies and the Group mixed trade-tax rate.

No deferred taxes were recognised for retained earnings of
affiliated companies, as there is no intention of distributing
these earnings in the foreseeable future. The calculation of
this unrecognised deferred tax liability would involve a dis-
proportionately large amount of work.




Disclosures on the uncertainties of future cash flows from

insurance contracts

(35) Risks in the life and health segment

Of importance in the life and health segment are the bio-
metric risk, the interest-rate risk and the lapse risk. Under-
writing provisions are calculated using biometric actuarial
assumptions, i.e. assumptions regarding the development
of mortality, disablement and morbidity, as well as the con-
tract- or plan-specific discount rates and actuarial interest
rates. The measurement of deferred acquisition costs also
includes assumptions regarding the lapse rate and profit
sharing. In addition, potential market risks from unit-linked
contracts and risks from embedded derivatives have to be
taken into account.

Biometric risks

The degree of exposure to biometric risks depends on the
type of insurance product. For contracts mainly covering
the monrtality risk, it lies in a higher-than-expected mortal-
ity, whereas for annuities it lies in mortality being lower
than expected. For contracts mainly covering the disability
risk and contracts in the health segment, the risk lies in
higher claims frequency and higher healthcare costs, and
to some extent in lower-than-expected mortality. The rele-
vant structure of the business is shown in the notes to the
consolidated balance sheet on page 180.

The biometric actuarial assumptions are regularly checked
by the supervisory authorities, depending on the specific
national regulations. in primary insurance and reinsur-
ance, the risk is regularly assessed on the basis of updated
portfolio information. Besides this, we also take market
standards into account when checking the adequacy of the
biometric actuarial assumptions and trend assumptions
included in them. The verification of the assumptions and
adequacy of the trend factors may result in a change in the
provision for adverse deviation allowed for in the actuarial
assumptions. The value of the provisions for future policy
benefits and the deferred acquisition costs is not directly
affected by this initially.

Ifthe provisions for adverse deviation in the biometric
actuarial assumptions have been exhausted, it may be nec-
essary to make additional provisions or write down the
deferred acquisition costs. Adjustments of this kind are
made on the basis of the liability adequacy test under (FRS 4
if, after taking into account all the actuarial assumptions,
the adequacy of the underwriting provisions is no longer
guaranteed. A deficiency is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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The biometric actuarial assumptions used in life primary
insurance and reinsurance are deemed to be sufficient in
the view of the actuaries responsible; the mortality and
morbidity tables used contain sufficient provisions for
adverse deviation. In annuity business, the longevity risk
plays a particularly significant role for the provision for
future policy benefits. In primary insurance, the provisions
for adverse deviation in our portfolio of annuity insurance
policies are decreasing. if the trend intensifies, additional
amounts may have to be allocated to the provision for
future policy benefits. In reinsurance, the longevity risk in
our portfolio has significantly less weight than in primary
insurance.

in the heaith segment, we are proceeding on the assump-
tion that further advances in medical treatment will lead to
higher costs. Accordingly, the actuarial assumptions used
are constantly reviewed. Premiums are adjusted for con-
tracts calculated on a long-term basis if the assumptions
regarding the required policy benefits deviate from the
original assumptions and this deviation cannot be regarded
as merely temporary. This limits the financial and balance-
sheet effects of permanent changes in morbidity.

Interest-rate risks

Interest-rate risks have to be taken into accountin primary
insurance and reinsurance due to the discounting of the
provision for future policy benefits and parts of the provision
for outstanding claims. For life primary insurance con-
tracts with implicit or explicit interest-rate guarantees, to
which the major part of the relevant provisions is attribut-
able, we use the actuarial interest rate applicable at the
time of contract conclusion. The same actuarial interest
rate is used for the calculation of the contractually guar-
anteed benefits. The actuarial interest rate is limited by the
respective maximum actuarial interest rate prescribed by
the supervisory authorities. In reinsurance, a discount rate
based on a conservative capital market scenario is selected
for the prospective calculation of premiums and reserves.
The actuarial interest rates used are disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated balance sheet on page 181.

The underwriting provisions are not subject to any direct
risk of change in interest rates because the actuarial inter-
est rate during the term of the contract is not adjusted in
line with the fluctuations on the capital markets. However,
there is an interest-guarantee risk. In primary insurance,
the minimum interest rate for the contractually guaranteed



benefits has to be earned from the investment result, the
mortality result and the cost result. As a rule, the fixed-
interest investments have a shorter duration than insurance
commitments. This means there is a reinvestment risk
involved. Should capital-market interest rates fall to a very
low level for a prolonged period, the overall income earned
could be tight or even insufficient in relation to the obliga-
tions. In reinsurance, a similar interest-rate risk can often
be eliminated through appropriate treaty design. For many
treaties, the interest on the provisions for future policy
benefits is secured by an inflow of investment income from
deposits retained that is guaranteed by the ceding com-
pany. In the case of treaties with undeposited provisions
for future policy benefits where historicaily-related high
discount rates are used, the provisions are generally
matched by suitably high-interest-bearing investments to
eliminate the interest-rate risk.

If unadjusted earnings are insufficient, it may be necessary
to make additional provisions or to write down the deferred
acquisition costs. Adjustments of this kind are made on the
basis of the liability adequacy test under IFRS 4 if, and only
if, the deficiency cannot be made good from other sources
of income or an adjustment of the discretionary profit
sharing in primary insurance is not possible. In such a
case, a deficiency would be recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Market risks

In primary insurance, potential market risks are relevant
only for unit- and index-linked life insurance. For the
respective contracts in our portfolio, the investment risk
lies completely with the policyholder. This means that the
underwriting provision for these contracts is not subject to
a direct market risk. Appropriate product design ensures
that the necessary premium portions for assuming pay-
ment of a guaranteed minimum benefit on occurrence of
the insured event are adjusted where necessary on the
basis of the current fund assets. Consequently, the embed-
ded derivative connected with this guarantee is not subject
to any significant market risk.

In reinsurance, except in a very few cases, the transfer of
market risks is ruled out through suitable treaty design.
Therefore changes in the capital market parameters with
regard to insurance contracts do not have any significant
effects on equity or the consolidated income statement.

Risks from lapses and embedded derivatives

In primary insurance, the reported provision for future
policy benefits in the case of contracts with a surrender right
is generally at least as high as the relevant surrender
values. Therefore, lapse rates are not included in the calcu-
lation of the underwriting provisions. Surrenders are taken
into account in the amortisation of deferred acquisition
costs. As the basis for this, we use appropriately chosen
assumptions regarding lapse rates, which are regularly
checked.

The policyholder’s right in some contracts to maintain the
contract with a waiver of premium and an adjustment of
the guaranteed benefits corresponds to a partial lapse and
is taken into account in the calculations analogously. In
the case of deferred pension policies, the lump-sum option
on expiry of the deferment period is of importance. The
exercise of these options can be influenced by the way the
insurer structures bonuses. Such options are explicitly
taken into account in the liability adequacy test under

IFRS 4.

The aforementioned options do not have an interest-rate
sensitivity or market sensitivity, since their exercise by the
policyholder is always determined to a crucial extent by
individual factors and relates to the insurance components.
Other options embedded in primary insurance contracts
are of subordinate economic importance. Of the other
derivatives embedded in primary insurance contracts, only
the interest-rate guarantee — analysed under interest-rate
risks - is of significance.

In reinsurance, thanks to suitable product and treaty
design, the risk in our portfolio from lapses and embedded
derivatives is significantly lower. The residual lapse risk is
assessed by means of product-specific portfolio analyses
and is taken into account in pricing.

Therefore changes in lapse probabilities or in the exercise
of embedded derivatives with regard to insurance con-
tracts do not have any direct effects on equity or the con-
solidated income statement.

(36) Risks in the property-casualty segment

Of particularimportance in this segment is the estimation
risk with regard to the amount of the expect claims expend-
iture

~ for claims already incurred and

- for future claims from current insurance contracts.




in estimating claims expenditure, we take cost increases
into account, so the estimation risk always also includes
the inflation risk. Besides this, there is an interest-rate risk
for parts of the portfolio.

The process of estimating and pricing risks naturally
involves uncertainties. The basis for the calculation is an
estimate of the claims frequency to be expected for a con-
tract or portfolio of contracts. In addition, an estimation of
the claims amount is necessary, from which a mathemat-
ical distribution of the expected losses is derived. The
result of these two steps is an estimation of the expected
overall claims in a portfolio. A third element comprises the
expected cash flows to settle the claims incurred. If the
claims settiement extends over several years, inflation and
interest-rate effects are also relevant.

Estimation risks

The degree of exposure to estimation risks differs accord-
ing to class of business and also between primary in-
surance and reinsurance. The relevant structure of our
business can be found on page 224. On the basis of the
loss ratios of recent years listed there, conclusions can be
drawn about the historical volatilities of the various classes
of business.

In estimating claims frequency in praoperty insurance, there
is a high degree of sensitivity regarding the underlying
assumptions about weather-related and geophysical
events. We incliude trends in our considerations. Beyond
this, the estimation of technological and demographic
parameters plays an important part. In liability insurance
and sections of motor insurance, the development of
economic and legal parameters is significant.

In all classes of business, the estimation of claims amounts
is generally affected by the same uncertainty factors as the
estimation of claims frequency. In addition, the estimation
of claims inflation plays an important role. Particularly in
long-tail insurance business, e.qg. liability and portions of
accident business, the amount of the payments to be made
in the future can be influenced by the development of costs
in the medical sector, trends in court awards and general
inflation.

In primary insurance and reinsurance, we employ the lat-
est actuarial methods to measure the provision for out-
standing claims (cf. the remarks on page 1591.). In doing
so, we establish provisions for claims that have been
incurred but not yet reported and for claims that have been
reported but not yet settled. The basis for measuring these
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provisions are assumptions based on historical loss de-
velopment data for the different segments. In particular,
these embed various pricing, coverage and benefit/
inflation levels. Also, all foreseeable future trends are
taken into account. Owing to their special economic
importance, we consider major loss events separately

in this process.

A particular sensitivity exists in liability insurance, where
liabilities can manifest themselves with a considerable
time-lag. Court decisions may continue to significantly
impact both claims frequency and claims amounts for in-
surance contracts written in the past. By constantly moni-
toring trends - with regard to mass torts, for example —we
ensure that the assumptions underlying the measurement
of the provisions always reflect the latest knowledge.

In the case of the provisions for asbestos and environmen-
tal claims, the long latency period between the loss trigger
date of the contractual liabilities and the actual reporting
and settlement of a claim make it difficult to adequately
predict ultimate losses. Therefore we supplement trad-
itional actuarial methods for claims estimation with ad-
ditional techniques. These include individual exposure
analyses by specialised claims staff, detailed quarterly
monitoring of emerging claims and settiements, statistical
projections, and industry benchmarks. Further informa-
tion on asbestos and environmental claims is provided on .
page 185.

The adequacy of the provisions is regularly checked in
internal reviews and audits. These analyses draw on the
knowledge and experience of various specialists, such as
actuaries, scientists of various disciplines, underwriters
and accounting experts. Whenever possible, we also refer
to external statistics and documents.

If at a later date the assumptions underlying the measure-
ment change, we adjust the provisions for outstanding
claims for losses incurred in the past. As regards future
underwriting risks from business already written, actual
claims expenditure may deviate from expected expendi-
ture, owing to unexpected changes in claims frequency
and amount. As part of the monitoring of our portfolio,

we check whether the original assumptions need to be
adjusted. Using the liability adequacy test under IFRS 4, we
compare the claims expenditure expected on the basis of
updated assumptions, including costs, with the premiums
still to be expected, and make additional provision if neces-
sary. This is recognised directly in the income statement.



Interest-rate risks

Provisions for outstanding claims are only discounted to
a small extent. The relevant analysis is presented in the
notes to the consolidated balance sheet on page 182f. and
largely involves provisions for Us workers’ compensation
business and annuity provisions. The discount rates are
regulated by supervisory law. On the basis of present
knowledge, we do not expect to have to reduce our inter-
est-rate assumptions.

The discounted provisions entail a risk involving the min-
imum interest rate needed: if the interest income on the
provisions is lower than the reserve adjustment required
by the unwinding of discount, unforeseen losses arise.
Conversely, higher interest income results in gains. Any
difference is recognised in the consolidated income state-
ment with impact on profit or loss.

{37) Controlling underwriting risks by means of reinsur-
ance, retrocession and capital market instruments

An important risk contraol measure in the field of underwrit-
ing is the cession of a portion of our risks to third parties
via external reinsurance and retrocession. All our com-
panies have intra-Group and external reinsurance and
retrocession cover. The core component of our retroces-
sion is an accumulation excess-of-loss cover, which
provides protection against losses from natural catas-
trophes. The dimensions of this cover are based on
analyses of our accumulation budgets in those parts of
the world exposed to natural catastrophes.

We also diversify our risk management instruments
beyond this. Munich Re has protected itself with a catas-
trophe bond against the risk of severe windstorms in
western Europe. This bond covers windstorm losses in
Germany and four other countries in cases where, among
other things, peak wind speeds of over 27 m/s are re-
corded at five adjoining weather stations and a weighted
windstorm index value is exceeded. Its term began in mid-
November 2005 and will end on 31 March 2009; we have
thus transferred the risk of seasonal windstorm activities
over almost four years, with a total volume of up to €110m,
to the capital markets.

(38) Risks from reinsurance and retrocessions

In connection with the business we cede, the default risk is
also of relevance. For our externally placed reinsurance
and retrocessions, we choose only business partners that
have been approved by our Security Committee, which
regularly examines the security of potential retrocession-
aires and reinsurers on the basis of a range of criteria. The
minimum requirement for participating in one of our retro-
cession or reinsurance treaties is an s&P or A.M. Best
rating of A—. Especially in the property-casualty segment,
we avoid an accumulation of risks through a broad spread
of our retrocessions.




Other information

{39) Parent

The parent of the Munich Re Group is Miinchener Riickver-
sicherungs-Geselischaft Aktiengesellschaft in Minchen
(Munich Reinsurance Company Joint-Stock Company in
Munich), Kéniginstrasse 107, 80802 Miinchen. Its registered
seat is Munich. In addition to its function as a reinsurer, the
parent also fulfils the function of holding company for the
Group.

(40) Related parties

Information on the remuneration of Board members and
transactions with Board members can be found in the
remuneration report on page 112.

Transactions between Munich Re and subsidiaries that are
to be deemed related parties have been eliminated in
consolidation and are not disclosed in the notes. Business
relations with unconsolidated subsidiaries are of sub-
ordinate importance as a whole; this also applies to busi-
ness relations with associates.

Until the acquisition of the HvB Group by UniCredit S.p.A.,
Milan, in the fourth quarter of 2005, HypoVereinsbank AG
was an associate and related party of the Munich Re Group
—see (4). Besides cross-shareholdings and seats on each
other’s boards, the relationship between HypoVereins- 7

bank AG and the Munich Re Group was given documented
form in a general agreement. This agreement, which con-
tinues to exist, deals in particular with cooperation activ-
ities between the two groups. There are further contractual
relations in connection with the normal running of busi-
ness.

Dr. Lothar Meyer, Chairman of ERGO Versicherungsgruppe
AG's Board of Management, has continued to be a member
of HypoVereinsbank AG's Supervisory Board since the inte-
gration of the HvB Group into the UniCredit Group.
Nikolaus von Bomhard, Chairman of Munich Re’s Board of
Management, and Hans-Jirgen Schinzler, Chairman of
Munich Re's Supervisory Board, have been members of
UniCredit's Board of Directors since October 2005. There
are no other significant cooperation agreements or con-
tractual relations between the UniCredit Group and the
Munich Re Group, so that the Munich Re Group’s invest-
ment of under 5% in UniCredit does not classify as a related-
party relationship.

(41) Personnel expenses

The following personnel expenses are included in the
operating expenses, in the expenses for claims and bene-
fits {(for claims adjustment) and in the investment result:

All figures in €m 2005 Prev. year
Wages and salaries 2,174 2,259
Social security contributions and employee assistance 386 382

208 209

Expenses for employees’ pensions

Total

mz:’ 2,850

{42) Long-term incentive plans

Every year since 1 July 1999, Munich Reinsurance Com-
pany has set up long-term incentive plans, each with a
term of seven years. Entitled to participate in these share-
price-refated remuneration plans are members of the
Board of Management, senior management in Munich,
and top executives in Munich Re’s international organisa-
tion. Participants receive a certain number of stock appre-
ciation rights. The relevant initial share price for the stock
appreciation rights is calculated from the average of clos-
ing prices for Munich Re shares in Frankfurt Xetra trading
over the last three months prior to plan commencement.
The initial price for the 2005 long-term incentive plan is
€88.10 (88.65).
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As a result of Munich Reinsurance Company’s capital
increase in the business year 2003, the initial share prices
for the stock appreciation rights issued up to then and the
number of stock appreciation rights already granted were
adjusted in accordance with the conditions.

in the year under review, a total of 487,544 (456,336} stock
appreciation rights were granted, 138,833 (133,803) of these
to Board of Management members. The future obligations
arising from the long-term incentive plans are covered with
Munich Re shares.

As from 1 January 2005, the personne! expenses and
income incurred for the stock appreciation rights are deter-
mined on the basis of the change in the fair value of the
underlying options. In preceding years, these obligations




were measured at their intrinsic value (difference between
current share price and initial share price for the stock
appreciation rights). The fair value recognises not only the
intrinsic value but also the possibility of growth in value up
to the date of forfeiture or expiry of the rights and is deter-
mined on the basis of recognised valuation models, taking
into account the exercise conditions.

At each balance sheet date, the fair value is calculated and
reserved; this amount is recognised in full. The personnel
expenses recognised in the income statement therefore
correspond to the change in the provision in the year
under review, taking into account any rights exercised.

Incentive plans 1288—-2005 of the Munich Re Croup reinsurers

In the year under review, provisions of €46.8m (3.2m) had
1o be posted for the reinsurers in the Munich Re Group; the
personnel expenses totalled €43.6m (1.7m). Of this, €26.6m
is due to a one-off adjustment required by the change in
accounting method in the business year 2005.

The weighted average share price for the stock appreci-
ation rights exercised in 2005 was €106.69 for plan year
2003. The intrinsic value of the exercisable stock appreci-
ation rights amounted to €8.7m at the balance sheet date.

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Pian commencement 1.7.1998 1.7.2000 1.7.2001 1.7.2002 1.7.2003 1.7.2004 1.7.2005
Old initial share price €182.60 €319.34 €320.47 €260.37 €86.24 - -
New initial share price after capital increase €173.67 €303.72 €304.80 €247.64 €82.02 €88.65 €88.10
Intrinsic value 2005 for one right - - - - €33.53 €26.90 €2745
Fair value 2005 for one right €0.09 €0.05 €0.51 €2.91 £€39.30 €37.31 €39.44
Number of rights on 31 December 1939 110,840 - - - - - -
Additions 9,045 80,582 - - - - -
Number of rights on 31 December 2000 118,885 80,582 - - - - -
Additions - - 109,474 - - - -
Exercised 34,240 - - - - - -
Number of rights on 31 December 2001 85,645 80,582 109,474 - - - -
Additions - - 270 132,466 - - -
Exercised 6,877 - - - - - -
Forfeited - 321 443 - - - -
Number of rights on 31 December 2002 78,668 80,261 109,301 132,466 - - -
Additions 4,009 3,793 5,319 6,696 439,581 - -
Exercised - - - - - - -
Forfeited 3,696 6,199 7192 3,982 - - -
Number of rights on 31 December 2003 78,981 77,855 107,428 135,200 439,581 - -
Additions - - - - - 456,336 -
Exercised - - - - - - -
Forfeited - 438 600 748 2,354 - -
Number of rights on 31 December 2004 78,981 77417 106,828 134,452 437,227 456,336 -
Additions - - - - 320 1,697 485,527
Exercised - - - - 177,748 - -
Forfeited - 23 542 680 121 2,005 -
Number of rights on 31 December 2005 78,981 77,394 106,286 133,772 259,678 456,028 485,527
Exercisable at year-end 78,981 77,394 106,286 133,772 259,678 - -
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Since 1 July 2002, ERGO Versicherungsgruppe AG and
some of its subsidiaries, as well as Européaische Reisever-
sicherung AG and MEAG MUNICH ERGO AssetManagement
GmbH, have also set up long-term incentive plans at yearly
intervals and with terms of seven years each. The persons
entitled to participate — Board of Management members,
managing directors and, in individual cases, also top exec-
utives - are granted a defined number of stock appreci-
ation rights in respect of Munich Re shares. The design of
the plans is identical to that of Munich Re’s long-term
incentive plans and they are accounted for in the same
way. A

In the year under review, a total of 212,028 (155,839) stock
appreciation rights were granted, 184,310 {132,653) of
these to Board of Management members. The future obli-
gations from the tong-term plans are covered with Munich
Re shares.

In the year under review, provisions of €14.4m (1.1m) had
to be posted for the primary insurers and asset managers
in the Munich Re Group; the personnel expenses totalled
€13.3m (1.1m). Of this, €9.5m is due to a one-off adjustment
required by the change in accounting method in the busi-
ness year 2005.

The weighted average share price for the stock appreci-
ation rights exercised in 2005 was €109.39 for plan year
2003. The intrinsic value of the exercisable stock appreci-
ation rights amounted to €2.0m at the balance sheet date.

Incentive plans 20022005 of the Munich Re Group’s primary insurers and asset managers

2002 2003 2004 2005
Plan commencement 1.7.2002 1.7.2003 1.7.2004 1.7.2005
Oid initial share price €260.37 €86.24 -~ -
New initial share price after 2003 capital increase €247.64 €82.02 €88.65 €88.10
Intrinsic value 2005 for one right - €33.53 €26.90 €27.45
Fair value 2005 for one right €2.91 €39.30 €37.31 €38.44
Number of rights on 31 December 2002 45,476 - - -
Additions 12,898 168,681 ~ -
Exercised - - - -
Forfeited 529 - - -
Number of rights on 31 December 2003 57,845 168,681 - -
Additions - 1,650 154,189 -
Exercised - - - -
Forfeited 3,050 13.414 - -
Number of rights on 31 December 2004 54,795 156,917 154,189 ~
Additions - 87 - 211,941
Exercised - 90,398 - -
Forfeited 11,903 7498 32,130 24,411
Number of rights on 31 December 2005 42,892 59,108 122,059 187,530
Exercisable at year-end 42,892 58,108 - ~

Each stock appreciation right entitles the holder to draw in
cash the difference between the Munich Re share price at
the time when the right is exercised and the initial share
price.

The stock appreciation rights may only be exercised after a
two-year vesting period and then only if the share price is
at least 20% higher than the initial price. In addition,
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Munich Re shares must have outperformed the DAX 30
{(Plan 1999) or the EURO STOXX 50 (from Plan 2000 onwards)
twice at the end of a three-month period during the term of
the plan. The gross amount that may be obtained from the
exercising of the stock appreciation rights is limited to an
increase of 150% of the initial share price.




When the stock appreciation rights are exercised, the cash
payment is made (in the respective national currency) by
the company that granted the rights. Stock appreciation
rights not exercised on the last trading day of the plan term
are exercised on the participant’s behalf insofar as the pre-
requisites for this are met. If the prerequisites are not met,
the stock appreciation rights are forfeited.

If another company acquires control of Munich Re or the
Company’s group of shareholders changes significantly
due to a merger or comparable transaction or business
combination ("change in control”), all plan participants
from the Munich Re Group may exercise their stock appre-
ciation rights within 60 days after the change in control
becomes effective, even if the prerequisites for exercising
the rights are not yet met at that juncture.

(43) Remuneration report

All disclosures on the remuneration of and loans to Board
members, share trading and shares held by members of
the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board, and
the structure of the Board of Management's remuneration
system can be found in the remuneration report on page 112.

{44) Employee share programmes

In 2005, Munich Reinsurance Company staff were given
the opportunity to acquire five employee shares at no cost
{free shares). The value of the benefit accruing to staff is
equivalent to the share price at the date on which manage-
ment decided to grant the programme and amounted to
€83.79 per share. Altogether, 2,974 staff obtained 14,870
shares; personnel expenses totalled €878 thousand.

In addition, staff of MEAG MUNICH ERGO AssetManagement
GmbH or one of its subsidiaries had the opportunity to
acquire five employee shares at preferential conditions. The
purchase price per share was €60.31, resulting in a benefit
of €27.00 per share based on the share price applicable at
the time the programme was granted. Altogether, 481 staff
took advantage of the offer and acquired 2,378 shares; per-
sonnel expenses totalled €64 thousand.

Both programmes were carried out using own shares
acquired in the business year 2005 and, to a small extent,
residual holdings of own shares acquired prior to the busi-
ness year. Differences between the cost of own shares and
the persannel expenses have been offset against retained
earnings.

{458) Number of staff

The number of staff empioyed by the Group at year-end
totalled 27,063 (29,851) in Germany and 10,890 (11,111} in
other countries.

31.12.2005 Prev. year
Reinsurance companies 6,798 6,612
Primary insurance companies 30,465 33,703
Asset management 690 647

Total

-EEI 40,962

The decrease shown for the primary insurance companies
results mainly from the sale of our majority stake in the
Karlsruher Insurance Group in the fourth quarter of 200s.

{a8) Auditor’'s fees

For services rendered to the parent and consolidated sub-
sidiaries by the Group auditor {KMPG Bayerische
Treuhandgesellschaft AG Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft,
Munich, and its affiliated companies within the meaning of
Section 271 para. 2 of the German Commercial Code), the
following fees have been recognised as an expense in the
business year:

All figures in €000 2005
Audits of financial statements 5,659
Other assurance and appraisal services 634
Tax consultancy services 789
Other services 2,340

Total

KPMG has supported Munich Re in connection with the
Gloria project, primarily with assurance and appraisal
services, e.g. in relation to the migration of data and the
examination of control concepts. In addition, KPMG's ser-
vices have included professional consultancy in the design
of the requisite processes prior to Munich Re's own devel-
opment of systems and their subsequent implementation.
The expenses for this work are shown under “other ser-
vices”.
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{47) Contingent liabilities, other financial commitments
Commitments under rental, work and service contracts
amount to €147m (95m). Investment obligations total
€214m (423m). These figures represent undiscounted
nominal amounts.

Beyond this, there are other financial commitments of
€4m (40m) and obligations from guarantees totalling
€227m {227m). In connection with a sale of shares, a
liability towards the purchaser totalling a maximum of
£2m has been assumed. There are contingent liabilities

of €100m (105m) from a lease transaction with land and
buildings.

Following amendments to the German Insurance Control
Act (VAG) at the end of 2004, the German life and health
insurers of our Group are obliged to be members of a pro-
tection fund. For life insurers, the protection fund canin
future levy special contributions of up to one per mille of
total net underwriting provisions, in addition to a regular
contribution of 0.2 per mille of total net underwriting provi-
sions. For the health insurers, there is no pre-financing, but
the fund may levy special contributions of up to two per
mille of net underwriting provisions to fulfil its functions.
This could give rise to a potential payment obligation of
€92m (97m)} at Group level.

Protektor Lebensversicherungs-AG has applied to the Fed-
eral Ministry of Finance to exercise the functions and
powers of the statutory protection fund in life insurance.
However, its public appointment under Section 127 of the
Insurance Control Act and the issuing of the requisite

legal regulations are still pending.

Until such public appointment, the participation of German
life insurers will continue to be voluntary and Protektor
Lebensversicherungs-AG will exercise the functions of
“lifeboat”. The German life insurers in our Group are com-
mitted via their participation of around 11% to assuming
payment obligations to the extent of their share in the case
of a life insurance company failing.

Medicator AG has applied to be publicly appointed for
health insurance.
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There are no other financial commitments of significance
for the assessment of the Group's financial position. No
contingent liabilities have been entered into for the benefit
of Board members.

(48) Leasing

The Munich Re Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the total of future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
was €456m, due as follows:

Not later than one year €97mM
Later than one year

and not later than five years €230m
Later than five years €129m

Payments under operating leases concern in particular
rents for offices and business premises of the Group.

At €3m, the amount of minimum lease payments under
finance leases at the balance sheet date was insignificant
in scope.

The Munich Re Group as lessor

Operating leases mainly involve leased property. The total
of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellabie
leases at the balance sheet date was €1,064m, due as fol-
lows:

Not later than one year €197m
Later than one year

and not later than five years €514m
Later than five years €353m

At €4m, the amount of minimum lease payments under
finance leases at the balance sheet date was insignificant.



(49} Events after the balance sheet date

in December 2005, ERGO Versicherungsgruppe AG signed
agreements with GFKL Financial Services AG under which
the latter would acquire its majaority stake in the ADA-HAS
Group, an IT systems specialist. In the meantime, the gov-
erning bodies and cartel authorities have given the formal
approvals still outstanding when the agreements were
signed, so that the sale will be completed in the current
business year. ADA-HAS will continue to be our partner for
IT issues.

{50} Earnings per share

2005 Prev.year
Consolidated result attributable
to Munich Re equity holders £€m 2,671 1,833
Number of shares at 1.1, business year 228,519,407 229,101,024
Addition of own shares 511,744 581,617
Weighted average number of shares 228,201,627 228,745,350
Earnings per share € 11.70 8.01

Munich, 24 February 2006

The Board of Management

Amortisation of goodwill reduced the previous year’s earn-
ings per share by €0.97.

Diluting effects to be disclosed in calculating the earnings
per share were not present either in the business year orin
the previous reporting period. Earnings per share can be
potentially diluted in future through the issue of shares or
subscription rights from amounts authorised for increas-
ing the share capital and contingent capital.

{51) Proposal for the appropriation of profit

Munich Reinsurance Company's net retained profits for
2005 according to its financial statements prepared on the
basis of the German Commercial Code amount to €712m

(459m). The Board of Management will propose to share-

holders at the Annual General Meeting that this be used for
payment of a dividend of €3.10 {2.00) on each share entitled
to dividend and that any residual amount be carried for-
ward to new account.
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Affiliated companies, participating interests
and other shareholdings”

% share Equity  Result for
of the year
capital €000 €000
Reinsurance, consolidated subsidiaries
American Re Corporation, Wiimington, Delaware 100.00% 3,131,498 -1,252,488
Great Lakes Reinsurance (uk) Pic., London 100.00% 271,634 35,230
Minchener Rick italia S.p.A., Milan 100.00% 189,499 9,501
Munich American Reassurance Company, Atlanta, Georgia 100.00% 1,072,415 22,932
Munich Mauritius Reinsurance Co. Ltd., Port Louis 100.00% 12,969 1,048
Munich Reinsurance Company of Africa Ltd, Johannesburg 100.00% 117897 31,530
Munich Reinsurance Company of Australasia Ltd, Sydney 100.00% 175,641 30,890
Munich Reinsurance Company of Canada, Toronto 100.00% 222,339 31,759
New Reinsurance Company, Geneva 100.00% 257,035 55,488
Temple Insurance Company, Toronto 100.00% 96,931 20,397
Reinsurance, associated companies
Prévoyance Rg, s.A., Paris 34.00% 25,470 218
Primary insurance, consolidated subsidiaries
ERGO Versicherungsgruppe aG, Disseldorf 94.69% 2,068,571 181,584
VICTORIA Versicherung Aktiengeselischaft, Disseldorf ™) 94.69% 529,249 0
VICTORIA Krankenversicherung Aktiengesellschaft, Disseldorf™™™) 94.89% 59,811 143
VICTORIA Lebensversicherung Aktiengesellschaft, Disseldorf™) 94.69% 739,241 800
vicToRrIA General Insurance Company s.A., Athens 94.20% 19,068 1,161
VICTORIA Life Insurance Company s.A., Thessaloniki 94.20% 5,882 =115
VICTORIA MERIDIONAL Compafnia Anénima de Seguros y Reaseguros, S.A., Madrid 94.69% 19,429 2,253
VICTORIA Pensionskasse AG, Disseldorf 94.69% 72,176 26,325
VICTORIA-Seguros de Vida, s.A., Lisbon 94.69% 20,107 1,437
VICTORIA-Seguros s.A., Lisbon 94.69% 13,483 2,842
VICTORIA-VOLKSBANKEN Paist'ovna, a.s., Bratislava 64.89% 6,489 224
VICTORIA-VOLKSBANKEN pojist'ovna, a.s., Prague 64.79% 9,420 703
VICTORIA-VOLKSBANKEN Versicherungsaktiengesellschaft, Vienna 70.66% 41,838 2,156
Vorsorge Lebensversicherung Aktiengesellschaft, Dusseldorf 94.69% 23,470 1,270
Vorsorge Luxemburg Lebensversicherung s.a., Munsbach 94.69% 7,138 1,512
Hamburg-Mannheimer Rechtsschutzversicherungs-Aktiengeselischaft, Hamburg™™) 94.69% 13,238 86
Hamburg-Mannheimer Sachversicherungs-Aktiengeseiischaft, Hamburg™™) 94.69% 282,945 0
Hamburg-Mannheimer Versicherungs-Aktiengeselischaft, Hamburg™") 94.69% 404,107 0
Hamburg-Mannheimer N.v./S.A., Brussels 94.69% 21,368 8,696
Hamburg-Mannheimer Pensionskasse AG, Hamburg 94.69% 36,848 -38,162
pkv Deutsche Krankenversicherung Aktiengesellschaft, Cologne™) 94.69% 465,578 309
DKV BELGIUM S.A., Brussels 94.69% 29,531 177
pKv Luxembourg s.A., Luxembourg 71.01% 14,063 1,103
pkv Seguros y Reaseguros, Sociedad Andnima Espadola, Saragossa 94.69% 56,408 8,657
Unién Médica la Fuencisla, s.a., Compania de Seguros, Saragossa 94.69% 6,253 269
GLosALE Krankenversicherungs-Aktiengesellschaft, Cologne 94.69% 12,878 4,204
D.A.8. Deutscher Automobil Schutz Allgemeine Rechtsschutz-Versicherungs-Aktiengesellschaft, Munich™*) 94.69% 220,304 11,180
p.A.s.Deutscher Automobil Schutz Versicherungs-Aktiengeseilschaft, Munich™") 94.69% 44,151 0
0.A.5. Nederlandse Rechtsbijstand Verzekeringmaatschappij N.v., Amsterdam 48.29% 28,809 7027
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% share Equity Result for

of the year
capital €000 €'000™"
p.A.s. Osterreichische Allgemeine Rechtsschutz-Versicherungs-Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna 94.67% 29,402 2,255
D.A.S. Legal Expenses Insurance Company Limited, Bristol 94.69% 58,035 1,237
KarstadtQuelle Krankenversicherung AG, Fiirth 52.08% 8,890 -3,637
KarstadtQuelle Lebensversicherung AG, Flrth 52.08% 32,845 17,000
KarstadtQuelle Versicherung agG, Flrth 52.08% 33,123 9,451
Neckermann Lebensversicherung Ag, Fiirth 39.06% 9,296 202
ERGO Iinternational Aktiengesellschaft, Disseldorf 94.69% 923,848 74,280
ERGO Assicurazioni S.p.A., Milan 94.69% 61,434 10,605
ERGO ltalia S.p.A., Milan 94.69% 263,765 34,005
ERGO Kindlustuse As, Tallinn 94.09% 17,518 5,378
ERGO Latvija Versicherung AG (ERGO Latvija Apdrosinasanas Akciju Sabiedriba), Riga 93.38% 5,693 96
ERGO Lietuva draudimo uas, Vilnius 94.69% 11,138 -524
ERGO Previdenza S.p.A., Milan 66.62% 273,654 39,003
ERGO Vida Seguros y Reaseguros, Sociedad Andnima, Saragossa 94.68% 15,070 2,058
Bayerische Vida Espafa s.A., Barcelona 48.29% 11,668 99
Powszechne Towarzystwo Emerytalne Ergo Hestia s.A.(Pension Fund), Warsaw 94,69% 20,824 4,563
Sopockie Towarzystwo Ubezpieczen na Zycie Ergo Hestia Spolka Akcyjna, Sopot 94.69% 10,538 801
Sopockie Towarzystwo Ubezpieczeniowe Ergo Hestia Spolka Akcyjna, Sopot 94.69% 171,104 5,651
EUROPAISCHE Reiseversicherung Aktiengesellschaft, Munich 100.00% 94,259 8,801
Europaeiske Rejseforsikring a/s, Copenhagen 100.00% 23,005 3,676
Europeiska Férsdkringsaktiebolaget, Stockholm 100.00% 3,872 [t}
Compagnie Européenne d'Assurance, Neuilly sur Seine Cedex 100.00% 4,843 -274
Mercur Assistance Aktiengeselischaft Holding, Munich 100.00% -5,787 -565
Primary insurance, associates
Bloemers Holding B.v., Rotterdam 22.73% 21,002 6,334
p.A.S. Difesa Automobilistica Sinistri, S.p.A. di Assicurazione, Verona 47.34% 8,213 1,971
Global Aerospace Underwriting Managers, Ltd., London 24.90% 11,087 1,739
Middlesea Insurance p.l.c, Floriana 19.90% 56,077 3,683
Orel-G-Holding AD., Sofia 29.67% 12,413 -2
picc Health insurance Company Limited, Beijing 17.99% 105,051 ]
Saudi National insurance Company e.c., Manama 22.50% 13,377 3,838
Storebrand Helseforsikring As, Oslo A47.34% 6,098 -3,214
UNION VERSICHERUNGS-AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT, Vienna 42.61% 66,103 14,257
VEREINSBANK VICTOR!A Bauspar Aktiengesellschaft, Munich 28.41% 64,545 2,084
VICTORIA-VOLKSBANKEN Pensionskassen Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna 39.27% 8,986 1,187
Financial services and asset management, consolidated subsidiaries
ERGO Trust GmbH, Disseldorf 97.87% 12,293 59
MEAG Hong Kong Limited, Hong Kong 100.00% 1,824 667
MEAG MUNICH ERGO AssetManagement GmbH, Munich 97.87% 103,747 35,848
MEAG MUNICH ERGO Kapitalanlagegesellschaft mbH, Munich**") 97.87% 19,665 0
MEeAG New York Corporation, Wilmington, Delaware 100.00% 1,786 3,701
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% share Equity  Resultfor
of the year
capital €000 €000

Other participating interests in insurance companies
Admiral Group Ltd., Cardiff 14.50% 100,691 81,537
Credit Guarantee Insurance Corporation, Johannesburg 6.90% 58 29
Helvetia Patria Holding, St. Gall 8.16% 485,422 33,808
Jordan Insurance Co. p.l.c., Amman 10.00% 39,415 10,634
Meckienburgische Lebensversicherungs-ac, Hanover 12.50% 14,900 2,300
Nirnberger Beteiligungs AG, Nuremburg 19.84% 394,726 11,833

Other shareholdings in quoted companies

BHS tabletop AgG, Selb 28.91% 28,179 4,000
Forst Ebnath AG, Ebnath 96.73% 2,962 666
Heidelberger Druckmaschinen AG, Heidelberg 5.98% 1,230 61
MEDICLIN Aktiengesellschaft, Frankfurt am Main 28.31% 133,347 -33,172
Osterreichische Volksbanken-Ag, Vienna 9.47% 758,756 47,283
wMmF Wirttembergische Metallwarenfabrik A, Geislingen 11.03% 182,002 2

*Some of these selected participating interests are held indirectly, They are calculated proportionally in each case.
"The amounts are taken from the individual companies’ financial statements.
They have been transiated using the exchange rates applicable on 31 December 2005,

***Result for the year after profit transfer.
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Munich Re Group Annual Report 2005

Auditor’s report

The following is a translation of the auditor’s opinion in
respect of the original German consolidated financial
statements and Group management report:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
prepared by the Miinchener Riickversicherungs-
Gesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft in Miinchen, Munich, com-
prising the balance sheet, the income statement, statement
of changes in equity, cash flow statement and the notes to
the consolidated financial statements, together with the
Group management report for the business year from
1January 2005 to 31 December 2005. The preparation of
the consolidated financial statements and the Group man-
agement report in accordance with IFRS, as adopted by

the EU, and the additional requirements of German com-
mercial law pursuant to Section 315a para. 1 of the German
Commercial Code (HGB), are the responsibility of the parent
company's management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements and on
the Group management report based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial state-
ments in accordance with Section 317 of the German Com-
mercial Code and German generally accepted standards
for the audit of financial statements promulgated by the
German Institute of Certified Accountants {IDwW). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit such
that misstatements materially affecting the presentation of
the net assets, financial position and results of operations
in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
the applicable financial reporting framework and in the
Group management report are detected with reasonable
assurance. Knowledge of the business activities and the
economic and legal environment of the Group and expect-
ations as to possible misstatements are taken into account
in the determination of audit procedures. The effectiveness
of the accounting-related internal control system and the
evidence supporting the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements and the Group management report
are examined primarily on a test basis within the frame-
work of the audit. The audit includes assessing the annual
financial statements of those entities included in consoli-
dation, the determination of entities to be included in con-
solidation, the accounting and consolidation principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consoli-
dated financial statements and Group management report.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

Notes_Auditor’s report

Our audit has not led to any reservations.

In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the
consolidated financial statements comply with IFRS, as
adopted by the EU, and the additional requirements of
German commercial law pursuant to Section 315a para.1
of the German Commercial Code, and give a true and fair
view of the net assets, financial position and results of
operations of the Group in accordance with these require-
ments. The Group management report is consistent with
the consolidated financial statements and as a whole pro-
vides a suitable view of the Group’s position and suitably
presents the opportunities and risks of future develop-
ment.

Munich, 3 March 2006

KPMG Bayerische Treuhandgesellschaft Aktiengeselischaft
Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft

Herbert Loy Dr. Frederik Boetius
Wirtschaftsprifer Wirtschaftsprifer
(Certified public accountant) (Certified public accountant)
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Glossary A-C

Accumulation
The situation where a significant number of risks insured or reinsured
with the same company may be affected simultaneously by a loss
event.

Actuary
Qualified expert who analyses problems from the area of insurance,
home loans, investments and pensions using methods of probability
theory and financial mathematics, and develops solutions with due
regard to legal and economic parameters.

Affiliated companies
In the consolidated financial statements of Munich Reinsurance Com-
pany {the parent), all companies are deemed affiliated companies in
which Munich Reinsurance Company holds the majority of the voting
rights either directly or indirectly.

Alternative risk financing
Utilising the capacity of the capital markets to cover insurance risks. An
example is the securitisation of natural catastrophe risks that can no
longer be borne in full by the insurance and reinsurance industry.

Amortised cost
The amount at which a financial asset or financial liability is measured at
initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumu-
lative amortisation using the effective interest method or any differ-
ences between the initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus
any write-down for impairment or uncollectibility.

Asset allocation
The distribution of investments between various asset classes, e.g.
equities, participating interests, fixed-interest, real estate and money
market. The investments are subsequently distributed between various
regions and currencies as appropriate. A distinction is generally made
between strategic {(medium- to long-term) and tactical {short-term) allo-
cation.

Assel-liebility menagement
Management of a business in a way that coordinates decisions on
assets and liabilities. Specifically, the ongoing process of formulating,
implementing, monitoring, and revising strategies related to assets and
liabilities in an attempt to achieve financial objectives for a given set of
risk tolerances and constraints.

Asset management
Management of an investment portfolio on the basis of risk and return
considerations. It covers both the preparation and implementation of
investment decisions regarding assets and the management of — spe-
cial funds.

Assistance
Range of services going beyond the traditional scope of insurance and
cost reimbursement. The idea of assistance services is to help
claimants quickly and unbureaucratically in the event of a loss occur-
rence, taking care of the necessary arrangements to remedy the situ-
ation.

Associates
Companies on whose financial and operating decisions a significant
(but not a controlling) influence can be exercised, regardiess of whether
this influence is actually exercised or not. A significant influence is pre-
sumed if the proportion of voting rights lies between 20% and 50%.
Investments in associates are valued according to the — equity method.

Balanced scorecard
Strategy implementation tool in which strategic objectives and initia-
tives (financial and non-financial) are set out in a table and linked with
one another. Short-term milestones help in monitoring the achieve-
ment of objectives.

Blue chip
Designation for high-turnover stock of large and internationally signifi-
cant firms. Their share price performance is also used as the basis for
calculating the main indices.

Bernhuetter-Ferguson method
Standard actuarial method used to estimate the reserves needed for
future claims expenditure resuliting from losses that have already
occurred but are not yet sufficiently specific. With this method, the
overall loss expected is determined on the basis of historical data on
the run-off of losses in the portfolio and an independent assessment by
the insurer. These factors are given different weightings, depending on
the information available on the status of the losses.

Capital Asset Pricing Model (CaPM}
Capital market model based on the portfolio theory, used to evaluate
securities. The capm expands the portfolio theary to include the ques-
tian of which part of a security’s averall risk cannat be eliminated by
means of risk diversification and explains how investment opportun-
ities entailing risk are assessed in the capital markets. Accordingly, in
efficient markets where prices already incorporate all the information, a
greater return can only be achieved by assuming more risk.

Captive
An insurance company established as a subsidiary of one or more
industrial/trading companies or groups mainly for purpose of insuring
the risks of these companies and their affiliates.

Cash flow statement
Statement showing the origin and utilisation of cash during the busi-
ness year. It shows the change in liquid funds separately according to
cash flows from operating activities, cash flows from investing activ-
ities and cash flows from financing activities.

Cash-generating unit
The smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of
assets. If the — recoverable amount of an asset cannot be determined
individually in the impairment test for assets under 1As 36, the recover-
able amount of a cash-generating unit to which the relevant asset
belongs must be determined.




Catastrophe bond
Also referred to as “cat bonds” and “act of God honds”, catastrophe
bonds are used 1o transfer natural catastrophe risks to the capital
markets. The buyers of such bonds profit from a comparatively high
coupon rate, but assume all or part of the {re)insurer’s risk with regard
to a natural catastrophe. If a catastrophe exceeds a predefined — para-
metric trigger, some or all of the capital and interest is used to pay the
(re)insurer’s financial loss from the natural catastrophe instead of being
repaid/credited to the buyers,

Cedant
Client of a reinsurance company (see also — primary insurers).

Chain ladder method
Standard (muitiplicative} actuarial method used to estimate the
reserves needed for future claims expenditure on the assumption that
the cumulative loss will rise by the same factor in alf accident years.
With this method, the overall loss expected is determined exclusively
on the basis of historical data on the run-off of losses in the insurer’s
portfolio.

Claims equalisation provision
Provisions required by national regulations to smooth fluctuations in
loss experience in future years. In IFRS accounting, they are recognised
in equity.

Combined ratio
Percentage ratio of the sum of net claims expenses plus net operating
expenses to net earned premiums. It corresponds to the sum of the loss
ratio and the expense ratio.

Compliance guidelines
Rules for handling inside information. As a general principle, inside
information may not be used for own investment transactions, for
transactions conducted by a bank or for recommendations to others.
Therefore, as part of the compliance procedure, business transactions
are checked to make sure they are not based on inside information.

Composite insurer
Insurer that writes both life and non-life business.

Consolidation
Combining the items from the individual financial statements of the
companies belonging to the Group into one — consolidated financial
statement, in which items invalving intra-Group transactions are elim-
inated.

Contingent liabilities
Possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed by the occur-
rence or non-occurrence of an uncertain future event and which are
therefore not shown as liabilities in the balance sheet. They must, how-
ever, be included in the notes to the financial statements {e.g. guaran-
tee obligations).

Corporate governance
The legal and factual framework for managing and monitoring com-
panies. Corporate governance rules serve to provide transparency and
thus strengthen confidence in responsible management and control
geared to the creation of value.

Customised Portfolio Solutions {cps)
crs is Munich Re's centre of competence for retrospective reinsurance
cover in non-life classes of business. Frequently also referred to as run-
off cover, this protects the cedant against the risk of foss portfolios pro-
ducing worse run-off resuits than expected.

Debt leverage
The percentage ratio of strategic debt to the sum of Group equity and
strategic debt.

Deferred acquisition costs
Costs incurred for the acquisition or the renewal of insurance policies
(e.g. commission, cost of processing applications) which are capitalised
and amortised over the term of the contracts.

Deferred tax assets/liabilities
Deferred taxes derive from temporary differences between accounting
on the basis of — 1as/IFRS and national tax law. If in the consolidated
financial statements asset items are valued lower, or liabilities higher,
than in the tax accounts of the Group company concerned, the resulting
future tax relief must be recognised as a deferred tax asset. Also
included are tax assets deriving from tax loss carry-forwards. If the
accounting differences between the consolidated financial statements
and tax accounts will lead to future tax burdens, these must be recog-
nised as deferred tax liabilities. Deferred tax assets are reversed ifa
realisation of the receivable is not probable.

Delcredere
Delcredere insurance provides suppliers of goods or services with
insurance against the risk of default due to insolvency of the customer.

Deposits retained on assumed reinsurance and ceded business
Deposits retained on assumed reinsurance are receivables which rein-
surers have vis-a-vis their cedants for collateral {(cash deposits) that has
been retained by the cedants as a security to cover future reinsurance
claims. The cedants show the retained funds as deposits withheld on
ceded business.

Derivative financial instruments
Financial instruments whose increase or fall in value is based on and
determined by the change in the amount of an underlying value (a par-
ticular interest rate, security price, exchange rate, price index, etc.). The
main derivatives are — futures, — forwards, — swaps und — options.

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
Insurance for the personal liability of the directors and officers of com-
panies, i.e. for Board members, general managers and internationaily
comparable executives.




Disease management programmes
Systematic treatment programmes for chronic conditions such as dia-
betes mellitus, coronary heart disease or asthma. Particular attention is
given to using methods of treatment whose effectiveness, safety and
benefit have been verified in scientific studies. Patients thus receive
care which minimises the risk of consequential effects and acute deteri-
oration and improves their quality of life.

Diversification
Business policy tool geared to spreading a company’s activities over
different areas so as to avoid particular dependencies. A diversification
strategy may have different focal points: the breadth of product range
with a view to tapping new clients, the geographical spread of busi-
ness, the mixture of risks in investments, or the optimum composition
of an insurance portfolio. Active risk diversification is one of the Munich
Re Group's “cardinal virtues”, which shapes its integrated risk manage-
ment.

Duration
The average term of an interest-sensitive investment {or — partfolio)
and a measure of the risk of its sensitivity to changes in interest rates.

Earnings per share
A ratio calculated by dividing the consolidated result by the average
number of shares in circulation. “Diluted earnings per share” includes
exercised and still to be exercised subscription rights in the consoli-
dated result for the year and the number of shares. Such subscription
rights arise from the issue of bonds with conversion rights and from
warrants for the acquisition of shares.

Effective interest method
Method of determining the — amortised cost of financial instruments
and the distribution of interest earnings and expenses between individ-
ual periods. 1as 39 requires that the effective interest must include fees,
other transaction costs and any premiums or discounts.

Embedded value
Concept used in valuing life reinsurance business. Embedded value
mainly comprises the present value of earnings from business in force,
calculated according to actuarial principles, plus the value of equity,
including valuation reserves, and less the cost of holding capital.

Equity method
Investments in — associated enterprises have to be valued in the con-
scolidated financial statements using the equity method. The “at equity
value corregsponds to the Group's proportionate share of the share-
holders’ equity of the enterprise concerned.

”

Event limit
Alimit restricting the maximum indemnity for a certain type of event
that typically results in large numbers of individual losses, e.g. earth-
quake.

Exchangeable bond
Special form of corporate bond which, besides entitling holders to
repayment of the face amount and regular interest, gives them the
option to convert the bond into shares. The conversion right is for
shares in a company which is not the bond issuer.

Expense ratio
Percentage ratio of operating expenses to earned premiums,

Exposure
The measurable extent of a risk or a portfolio of risks; basis for calculat-
ing premiums in reinsurance.

Factor-based risk approach
Simplified capital model based on applying a series of “factors” (or
capital charges) to volumes such as premiums, reserves or asset val-
ues. The model provides only a crude praxy for the risk-based capital
requirements.

Facultative reinsurance
The reinsurer assumes a share of selected individual risks. The primary
insurer can offer an individual risk in reinsurance, which the reinsurer
for its part can either accept or decline (cf. — obligatory reinsurance).

Fair value
The amount for which an asset could be exchanged between know-
ledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s-length transaction. Where there is
an active market, the fair value of an asset is its current — market value.
Alternatively, the fair value may be determined on the basis of recog-
nised valuation methods.

Fast close
The sum of organisational and technical improvements in business
processes that serve to accelerate publication of a company’s quarterly
and annual financial statements.

Financial Accounting Standards (Fas)
Us accounting regulations that give detailed rulings on individuat
accounting questions and which must be complied with by listed com-
panies that prepare accounts in accordance with US GAAP.

Financial institutions
Banks and other financial services providers.

Forwards
Contracts to trade at a specified price on a specified future date. In con-
trast to — futures, forwards tend to be individually designed — deriva-
tive financial instruments.

Futures
Standardised contracts to trade a financial instrument on a money mar-
ket, capital market, precious-metals market or currency market at a spe-
cific price and on a specific future date. Frequently, rather than actually
delivering the underlying financial instrument on that date, the differ-
ence between closing market value and the exercise price is settled in
cash.
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Goodwill
Any excess of the purchase price of a subsidiary over the acquirer’s
interest in the fair value of the net assets as at the acquisition date.
Goodwill is not amortised but subjected to an impairment test. A write-
down is made for any impairment loss.

Gross/net
The terms gross and net mean before and after deduction of the portion
attributable to business ceded in reinsurance. Instead of “net”, the term
“for own account” is sometimes used.

Hedging
Protecting against undesirable developments in prices by means of
special financial contracts, especially — derivative financial instruments.
Depending on the risk to be hedged, a distinction is made between two
basic types: “fair value hedges” safeguard assets or liabilities against
the risk of changes in value; “cash flow hedges” reduce the risk of fluc-
tuations in future cash flows.

IBNR reserves
Pravisions for claims that are not yet known to the insurer (IBNYR =
incurred but not yet reported) but also for claims whose case reserves
are not sufficient {(1BNER = incurred but not enough reserved).

Integrated risl management (1RM)
Holistic management of insurance risks in life and non-life business and
of investment risks. IRM essentially rests on four pillars — asset-liability
management, active capital management, — accumulation control and
operational risks.

International Accounting Standards {1As)/

International Financial Reporting Standards (1FRS)
Standards formulated by the — 1asB with the intention of achieving
internationally comparable preparation and presentation of financial
statements. Since 2002 the standards adopted by the 1asB have been
referred to as International Financial Reporting Standards (iFrs). Until
existing standards are renamed, they continue to be referred to as Inter-
national Accounting Standards (i1As).

International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB)
An international body of 14 accounting experts responsible for issuing
— 1AS/IFRS. The 1ASB's objective is to achieve uniformity in the account-
ing principles that are used by businesses and other organisations for
financial reporting around the world.

Investments for the benefit of life insurance policyholders

who bear the investment risk
Investments for policyholders under —» unit-linked life insurances. They
also include investments under index-linked life insurance palicies
whose performance depends on share or currency indices. Obligations
arising from this type of contract are mainly recognised under the bal-
ance sheet item “underwriting provisions for life insurance policies
where the investment risk is borne by the policyholders”.
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Layer
Term used in excess-of-loss reinsurance to denote a stratum of cover.
Its point of attachment and extent is defined in terms of the sum
insured. Example: €5,000 in excess of €1,000 refers to the iayer €1,000
10 €6,000.

Life and health
One of the segments in our segment reporting, containing the classes
of life (re}insurance and health {re}insurance.

Loss ratio
Percentage ratio of claims expenses to earned premiums.

Managed care service
Managed care service is a steering method for reducing costs in health-
care. Benefit management and risk management follow twin objectives:
improving cost management using a system of coordinated methods
and tools (e.g. by avoiding unnecessary treatment and tackling the
problem of fraud) whilst ensuring that patients still enjoy the same high
standard of treatment.

Marine
The insurance of ships and their cargoes.

Market value
The publicly listed market price obtainable for an asset in an active
market {especially the stock market price).

Minority interests in equity and earnings
That part of the equity and earnings of subsidiaries that is attributable
ta shareholders outside the Group.

Mortality table
Table developed using methods of probability theory for estimating
the expected mortality of policyholders in a portfolio of life or health
insurance contracts. It shows the probability of future mortality on a
differentiated basis according to age and other factors, often taking
into account demographic trends. Mortality tables with provision for
adverse deviation are generally used for measuring underwriting provi-
sions.

Net
- Gross/net

Net asset velue
Measurement for the — fair value of companies. The starting point is
the proportional equity capital of the company to be valued, plus the
valuation reserves.

Net expenses for claims and benefits
These include the expenses for claims (claims payments and the
change in the provision for outstanding claims), expenses for premium
refunds and the change in the remaining underwriting provisions (pro-
vision for future policy benefits and other), in each case after deduction
of the ceded share.




Net operating expenses
Commission, personnel costs and general expenses for the acquisition
and ongoing administration of insurance contracts, less any commission
reimbursed by reinsurers, including profit commission, plus expenses
from amortisation of — pvFp.

Non-proportional reinsurance
Under this form of reinsurance, the reinsurer assumes payment of the
primary insurer’s losses above a defined amount. The calculation of the
reinsurance premium is based on claims experience with the type of
business concerned.

Obligatory reinsurance
Although obligatory reinsurance agreements contain agreed periods of
notice, they are generally concluded for an unlimited duration. These
treaties between insurers and reinsurers may therefore run for long
periods (cf. — facultative reinsurance).

Ofishore energy insurance
Umbrella term for the insurance of risks such as oil platforms and
production facilities at sea, plus the related technical equipment.

Operating resuft
Consolidated result from ordinary activities, before finance costs and
taxes on income.

Options
Derivative financial instruments where the holder is entitled - but not
obliged - to buy (a call option) or sell {a put option) the underlying asset
at a predetermined price within a certain period. The writer of the
option is obliged to transfer or buy the asset and receives a premium
for granting the option to the purchaser.

OT¢ derivatives
Derivative financial instruments which are not standardised and are
traded not on an exchange but directly between two counterparties via
over-the-counter {0Tc) transactions.

Other securities available for sale
Securities that will neither be held to maturity nor are assignable to the
“held for trading” category. They are measured at amortised cost.
Changes in value are recognised in equity without impact on profit or
loss.

Qther securities held to maturity
Debt securities that the company has the intention and ability to hold to
maturity. They are valued at — amortised cost.

ther securities held for trading
Securities held for trading comprise tempaorarily held investments pur-
chased with the intention of obtaining the highest possible return from
short-term fluctuations in the market price. They are accounted for at
their fair value at the balance sheet date. Changes in value are recog-
nised in the income statement.

Parametric trigger
Predefined objective criteria that a natural catastrophe hasto meetin
terms of severity (moment magnitude in the case of earthquake; wind
speed in the case of windstorm) for cover to attach.

Policyholders’ bonuses
In life and health insurance, policyholders are entitied by law and con-
tractually to an appropriate share of the surplus earned by their insur-
ers. The amount of this bonus is fixed anew each year. As a rule, in life
insurance these bonuses increase the benefit payable on maturity of
the policy or on occurrence of the insured event; in health insurance,
they are paid by way of premium refunds.

Portfolio
Coliection of investments belonging to an investor or held by a financial
organisation. They primarily comprise securities, but may also include
real estate. In the case of investment funds, portfolio refers to the com-
position of investment instruments in the fund (equities, bonds, deriva-
tives, etc.). In the case of insurers and reinsurers, portfolio usually
means all the risks assumed in insurance and reinsurance respectively.

Premiums
The amount that has to be paid for the insurance cover provided by an
insurer. It may be paid as a regular or single premium. In the case of
products that are largely of an investment nature (e.g. financing treaties
and unit-linked life insurance) it only includes ~ under 1AS/IFRS — the
amount serving to cover the risk and the costs. In 1as/IFRs financial
statements there are no “premiums from the provision for premium
refunds” either. Premiums written means all premium income that has
become payable in the business year. The portion of this premium
income that constitutes payment for insurance cover in the business
year is referred to as earned premiums.

Primary insurers
Insurance companies that assume risks in return for an insurance pre-
mium and have a direct contractual relationship with the holder of the
insurance policy (private individual, firm or organisation).

Property-casualty
One of the segments in our segment reporting, chiefly containing the
classes liability, accident, motor, marine, aviation, space, fire and engin-
eering.

Proportional reinsurance
Form of reinsurance in which the sum insured written by the primary
insurer is divided proportionally between the primary insurer and the
reinsurer, and the reinsurer is allocated a corresponding share of the
premiums and claims.

Provision for future policy benefits
Underwriting provision calculated using actuarial methods to cover
future benefits to which policyholders are entitled, especially in life,
health and personal accident insurance. It amounts to the balance of
the present value of future obligations less the present value of future
premiums.
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Provision for outstanding claims
Provision for claims that have already been incurred at the balance
sheet date but have either not yet been reported or not yet been fully
settled.

Provision for premium refunds
Provisions made for obligations involving bonuses and rebates -
especially in life and health insurance — which are not yet payable at
the balance sheet date; the amount posted is based on supervisory
or contractual regulations. They also include the policyholders’ share
of accumulated valuation differences between (as/iFRs and German
Commercial Code {provision for deferred premium refunds).

pvFp (Present Value of Future Profits)
When insurance companies or individual insurance portfolios are
acquired, the present value of the expected earnings from the business
acquired is capitalised as “pPvFP”. This intangible asset arises in particu-
lar when life or health insurance companies are acquired.

Rating
Standardised assessment of the credit standing of debt instruments
and companies by specialised independent rating agencies.

Recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset under (FRS is the higher of net
sales price {i.e. sales price less sales costs) and the value in use
(i.e. present value of the future cash flows). The recoverable amount
plays a part especially in connection with impairments in the value
of real estate, where an impairment loss has to be recognised if the
recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount.

Registered shares
Shares registered in the owner’s name. They are entered in the com-
pany’s share register with the shareholder’s personal data and the
number of shares held.

Reinsurance capacity
Amount of cover that a reinsurance company or the market as a whole
can make available.

Reinsurers
Insurance companies that assume the insurance risks of other
insurance companies without themselives having any direct contractual
relationship with the policyholder.

Renewable energy
Also referred to as regenerative or alternative energies, these are
sources of energy that continually renew or replenish themselves or
are inexhaustible by human standards, i.e. are available in unlimited
amounts. The most important renewable energies are solar, wind,
water/hydro, biomass and geothermal energy.

Renewals
Although obligatory reinsurance agreements contain agreed periods of
notice, they are generally concluded for an unlimited duration. These
treaties between insurers and reinsurers may therefore run for long
periods. in such cases, the treaty conditions are usually adjusted in
renewal negotiations each year, and the treaties renewed.
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Retention
That part of the risk assumed which the insurer/reinsurer does not re-
insure/retrocede, i.e. retains net for own account.

Retrocessionaire
Reinsurance of reinsurance business assumed from other insurance
campanies (a reinsurance of reinsurance). Retrocession enables the
reinsurer to lay off part of its risk to other insurance companies.

Return on equity (ROE}
Indicator for measuring a company’s financial performance. it is calcu-
lated as a percentage ratio of the result for the period to the average
equity employed.

Risk
The possibility of negative budget variance inherent in any economic
activity. In insurance, it is aiso understood to mean the possibility of a
loss being caused by an insured peril. In addition, insured objects or
persons are frequently referred to as risks.

Rislc capital
The amount of capital hypothetically assigned for the conducting of
insurance of reinsurance business to ensure that the probability of
default in respect of the portion of the business exposed to risk is kept
to a minimum. The capital required for this purpose is calculated using
mathematical risk and financing models.

Risk controlling
Ongoing monitoring and control of risks and measures, including
methodological development and risk analysis/reporting, by a neutral,
independent unit that aiso proposes and initiates additional measures.

Risk management
Systematic and continual identification, analysis, evaluation and con-
trol of potential risks that may jeopardise the assets, liabilities, financial
position and results of a company in the medium to long term. The aim
is to safeguard the existence of the company and its objectives against
disruptive influences by means of suitable measures, and to increase
corporate value.

Risk trading
Trading of risks on the capital markets.

Scenario analysis
Type of analysis used to investigate how certain key figures (market
values or carrying amounts) change in the event that predefined market
developments occur. Scenario analyses usuaily take the form of aver-
age if-then analyses,

Security
Ability (and willingness) of a reinsurer to meet its financial obligations
from reinsurance agreements in full and at all times. Security depends
on such factors as earnings capacity, quality of investments, capitalisa-
tion and liquidity.




Segment reporting
Presentation of the items in the annual financial statements according
to classes of business and regions.

Solvency
An insurance company'’s capitalisation.

Solvency 1
Project of the European Commission to revise European insurance
supervisory regulations to protect policyholders against loss. The
project’s main objectives are further harmonisation of the financial
services sector, creation of a level playing field, risk-based determin-
ation of capital-adequacy requirements, inclusion of qualitative factors
in the supervisory process, promotion of active internal risk manage-
ment, and enhancement of risk transparency for supervisory authori-
ties and the public. Solvency 11 follows the three-pillar approach used
in Basle 1: minimum capital requirements (quantitative), supervisory
review process (qualitative) and market discipline (disclosure).

Spacial funds
Investment funds with a maximum of 30 unit-holders that are not nat-
ural persons. As the fund owners pursue specific objectives with their
investments, investment policy is geared to individual requirements.

Statutory surplus
Surplus recorded in the balance sheet of us insurance companies on
the basis of the statutory accounting regulations used by us state
supervisory authorities.

Stock split
Splitting of shares into two or more units for one, resulting in a lower
par value per share or, in the case of no-par-value shares, in a lower per-
centage of the company's share capital per share. The objective is to
make the shares less expensive to purchase and to boost share liquid-
ity. A stock split does not affect a shareholder’s proportionate holding in
the company.

Stress test
A special form of — scenario analysis. The aim is to make a quantitative
statement on the loss potential of portfolios in the event of extreme
market fluctuations.

Structured products
In the case of structured products, a — derivative financial instrument
(e.g. an — option) is combined with a non-derivative instrument (e.g. a
bond). Structured products are also referred to as hybrid products.

Sublimit
Specific upper limit of liability, e.g. for certain risk classes or geographi-
cal scopes of cover under a {relinsurance contract.

Subordinated bonds
In the event of liquidation, dissolution or insolvency of the loan debtor
or in the event of debt composition proceedings or other processes to
avoid insolvency being taken against the loan debtor, the claims of
holders of subordinated bonds are satisfied after the claims of all other
non-subordinated creditors. In other words, payments on subordinated
bonds are not made until claims of third parties against the bond debtor
arising from non-subordinated liabilities have been fully satisfied.

Sustainable development
A type of development that satisfies the needs of the present without
jeopardising the needs of future generations.

Swap
Agreement between two counterparties to exchange payment flows
over a specified period in order to profit from relative cost benefits
that one party enjoys on a particular financial market. In the case of an
interest-rate swap, payment obligations in the same currency but with
different interest-rate conditions (e.g. fixed/variable) are exchanged. In
the case of currency swaps, the payment obligations exchanged are in
different currencies.

Termination rate
Basis for measuring underwriting provisions in life and health insurance
and pension obligations. It measures the probability of a policy being
terminated because of death, lapse or other circumstances, leading to
the payment of policy benefits or the cessation of annuity payments.

Third Party Administration {TPaA)
An independent corporate entity (third party) that administers benefits
and claims for risk carriers and self-insured schemes. A TPA does not
typically assume risk.

Underwriters
Member of an insurance or reinsurance company that acts on behalf
of his or her employer to negotiate, accept or reject theterms of a
(re)insurance contract.

Underwriting provisions
Uncertain liabilities directly connected with insurance business. These
provisions are made to ensure that obligations under insurance con-
tracts can always be met.

Underwriting resuit
Balance of income and expenses apportionable to (re)insurance busi-
ness.

Unearned premiums
The portion of premium income in the business year that is attributable
1o periods after the balance sheet date is accounted for in the under-
writing provisions as unearned premiums.




U-Vv

Unit-linked life insurance
A type of life insurance with a savings component, where the benefits
payable depend on the performance of the assets invested in a fund.
The investment risk is borne by the policyholder.

Universal life
Contracts in life primary insurance where the amount of the premi-
ums or benefits is not guaranteed or fixed, and the policyholder can
vary the premium payments within certain limits.

us Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (US GAAP)
The principles of Us accounting that are stipulated as compulsory for
guoted companies in the USA. The individual accounting standards
are referred to as — Financial Accounting Standards (FAS).
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Value at risk
Method of quantifying risk, which measures the potential future
losses that may not be exceeded within a specified period and with a
specified probability.

Value-based management
Concept geared to increasing the value of acompany on a long-term
basis. Value is only created long term if a company regularly earns a
profit that exceeds the costs of the equity capital invested.

Voting right
Every shareholder has a legal right to vote at the Annual General
Meeting. The number of votes that a shareholder has depends on the
number of shares with voting rights held. Shareholders can arrange
for their voting rights to be exercised by a third party, e.g. a bank ora
shareholders’ association (proxy).




index of key terms

Abu Dhabi 3,7 15, 26, 28, 29, 68 New Re 82

Allianz 4, 33,62, 94,101, 103, 128 North America 43,78

American Re 3,4, 10,11, 31, 43,47 61, 64, 69, 80f., 98, 103, 125, 134

Annual General Meeting 35, 1121, Postbank 3, 86

Asia, Australasia, Africa 43,75 Primary insurance 44f., 83ff., 118, 120f.
Asset-liability management 39, 41, 99, 121, 123, 126, 130ff. Property-casualty 69, 85, 88

Asset management — Investments
Rating 102,128

BHW 3,62,86,94,128 Reinsurance 64ff., 118,120
Board of Management 3,8, 12, 38,51, 63f,, 112ff., 123 Remuneration 113 ff., 2056
Retrocession 15, 20f., 39, 44, 61, 79, 82, 127, 201
Catastrophe bond 3, 20, 35,127 Risk capital 5, 6, 38, 46, 49,126
Climate 16, 107, 124 Risk management 3, 6, 10, 15, 18f., 21, 39f,, 99, 125ff.
Combined ratio 48f., 50, 64, 69, 82, 84, 86, 91, 122f., 125, 200 Risk model 15, 17, 39, 49, 57,59, 99, 123, 128f.
Commerzbank 62, 86,94, 128 RORAC 5,7 39,50f, 118, 122
Corporate governance 11f.,, 112ff,, 118f,, 162
Corporate Underwriting/Giobal Clients (cucc) 43, 87 Shares ic*, 31ff., 95, 207
Solvency 1l 57,589, 132
D.A.S. 45,109 Special and Financial Risks (SFR) 44, 81
Demography 57 105, 118 Staff 108f., 132, 202, 205
Diversification 4f., 20, 37, 39, 126, 130ff. Strategy 6, 10, 38ff., 47, 118, 134
Dividend 4, 32,118, 207 Supervisory Board 10ff., 52, 551, 112ff,, 118f.
DKv 25,69, 120 Sustainability 33f., 95
Embedded value 11, 48f, 50, 122 Temple Insurance Company 43,79
Equity 47f., 48, 100ff., 121, 168, 177
ERGO 42,45, 83, 86, 107ff., 109, 131, 134 Underwriting 17,50, 105
ERGO Trust 3, 46, 92 UniCredit 3,4, 11, 33, 45, 62, 86, 96f., 100, 103, 128
Europaische Reiseversicherung 45, 83,88
Europe 1 43,72 Value-based management 6, 397, 471f.
Europe 2 and Latin America 43,72 VICTORIA 45, 107,109, 132
Geo Risks Research 17,105, 125 Watkins Syndicate 45, 83, 90

Gloria 11, 109, 131

Hamburg-Mannheimer 45, 109

Health insurance 26, 28, 29, 57, 60, 62, 68, 87f., 133

Health market 6, 26, 29, 37, 120

Hurricanes 3, 11, 14, 16f,, 39, 48f., 62, 66f., 70, 761., 78, 82, 87,91, 103, 120,
124,134

HVB 3,4, 11, 33, 45, 62, 86, 96f,, 100, 103, 128

Investments 4, 6, 39, 45, 48ff., 50, 63f., 65, 84, 92, 94ff., 1001, 103, 121, 126,
130ff., 133, 156, 183
IT 86, 105, 1107, 131

Karlsruher Insurance Group 3,45, 61, 63, 85f., 88, 95, 100, 106, 134
Katrina 3, 15, 161., 21, 57, 61, 70, 126f., 127,133
Key indicators ic”, 33,50, 61

Life and Health 43, 66
Life insurance 59, 85, 86, 198

MAN 4, 62,95

MEAG 3,45, 86,92, 97, 105, 121,128, 133

Mercur Assistance 45

Mdinchener Riick ltalia 74

Munich American Capital Markets 44, 81

Munich American Reassurance Company 67
Munich-American RiskPartners 64, 82

Munich Holdings of Australasia 76

Munich Re Asia Capital Management Ltd 92
Munich Re Capital Management Corp. 92

Munich Re Foundation 3, 108

Munich Reinsurance Canada Non-Life Group 80f.
Munich Reinsurance Company of Africa 77

Munich Reinsurance Company of Australasia 68, 76
Munich Reinsurance Company of Canada 43, 67,79 *Ic = Inside cover

221




Important addresses

Mdinchener Rickversicherungs-Geselischaft
Koniginstrasse 107

80802 Miinchen

Germany

Reinsurance

UK

Great Lakes Reinsurance (Uk) pLC

Upper Ground Floor

1, Minster Court

Mincing Lane, London EC3R 7AA

Tel.: +44 207929 2893

Fax: +44 207623 5220

E-mail: correspondence@greatlakes.co.uk

Italy

Minchener Rick ltalia

Corso Venezia, 48

20121 Milano

Tel.: +3902 764 161

Fax: +390276 416900

E-mail: mritalia@munichre.com
www.munichre.it

Switzerland

New Reinsurance Company
Rue de I’Athénée 6-8
P.O.Box 3504

1211 Genéve 3

Tel.: +41223198500

Fax: +4122 3105 332
E-mail: geneva@newre.com
WWW.Newre.com

Canada

Munich Reinsurance Company of Canada (MRoC)
Munich Re Centre

390 Bay Street, 22nd Floor

Toronto, Ont., M5H 2Y2

Tel.: +1 416 366 9206

Fax: +1416 366 4330

E-mail: toronto@mroc.com

Temple Insurance Company
Munich Re Centre

330 Bay Street, 22nd Floor
Toronto, Ont., M5H 2Y2
Tel.: +1 416 364 2851

Fax: +1416 361 1163
www.Imroc.com/temple
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usa

American Re-insurance Company
555 College Road East

Princeton, NJ 08543-5241

Tel.: +1 609 243 4200

Fax: +1 609 243 8181

E-mail: info@amre.com
WWW.amre.com

USA

Munich American Reassurance Company
56 Perimeter Center East, N.E.

Atlanta, GA 30346-2290

Tel.: +1 770 350 3200

Fax: +1 770 350 3300

www.marclife.com

Australia

Munich Holdings of Australasia
PTY Limited (MHA)

Munich Re House

143 Macquarie Street

Sydney NSW 2000 Australia
P.O. Box H35 Australia Square
Sydney NSW 1215 Australia
Tel.: +6 129 272 8000

Fax: +6 129 251 2516

E-mail: MRA@munichre.com

South Africa

Munich Reinsurance Company of Africa Limited (MRoA)
Munich Re Centre

47 Empire Road, Parktown

Johannesburg 2193, P.O. Box 6636

Johannesburg 2000

Tel.: +27 11242 2000

Fax: +27 11242 2200

E-mail: mroa@munichre.com

You can find further addresses on our website at

www.munichre.com

Primary insurance

ERGO Versicherungsgruppe AG

Victoriaplatz 2

40198 Disseldorf
Tel.: 02 11/49 37-0
Fax: 02 11/49 37-15 00
E-mail: info@ergo.de
www.ergo.de




VICTORIA Lebensversicherung AG
VICTORIA Versicherung AG
VICTORIA Pensionskasse AG

Victoriaplatz 1 und 2
40198 Dusseldorf

Tel.: 02 11/4 77-0

Fax: 02 11/4 77-22 22
E-mail: info@victoria.de
www.victoria.de

VICTORIA Krankenversicherung AG

Victoriaplatz 2

40138 Disseldorf

Tel.: 02 11/477-0

Fax: 02 11/4 77-42 99
E-mail: info@victoria.de
www.victoria.de

Hamburg-Mannheimer Versicherungs-Ac6
Hamburg-Mannheimer Sachversicherungs-aG
Hamburg-Mannheimer Rechtsschutzversicherungs-AG
Hamburg-Mannheimer Pensionskasse AG

Uberseering 45

22297 Hamburg

Tel.: 0 40/63 76-0

Fax: 0 40/63 76-33 02

E-mail: PSC@hamburg-mannheimer.de
www.hamburg-mannheimer.de

DKWY

Deutsche Krankenversicherung AG
Aachener Strafle 300

50933 Kéln

Tel.: 018 01/3581 00

Fax: 01 80/5 78 60 00

E-mail: service@dkv.com

www.dkv.com

D.A.S. Deutscher Automobil Schutz
Aligemeine Rechtsschutzversicherungs-AG
D.A.S. Deutscher Automobil Schutz
Versicherungs-AG

Thomas-Dehler-Str. 2

81728 Minchen

Tel.: 0 18 05/17 01 70

Fax: 0 89/62 75-16 50

E-mail: info@das.de
www.das.de

KarstadtQueile Lebensversicherung AG
KarstadtQuelle Versicherung AG
KarstadtQuelle Krankenversicherung AG

Nirnberger Strasse 31-85
90758 Firth

Tel.: 09 11/1 48-16 66

Fax: 09 11/1 48-16 67

E-mail: presseservice@kqv.de
www.kqv.de

Neckermann Lebensversicherung AG
Neckermann Versicherung AG

Karl-Martell-Strasse 60

90344 Narnberg

Tel.: 09 11/3 22-16 66

Fax: 09 11/3 22-16 67

E-mail: presseservice@neckermann-versicherungen.de
www.neckermann-versicherungen.de

KarstadtQuelle Financial Services GmbH

Wahlerstrasse 2
40472 Dusseldorf
Tel.: 02 11/4 77 88-10
Fax: 02 11/4 77 88-01
E-maitl: info@kafs.de
www.kqfs.de

ERGO People & Pensions GmbH

Immermannstrasse 23

40198 Dusseldorf

Tel.: 02 11/49 37-76 10

Fax: 02 11/49 37-76 29

E-mail: info@ergo-people-and-pensions.de
www.ergo-people-and-pensions.de

Further addresses may be obtained from the 2004 annual
report of ERGO Versicherungsgruppe AG.

Europaische Reiseversicherung AG

Vogelweidestrasse &
81677 Minchen

Tel.: 0 89/4166-17 17
Fax: 0 89/41 66-07 17
E-mail: info@erv.de
www.erv.de

Mercur Assistance AG Holding

Vogelweidestrasse 3
81677 Miinchen

Tel.: 0 89/4 18 64-0
Fax: 0 89/4 18 64-130
www.mercur.de

Asset management

MEAG MUNICH ERGO AssetManagement GmbH

Oskar-von-Miller-Ring 18
80333 Minchen

Tel.: 0.89/24 89-0

Fax: 0 89/24 89-25 55
E-mail: info@meag.com
www.meag.com
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Reinsurance

Gross premiums written in €m 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Life 6,491 6,119 5,461 5,277 4,769
Health 1,320 1,421 1,415 1,284 1,131
Liability 2,561 2,606 3,444 3,514 2,402
Accident 1,052 1,080 1,283 1,302 1.213
Motor 2,671 2,890 3,186 3,337 3,448
Marine, aviation, space 1,654 1,609 1,742 1,896 1,388
Fire 3,701 3,775 4,874 5,294 4,481
Engineering 1,299 1,281 1,393 1,443 1,448
Other classes of business 1,609 1,616 1,987 2,098 1,905
Loss ratio in %

Health 66.3 68.5 69.9 775 82.5
Liability 96.9 96.4 84.1 144.4 114.4
Accident 83.4 82.2 72.8 128.8 80.6
Motor 715 876 79.1 84.6 85.9
Marine, aviation, space 80.8 €6.1 60.0 72.7 134.3
Fire 107.8 54.2 60.3 80.9 136.1
Engineering 40.0 574 64.4 75.8 103.3
Other classes of business 63.4 471 60.3 98.2 70.2
Expense ratio in %

Health 31.0 30.4 29.1 26.9 314
Liability 27.9 278 279 26.8 331
Accident 27.6 3356 31.0 29.6 32.1
Motor 23.1 25.1 23.8 23.2 25.2
Marine, aviation, space 25.8 23.5 24.8 22.3 30.0
Fire 28.0 276 26.2 26.4 28.4
Engineering 35.3 32.1 30.1 29.4 34.9
Other classes of business 34.7 28.4 29.3 32.4 36.2
Combined ratio in %

Health 97.3 98.9 99.0 104.4 113.9
Liability 124.8 124.2 112.0 171.2 1475
Accident 111.0 115.8 103.8 158.2 112.7
Motor 94.6 112.7 102.7 107.8 111.1
Marine, aviation, space 106.6 ;89.6 84.8 95.0 164.3
Fire 135.8 81.8 86.5 107.3 165.5
Engineering 75.3 89.5 94.5 105.2 138.2
Other classes of business 98.1 75.8 89.6 130.6 106.4
Primary insurance

Gross premiums written in €m 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Life 7,438 7787 8,011 7514 72112
Health 4,892 4,537 4,547 4,238 4,010
Property-casualty 5,242 5,202 5,082 4,841 4,593
Combined ratio in %

Property-casualty {including legal expenses insurance) 93.1 93.0 96.4 99.9 101.4
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31.12,2005 30.9.2005  30.6.2005  31.3.2005
Balance sheet
Investments €m 177,171 186,610 184,099 179,328
Equity €m 24,653 22,591° 21,965 21,246
Net underwriting provisions €m 154,065 164,167 162,504 158,386
Balance sheet total €m 218,639 227,141 224,378 219,632
Shares
Share price € 114.38 95.00 88.12 92.94
Munich Re's market capitalisation €bn 26.3 21.8 20.2 21.3
Other
Combined ratio
non-life reinsurance % 110.5 108.2 99.8 96.5
Number of staff 37,953 40,406 40,641 40,846
*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1As 1 (rev. 2003).
in€m Total Q4 2005 Q3 2005° Q2 2005 Q12005
Income statement
Gross premiums written 38,199 9,574 9,245 9,220 10,160
1. Earned premiums
- Gross 38,251 9,999 9,434 9,548 9,270
- Ceded 2,041 593 500 495 453
~ Net 36,210 9,406 8,934 9,053 8,817
2. Investment result 10,818 2,766 3,078 2,517 2,457
3. Other income 1,465 355 316 476 318
Total income {1-3) 48,493 12,527 12,328 12,046 11,592
4. Expenses for claims and benefits
~ Gross 35,559 8,946 9,984 8,452 8,177
- Ceded 2,208 716 827 301 364
- Net 33,351 8,230 9,157 8,151 7813
5. Operating expenses
~ Gross 9,611 2,570 2,304 2,383 2,354
- Ceded 444 84 159 103 98
- Net 9,167 2,488 2,145 2,280 2,256
6. Other expenses 1,838 556 374 517 391
Total expenses (4-6) 44,356 11,272 11,676 10,948 10,460
7. Result before amortisation and impairment losses of
goodwill 4,137 1,255 652 1,098 1,132
8. Amortisation and impairment losses of goodwill 7 3 - 4 -
9. Operating result 4,130 1,252 652 1,094 1,132
10. Finance costs 378 88 86 101 103
11. Taxes on income 1,009 -197 54 811 341
12. Consolidated result 2,743 1,381 512 182 688
Thereof:
- Attributable to Munich Re equity holders 2,671 1,339 492 164 676
- Attributable to minority interests 72 22 20 18 12
*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1as 1 (rev. 2003).
Total Q4 2005 Q3 2005 Q2 2005 Q12005
Earnings per share 11.70 5.87 2.18 0.72 2.96




31.12.2005 31.12.2004 31.12.2003 31.12.2002 31.12.2001
Balance sheet
Investments €m 177,171 178,132 171,881 156,278 161,994
Equity” €m 24,653 20,644" 19,298" 13,948 19,357
Net underwriting provisions €m 154,065 164,327 147,476 142,966 138,642
Balance sheet total €m 218,639 214,791 209,384 196,441 202,054
Shares
Dividend per share € 3.10 2.00 1.25 1.25 1.25
Amount distributed £€m 707 457 286 223 221
Share price € 114.38 90.45 96.12 114.00 305.00
Munich Re’s market capitalisation €bn 26.3 20.8 221 20.4 54.0
Other
Combined ratio non-life reinsurance % 110.5 98.9 96.7 122.4 135.1
Number of staff 37,953 40,962 41,431 41,396 38,317
*Adjusted owing to first-time application of 1as 1 (rev. 2003).
in€m 2005 2004” 2003 2002 2001
Income statement
Gross premiums written 38,199 38,071 40,431 40,014 36,123
Net earned premiums 36,210 36,534 37,617 36,306 31,680
Investment result 10,818 8,041 7,131 4,935 10,420
Other income 1,465 1,116 1,211 1,351 892
Total income 48,493 45,691 45,959 42,592 42,992
Net expenses for claims and benefits 33,351 31,636 32,487 31,265 34,162
Net operating expenses 9,167 8,847 8,997 8,933 7.758
Other expenses 1,838 1,839 2,504 2,414 1,517
Total expenses 44,356 42,322 43,988 42,612 43,437
Resuit before amortisation and impairment losses of goodwill 4,137 3,369 1,971 =20 -445
Amortisation and impairment losses of goodwill 7 344 687 371 230
Operating result before taxes on income 4,130 3,025 1,284 -391 -875
Finance costs 378 426 - = =
Taxes on income 1,009 712 1,752 -605 -1,070
Consolidated result 2,743 1,887 -468~ 214 395"
Thereof: ‘
— Attributable to Munich Re equity holders 2,671 1,833 -434 288 250 4‘
- Attributable to minority interests 72 54 -34 -74 145 :
*Adjusted owing to first-time application of IAs 1 {rev. 2003)
**Finance costs shown under "other expenses”.
in€ 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Earnings per share 11.70 8.01 -2.25 1.54” 1.34"
Earnings per share, diluted - - - - 1.34"

*Taking into account the capital increase in November 2003.
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